THE MAGNETISM AND COORDINATION CHEMISTRY OF MONONUCLEAR AND POLYNUCLEAR COMPLEXES OF COPPER(II) AND OTHER FIRST ROW TRANSITION METAL IONS DERIVED FROM OPEN-CHAIN DIAZINE (N-HO LICANDS



TOTAL OF 10 PAGES ONLY MAY BE XEROXED

(Without Author's Permission)







The Magnetism and Coordination Chemistry of Mononuclear and Polynuclear Complexes of Copper(II) and other First Row Transition Metal Ions Derived from Open-Chain Diazine (N-N) Ligands

by

Zhiqiang Xu, B.Sc., M.Sc.

A thesis submitted to the

School of Graduate Studies

in partial fulfilment of the

requirements for the degree

Doctor of Philosophy

### Department of Chemistry

### Memorial University of Newfoundland

C April 1998

St. John's

Newfoundland

#### ABSTRACT

This thetis describes the tructures and the magnetic properties of the first row trunsition metal completees containing open-chain diazine (P-N) moieties. The purpose of the research is to establish a magnetostructural correlation involving the P-N single bond bridge and to investigate the coordination chemistry of open-chain diazine ligands to the effort row trunsition metal ions. A relevant Iterature search is presented in Chapter 1.

Chapter 1 describes a general introduction to magnetic exchange in polynuclear cooper complexes and a general review of the coordination chemistry of diazine (N<sub>2</sub>) bridged complexes. In Chanter 2, seventeen dicopper(II) complexes with five open-chain diazine ligands (PAHAP, PMHAP, PHMAP, PHAAP and PYPZ) are reported, in which the two copper(II) centers are bridged by a single N-N bond only. The X-ray structures of one ligand and twelve dinuclear copper(II) complexes were determined. Changing the ligands, together with varying the coligands leads to a situation where the dihedral angle between the copper planes can be varied from 75° to 168.5°. For small angles (less than 80°) ferromagnetic coupling prevails, whereas at larger angles antiferromagnetic exchange is observed between the conper(II) centers. The exchange integrals (-2J) vary from -24.4 to 210 cm<sup>-1</sup>. This is associated with the degree of alignment of the nitrogen p orbitals in the diazine bridge, and is supported by molecular orbital calculations on the complexes and appropriate models. Chapter 3 deals mainly with dinuclear conner(II) complexes containing two ligands bridging two metal centers. The dinuclear copper(II) complexes containing two N-N single bonds have no or very weak coupling because of orbital

orthogonality and the twisting of the two copper planes around these two N-N single bonds. A dicopper complex containing mixed diazine bridges (pyridazine/N-N) shows weak antiferromagnetic coupling and since the diazine unit in the aromatic ring system bridges two copper centers in an orthogonal manner, this net antiferromagnetic coupling occurs only through the open-chain diazine bridge. A tetranuclear copper complex contains two pairs of dicopper(II) centers bridged orthogonally by two µ,-1,1-azide anions with each pair of copper(II) centers bridged by one N-N single bond and one µ2-1,1-azide with a 119° azide bridge angle. The dihedral angle about the N-N single bond is 54°, which indicates either no coupling or weak ferromagnetic coupling via such a bridge. Therefore, the strong antiferromagnetic coupling (-2J = 246 cm<sup>-1</sup>) occurs only through the µ.-1,1-azide bridges between each pair of copper(II) centers, giving the first genuine example contradicting the spin polarization mechanism associated with azide bridges. In Chapter 4, a series of spiral-like dinuclear complexes of Mn(II), Fe(II), Fe(III), Co(II), Co(III) and Ni(II) ions containing three N-N single bonds with a formula [L,M,].(X)n.mH,O (L = PAHAP, PZHPZ; X = CIO, or NO, n = 4, 6) and a seven-coordinate Fe(III) complex are discussed. The X-ray structures of six of these complexes have been determined. Variable-temperature magnetic properties, electrochemistry and spectra are discussed. Chapter 5 discusses the synthesis, structural and magnetic properties of some mononuclear and polynuclear first row transition metal complexes of the open-chain diazine ligands. The X-ray structures of eight complexes were determined. Two new coordination modes for open-chain diazine ligands have been

found. In the last chapter, a general conclusion about coordination modes, magnetostructural correlations, etc. of the open-chain diazine complexes is made.

#### Acknowledgements

First of all, I would like to give my sharks to my supervisor, Usiversity Research Professor Laurence K. Thompson for his advice and encouragement, patience and financial support during the course of the research and for his hidp with variable temperature magnetic studies and some of the MO calculations. His assistance and patience in the process of the writing of this thesis are gratefully acknowledged. As well, I would like to acknowledge the advice and support of the other members of my supervisory committee, Dr. C abkonsist and Dr. P. Goorthiou.

Special thanks are extended to Mr. D. O. Miller, Dr. H. J. Clase and Dr. J. N. Bridson of the Department of Chemistry, Memorinal University of NewFoundland, Dr. Andres E. Goeta and Prof. Judih A. K. Howard of the Department of Chemistry, University of Durham, and Dr. Glenn P. A. Yap at the University of Windsor for the X-ray structure deterministon.

By thinks are also due to the Department of Chemistry, and School of Graduate Studies of Memorial University of Newfoundiand for financial aupport during the course of this study. I would like to acknowledge all of my colleagues in the Tiompoon research group. Special thanks are extended to Mr. Christopher E. Steppard for his help in using some computer programs and all other help as well, Dr. Stattokh S. Tandon, Dr. Makoto Handa and Dr. Craig Metthews for their kindness, your yukuahle suggestions and for making the time in chemistry mjotyable. In additon, thanks go to Mr. Murray K. Park for helpion nero use the Run Al Transmeti termentes. Thanks are also extended to all the students, staff and faculty of the Department of Chemistry, who have made my years at Memorial a good experience to remember.

Finally, I would like to mostly thank my wife for her understanding, support, encouragement and love, and for her care of our son.

#### **Table of Contents**

ītleI	Title
lbstract	Abstra
cknowledgements	Ackno
able of Contents	Table
ist of Tables	List o
ist of Figures	List of
ist of Abbreviations and SymbolsXXVII	List of
HAPTER I. General Introduction	CHAI
1 Introduction to the magnetic exchange in polynuclear copper(II)	1. 1
complexes	
1.1 Magnetic properties of polynuclear copper(II) complexes	1.1.1
1.2 The detection of magnetic exchange interactions by temperature	1.1.2
dependent magnetic susceptibility measurements	
1.3 Antiferromagnetic interactions, ferromagnetic interactions and	1.1.3
magnetostructural correlations	
2 Polynuclear copper(II) complexes with N2 diazine bridges in	1.2
conjugated aromatic ligands	
3 Copper(II) complexes with open-chain diazine ligands	1.3
4 Scope of the thesis	1.4
5 Analyses-spectroscopic and physical measurements 32	1.5

	One N-N Single Bond Only	.35
2.1	Introduction	.35
2.2	Experimental	.37
2.2.1	Materials	.37
2.2.2	Measurements	.37
2.2.3	Synthesis of the ligands	.37
2.2.4	Synthesis of the complexes.	.39
2.2.5	Crystallographic data collection and refinement of the structures	.44
2.3	Results and discussion	.53
2.3.1	Structures	53
2.3.2	Spectroscopy	96
2.3.3	Magnetism	06
2.3.4	Magnetostructural correlation for dicopper(II) complexes	
	bridged by single N-N bonds	21
2.3.5	Molecular orbital calculations for the complexes and	
	appropriate models	127
2.4	Conclusion	42
CHAPTER 3. Dinuclear and Tetranucear Copper(II) Complexes		
	Containing two Diazine ligands	44
3.1	Introduction	44

## CHAPTER 2. Dinuclear Copper(II) Complexes Bridged by

3.2	Experimental	144
3.2.1	Material	144
3.2.2	Measurements	144
3.2.3	Synthesis of the ligands	144
3.2.4	Synthesis of the complexes	144
3.2.5	Crystallographic data collection and refinement of the structures	147
3.3	Results and discussion	150
3.3.1	Structures	150
3.3.2	Spectroscopy	169
3.3.3	Magnetism	173
3.4	Conclusion	186
CHAPTER 4. Spiral Dinuclear Complexes of Tetradentate N <sub>4</sub>		
	Open-chain Diazine Ligands with Mn(II), Fe(II),	
	Fe(III), Co(II), Co(III) and Ni(II) Salts	187
4.1	Introduction	187
4.2	Experimental	189
4.2.1	Materials	189
422		
	Measurements	189
4.2.3	Measurements. Synthesis of the ligands.	189 189
4.2.3 4.2.4	Measurements. Synthesis of the ligands. Synthesis of the complexes.	189 189 189

4.3	Results and discussion
4.3.1	Structures
4.3.2	Synthesis
4.3.3	Spectroscopy, electrochemistry and magnetism
4.4	Conclusion
CHAI	TER 5. Coordination Chemistry and Magnetochemistry
	of Open-chain Diazine Ligands in Other
	Coordination Modes
5.1	Introduction
5.2	Experimental
5.2.1	Materials
5.2.2	Measurements
5.2.3	Synthsis of the ligands
5.2.4	Synthesis of the complexes
5.2.5	Crystallographic data collection and refinement of the structures
5.3	Results and discussion
5.3.1	Structures
5.3.2	Spectroscopy
5.3.3	Magnetism
5.4	Conclusion

CHAI	PTER 6.	General Conclusions and Final Remarks	
6.1	Synthesis of t	he ligands	302
6.2	Coordination	chemistry	305
6.3	Magnetism		305
6.3.1	Magneto-stru	ctural correlations for dicopper(II) complexes	
	containing on	e N-N single bond	
6.3.2	Magnetic pro	perties of the dicopper(II) complexes containing	
	two N-N sing	le bonds or one N-N single bond along with	
	the other brid	ging species	307
6.3.3	Magnetism of	the other dinuclear and polynuclear complexes	308
6.4	Spectral and e	electrochemical properties.	309
6.5	Future work r	relevant to the transition metal polynuclear	
	complexes inv	volving open-chain diazine ligands	310
6.5.1	New homo- a	nd hetero-polynuclear complexes	310
6.5.2	Magnetostruc	tural correlations for the other first row transition metal	
	polynuclear co	omplexes bridged by open-chain diazine moieties	312
REFE	RENCES		314
APPE	NDIX L	Variation of Cu-N-N-Cu Dihedral Angle in Model Complex 1.	332
APPE	NDIX II.	Variation of Cu-N-N-Cu Dihedral Angle in Model Complex 2.	333
APPE	NDIX III.	Variation of Cu-N-N-Cu Dihedral Angle in Model Complex 3.	334
APPE	NDIX IV.	Magnetic Moment vs. Temperature Data of Complex 40	335

# List of Tables

Magnetic and structural data of doubly diazine bridged dinuclear copper(II)	
(Cu <sub>2</sub> N <sub>8</sub> ) complexes	17
Summary of crystallographic data for the ligand PAHAP and	
complexes 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-12, 14-16	48
Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) for PAHAP	
Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper	
coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Cl <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (1)	57
Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper	
coordination spheres and the ligand in Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Br <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (3)	60
Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper	
coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu2(PAHAP)(H2O),](NO3), (4)	64
Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper	
coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(NCS) <sub>4</sub>	
(DMF);] 2DMF(6)	67
Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper	
coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Bipy) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ].	
(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .4H <sub>2</sub> O (8)	71
	Magnetic and structural data of doubly distine bridged dinuclear copper(TI) (Cu <sub>2</sub> N <sub>2</sub> ) complexes. Summary of crystallographic data for the ligand PAHAP and complexes 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-12, 14-16. Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) for PAHAP. Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) for PAHAP. Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>2</sub> /PAHAP/QL H/Q (1). Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>2</sub> /PAHAP/QL H/Q (3). Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>4</sub> /PAHAP/HQ,D) <sub>2</sub> NO <sub>3</sub> , (4). Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>4</sub> /PAHAP/HQ,D) <sub>2</sub> NO <sub>3</sub> , (4). Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>4</sub> /PAHAP/HQ,D) <sub>2</sub> NO <sub>3</sub> , (4). Interatonic distances (Å) and angins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>4</sub> (PAHAP)(HZ)NCS) <sub>3</sub> . (DMP) <sub>3</sub> ] ZDMP(6). Interatonic distances (Å) and mgins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>4</sub> (PAHAP)(HZ)NCS) <sub>3</sub> . (DMP) <sub>3</sub> ] ZDMP(6). Interatonic distances (Å) and mgins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>4</sub> (PAHAP)(HZ)NCS) <sub>3</sub> . (DMP) <sub>3</sub> ] ZDMP(6). Interatonic distances (Å) and mgins (Dig.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in (Cu <sub>4</sub> (PAHAP)(HZ)NCS) <sub>3</sub> .

2-8.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu2(PAHAP)(Glyn-H)2(NO3)
	(H <sub>2</sub> O)](NO <sub>5</sub> ).3H <sub>2</sub> O (9)
2-9.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Aln-H) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ]
	(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .3H <sub>2</sub> O (10)
2-10.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(ACAC-H) <sub>2</sub>
	(H <sub>2</sub> O)](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> :H <sub>2</sub> O (11)
2-11.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP-H)(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>1</sub> ] (12)84
2-12.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PHMAP-H)(MeOH)(H <sub>2</sub> O)
	(٥٩)] [رز ١٩]
2-13.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PHAAP)(Br) <sub>3</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O)] (15)91
2-14.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu2(PYPZ)Cl2].H2O (16)94
2-15.	Infrared spectral and structural data of dicopper(II) complexes 1-1797
2-16.	UV/Vis spectral data for dicopper(II) complexes 1-17 (nm)103
2-17.	Magnetic, structural data and $\Delta E$ values of the dicopper(II) complexes108

3-1.	Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 18, 19, 21, 22
3-2.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>3</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>3</sub> ]
	(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> H <sub>2</sub> O (18)
3-3.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu2(PMHAP)2 (NO3)2 (NO3)2
	.3H <sub>2</sub> O (19)
3-4.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(DPPN)(H <sub>2</sub> O)(NO <sub>3</sub> )]
	(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>3</sub> (21)
3-5.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)
	(N <sub>2</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (MeOH) <sub>2</sub> )] <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> 2H <sub>2</sub> O (22)
<b>3-6</b> .	Infrared spectral data of dicopper(II) complexes 18-22172
3-7.	UV/vis spectral data for dicopper(II) complexes 18-22 (nm)172
3-8.	Magnetic, structural data of the dicopper(II) complexes 18-22174
4-1.	Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 23, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30195
4-2.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the Mn coordination
	spheres and the ligand in [Mn <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>3</sub> ](ClO <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> .5H <sub>2</sub> O (23)198
4-3.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the iron coordination
	spheres and the ligand in [Fe,(PAHAP),](NO,), 3H,O (26)201

4 -4.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (deg.) relevant to the iron
	coordination spheres in [Fe <sub>2</sub> (PZHPZ) <sub>3</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>e</sub> .5H <sub>2</sub> O (27)205
4-5.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the cobalt
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Co <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>3</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> .9H <sub>2</sub> O (28)208
4-6.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the nickel
	coordination spheres and the ligand in $[\rm Ni_2(PAHAP)_3][\rm Ni(H_2O)_6](\rm NO_3)_6.$
	4.5H2O (29)
4-7.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the iron
	coordination spheres and the ligand in [Fe(PHAAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )].
	(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (30)
4-8.	Hydrogen bonding distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) in [Fe(PHAAP)(H2O)2
	(NO <sub>3</sub> )](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (30)
4-9	Infrared and UV/vis spectral and room temperature magnetic moment
	data of complexes 23-32
5-1.	Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 33-37, 39-41
5-2.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHOX-H) <sub>2</sub> ](ClO <sub>2</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> H <sub>2</sub> O (33)252
5-3.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres in [Cu(PAHOX)(SO <sub>4</sub> )] <sub>2</sub> ·2H <sub>2</sub> O (34)257
5-4.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the cobalt
	coordination spheres in [Co(PAHOX),](NO,), 2H2O (35)

5-5.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the vanadium
	coordination spheres in [VO2(PAHAP-H)] (36)
5-6.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the cadmium
	coordination spheres in [Cd <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>3</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .6H <sub>2</sub> O (37)265
5-7.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the nickel
	coordination spheres in [Nig(PHAAP-H)g(H2O)_](NO3)g 2.5H2O (39)
5-8.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper and iron
	coordination spheres in [Cu, Fe(PHAAP-H)4 (H2O)3)(ClO4)5 (40)
5-9.	Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper
	coordination spheres in [Cu(II),Cu(I),(PAH),Bris] (41)

### List of Figures

1-1.	Schematic representation of the low-lying states in a dinuclear copper(II)	
	complex A-B	2
1-2.	Relative energies of the magnetic orbitals $\Phi_{\text{A}}, \Phi_{\text{B}}$ and molecular orbitals	
	$\gamma_{i_{\rm c}}\gamma_2$ built from these magnetic orbitals in a dissymmetrical dinuclear	
	copper(II) compex A-B	3
1-3.	Structural and molecular orbital representation of [CuVO[(fsa)2en]	
	(CH <sub>3</sub> OH)] and [CuCr[(fsa) <sub>2</sub> en](H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ]Cl.3H <sub>2</sub> O with H <sub>4</sub> (fsa) <sub>2</sub> en,	
	N,N-bis(2-hydroxy-3-carboxybenzylidene)-1,2-diaminoethane	7
1-4.	Strict orthogonal interaction in a trinuclear complex bridged by [CuCl <sub>4</sub> ] <sup>2</sup>	8
1.5.	The model compounds used by Kahn and coworkers to calculate the	
	dependence of $J_{_{AF}}$ on bridging angle (ct) and dihedral angle (\delta)	9
1-6.	Schematic representation of accidental orthogonality in trinuclear	
	copper(II) complexes bridged by RO/RCO2(µ2-1,3)	.10
1-7.	Molecular orbital representation of the spin-polarization mechanism	
	(a) free $N_{3^{'}}$ (b) $\mu_{2}\text{-}1, l\text{-}N_{3}^{'}$ in a dicopper(II) complex	
	(c) µ2-1,3- N3 in a dicopper(II) complex	11
1-8.	Segment of the chain structure of $[Cu_2(\mu_2\text{-}1,1\text{-}N_1)_2(\mu_2\text{-}1,3\text{-}NO_3)_2$	
	(μ <sub>2</sub> -1,3-Me <sub>3</sub> NCH <sub>2</sub> COO <sub>2</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ],	.13

1-9.	Schematic representation for the model compounds bridged
	(Cu-N <sub>3</sub> -Cu angle is 120° in both cases) by $\mu_2$ 1,1-azide/ $\mu_2$ -1,3-
	carboxylate (a) and $\mu_{2}$ -1,1-azide/ $\mu_{2}$ -1,2-diazine (b)14
1-10.	Examples of weak coupling via M-diazine-M links
1-11.	Moderate to strong antiferromagnetic coupling via M-1,2-diazine-M links16
1-12.	Schematic of representation of the diazine ligands
1-13.	Topology of the atoms constituting the bridging network in doubly
	N1,N2-1,2,4-triazole bridged dinuclear copper(II) compounds
1-14.	Flexibilities in open-chain diazine systems
1-15.	Topological variation of open-chain diazine ligands and their coordination
	modes
1-16.	Schematic representation of some open-chain diazine ligands23
1-17.	Type B complex without donor site at R (see Figure 1-14) hence N-N
	cannot act as a bridge (A); Schematic representation of a series of
	compartmental trinucleating ligands (B)
1-18.	Open-chain diazine ligands studied in this thesis
2-1.	Structural representation of PAHAP with hydrogen atoms
	omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)54
2-2.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>3</sub> (PAHAP)Cl <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (1) with hydrogen
	atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)

2-3.	Sructural representation of the weakly associated dimer in
	[Cu;(PAHAP)Cl_].H;O (1)
2-4.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Br_].H <sub>2</sub> O (3) with hydrogen
	atoms and Br (3B) omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)61
2-5.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>6</sub> ](NO <sub>5</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> (4)
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids).
	Significant hydrogen bonding contacts are shown (dotted lines)65
2-6.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PAHAP)(H2O)4](NO3)4 (4)
	viewed along an axis close to that of the N-N bond
2-7.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(NCS) <sub>4</sub> (DMF) <sub>2</sub> ].2DMF (6) with
	hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)69
2-8.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>1</sub> (PAHAP)(Bipy) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ].(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .4H <sub>2</sub> O (8)
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)72
2-9.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PAHAP)(Glyn-H)2(NO3)(H2O)](NO3).3H2O (9)
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)75
2-10a.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PAHAP)(Aln-H)2(H2O)2](NO2)2-3H2O (10)
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)
2-10b.	Expanded view of the coordination cores in [Cu2(PAHAP)(Aln-H)2(H2O)2]
	(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .3H <sub>2</sub> O (10)

2-114	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>2</sub> (FAFIAF)(ACAC+T) <sub>2</sub> (Fi <sub>2</sub> O)](WO <sub>1</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .Fi <sub>2</sub> O	
	(11) with hydrogen atoms and weakly coordinated $H_2O(6)$ omitted	
	(40% probability thermal ellipsoids)	81
2-11b	Intramolecular hydrogen-bonding contacts in 11	81
2-12.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP-H)(NO <sub>2</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ] (12) with hydrogen	
	atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	85
2-13.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PHMAP-H)(MeOH)(H2O)(NO3)] (14)	
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
2-14.	Chain structure of compound 14	89
2-15.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PHAAP)(Br)3(H2O)] (15) with	
	hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	92
2-16.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PYPZ)Cl4].H2O (16) and its weak	
	dimer association with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability	
	thermal ellipsoids)	95
2-17.	Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 1. The solid line was	
	calculated from eqn. I-4 with g = 2.138(5), 2J = 24.4(2) cm <sup>-1</sup> ,	
	$N\alpha = 20^{\circ}10^{\circ} \text{ emu}, \rho = 0, \theta = -1.85 \text{ K}, 10^{2}\text{R} = 1.3$	110
2-18.	Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 4. The solid line was	
	calculated from eqn. 1-4 with g = 2.25(1), -2J = 27.4(6) cm ^{4}, $\rho$ = 0.054,	
	$N\alpha = 36^{+}10^{-6}$ emu, $\theta = -6.5$ K, $10^{2}R = 1.0$	112

## 2-11a. Structural representation of [Cu,(PAHAP)(ACAC-H), (H,O)](NO<sub>1</sub>), H,O

2-21. Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 12. The solid line was calculated from eqn. 1-4 with g = 2.07(4), -2J = 173(3) cm<sup>-1</sup>, ρ = 0.0048, Να = 68\*10<sup>4</sup> emu, θ = -0.76 K, 10<sup>3</sup>R = 0.85......116

- 2-23. plot of -2J (cm<sup>-1</sup>) vs magnetic plane rotational angle for 1, 3, 4, 6, 9, 10,

12, 14(•); 8(0); ref [82] (\*). The solid line represents the best fit

	to the (•) data
2-24.	The symmetric and antisymmetric SOMOs for compound 1128
2-25.	The symmetric and antisymmetric SOMOs for compound 4129
2-26.	The symmetric and antisymmetric SOMOs for compound 12130
2-27.	The symmetric and antisymmetric SOMOs for compound 16132
2-28.	Comparision of expanded views of energy levels in complex 1(A) and 16(B)133
2-29	Model compounds for MO calculations 135

2-30.	Plot of orbital energies ( $\varepsilon_{\mu}$ , $\varepsilon_{\mu}$ ) against the magnetic plane rotational angle
	for the chloride model136
2-31.	Plot of orbital energies ( $\epsilon_{\rm s},\epsilon_{\rm s}$ ) against the magnetic plane rotational angle
	for the HzO model
2-32.	Plot of energy difference ( $\epsilon_{s}$ - $\epsilon_{s}$ ) for the chloride model138
3-1.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>3</sub> .H <sub>2</sub> O(18)
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)153
3-2.	Expanded view of the coordination cores in 18 showing the two copper
	centers twisted by N-N bonds and folded by nitrate bridge154
3-3.	Structural representation of [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .3H <sub>2</sub> O (19)
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)
3-4.	Expanded view showing the orthogonality between the two copper
	magnetic planes in 19 v/a N-N single bonds
3-5.	Structural representation of one of the two crystallographically independent
	molecules in [Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(DPPN)(NO <sub>3</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O)](NO <sub>3</sub> ), (21) with hydrogen
	atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)163
3-6.	Expanded view showing copper coordination conformation difference
	between two molecules in 21
3-7.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PAHAP)(N3)2(MeOH)2)]2.(NO3)2.2H2O
	(22) with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)

3-8.	Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 18. The solid line was
	calculated from eqn. 1-4 with g = 2.191(7), -2J = 0.4(3) cm $^{\rm d},$
	$\rho$ = 0.00046, Na = 75*10^4 emu, $\theta$ = -2.1 K, $10^2 R$ = 2.2
3-9.	$\chi_m^{\bullet}T$ vs. T curves for 19
3-10.	The symmetric and antisymmetric SOMOs for compound 19177
3-11.	Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 21. The solid line was
	calculated from eqn. 1-4 with $g$ = 2.097(12), -2J = 40(2) $\mbox{cm}^{-1}$ ,
	$\rho = 0.031,  N\alpha = 66^{\bullet}10^{-6}  emu,  \theta = 0   K,  10^{9}R = 0.64 \  \  \  \  180$
3-12.	Comparision of expanded views of energy levels of two dicopper centers
	in 21
3-13.	Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 22. The solid line
	was calculated from eqn. 1-4 with g = 2.15(7), -2J = 246(7) cm <sup>3</sup> ,
	$\rho$ = 0.0115, Na = 59*10^4 emu, $\theta$ = -0.3 K, 10^2R = 1.8
3-14.	The symmetric and antisymmetric SOMOs for compound 22184
3-15.	Expanded view of the energy levels for 22185
4-1.	Structural representation of [Mn3(PAHAP)3](CIO4)e 5H2O (23) with
	hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)
4-2.	Expanded view approximately down the Mn-Mn axis with some carbon
	atoms in the pyridine rings removed 200

4-3.	Up: Partial view of 26 with labelling of the ligand; Down: Expanded	
	view approximately down the Fe-Fe axis with removal of some carbon	
	atoms in pyridine rings for clarity and with hydrogen atoms omitted (40%	
	probability thermal ellipsoids)	
4-4.	Right: Structural representation of [Fe <sub>2</sub> (PZHPZ) <sub>3</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> -5H <sub>2</sub> O (27)	
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
	Left: Partial view with labelling of the ligand atoms206	
4-5.	Structural representation of the dinuclear unit in [Co2(PAHAP)]	
	(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> ·3H <sub>2</sub> O (28) (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)209	
4-6.	Structural representation of the dinuclear unit in [Ni,(PAHAP),][Ni(H2O)]	
	(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> .4.5H <sub>2</sub> O(29) (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
4-7.	Structural representation of [Fe(PHAAP)(H2O)2(NO)](NO)2 (30)	
	(40% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
4-8.	Hydrogen bonding network in [Fe(PHAAP)(H2O)2(NO)] (NO)2 (30)217	
4-9.	Chain structure of [Fe(PHAAP)(H2O)2(NO3)] (NO3)2 (30) in the a direction219	
4-10.	Schematic representation of the reaction of PAHAP with	
	Fe(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .9H <sub>2</sub> O in water	
411.	UV/vis spectrum of 1.74*10 <sup>3</sup> mol.L <sup>-1</sup> solution of 29 in H <sub>2</sub> O226	
4-12.	Cyclic voltammograms for complex 26 (GC/H2O/Pt/NaNO3)	
4-13.	Cyclic voltammograms for complex 28 (GC/H2O/Pt/NaNO1)	
4-14.	Variable temperature magnetic susceptibility data for [Mn.(PAHAP).]	

	(CIO <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> .5H <sub>2</sub> O (23). The best fit solid line was obtained from eqn. 4-4,	
	with g = 2.029(6), 2J = 2.08(8) cm $^{4},$ Ncz = 18*10* emu, $\rho$ = 0.0116,	
	$\theta = -9.6$ K, $10^{3}$ R = 0.95	
4-15.	Room temperature 'HNMR spectrum of PAHAP in dg-DMSO	
4-16.	Room temperature HNMR spectrum of complex 26 (up)	
	and 28 (down) in D <sub>2</sub> O	
4-17.	Shielding effect in the spiral-like complex 26 with labeling of the	
	current circle	
5-1.	Structural representation of [Cu2(PAHOX-H)2](ClO2)2 (33) with	
	hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
5-2.	Chain structure in 33 associated with axial perchlorate	
	bridging interaction	
5-3.	Double stranded chain structure in 33.	
5-4.	Structural representation of $[Cu_{2}(\mbox{PAHOX})_{2}(\mbox{SO}_{2})_{2}]$ (34) with hydrogen	
	atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
5-5.	Structural representation of [Co(PAHOX)2](NO2)2H2O (35) with	
	hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
5-6.	Structural representation of [VO2(PAHAP-H)] (36) with hydrogen	
	atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	

5-7.	Structural representation of [Cd <sub>3</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> 6H <sub>2</sub> O(37)	
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
5-8.	Expanded view of the coordination cores in 37	
5-9.	Structural representation of [Ni4(PHAAP-H)4(H2O)4](NO4)42.5H2O (39)	
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	272
5-10.	Expanded view of the coordination cores in 39	
5-11.	Structural representation of [Cu, Fe(PHAAP-H), (H2O), (CIO,), (40)	
	with hydrogen atoms omitted (30% probability thermal ellipsoids)	278
5-12.	Expanded view of the coordination cores in 40	279
5-13.	Structural representation of $[Cu(II)_4Cu(I)_2(PAH)_4Br_{10}]$ (41) with	
	hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)	
5-14.	Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 33. The solid line was	
	calculated from eqn. 1-4 with g = $2.069(22)$ , $-2J = 549(6)$ cm <sup>-1</sup> ,	
	ρ = 0.035, Nα = 49*10 <sup>4</sup> emu, θ = -1.0 K, 10 <sup>2</sup> R = 1.7	289
5-15.	Variable temperature magnetic moment for 40	294
5-16.	Room temperature <sup>1</sup> H NMR spectrum of complex 36 in d <sub>e</sub> -DMSO	
5-17.	Room temperature <sup>1</sup> H NMR spectrum of complex 37 in D <sub>2</sub> O	
6-1	Schematic representation of some triazoline ligands with	
	spectral data included	

## List of Abbreviations and Symbols

R	residual factor
s	local spin quantum number
s	dimer spin quantum number
z	dimer lattice coordination number
α	torsion angle, bridging angle, rotational angle
α,	angle of accidental orthogonality
۲	dihedral angle between $MN_2C_2$ five-membered chelate rings
β	electronic Bohr magneton
x	magnetic susceptibility
Δ	energy difference between symmetric and antisymmetric MO's
6	molar extinction coefficient
6,	energy of molecular orbital i
Φ	molecular orbital
P <sub>er</sub>	effective magnetic moment
θ	Curie-Weiss or Weiss-like correction
ρ	fraction of paramagnetic impurity
Ψ	Heitler-London (two-electron) wavefunction
PAH	2-Pyridylamide-hydrazone
PAHAP	Bis(picolinamide) Azine

- PAHOX 2,3-Butanedione monoxime picolinamidrazone
- PHAAP Picolinamide-picolinhydrazone
- PHMAP 6-Methyl-2-pyridinecarboaldehyde picolinamidrazone
- PMHAP 2-Acetylpyridine picolinamidrazone
- PTS 3-(2-Pyridyl)-5-(2-hydroxyphenyl)-1,2,4-triazoline
- PYPZ (2'-Pyrazinecarboxamide)-picolinamide Azine
- PZHPZ Bis(2'-pyrazinecarboxamide) Azine

### CHAPTER 1. General Introduction

#### 1.1 Introduction to the magnetic exchange in polynuclear copper(II) complexes

#### 1.1.1 Magnetic properties of polynuclear copper(II) complexes

The magnetic properties of a polynuclear complex involving paramagnetic metal ions are in general totally different from the sum of the magnetic properties of each metal ion fragment separately [1]. To interpret these results, magnetic exchange interactions are conterx, leading to diamagnetism, or by superexchange [2]. In which the intervening bridging atoms or molecules (often diamagnetic in their ground state) are capable of transmitting the magnetic exchange interaction. The superexchange can be divided into two categories: ferromagnetic and antiferromagnetic, according to the mode of spin interaction between the metal centers [3, 4]. The magnetic behaviour of materials has been widely eached motion services and theoretical abouts of view [5-12].

In dimuclear copper(II) complexes, both metal centers A and B (Figure 1-1) each have one unpained electron with effective electron spin s denoted as  $s_{i}$  and  $s_{a}$  and associated with spin angular momentum  $M_{i}$ . The interaction between A and B leads to two molecular attacks, namely a spin singles 2 = 0 and spin triples S = 1 with a single-triplet emergy gap denoted by 22 [1, 3, 4], which is called the incorpoic exchange coupling constant (Figure 1-1) [13]. Figure 1-1 also above the soid zero-field splitting D (anisotropic spin-spin interaction) and the thembit zero-field splitting D due to the second-order spin-spin-brit coupling. The anisotropic spin-spin interaction leads to a much smaller energy gap compared with instropic exchange. If S = 0 is the ground state, J is negative and the interaction is antiferromagnetic. If S = 1 is the ground state, J is positive and the interaction from compared.



Figure 1-1. Schematic representation of the low-lying states

in a dinuclear copper(II) complex A-B.

Based on two samptions [1, 11] (1) the interaction is weak enough in order for the S = 0 and S = 1 states to be properly described by Heitler-London wavefunctions built from the magnetic orbitals and (2) the meth-and Langer transformed configuration of the type A-B or A-B  $^{-1}$  is much too high in energy to couple significantly with the ground configuration A-B, the sen measured exchange J<sub>1</sub> may be expressed in a relatively imple way as the and (two components: an antiferromagnetic negative component J<sub>40</sub> and a positive fromtogenetic component J<sub>40</sub> and a

> $J_{\gamma} = J_{AF} + J_{F}$  with  $J_{AF} = -2S(\Delta^2 - \delta^2)^{1/2}$  and





Figure 1-2. Relative energies of the magnetic orbitals Φ<sub>x</sub>, Φ<sub>y</sub> and molecular orbitals γ<sub>L</sub>, γ<sub>2</sub> built from these magnetic orbitals in a dissymmetrical dinuclear copper(II) complex A-B.

The difference is energy between the two singly occupied molecular obtaints  $\gamma_{a}$  and  $\gamma_{a}$  for the triplet state of A-B, built from the magnetic orbitals  $\Phi_{a}$  and  $\Phi_{a}$  is represented by  $\Delta$ . The energy difference between the two magnetic orbitals  $\Phi_{a}$  and  $\Phi_{a}$  (Figure 1-2) is represented by 5. S (overlap integral between the magnetic orbitals  $\Phi_{a}$ ,  $\Phi_{b}$ ) and () (the two-electron exchanges initization are given by

$$S = \int_{a_{max}} \rho(i) di_i$$
 and  
 $j = \int_{a_{max}} \rho(i) \rho(j) / r_i di_i di_j$ 

where p(i) (overlap density) is defined as

to

$$\rho(i) = \Phi_A(i)\Phi_B(i)$$

If the A and B fragments are identical (symmetrical, so,  $\delta$  is zero),  $J_{A^{\prime}}$  is reduced

$$J_{AF} = -2\Delta S$$

Several factors can affect the spin communication. The major factors include: (1) geometry at the metal centers [14]; (2) angle at the bidge [15]; (3) number of atoms in the bridge (distance between the metals) [16]; (4) identity and polarizing power of the bridging and non-bridging iscons bound to the metal [17]; (5) the presence or absence of
orthogonal bridge interactions [14, 17]; (6) the fused aromatic ring capacitor effect [18-20]; (7) spin polarization effects [17-21]. All of these factors are demonstrated very well by copper (II) polynuclear complexes.

The correlation of magnetic properties with these electronic and structural factors is so important that it has allowed magnetechemistry to provide a means for the preliminary characterization of the active sites of bioactive molecules (i.e. hemocyanin, hemorythrin, nitomacheoide reductase, cytochrome c oxidase etc.) [22, 23] and in catalycic processes [24-28].

# 1.1.2 The detection of magnetic exchange interactions by temperature dependent magnetic susceptibility measurements

For a mononuclear paramagnetic compound, molar magnetic susceptibility follows the Curie Law ( eqn. 1-1).

$$\chi_{\infty} = \frac{Ng^2\beta^2}{3kT}(S(S+1))$$
[1-1]

For a diructear compound A-B, a temperature dependent magnetic susceptibility measurement allows a good determination of the J-values because this technique can detect an energy separation down to about 1 cm<sup>-1</sup>. By using the isotropic (Heisenberg) exchanse Hamiltoniani G, and S, are the local tein countrum construct):

$$\hat{\mathbf{H}} = -2J(\hat{\mathbf{S}}_{\mathbf{A}}\hat{\mathbf{S}}_{\mathbf{n}})$$

the molar magnetic susceptibility is given by the population-weighted average of the susceptibility of the energy levels [29] (eqn. 1-2).

$$\chi_{m} = \frac{N \Sigma_{i} \left( \left( E_{i(1)}^{2} / kT \right) - 2 E_{i(2)} \right) \exp \left( -E_{i(0)} / kT \right)}{\Sigma_{i} \exp \left( -E_{i(0)} / kT \right)} \qquad (1-2)$$

Where  $E_{exp}$  is the energy of the level i in the absence of a magnetic field.  $E_i(1)$  and  $E_i(2)$  are the coefficients of the first and second order Zeeman effects respectively. When a sample is placed in a magnetic field, the first order Zeeman effect splits each level symmetrically size 25+1 component levels magning in energy from egfS to legills, while the result of the second order Zeeman effect is to make a temperature independent combinition to  $\chi$ . Therefore, the equation enders to (eqs. 1). [20]

where Not is a term which accounts for temperature independent paramagnetism.

For two s = 1/2 copper (II) centers, and considering two factors 1) that copper(II) complexes normally costain a small amount of paramagnetic impurity and 2) non-localized intermolecular spin interactions are commonly observed, the molar magnetic susceptibility  $\chi_c$  (per met1) one by low as

$$\chi_m = \frac{Ng^2\beta^2}{k(T-\theta)} \left[ \frac{1}{3 + \exp\left(-2J/kT\right)} \right] (1-\rho) + \left( \frac{Ng^2\beta^2}{4kT} \right) \rho + N\alpha \qquad [1-4]$$

where  $\rho$  is the fraction of paramagnetic impurity and  $\theta$  is the Weiss-like correction which accounts for intermolecular interactions. This equation is called the modified Blazary-Bowers equation [31], and is used to fit the variable-temperature magnetic susceptibility data for all new discoptill complexes described in this thesis.

# 1.1.3 Antiferromagnetic interactions, ferromagnetic interactions and magnetostructural correlations

Astiferromagnetic coupling , in a dicopper system involving a spin anglet ground state and a spin triplet exceind state, is comparatively common and has been extensively studied. However, ferromagnetic coupling is quite uncommon. The orthogonality of the interacting magnetic orbitals, which could be strict or accidental, leads to  $\Delta = 0$ , or in other words. a ferromagnetic interaction

In the strict orthogonal interaction cases, the famous examples are represented by [CuVO((fila),m)(CH,OH)) and [CuCr((fila),m)(H,O),[CL3H,O (H,(fila),m = N.N-bit(2hydroxy-3-carboxybenxylidens)+1,2-diaminoethano) (Figure 1-3) [11,22]. The magnetic orbitals  $\Phi_m$  in the above two complexes are  $d_m$  and are partitully descalated towards the



Figure 1-3. Structural and molecular orbital representation of [CuVO[(fia),en] (CH,OH)] and [CuCr[(fia),en](H<sub>2</sub>O)\_]Cl.3H<sub>2</sub>O with H<sub>4</sub>(fia),en = N,N\*-bis(2-hydroxy-3-carboxybenzylidene)-1,2-diaminoethane.

N and O atoms surrounding the copper due to the  $\sigma$ -type attribunding overlap, while the magnetic orbital  $\Phi_{m_i}\sigma + \Phi_{m_i}$  is  $d_{m_i, p}$  and a partially delocalized towards the O atoms but involves the n-type attribunding overlap. Therefore, the overlap integral between  $\Phi_{m_i}$  and  $\phi_{m_i} \sim \Phi_{m_i}$  is zero ( $J_m$  is zero) and the single-triple-tenegrap 1 is given by

$$J_{\tau} = J_{\tau} + J_{AF} = 2$$

which is positive. The ferromagnetic coupling is confirmed by magnetic property measurements.

By the same mechanism, some long distance ferromagnetic coupling systems were also found in the following two examples: A very weak ferromagnetic coupling was found in a trinuetar copper [11] complete through a very long bridging [CuCl]<sup>16</sup> anion, which has a distorted square pyramidal structure (Figure 1-4) [33]; and a rather strong ferromagnetic coupling was observed in a phthalano-bridged copper(10) trinuclear complex horing a fore (Cu-Cu-separation 67.8 Å) are a CuCl-Cu-Cu-Cu parations [51].



Figure 1-4. Strict orthogonal interaction in a trinuclear complex bridged by [CuCl<sub>4</sub>]<sup>2</sup>.

In the case of accidental orthogonality, the occurrence is not directly related to the symmetry of the complex. For very peculiar values of the structural parameters, the molecular orbitals for the system can become accidentally degenerate and the energy gap  $\Delta$  becomes zero. Any structural deformation will lead to the disappearance of this accidental orthogonality. The well documented system is [L<sub>2</sub>Cu(OH)<sub>2</sub>CuL<sub>2</sub>]<sup>2</sup>, which has a planar structure (Figure 1-5). Both experimental studies (by Hatfield et al. (35, 361) and



Figure 1-5. The model compounds used by Kahn and co-workers to calculate the dependence of  $J_{AF}$ on bridging angle ( $\alpha$ ) and dihedral angle ( $\delta$ ).

theoretical studies (by Kahn et al. [7, 37, 38]) show that the energy difference between the two copper (II) magnetic orbitals varies with the Cu-OH-Cu bridging angle  $\alpha$ . Based on experimental data, Hatfield et al [35, 36] obtained a very good linear correlation:

When  $\alpha$  is larger than 97.5° the  $J_{\mu\nu}$  component is predominant and the observed coupling is unifierromagnetic. When  $\alpha = 97.5^{\circ}$ ,  $J_{\mu} = 0$  and a ferromagnetic interaction in observed. However, for certain angles  $\alpha < 97.5^{\circ}$ ,  $J_{\mu\nu}$  should become the dominant component and an antiferromagnetic interaction will theoretically be observed again. A similar correlation was found by Merra and Hasse [91] in the CoRSy.Co system:

A magnetostructural correlation for phenoxide bridged disuclear copper(II) macrocycles has recently been proposed by Thompson et al. [15], which is somewhat analogous to that for the hydroxide bridge system.

While the magnetostructural correlation holds for planar Cu-(OH),-Cu compounds, it does not hold if the molecule is text along the O-O axis. Kahn et al. [10] studied theoretically the dependence of -2J on dihedral angle (3) for the hydroxide bridged system, where  $\hat{s}$  is the angle created by bending the molecule about the O-O axis (Figure 1-5). The MO calculations showed that by bending the molecule from planar ( $\hat{s} = 180^\circ$ ) to larger dihedral distortions ( $\hat{s} < 180^\circ$ ), the energy gap AE between the triplet molecular orbitals becomes drastically smaller, which means that for the hydroxide bridge,  $J_{xy}$ becomes more positive (main in magnitude) as  $\hat{s}$  increases from splanar to a dihedrally distorted structure and that 2J will increases for deviations from planarity.

Accidental orthogonality and ferromagnetic exchange coupling also have been observed in mixed bridged systems, such as Cu(II)-ROI(u,-1,3)RCO,-Cu(II) [40-44]



Figure 1-6. Schematic representation of accidental orthogonality in trinuclear copper(II) complexes bridged by BO/BCO.(u=1.3) (Figure 1-6). In such systems, the angle between the central copper magnetic plane and the terminal copper magnetic planes varies with changes in the size of R\* groups.

In addition to the orthogonality of the magnetic orbitals, both spin polarization by ligands like N<sub>2</sub>, NCS, NCO etc., bridging in an end-on manner, and orbital counter-complementarity effects, also lead to a ferromagnetic interaction.



Figure 1-7 Molecular orbital representation of the spin-polarization mechanism (a) free N<sub>j</sub>, (b) μ<sub>i</sub>-1,1-N<sub>j</sub> in a dicopper(II) complex (c) μ<sub>i</sub>-1,3-N<sub>i</sub> in a dicopper(II) complex.

The spin polarization effect was proposed to explain the observed formagnetism in  $\mu_{r}$ -1, i-axide bridged dinuclear copper(II) complexes. The formagnetism results through the interaction between the two copper(II)  $d_w$  metallic orbitals and the  $\pi_1$  MO on the stack, while the  $\mu_r$ -1,3-axide bridge teades to an antiferromagnetic interaction (Figure 1-7).

The spin polarization effect was proposed in the early 1980's by Kahn [17, 21] to account for the magnetic properties of these u. -1, 1-azide bridged copper(II) complexes with Cu-N, -Cu angles in the range 97.5°-105.5°[45-47]. According to the extended Hückel MO calculations [46], in this angle range the energy gap between the two molecular orbitals constructed from the de magnetic orbitals in the triplet state and appropriate symmetry orbitals on the bridging ligands was considered to be very small. Therefore the observed net ferromagnetic coupling is reasonable. It was also suggested that ferromagnetism should prevail for all azide bridge angles. However, recent studies in Thompson's group [48] showed that antiferromagnetic µ,-1,1-azide bridged dinuclear copper(II) complexes also can be produced with some dinucleating N, diazine ligands. which can generate a very large range of azide bridge angles (98.3-124.1°). In some cases, very strong antiferromagnetic coupling (-2J > 900 cm<sup>-1</sup>) [49, 50] has been observed. Detailed studies showed that when the azide bridge angle exceeds 108, the azide bridge is responsible for antiferromagnetic coupling. So, the u-1 l-azide bridge can enter an antiferromagnetic realm. Therefore the spin polarization mechanism may be inappropriate, or may only be applied in small angle systems. The question of an antiferromagnetic realm for the u.-1,1-azide bridge in dinickel(II) [51] or other dimetal systems still remains.

The orbital counter-complementarily effect has been well demonstrated by a chain compound  $[O_{a}(\mu_{c}^{-1},1-N_{c})(\mu_{c}^{$  The nitrates bridge the copper(II) centers axially in an alternating trans mode throughout the chain. The copper(II) magnetic ground states  $(d_{2,2})$  are based on the equatorial planes, so the exchange interactions would be expected to hannen only through the azide and



Figure 1-8. Segment of the chain structure of [Cu<sub>2</sub>(μ<sub>2</sub>-1,1-N<sub>1</sub>)<sub>2</sub>(μ<sub>2</sub>-1,3-NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub> (μ<sub>2</sub>-1,3-Me<sub>3</sub>NCH<sub>2</sub>COO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub>]<sub>n</sub>.

the carboxylate bridges. The spical nitrate bridges will contribute very little to the exchange since they are orthogonal. The axis bridge angle in this compound is 119.5(2)\*, which is much larger than 108°. Therefore, the espected coupling in this compound, based on the axide bridge alone, should be antiferromagnetic. Actually, variable temperature magnetic susceptibily studies even dominant instruction from from getting of 26 or 26 or 10°. This result has been satisfactorily explained by using extended Hückel molecular orbital calculations on simple model compounds [52].



Figure 1-9. Schematic representation for the model compounds bridged (Cu-N<sub>3</sub>-Cu angle is 120° in both cases) by µ<sub>2</sub>-1,1-azide/µ<sub>2</sub>-1,3 -carboxvlate (a) and µ<sub>2</sub>-1,1-azide/µ<sub>2</sub>-1,2-diazine (b).

The calculation for model compound a (**Figure 1-9**) shows exactly a situation where the ferromagnetic term becomes dominant, due to the orbital counter-complementarity effect [23] On the contrary, if the carboyates econy owas replaced by a diation (e.g. prividation) or hydroxide, the calculations, using model compound b (**Figure 1-9**), showed that the energy gap between the two forsier orbitals would increase compared with that of a monobridged  $\mu_c$ 1,1-axide,  $\mu_c$ 1,2-diatine or  $\mu_c$ OH complex. This gives an explanation for the larger auffermomagnetic intercalion observed in nucl. whereas.

It was also noted that the orbital counter-complementarity effect is responsible for

explaining the weak or even ferromagnetic [44] coupling in the Cu(II)  $(d_{x^2, y^2})$ -(R'O', R' = alkyl, H)/( $\mu_x$ -1,3)RCO<sub>x</sub>- Cu(II) $(d_{x^2, y^2})$  system.

# 1.2 Polynuclear copper(II) complexes with N, diazine bridges in conjugated aromatic ligands

N<sub>1</sub> diazine bridges in some copiagated aromatic heterocyclic ligands can bring two copper(II) enteres into close proximity and generate intranolocular exchange between the two copper centres via the m system of the heterocyclic ligand. This varies with the nature of the diazine ligand. Extensive studies have revealed that in the disactear copper(II) complexes involving pyrazine, pyrimidies and other related bridges, where the heterocyclic intragen donor centers are arranged at the 1,4 and 1,3 ring positions [54], very weak immandcatar antifromagnetic interactions were observed FP40 ere 1-10).



Figure 1-10. Examples of weak coupling via

M-diazine-M links.

However, for some heteroxyclic diaste ligand, with a 1,2-heteroxyclic nitrogen arrangemen, moderate to strong antiferromagnetic ocopiing has been observed depending to the identity of the ligand (Figure 1-11) [161-20, 55-63]. For essentially planet bit-(N2) ligand complexes in which the magnetic othal in  $d_{A,c}$  he -2J values are in the order of pyridazionlybuhalazine (455-550 cm<sup>2</sup>) [18, 61, 55, 66] > pyraxister (200-430 cm<sup>2</sup>) [55-57] > iriazionle (200-440 cm<sup>2</sup>) [58, 61] > 4-aminorizazile (<220 cm<sup>2</sup>) [59, 67] (Table 1-11) [60].



Figure 1-11. Moderate to strong antiferromagnetic coupling via M-1,2diazine-M links.

Compound	-2J(cm <sup>-1</sup> )	CuCu(Å)	Cu-N(Å) (diazine)	Cu-N(Å) (peripheral)	Cu-O(Å) (axial)	Ref.
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (DPYH) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (ClO <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ]	536(2)	3.760(2)	2.027(5) 2.014(6)	1.977(7) 1.974(6)	2.310(6) 2.554(6)	63
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (DHPH) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (ClO <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ] (ClO <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>2</sub>	489(1)	3.729	1.981(7) 1.965(8)	1.966(8) 2.019(7)	2.351(7) 2.615(12)	18
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (DPAP) <sub>2</sub> ](BPh <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>2</sub>	428	3.903(2)	1.929(4) 1.906(3)	2.028(3) 2.108(4)		55
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (BAMPZ) <sub>2</sub> Br <sub>2</sub> ]	384.0	3.947(4)	1.88(2) 1.96(1)	2.07(1)		69
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (BPYPZ) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ] 2H <sub>2</sub> O	361.8	4.044	1.954(5) 1.942(5)	2.074(5) 2.092(5)	2.22	57
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (BPT) <sub>2</sub> (CF <sub>3</sub> SO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ]	236(20)	4.085(1)	1.942(3) 1.936(3)	2.082(3) 2.087(3)	2.376(3) 2.802(4)	61
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (AAMT) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> Br <sub>3</sub> ]	220(2)	4.069(7)	1.950(3) 1.937(3)	2.032(3) 2.043(2)	2.647(3)	59

Table 1-1. Magnetic and structural data of doubly diazine bridged dinuclear copper(II) (Cu,Na) complexes.

(Note: For structures of the ligands see " Figure 1-12")







DPAP





AAMT



Figure 1-12. Schematic representation of the diazine ligands.

Detailed studies comparing the six-membered heterocyclic ligands pyridazine and phthalazine showed that the antiferromagnetic coupling was generally stronger via a pyridazine bridge than via a phthalazine bridge, because of a capacitor effect (fund somatic rings) [12:20]. For the five membered heterocycles the antiferromagnetic coupling was generally weaker compared with that in the pyridazine or phthalazine bridged system because the five membered ligand geometry forces the copper(II) ions to be further apart. Considering the polarizing power of the extra electronegative nitrogen within the same rings, which limits the exchange among the five-membered ring diazine systems, the pyraxolate propagates the antiferromagnetic exchange more efficiently than 1,2,4-triazole, 1,2,4-triazoles cr-4-amino-1,2,4-triazole.

A vary interesting phenomenon has been observed in some heterocyclic bis-disting copper complexes, when the coordination geometry is changed. Koningsbruggen et al. [1, 9, 59, 60, 65, 70] weinstigated the magneto-instructual correlations for distuction distribution  $N_{c}/1, 2, 4$ -triazole bridged copper[[1] complexes and found that the J value and the N-Cu-N angle (Figure 1-13) have a linear relationship, like the case observed for planar diluptroxo-tridged copper[[1] compounds. When the N-Cu-N angle decremans, the J value dimuticable increases to a maximum, with N-Cu-N = 00<sup>o</sup>.



Figure 1-13. Topology of the atoms constituting the bridging network in doubly N1,N2-1,2,4-triazole bridged dinuclear concer(II) compounds.

Theoretically, to obtain an effective propagation of superschange the N-Cu-N angle and Cu-N-N angle should be 90° and 126° respectively, because only in such a way can the electron delocalization occur effectively via the nitrogen atoms.

However, a surprising result [71] was obtained in a heterocyclic bi-diaties complex [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PTP)<sub>2</sub>(C)(C)), (PTP-3,6-big2-syridyhtikojyyridazina) in which the copper key heterocyclic and second complex static second and a spical close bridge to form a heat conformation. The antiferromagnetic exchange does not diminish significantly because of this best conformation, and is comparable to that observed for the planar complex [Cu<sub>2</sub>(DHPH)<sub>1</sub>(H,D)<sub>2</sub>(CO)<sub>4</sub>). This observation is supported by a theoretical study on a model complex [Cu<sub>4</sub>(OPTZ)<sub>2</sub>C)<sub>4</sub><sup>2</sup>, which showed that J<sub>40</sub> value was insensitive to the twinting of the copper planes relative to the pyraculate plane, but contrasts with another study on root-shaped bis-(hydroxu)-bridged dicopper(11) model complexes in which J<sub>40</sub> diminishes with the decreasing of the disketal angle between the copper planes [10,72] (see Figure 1-5).

# 1.3 Copper(II) complexes with open-chain diazine ligands

As mentioned above, the dicopper(II) complexes containing a diazine moiety incorporated in a heterocyclic ring system have been studied extensively. The main conclusion is that the diazine in aromatic heterocyclic ligands generally can fix two metal contexts in close proximity to provide an antiferromagnetic exchange pathway and the  $J_{\mu\nu}$ value is generally installive to the change of the coordination environment, even though a digit change of 24 wale has been observed in the 12,4-triatole bridged dimutest copper(II) system. The literature dealing with dicopper(II) compounds containing open-chain diazine ligands is rather limited [13, 73-76].

Compared with the diazine moiety in heterocyclic ring systems the  $N_2$  diazine linkages in open-chain systems are much more flexible (see Figure 1-14) and provide



Figure 1-14. Flexibilities in open-chain diazine systems.



Figure 1-15. Topological variation of open-chain diazine ligands and their coordination modes.

a very interesting topological variation. Depending on R, R', X, X' and the metal ions, coordination modes will vary with the changes in two types of angles, namely the torsion angle (a) about the N-N linkage and bend angles around the two nitrogen atoms (B or JP). The limiting situations of the changes of these two types of angles are noted in Figure 1-15 when R = R' = Fy and X = X. All these types are defined either for ligands or their complexes based on the arrangement of the ligands.

Type D (eis-eix conformation) complexes have not yet been found because the cis-eix conformation is believed to be aterically unstable. For the same reason the limiting situation of the trans-trans conformation Type A has not yet been observed either [77, 78].

A couple of Type C (circrams confirmation) copper(II) completes have been structurally documented. In 1983, O'Connor et al. [79] reported a PMK copper(II) complex with general formula Cu/PMKQNO), (PMK use Figure 1-16) which exhibits no significant magnetic coupling over the temperature range of 6-300 K because it consists of totaleaf monomers. In 1984 Thompson et al. [80] described an example of an IMAA (Figure 1-16) copper(II) complex, which has an analogous structure to that of (Cu/PMKQNO),). The only difference between these two complexes from the structural point of view is that the steneochemistry at the copper centre is closer to a square-pyramid in [Cu(PMKQNO),]. The only difference between these two complexes from the structural point of view is that the steneochemistry at the copper centre is closer to a square-pyramid in [Cu(PMKQNO),]. The only difference between these two complexes from the structural point of view is that the steneochemistry at the copper centre is closer to a square-pyramid in [Cu(PMKQNO),]. The only difference between these two complexes from the structural point of view is that the steneochemistry at the copper centre is closer to a square-pyramid in [Cu(PMKQNO),]. The only difference between these two complexes from the structural point of view is that the steneochemistry at the copper centre is closer to a square-pyramid in [Cu(PMKQNO),]. The only difference between these two complexes from the structural point of view is that the steneochemistry at the copper centre is closer to a square-pyramid in [Cu(PMKQNO), Cu(PMA), Cu(PM Another two mononuclear copper complexes, [CuBr<sub>2</sub>(HL)]H<sub>2</sub>O and [Cu(HPCT)(PCT)] (NCS) (HPCT, Figure 1-16) also involve Type C conformation [82, 83].

If there are appropriate donors included in R or R' (Fig. 1-14), the Type C (cis-truns) conformation can generate binuclear complexes. Abraham et al. [84] reported



05,007

Figure 1-16. Schematic representation of some open-chain diazine ligands.

a dimutear copper complex of a polydemate diacetylazine dioxime ligand (L-H, Figure 1-16). The attracture shows that the nearly planer (L-H) group behaves a a bridging tetradentate ligand. Each copper has a distorted square-psyramidal coordination including there N donors from two comises and a maire, and one O donor from each could here N donors from two comises and a maire, and one O donor from each could plane. Another dinuclear copper(II) complex containing a *cis-rows* diazine moliety of the ligand RPCT was reported by Rojo et al. [55]. In this complex, two copper centers were heidged D two S atoms from thiocynante and it exhibits very weak antiferromagnetic coupling because Co-S-Cu is close to 00° (07.0°).

A mixed case of *cirbrary* (Type (2) and *rears-ourse* (Type AB) conformations was found by Mangia et al. [86] in a termanclear copper complex [Cu<sub>4</sub>(D)P)Cl<sub>3</sub>(A(O), and its aukopuse compounds [87] containing the *L*-discotpytyrinethis bicjacolinosy-hydracous) dianion (H\_DDP. Figure 11-6). In the complex, two crystallographically independent metal ions are linked by diazine moleties originating from the octadentase DP ligand. The Type C (*cirbrary*) conformation has a 235° bend angid (2) and the Type B (*trans-ourse*) conformation has a torsion angle (ci) of about 50°. There is no report of the magnetic reporting of this complex. Another mixed case was reported recently by Pelizzi et al. [81]. X-ray crystallographic analysis shows that the copper complex [Cu<sub>4</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>(O))]. 34;Q (GH = bi(methyl-2-pyrik) tetone earloon-bydracone, Figure 1-16) is disorder. The copper complex centers have a mixed conformation of *cirb-rare*  copper(II) centers linked by a N-N bond. This complex exhibits strong antiferromagnetic coupling (-2J = 213.3 cm<sup>-1</sup>).

A number of **Type B** opeger(II) complexes have been reported including 4<sup>o</sup>, viand tetra-nuclear cases [89]. A typical **Type B** disudera copper(II) complex was reported by Lagreneie et al. [90]. The X-ray structures shows a disubsec complex of the Igand, (2-prindoy)) pyridine carbohydrazide (abbreviated as POHOP, **Figure 1-16**) obtained by opening of the oxadiazotoring in 2,5-bit(2-pyridyl)-1,3-c-oxadiazote via a hydrohysis mechanism. Baschi et al. [91] reasted a hydrazone derivative, di-2-pyridyl ketono [hearyl (semicarbazono))actry[] bydrazone with Cu-Cl, in ethanol and obtained another disulter opeger complex of **Type B**. The two copper context in both cases are bridged by an open-chain diazine mointy solely in the trans-trans (**Type B**) conformation with  $\alpha =$ 180°. Therefore, the two copper(II) centers in these two complexes might have strong coupling compared with the result observed in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(IIL<sub>2</sub>Cl<sub>2</sub>(I)<sub>2</sub>(I)), 151,O [92].

Two dinucter copper(II) complexes containing a **Type B** disaine ligand, in which only one nirrogan was coordinated, were reported by Ainscough et al. [92] and Koningsbruggen et al. [13, 93]. But in such dinuctaer complexes the two copper centers are linked by hydrogen bonds or by a [SE3]<sup>1</sup> group, and no significant coupling could be observed in these cases. If there are some appropriate donors in the ligands, strong coupling can be guested view tridiges (L. N., FMO). Some complexes of this type have been reported by Koh et al. [84], Wang et al. [95] (Figure 1-17 A) and Murray et al. [96].

Only one triauclase copper complex containing a compartmental triauclassing trans-trans open ring diasine liquing (Figure 1-17 B) has been reported [97]. Three copper centers in the complex have square-systemidal structures and are bridged by two trans-trans diasines (Type B). Nowever the center closer(DII) is using distinct ( t = 0.410 [97].



A

в

Figure 1-17. Type B complex without donor site at R (see Figure 1-14) hence N-N cannot act as a bridge (A); Schematic representation of a series of compartmental trinucleating ligands (B).

Even though the central copper(II) ion is still far from a purely trigonal-bipyramidal chromophore, such distortion would have a significant effect on the magnetic coupling. The magnetic simulations of the experimental data gave magnetic parameters g = 2, 10, J = -50 cm<sup>+</sup>, θ = -0.65 K and №a - -270°10° cm<sup>+</sup> mol<sup>+</sup>. Compared with the result in a cis-route and route-stream mixed diazine dicopper(II) complex reported by Pelizzi et al. [88], the trigonal bipyramidal distortion around the central copper(II) ion inhibits the magnetic coupling.

A very interesting structural type is the intermediate one between Type A and Type B. defined as Type AB (0°< a < 180°). Until now only two structurally characterized conner(II) complexes of this type have been reported. A magnetostructurally characterized dicopper(II) complex [Cu.(PMK)Cl.] (PMK see Figure 1-16) was reported by O'Connor et al. [79] in which the copper planes form a folded square planar conformation with an torsion angle (α) of 70.8°. This complex exhibits weak antiferromagnetic coupling (-2J = 52 cm<sup>4</sup>). A cyclic tetranuclear copper(II) complex of an asymmetric hydrazone ligand N.N-imidopicolinvloxamvl hydrazine [Cu(OPA)],(NO.), 8H.O (HOPA see Figure 1-16) reported by Koningsbruggen et al. [98] has a 90° torsion angle between the copper souare planes, and shows a negligible exchange interaction between the metal centers. It seems that when the torsion angle between the copper magnetic planes decreases, the antiferromagnetic coupling for polynuclear copper(II) complexes containing Type AB diazine mojeties also decreases, based on the results of magnetic property studies on these two complexes and [Cu,(HL)Cl,(H,O)].1.5H,O [86]. However it is not possible to reach any conclusion from these limited examples concerning a magnetostructural correlation based on torsion angle (a).

# 1.4 Scope of the thesis

The literature search for open-chain diazine ligands and their copper(II) complexes shows that although a handful of open-chain diazine bridged copper(II) complexes has been structurally characterized, variable-temperature magnetic and related structural



Figure 1-18. Open-chain diazine ligands studied in this thesis.

studies on such complexes are very limited. This thesis describes an extensive investigation of the coordination chemistry of conper(II), as well as other first row transition metal ions, with members of this class of open-chain diazine ligands, and focuses on magnetostructural correlations for dinuclear conner(II) complexes. To achieve these goals, a series of open-chain diazine ligands (Figure 1-18) and their complexes were synthesized which contain NH, or OH groups at the X or X' positions (see Figure 1-14). Compared with related ligands, such as PAA [73-76] and PMK [79], the ligands have several beneficial features: 1) The replacement of H or methyl in PAA or PMK by NH, or OH groups will possibly lead to the complexes being more soluble in polar solvents: 2) The NH, or OH groups will stabilise the ligands via super-conjugation effects, in other words, such ligands would have less reducing ability to e.g. Cu(II); 3) From the magnetic point of view, the NH, or OH groups can change the torsion angle (a) between two metal magnetic planes via either H-bonding or steric effects, which will affect the magnetic interaction drastically; 4) From the organic chemistry point of view, further organic reactions could take place at the NH, or OH groups leading to additional ligand functionality and extended coordination chemistry: 5) NH, or OH groups in the ligands could provide more coordination possibilities with formation of polynuclear complexes. These ligands present an unusual arrangement of potential donor sites, with many possible mononucleating and disucleating coordination modes. The ligand PAHAP as well as PHAAP has the potential for hexadentate coordination in a binuclear complex. Several possible modes for PAHAP involving pyridine and/or diazine and/or amino groups are

illustrated in Scheme 1-1. Despite the similar coordination modes of PAHAP and PHAP it can have another mode as shown in Scheme 1-2, which shows that the hydroxyl group in the ligand can lose a proton and bridge two metal centers. PMHAP and PHMAP have Scheme 1-1



Scheme 1-2



similar coordination modes and have the potential for pentadentate coordination in a binuclear complex. Another dinucleating mode for these two ligands is the intermediate Type AB. PVPZ may have similar coordination modes to that of PAHAP, with the exception that it contains one more nitrogen donor at the fourth position of the pyrazine ring, which can provide additional coordination possibilities. PAHOX not only contains an open-chain distate unit but also an oxine group which could act in a monodentate fashion at the N kinor as an N-O hedge.

In Chapter 2, dicopper(1) complexes with five open-chain distrile lignaft (PAILAP, PMILAP, PHIAAP, PHAAP and PYT2, Figure 1-16) are presented, in which the two corpor(1) centra are whighed by a single N-N load only. Changing the Signaft, together with varying -co-Signafs leads to a situation where the torsion angle between the copper planes can be varied over a very large range. The compution of magnetic exchange integrals and the tonsion angles between the copper magnetic planes for these complexes has allowed us to establish magnetoreuroural correlations for open-chain diazine bridged discoper(1) yritems.

Chapter 3 deals maily with dimidear copper(1)) complexes containing two opm-chain diazine ligands (PAHAP, PMRAP, PMPZ, Figure 1-1b) bridging two metal compared to the theorem and the propagation of the exchange interaction via one N-N ingle bond and two N-N single bond linkages will be made. In this chapter, the studies on a most annual tetramodear copper(1)) complex bridged by N-N single bond from the open-chain discine liqued and L-11-L axie will be also presented. Chapter 4 describes a series of spiral homodinuclear complexes of Mr(II), Fq(II), Fq(III), Co(III), Co(III) and Ni(III ions containing three N-N single bond bridges with a formula [L,M,] (X), mH<sub>2</sub>O (L=PAHAP, PZBPZ, Figure 1-18, X~CIO, or NO<sub>2</sub> in = 4, 6] and an unusual seven-coordinate Fe(III) mononuclear complex. The X-ray structures, variable-temperature magnetic properties, electrochemistry and UV/vis, 'H NMR spectra are discussed.

Chapter 5 focuses on a more extensive investigation of the coordination chemistry of the open-chain diazine ligands (PHAAP, PAHAP, PAHAOX, PAH, Figure 1-11). An analysis of the crystal structures of a series of mononauclear and polynoclear first row transition metal complexes is presented. <sup>1</sup>II NMR spectra of diamagnetic complexes and the agnetic properties of the paramagnetic complexes and the discussed.

In the last chapter, a general conclusion about coordination modes, magnetostructural correlations, etc. of the open-chain diazine complexes will be made. Some suggestions with regard to the future work in this field are given.

# 1.5 Analyses - spectroscopic and physical measurements

#### UV/VIS SPECTRA

Electronic spectra were recorded as Nujol mulls and in solution using a Cary 5E spectrometer.

### INFRARED SPECTROSCOPY (IR)

Infrared spectra were recorded as Nujol mulls using a Mattson Polaris FT-IR instrument.

32

#### MASS SPECTRA

Mass spectra were obtained using a VG micromass 7070HS spectrometer.

#### ELEMENTAL ANALYSES

C, H, N determinations were performed by the Canadian Microanalytical Service, Delta, B.C., Canada.

#### MAGNETIC MEASUREMENTS

Room temperature magnetic moments were measured using a Cahir 7600 Farnday balance and variable temperature magnetic data (4-305K) were obtained using an Oxford Instruments Superconducting Faraday Succeptometer with a Santonias 4432 microbalance. A main solemoid field of 1.5 T and a gradient field of 10 T m<sup>2</sup> were employed. Calibrations were carried out with HgCo(NCS), and temperature errors were determined with Theoretical Calibration (Calibratic Calibration).

#### ESR SPECTROSCOPY

ESR spectra were recorded with a Bruker ESP 300 X-band spectrometer at room temperature.

#### ELECTROCHEMICAL MEASUREMENTS

Cyclicolaumnetry was performed at room temperature in H<sub>2</sub>O and dimethylformamide. (DMP) (spectropailly grade dried over nolocalar sieves), under O, free conditions, using a BAS CV-27 voltammograph and a BAS XY necoder: A three electrode system was used in which the working electrode and counter electrode were glassy-andro and platium respectively, with a standard calonel (SCE) reference electrode. supporting electrolytes were KNO<sub>2</sub> for aqueous solution and tetra- ethylammonium nitrate (TEAN) for DMF solution. All potentials ( $E_{1/2}$  values) are reported versus the standard calomet electrode (SCE).

#### MELTING POINTS

Melting points were measured on a Fisher-Johns melting point apparatus and are uncorrected.

#### H NMR

<sup>1</sup>H NMR spectra were obtained with a General Electric 300-NB spectrometer with tetramethylsilane (TMS) as an internal standard.

#### 1.6 Safety note

Both perchlorate and axide compounds are potentially explosive and should be treated with care and used only in small quantities. In particular, Cu(N<sub>3</sub>), and many other simple ionic metal axides are explosive, so care must be taken to avoid using an excess amount of metal axid and axide during the preparation of the metal complexes. All axide and perchlorate complexes reported herein were tested by controlled mechanical impact to ensure their axides.

# CHAPTER 2 Dinuclear Copper(II) Complexes Bridged by One N-N Single Bond Only

## 2.1 Introduction

As mentioned previously, the literature references to copper(II) completess containing open-chain diazine ligands are very limited. Such diazine moieties in the ligands are much more flexible compared with those incorporated in hterescyclic compounds, and generate many coordination modes. Type B systems exhibit moderately strong exchange coupling with -2J value of about 210 cm<sup>-1</sup>, while with Type AB diazine bridge systems, which have a twisted conformation, variable exchange coupling pathways exist, i.e. -2J = 53 cm<sup>-1</sup> in [CutPMACC], [70], and no coupling in [CutPMA], [MOA)\_BHQ [98]. Therefore, systematic studies on the structures and magnetic properties of this type of polymclear copper(II) complex represent an interesting step forward towards he understanding diazine ligands, including their syntheses, structures, magnetic properties and MO modeling. The ligands PAIAP, PMIAP, PHIAP, PHIAP and PYPZ were synthesized V546mers 21.





#### 2.2 Experimental

#### 2.2.1 Materials

Commercially available solvents and chemicals were used without further purification.

#### 2.2.2 Measurements

Analysis, spectroscopic and physical measurements (see Chapter 1)

#### 2.2.3 Synthesis of the ligands

#### PAHAP (picolinamide azine)

This compound was prepared by a procedure different from that reported in the literature [103], with an improved yield. 2-synancypridme (20 \$ \$ \$ \$ 0.200 mol) was reacted with a solution of sodium methooids, generated by addition of sodium metal (0.46 \$ 0.000 mol) of up remained com 0.1, at room temperature for 12 to roig with a methyl tear of ininopicolinic acid [98]. Foolinamide hydrazone [101] (27.6 § 0.200 mol) was added to the solution of iminopicolinic acid enter in situ and the resulting clear solution was refluxed for 24 hrs. Cooling to room temperature produced yathow crystals (sidel 40.8 § 5.50%), which were tracystalized from ethanol and characterized by C, H, N analysis, MS, 'H NMK and pr. (m. 201°C) (k. 10.201°C).

# PMHAP

Ficolinamide hydrazone [100] (13.6 g, 0.100 moi) was reacted with 2-acetyl pyrdine (2.1 g, 0.100 mol) in boiling absolute ethanol (30 mJ, for 4 hs. The reasiling solution was cooled to room temperature, whereapon, yellow crystals were obtained (yids 17.9 g, 8.00%, mo. 117.118°C). Mass acctrum (main mass peak: mbl 23.900, 224 (M-CH<sub>4</sub>), 161, 133, 108, 78. Infrared spectrum, v<sub>cret</sub> 1613 cm<sup>2</sup>, v<sub>set</sub> 3465 cm<sup>2</sup>, 3318 cm<sup>2</sup>.
Anal. calcd. for C<sub>13</sub>H<sub>10</sub>N<sub>3</sub>: C, 65.26; H, 5.48; N, 29.27. Found: C, 65.26; H, 5.48; N, 29.42.

#### PHMAP

For ionimatic hydraxone [100] (15  $g_{0}$  0.100 mol) was added to a boling solution of 0°-methyl-3-syndine advocabilitykes (12.1  $g_{0}$  0.100 mol) in abolate ethanol (600 mL). The resulting solution was refluced for 4 https://doc.org/10.100 mol cystaki formed (yield 19  $g_{0}$  80%, mp. 125-126°C). Mass spectrum (major mass peak; m/2 329 QM, 238 QA:432, Q38, 147, 134, 119, 106, 79. Infinred spectrum, v<sub>cos</sub> 1618 en<sup>4</sup>, 1644 en<sup>4</sup>, v<sub>m</sub> 3464, 1455, 3360, 3300 em<sup>4</sup>. Anal. add. for CyH<sub>2</sub>H<sub>3</sub>, Y<sub>4</sub> : C, 652 dF, H 548, N, 2927. Fourth C, 6352 H, 1544, R2 2930.

#### PHAAP

13.7 g (0.100 mol) picolinic hydraxide, made from ethyl picolinate by reacting with hydraxine hydraxis in methanol at room temperature, was added to a 100 mL methanol solution constaining 0.11 mol of the methyl enter of iminopicolinic add. The clear solution was refluxed for 6 hrs. Cooling the solution to room temperature produced a pale yellow crystalline product (yield 85-90%, mp. 215-216°C). Mass spectrum (major mass peak; m/): 341(00, 224, 222 (N-KH, and M-Hz) or reperturely), 194, 103, 107, 79. Infrared spectrum,  $v_{root}$  1662 cm<sup>3</sup>,  $v_{root}$  1667 cm<sup>4</sup>,  $v_{tot}$  305, 1167 cm<sup>4</sup>. Anal. caled, for  $C_uH_iN_i$ 0. C, 9375; H 4.45, 822.21. Found K, 922.14. Found C, 5977; H. 4.45, NZ 294.

#### PYPZ

PVPZ was made in a similar fashion to that of PAHAP, using 2-pyrazinamide hydrazone instead of picolinamide hydrazone, with a 99% yild (mp. 12.22.14°C). Mass apearam (major mass peak; mi/2, 241(Mp. 225, 224 (MA-Hk]) 196, 195, 163, 162, 121, 120, 106, 105, 80, 79, Inflared spectrum, V<sub>60</sub>, 1066 cm<sup>2</sup>, v<sub>100</sub>; 2408, 3301 cm<sup>2</sup>. Analcalci for C, KJ, V, C 4571; R4, 459, N 44057. Found C, 54579; H4, 453; N 4119.

# 2.2.4 Synthesis of the complexes

#### [Cu,(PAHAP)Cl\_].H,O (1)

PARAP (0.24 g. 10 mmol) was added to an aqueous solution (20 mL) of CuCl\_2H<sub>2</sub>O (0.34 g. 2.0 mmol), and the mixture was mixed for several minutes at room temperature until the ligand disolved. The deep gene solution was filtered and the filtrate was allowed to stand at room temperature for several days. Dark green crystals, suitable for an X-ray structural determination formed, these were filtered off, washed quickly with water and sin-drived (yield 90%), Anal. caled, for [Cu<sub>2</sub>(C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>2</sub>N<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub>]H<sub>2</sub>O<sup>-</sup>C, 27.34; H<sub>2</sub> 26(N, 15.54 Fourte: C. 72.44; H, 2.50, N, 16.12.

## [Cu,(PAHAP)Cl,] (2)

This complex was prepared as brown crystals, which were suitable for an X-ray structural determination, in a similar way to that of 1, with the exception that a 2-fold excess of copper chloride was used. Yield 92%, Anal. caled. for  $[Cu_k(C_kH_k)Q_kC_k]$ : C, 23.1; H. 23.7; N. (650, Found: C, 23.7); H. 23.8; N. (657.

#### [Cu,(PAHAP)Br,].H,O (3)

This complex was prepared in a similar manner to 1, using copper(II) bromide, and was obtained as brown crystalia (925%), suitable for an X-rays structural determination. Anal. caled. for [Cog/C, my,NaFz], H<sub>2</sub>O: C, 20.44; H. 2.00, N, 11.92. Found: C, 20.55; H, 1985; N. 1152.

# [Cu<sub>1</sub>(PAHAP)(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>6</sub>](NO<sub>1</sub>)<sub>4</sub> (4)

This complex was also prepared in a similar maner to L using copper(II) nitrate (yield 80%), forming deep green crystals autable for arX-ray structural determination. Anal. calod. for [Cu<sub>4</sub>(C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>4</sub>), M<sub>2</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>O), M<sub>3</sub>(NO), C, 20.17, H, 3.24, N, 19.66. Droud: C, 20.22; H, 3.01; N, 19.46. The X-ray sample, which was not vacuum-dried, was shown to have four morely and two weak's coordinated water molecules.

### [Cu,(PAHAP-H)(N,),(NO,)] (5)

This compound was prepared as olive green microcrystals by addition of an aqueous solution of sodium azide to an aqueous solution of 4. Anal. calcd. for  $[Ca_k(C_kH_n)(N_k)(N_k)(N_k)]$ : C, 28.07; H, 2.14; N, 35.45. Found: C, 28.19; H, 2.18; N, 50.4

# [Cu,(PAHAP)(NCS),(DMF),] 2DMF (6)

Complex 4 (0.72 g, 1.0 mmol) was dissolved in 40 mL detonized water and added slowly with strings to a solution of KSCN (0.58 g, 6.0 mmol) dissolved in water (30 mL). A yellow-green precipitate formed immediately, which was allowed to stand overaight. Rifered and washed with disolized water and dried under vacuum. Green orytals, suitable
for X-ray determination, were obtained by diffusion of ether into a DMF/MeOH (1:1) solution of the precipitate (yield 90%). Anal. calcd. for [Cu<sub>4</sub>(C<sub>12</sub>H<sub>42</sub>N<sub>3</sub>) (NCS)<sub>4</sub>(DMF)<sub>5</sub>] 2DMF: C, 37.71; H, 4.52; N, 22.00. Found: C, 37.47; H, 4.37; N, 22.30.

## [Cu,(PAHAP)(NCO),] 2DMF (7)

Compound 7 was prepared as offee green microcrystals in a similar manner to compound 6 in 85% yield, by using KOCN instead of KSCN. Anal. calcd. for [Car,Gr,Ha,NQ(NCO),] 2DMF: C, 38.76; H, 3.82; N, 24.66. Found: C, 38.30; H, 3.19; N, 24.66.

### [Cu,(PAHAP)(Bipy),(NO,),].(NO,), 4H,O (8)

Bigy (0.312 g. 200 mmol) was added to a solution of compound 4 (0.72 g. 1.0 mmol) dissolved in 20 mL detonized water, forming a clear green solution affer a flow minutes. The solution was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for a flow drys. Deep green crystals, suitable for structure analysis, formed which were filtered off and dried in air (yield 61%). Anal. caled, for  $[Cx_{L/L}^{-1}, X_{L/L}^{-1}, X_{$ 

### [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP)(Glyn-H)<sub>2</sub>(NO<sub>2</sub>)(H<sub>2</sub>O)](NO<sub>2</sub>).3H<sub>2</sub>O (9)

Glycine (0, 15 g, 2.0 mmol) was neuralised by addition of a solution of KOH (2.0 mmol in 3 mL H<sub>2</sub>O) and added to a solution of compound 4 (0.72 g, 1.0 mmol) distolved in 15 mL choicined water, with the formation of a deep green solution. The solution was filtered and allowed to stand for 3 days. Dark blue crystals formed, which were nuitable for mencurul analysis (046 H 444) And L. and for (72, (CH, H2), (CH, H2

4H,O: C, 26.96; H, 3.83; N, 19.60. Found: C, 27.01; H, 3.98; N, 19.68.

## [Cu,(PAHAP)(Aln-H),(H,O),] (NO,), 3H,O (10)

This compound was prepared as dark blue, rol like crystals in a procedure similar to that for 9, except for the use of d./-alatine instead of glycine (yield 89.3%). Anal. calcd. for [Ca<sub>4</sub>(C<sub>2</sub>,H<sub>4</sub>)<sub>4</sub>(C<sub>4</sub>,H<sub>4</sub>NO<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(H<sub>5</sub>O<sub>5</sub>),(

### [Cu,(PAHAP)(ACAC-H),](NO,), (11)

This compound was prepared as dark blue crystals in a similar manner to 9 using sodium acetylacetonate (NaACAC). Yield 0.60 g (80.8%). Anal. calcd. for [Cu<sub>4</sub>Cu<sub>4</sub>H<sub>0</sub>N<sub>0</sub>] (C,H<sub>4</sub>O<sub>4</sub>)<sub>1</sub>(NO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>; C, 38.32; H, 3.80; N, 16.24. Found: C, 38.28; H, 3.84; N, 16.29.

## [Cu,(PMHAP-H)(NO,),] (12)

A hot solution of PMGHAP (0.24 g, 1.0 mmol) in dichoromethane (10 mL) was added to a hot solution Cu(NM), HLQ (0.60 g, 2.5 mmol) in methanol (20 mL), and the resulting solution was allowed to stand at room temperature overright. Dark green crystals formed, which were suitable for X-ray structure determination (yield 0.45 g, 81%), Anal. calcd. for [Cu<sub>2</sub>(C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>1</sub>,M<sub>2</sub>)(NO),]; C, 2832; H, 2.19, N, 20.32. Found: C, 28.04 L, 20.50.

### [Cu,(PMHAP)(H,O),(NO,),] (NO,),(13)

This compound was prepared as green crystals in a similar procedure to that of compound 4 (71%), using PMHAP instead of PAHAP. The crystals lose weakly coordinated water and lattice water on drying. Anal. calcd. for [Cu<sub>4</sub>(C<sub>17</sub>H<sub>10</sub>N<sub>2</sub>)(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>2</sub> (NO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>](NO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>3</sub>; C, 24.00; H, 2.63; N, 19.37. Found: C, 23.68; H, 2.43; N, 19.09.

### [Cu,(PHMAP-H)(MeOH)(H,O)(NO,),] (14)

PHMAP (0.24 g, 1.0 mmol) was dissolved in acetonitrile (10 mL) and added to a hot solution of Cu(NQ)<sub>3</sub>,3H<sub>2</sub>O (0.53 g, 2.2 mmol) in methanol (20 mL). The resulting dark green solution was filtered and the filtrate allowed to stand at room temperature overnight. Dark green, almost black, crystals formed which were filtered off, walabed with methanol and divid in air (yield 0.51 g, 84.8%). Anal. calcol. for [Cu<sub>3</sub>(Cr<sub>3</sub>/H<sub>4</sub>)<sub>3</sub>/Q(O)OMO(DNO)<sub>3</sub>), C. 2.796; H. 302; N. 18.63. Found: C. 2.759; H. 259; N. 18.66

## [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PHAAP-H)(Br)<sub>3</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>O)] (15)

PIIAAP (0.241 g. 1.00 mmol) was suspended in a solution of copper(II) bromide (0.67g. 3.0 mmol) in 20 mL deionized water at room temperature. To the mixture, 10 mL ethanol was added. A clear solution formed, which was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for a few days. Black crystals formed, which were filtered off and dried in air (yield 0.50 g. 71%). And, calcd. for [Cug(Cry,H,N,O)(H<sub>2</sub>O)(Br)); C. 23.06; H. 194; N. 1120. Found C. 23.06; H. 174; N. 1142.

## [Cu,(PYPZ)Cl,].H,O (16)

PVPZ (0.241 g. 1.00 mmol) was added to an aqueous solution of copper(II) cholnife (0.68 g. 4.0 mmol) in 20 mL water, and the mixture was stirred for reveral minutes at room temperature until the ligand dissolved. The deep green solution was filtered, and the filtere was allowed to stand at room temperature for several day. Dark green, diamond shaped crystals formed, which were suitable for an X-ray structural determination. These were filtered off, washed quickly with cold deionized water, and air dried (yield RO%). Anal. calod. for [Cu<sub>3</sub>(C<sub>1</sub>H<sub>0</sub>,N<sub>3</sub>Cl<sub>3</sub>H<sub>0</sub>): C, 25.00, H, 2.48, N, 18.56. Found C, 24.67, H, 248, N, 18.20.

## [Cu,(PYPZ)Br,].H,O (17)

This compound was prepared similarly to 16, using copper(II) bromide instead of copper(II) chloride, and was obtained as brown crystals (yield 80%). Anal. calcd. for [Cu<sub>4</sub>(C<sub>1</sub>,H<sub>4</sub>,N<sub>3</sub>)Br<sub>4</sub>].H<sub>5</sub>O: C, 18.71; H, 1.86; N, 13.88. Found: C, 18.94; H, 1.83; N, 14.07.

### 2.2.5 Crystallographic data collection and refinement of the structures

#### PAHAP

A yellow crystal of approximate dimensions 0.35  $\times$  0.25  $\times$  0.40 mm was transformed to a Bigato AFC65 diffusctometer with graphite-monochromatized Mo Kor radiation. To the diffusction intensities were collected at 261° C by using the  $\alpha - 20$  scan technique to a 20  $\_$  value of 30.1°. A total of 2533 reflections were measured and 1229 were considered significant with  $\_>$  20 o ( $\_\_$ ). The intensities of three representative reflections, which were measured after every 150 reflections, remained constant throughout the data collection, indicating crystal and electronic stability (to decay correction was applied). An empirical absorption correction, based on azimuthal scans of several reflections, was applied, which resulted in transmission factors ranging from 0.97 to 10.77 bed at severe corrected for Lorenz and polarization effects. The ell parameter were obtained from the least-squares refinement of the setting angles of 23 carefully centred reflections with 2 0 in the range 20.1-26.3\*.

The structure was solved by direct methods [102, 103]. All atoms accept hydrogene were refined anicotopically. Hydrogen stores were optimized by positional enformers with interopic thermal parameters at 20% greater than those of their loaded furthers at the time of their inclusion. However, they were fixed for the flat roand of refinement. The final cycle of full-matrix least-squares refinement was based on 1229 observed reflexions (l > 2.000 (l)) and 164 variable parameters and converged with unweighted and weighted agreement factors of  $R = 2||F_i|-|F_i|/|\Sigma_i||Z_i| = 0.045$  and  $R_{-1}$ ( $|\Sigma_i|(F_i|-|F_i|))^T \Sigma_i R_i^{2/2} = 0.038$ . The maximum and minimum peaks on the final atom scattering factors [104] and anomalous-dispersion terms [105, 106], were taken from the usual sources. All calculations were performed with the TEXSAN [107] crystallographic colverar packages using a VAX 3100 work station. Abbreviated crystal data are given in Table 2-1.

[CugPAHAPC]HO (1), [CugPAHAPj8r]HO (3), [CugPAHAPj4rOj] (NO),(A), (CugPAHAP/Ghy-H),(NO),(HQ)(NO),3HQ (9), [CugPAHAP),(Ah-H), (NO),[J,SHQ (10), and [CugPPZ]CJ]HO (16). The data collections and structure solutions for these crystals were carried out in a manner similar to that for PAHAP. Romine B(7) in a tradition term continue discorter and was notedlife with the (807). components. Only one hydrogen associated with the lattice water molecule could be found in difference maps. Abbreviated crystal data for those crystals are given in Table 2-1.

#### [Cu.(PMHAP-H)(NO,),] (12)

The crystals of 12 are green. A single crystal of 12 of dimensions  $0.20 \times 0.10 \times 0.00 \times 0.00$  was transformed to a Siemes Smart three-circle diffractometer, equipped with a CCD area detector using graphin-encodromatized Mo Kar radiation, and controlled by a pentium based PC running the SMART (adverse package [106], a-scana were used in a single 106° scan range consisting of 0.3° intravuls is followed by three father 120°, 180° and 120° scans use the diffect of 88, 1800 and 266°, respectively. This strategy samples the sphere of reciprocal space up to 28 = 56.62°. Cell parameters were refined using the entroid values of 300 reflections with 20 angles up to 56.62°. Raw finue data were integrated using the SANT [109] programme. The structure was solved by direct methods [110]. As empirical absorption correction was applied to the data using the programme SANDS [111]. Abbreview event and as a sum of the Table 2-1.

[Cur[PAIAP](NCS)\_[DMR]\_J IDMF (b), [Cur[PAIAP](Bey)\_(NO-J)\_(NO)\_J 484,0 (B), [Cur[PAIAP](ACAC-H)\_0](NO)\_1 (11), [Cur\_(PHAAP)(McG)(H)(H\_0)(NO)\_J 484,0 (A), [Cur[PAIAP](H)(FJ)(D) (S). Curaid atsa collection and structure refinement for these crystals were carried out in a similar manner to that for 12. Abbreviated crystal data for all of these complexes are given Table 3-1. The elemental analysis of a bulk sample of 6 clearly indicates the presence of four DMF molecules, but only the conductated ons are devire devined for the two sets of the tables could not be modelled macconstitutly but the binuclear complex itself is however clearly defined. We assume that in this unusual case the batch of 6 used for elemental analysis any differ alightly, but we are confident by comparison of infrared spectra that the complex itself its many in each numbe.

Despite repeated attempts at the atructural solution of **8**, and measuring diffraction data for a second szynal, and also repeating the structural determination using a Nigaku AFGS diffractometer, the lattice nitrans, which are clearly evident from the elemental analysis of the synalizegraphic sample, and there physical data, do so thow up clearly in the refinement. The structural features of the binuclear cation are clearly revealed, with eminently senable parameters for a binuclear copper(II) complex of this sort, and so the abance of the intrast is considered as preliminary at this point, but the structures of the main fragments are clearly revealed.

Note in Table 2-1:

# Rigaku dat; \* Siemens Smart data R =  $\Sigma ||F_{6}| \cdot |F_{4}||/\Sigma|F_{4}|$ , R =  $(\Sigma (|F_{6}| - |F_{1}|)^{2}/\Sigma wF_{4}^{2})^{1/2}$ Rt =  $\Sigma ||F_{6}| - |F_{6}||/\Sigma|F_{6}|$ , wR =  $(\Sigma [w(|F_{6}|^{2} - |F_{6}|)^{2}/\Sigma (w(|F_{6}|^{2})^{2})]^{1/2}$ 8: Preliminary structure

Compound	PAHAP*	I,	3"
chemical formula	C.H.N.	C12H14N4OC4C42	C12H14NgOBr4Cu2
formula wt.	240.27	527.19	703.98
space group	Pbca (#61)	C2/c (#15)	C2/c (#15)
a (Å)	19.845(4)	26.732 (6)	27.336 (2)
b(Å)	13.178(5)	8.670 (9)	8.859(4)
c(Å)	9.483(8)	16.436(4)	16.795(3)
α(deg)	90	90	90
β(deg)	90	100.88(2)	100.78(1)
γ(deg)	90	90	90
V (Å)	2480 (4)	3741 (6)	3996 (3)
ρ <sub>oster</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.287	1.872	2.340
z	8	8	8
μ(cm <sup>-1</sup> )	0.79	28.72	100.75
λ	0.71069	0.71069	0.71069
т, к	299(1)	299(1)	299(1)
R1(R)	0.045(R)	0.029(R)	0.037(R)
wR2(R_)	0.038(R_)	0.025(R_)	0.030(R_)

Table 2-1.	Summary of crystallographic data for the ligand PAHAP and
	complexes 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-12, 14-16.

Compound	4*	6 <sup>*.*</sup>	8 <sup>4.0</sup>
chemical formula	C <sub>12</sub> H <sub>20</sub> N <sub>10</sub> O <sub>10</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub>	C <sub>21</sub> H <sub>3032</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub> N <sub>12</sub> O <sub>4.16</sub> S <sub>4</sub>	C <sub>22</sub> H <sub>22</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub> N <sub>12</sub> O <sub>6</sub>
formula wt.	723.47	784.76	803.74
space group	C2/c (#15)	C2/c	Poca
a (Å)	20.983(4)	36.7978(9)	13.9286(8)
b(Å)	7,505(4)	15.7510(3)	12.5106(8)
c(Å)	17.219(3)	16.1358(4)	24.578(1)
α(deg)	90	90	90
β(deg)	104.22 (1)	114.992(1)	90
γ(deg)	90	90	90
V (Å')	2628(1)	8476.7(3)	4282(4)
ρ <sub>mint</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.828	1.230	1.247
z	4	8	4
μ(mm <sup>-1</sup> )	1.718	1.239	1.044
λ	0.71069	0.71073	0.71073
т. к	299(1)	298(2)	298(2)
R1(R)	0.048(R)	0.0582	0.0547(R)
wR2(R_)	0.053(R_)	0.1494	0.1296(R_)

Table 2-1.	(contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for the ligand PAHAP
	and complexes 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-12, 14-16.

Compound	9*	10"	11•
chemical formula	C <sub>10</sub> H <sub>20</sub> N <sub>10</sub> O <sub>12</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub>	C <sub>18</sub> H <sub>40</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub> N <sub>10</sub> O <sub>15</sub>	C2H2Cu2NtO3
formula wt.	675.53	763.66	743.64
space group	PI	PI	P2,/c
a (Å)	11.506(12)	17.603(4)	17.226(3)
b(Å)	12.525(18)	18.378(4)	12.260(2)
c(Å)	10.319(4)	10.742(4)	14.795(3)
α(deg)	94.47(7)	93.44(3)	90
β(deg)	106.58(5)	93.19(3)	100.208(3)
γ(deg)	114.55(9)	62.98(2)	90
V (Å')	1263(2)	3071(2)	3075(2)
ρ <sub>utal</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.776	1.652	1.607
z	2	4	4
μ(mm <sup>-1</sup> )	1.765	1.469	1,459
λ	0.71073	0.71069	0.71073
т, к	150(2)	299(2)	293(2)
R1(R)	0.0538	0.060(R)	0.0263
wR2(R_)	0.1257	0.048(R_)	0.0620

## Table 2-1. (contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for the ligand PAHAP and complexes 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-12, 14-16.

Compound	12*	14*	
chemical formula	C13H12N404C42	C <sub>14</sub> H <sub>14</sub> N <sub>4</sub> O <sub>11</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub>	
formula wt.	551.39	601.44	
space group	PI	PI	
a (Å)	7.838(1)	7.4754(1)	
b(Å)	8.015(3)	8.7340(1)	
c(Å)	15.655(4)	17.9942(2)	
α(deg)	99.81(3)	84.690(1)	
β(deg)	101.74(2)	83.190(1)	
y(deg)	94.52(2)	66.885(1)	
V (Å')	942.2(4)	1071.54(2)	
ρ <sub>min</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.943	1.864	
z	2	2	
μ(cm <sup>-1</sup> )	23.28	2.062	
λ(Å)	0.71073	0.71073	
Т, К	298(2)	150(2)	
R1(R)	0.0708	0.0483	
wR2(R_)	0.1563	0.1038	

## Table 2-1. (contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for the ligand PAHAP and complexes 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-12, 14-16.

Compound	15*	16*	
chemical formula	C12H10N3O2Cu2Br4	C <sub>11</sub> H <sub>13</sub> N,Cu <sub>2</sub> Cl <sub>4</sub> O	
formula wt.	705.99	528.17	
space group	P2,/c	C2/c(#15)	
a (Å)	15.1463(3)	26.754(3)	
b(Å)	18.1847(4)	8.466(3)	
c(Å)	6.8554(2)	16.334(3)	
α(deg)	90	90	
β(deg)	92.7450(10)	100.94(1)	
γ(deg)	90	90	
V (Å')	1886.02(8)	3632(1)	
ρ <sub>utut</sub> (gcm <sup>-b</sup> )	2.3176	1.931	
z	4	8	
μ(cm <sup>-1</sup> )	8.64	8.458	
λ(Å)	0.71073	1.54178	
Т, К	298 (2)	299(1)	
R1(R)	0.048	0.058(R)	
wR2(R_, )	0.1173	0.039(R_)	

## Table 2-1. (contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for the ligand PAHAP and complexes 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-12, 14-16.

### 2.3 Results and discussion

#### 2.3.1 Structures

#### PAHAP

The structure of PAHAP is illustrated in Figure 2-1, and relevant bond distances and bond angles are listed in Table 2-2. The molecule is essentially flat and has a trans configuration. The dihedral angle between the least squares planes including the atom groups N(1)-C(5)-C(6)-N(2)-N(3) and N(6)-C(8)-C(7)-N(5)-N(4) is 6.2°. The nitrogennitrogen bond N(3)-N(4) (1.424 (3) Å) can be formally defined as a single bond, and compares closely with the N-N bond distance in hydrazine (1 47 Å) The sum of the angles at C(6) and C(7) are 360.0° and 359.9° respectively. so the CN bonds C(6)-N(3) and C(7)-N(4) (1 287(3) and 1 295(3) Å respectively) are considered to have full double bond character. Intramolecular contacts between the amine hydrogen atoms attached to N(2) and N(5) and adjacent sp<sup>2</sup> nitrogen N(1), N(4) and N(3), N(6) respectively are too long to be considered as hydrogen bonds. Considering the repulsion between lone pair electrons of sp<sup>2</sup> N(1) and N(3) and that of sp<sup>2</sup> N(4) and N(6) due to the planar structure. the overall trans configuration is therefore due mainly to steric repulsion effects. An examination of intermolecular contacts reveals only two of possible significance between N(4) and N(6) and hydrogens bonded to N(5)' and N(2)' respectively (N-H 2.183 Å and 2.179 Å respectively), but these are clearly weak.

_					
	N(2)-C(6)	1.343(4)	N(3)-N(4)	1.424(3)	
	N(3)-C(6)	1.287(3)	N(4)-C(7)	1.295(3)	
	N(5)-C(7)	1.347(4)			
	N(2)-C(6)-C(5)	116.1(3)	N(4)-N(3)-C(6)	110.9(2)	
	N(3)-C(6)-C(5)	117.7(3)	N(3)-N(4)-C(7)	111.9(2)	
	N(4)-C(7)-N(5)	124.9(3)	N(4)-C(7)-C(8)	117.2(3)	
	N(5)-C(7)-C(8)	117.8(3)	N(2)-C(6)-N(3)	126.2(3)	

Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) for PAHAP.

Table 2-2.



Figure 2-1. Structural representation of PAHAP with hydrogen atoms

omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids).

## [Cu.(PAHAP)Cl,].H.O (1)

The structure of 1 is illustrated in Figure 2-2, and relocate bood distances and angles are listed in Table 2-3. Two copport[1] ions are bound to one PAILAP ligand each via a spridine and distaine nitrogen in a twisted structure, with nominal four coordination bring completed at each cooper entropy two chlorines. C+V and C+C+G distances are commal for equational accordination to cooper(11). The distance nitrogen-nitrogen boad distance (N(2)-N(2)) is 1.411(e) Å implying aingle boad character, and largely unchanged from the free ligand. The C+N boads (C(6)-N(2) and C(7)-N(2); 1.305(e) and 1.304(e) Å respectively) are essentially the same as those in PAILAP. However the sum of the angles at N(2) and N(2) (354.7°, 349.7° respectively) implies slight symmidal distortion at these centers.

The two copper planes do not adopt a pues-source (Type B as defined in Chapter 1) confirmation about the C+N tonks, as might have been reported, but instead dopt a folded conformation, Type AB, which an acute angle between the planes. Molecular models suggest that a type B meture would be unlikely, because of netric constraints associated with the terminal deloniest and the aming power, Ose significant factor responsible for the anate folding is considered to be a long intranolecular axial contact between Cu(2) and Cl(2) (0.000(2) Å), which effectively locks the two copper planes in place, creating a square-systemidal geometry at Cu(2) (Figure 2-3). An analysis of intermolecular contacts reveals that two molecules are joined together via a long contact between Cu(1) and Cu(1) (0.06 Å) on an discher mideolecu, on the complex is in reality a weakly associated





atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids).

Cu(1)-Cl(1)	2.233(1)	Cu(2)-Cl(3)	2.258(1)
Cu(1)-Cl(2)	2.257(2)	Cu(2)-Cl(4)	2.265(2)
Cu(1)-N(1)	2.027(3)	Cu(2)-N(3)	1.992(3)
Cu(1)-N(2)	1.984(3)	Cu(2)-N(4)	2.026(3)
N(5)-C(6)	1.321(4)	N(6)-C(7)	1.323(4)
N(2)-N(3)	1.411(4)	N(2)-C(6)	1.305(4)
N(3)-C(7)	1.304(4)	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.845(1)
Cl(1)-Cu(1)-Cl(2)	93.85(7)	Cl(3)-Cu(2)-Cl(4)	93.82(5)
Cl(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	94.6(1)	Cl(3)-Cu(2)-N(3)	93.44(9)
Cl(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	171.91(9)	Cl(3)-Cu(2)-N(4)	170.62(9)
Cl(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	165.32(9)	Cl(4)-Cu(2)-N(3)	170.45(9)
Cl(2)-Cu(1)-N(2)	92.7(1)	Cl(4)-Cu(2)-N(4)	93.52(9)
N(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	80.0(1)	N(3)-Cu(2)-N(4)	80.0(1)
N(2)-C(6)-N(5)	126.3(3)	N(2)-C(6)-C(5)	113.6(3)
N(5)-C(6)-C(5)	120.1(3)	N(3)-C(7)-N(6)	125.5(3)
N(3)-C(7)-C(8)	114.7(3)	N(6)-C(7)-C(8)	119.8(3)
N(3)-N(2)-C(6)	115.5(3)	N(2)-N(3)-C(7)	114.2(3)
Cu(1)-N(2)-N(3)	123.1(2)	Cu(1)-N(2)-C(6)	116.1(2)
Cu(2)-N(3)-N(2)	121.0(2)	Cu(2)-N(3)-C(7)	114.5(2)

Table 2-3 Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu\_(PAHAP)Cl\_].H,O (1).



Figure 2-3. Sructural representation of the weakly associated dimer in [Cu./PAHAP/Cl.1H.O (1).

ternancieur dimer (Figure 3-3). The twis of the copper CuN(CL planes can here be visualized in terms of the 77.1\* dihedral angle between the planes Cu(1)-N(1)-C(3)-C(0)-N(2) and Cu(2)-N(4)-C(3)-N(1). The resulting copper-copper separation (3.454(1) Å) is quite long, as would be expected. The lattice water molecule is not involved in coordination to copper. It can be concluded therefore that the molecular twist in [Cu<sub>4</sub>(0.74AP)C(1),H<sub>2</sub>(0.1()) is the result of a balance between steric factors, principally associated with the chlorine an NH<sub>2</sub> groups on the ligand, and the weak axial interaction between Cu(2) and Ci(2).

## [Cu,(PAHAP)Br,].H,O (3)

The structure of 3 is illustrated in Figure 2-4 and relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 2-4. The structure is very similar to that of 1, with two essentially planar copper (II) centers bound in a twisted cis-conformation. Deviations of the atoms in the N.Br. donor sets are < 0.24 Å from their least-squares planes, with Cu(1) displaced by 0.0160 Å, and Cu(2) displaced by 0.0364 Å from their respective planes. The dihedral angle between the conper planes, as defined by the two CuN.C. chelate rings is 75.02°, in close agreement with that in 1. Cu-N distances are normal, and Cu-Br distances are close to 2.4 Å. The Cu-Cu separation (3.826(1) Å) is almost identical to that in 1. The Cu(1)-Br(4) distance (3.107(1) Å) is very close to the intramolecular chlorine bridging contact in 1, and so it is reasonable to assume a similar bridging situation in 3. The Cu(2)-Br(2) distance (3.611(1) Å) is much too long for a second bridge. Intermolecular contacts involving potential bromine bridges are also too long to be significant (> 3.24 Å), and so 3 is considered to be an essentially isolated binuclear species. The similarity in fold angles for 1 and 3 is considered to result from the similar weak halogen bridged structural arrangement. Br(3) was modelled as two components in a disordered situation with an 80/20 composition. The residual electron density close to Br(3)A could not be sensibly accounted for in any other way

Br(1)-Cu(1)	2.401(1)	N(5)-C(6)	1.334(8)	
Br(2)-Cu(1)	2.402(1)	N(6)-C(7)	1.339(8)	
Br(3A)-Cu(2)	2.362(2)	N(2)-N(3)	1.416(6)	
Br(3B)-Cu(2)	2.39(2)	N(2)-C(6)	1.298(8)	
Br(4)-Cu(2)	2.398(1)	N(3)-C(7)	1.282(8)	
Cu(1)-N(1)	2.025(5)	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.826(1)	
Cu(1)-N(2)	1.992(5)	Cu(2)-N(3)	1.991(6)	
Cu(2)-N(4)	2.020(6)			
Br(1)-Cu(1)-Br(2)	93.12(4)	Br(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	94.5(2)	
Br(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	171.6(2)	Br(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	169.6(2)	
Br(2)-Cu(1)-N(2)	93.3(1)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	79.9(2)	
Br(3A)-Cu(2)-Br(4)	92.1(1)	Br(3A)-Cu(2)-N(3)	172.2(2)	
Br(3A)-Cu(2)-N(4)	95.6(2)	Br(4)-Cu(2)-N(3)	93.4(2)	
Br(4)-Cu(2)-N(4)	168.3(2)	N(3)-Cu(2)-N(4)	79.9(2)	

Table 2-4. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP)Br<sub>2</sub>].H<sub>2</sub>O (3).



atoms and Br (3B) Structural repres Figure 2-4.

## [Cu,(PAHAP)(H,O),](NO.), (4)

The structure of 4 is illustrated in Figure 2-6, and relevant boot distances and angles are listed in Table 2-5. The two distorted six-coordinated copper ions are bound to PAHAP in a similar manner to 1, with a twister arrangement of the copper basal plans Å). The C+N bood lengths (C(6)-N(2) 1292(7) Å) are the same as those in PAHAP, and the sam of the angles at N(2) (59.9°) indicates that there is no pravailable distortion at this dooro centre. Three water molecules are bound to each copper (II) ion, two with abort contrasts in the basal memo(CuI)-CUI 1292(5) Å. A much longer contact to a sintate oxygen (Cu(1)-Q(4) 2.724(5) Å) indicates that a sintex is semi-coordinated as a weak sitch ligand. The copper aton is displaced slightly from the men N<sub>4</sub>O<sub>4</sub> basal plane towardo (V(1) by 0.0087Å

The molecular twic in 4 door the N-N bod is substantially larger than is 1 and 3. The dihedral angle between the least-squares planes  $D_{41}(1)$ +N25-(62)-(62)-(81)) and  $C_{41}(1)$ +N26-(C)+N(1)+is 10.22<sup>+</sup>, indicating a significant opening of the complex along the N-N boal in comparison with 1 and 3. Figure 2-4 illustrates a projection of 4 viewel along the N-N boad. This gives a reasonable representation of the angle between the copper magnetic planes, and explains why the Cu-Cu separation (4.3992) Å) is so much larger than is 1 and 3.

The most significant difference between 3. 5 and 6 rests with the different ligands in the copper equatorial plane, and the presence of an axial, non-bridging water ligand (O(9) ) in 6. Steric repulsions between the coordinated water molecules at each metal centre, and also with the NH, groups, combined with the absence of a bridging ligand interaction, would reasonably allow the conner planes to move further apart until a balance between these repulsive forces was achieved. However such an effect cannot necessarily be considered in isolation, and in this case hydrogen bonding interactions should also be taken into account. Several hydrogen bonding contacts (X-H < 1.9 Å) have been identified (H(20A)-O(6) 1.824 Å H(3NA)-O(8) 1.871 Å H(90A)-O(7) 1.832 Å H(90B)-O(5) 1.782 Å, H(10A)-O(3) 1.863 Å, H(10B)-O(3)1.800 Å, H(3NA)-O(8) 1.871 A), all of which have X-H-Y angles in the range 153-175°. These are illustrated in Figure 2-5. Nitrate N(5) is involved in the most contacts, and provides significant links between the binuclear complex ions through the shortest interaction (O(2)-O(6) 2.724(8) Å). Other contacts through O(7) and N(4) are also involved in intermolecular contacts to water molecules O(1) and O(9). These hydrogen bonding interactions are possibly of significance in creating intermolecular spin exchange pathways (vide supra), but may also influence the twist between the copper equatorial coordination planes.

				_
Cu(1)-O(1)	1.954(4)	Cu(1)-N(1)	2.000(5)	
Cu(1)-O(2)	1.980(4)	Cu(1)-N(2)	1.952(4)	
Cu(1)-O(9)	2.392(5)	Cu(1)-O(4)	2.724(5)	
C(5)-C(6)	1.495(7)	N(2)-N(2)a	1.430(8)	
N(2)-C(6)	1.292(7)	N(3)-C(6)	1.306(7)	
Cu(1)-Cu(1)a	4.389(2)			
O(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	173.4(2)	O(1)-Cu(1)-O(2)	91.9(2)	
O(2)-Cu(1)-N(2)	93.2(2)	O(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	94.6(2)	
N(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	80.4(2)	O(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	172.6(2)	
N(2)-C(6)-C(5)	113.7(5)	N(2)-C(6)-N(3)	125.9(5)	
Cu(1)-N(2)-N(2)a	125.8(4)	N(3)-C(6)-C(5)	120.4(5)	
N(2)-N(2)a-C(6)	116.3(5)	Cu(1)-N(2)-C(6)	117.5(4)	

Table 2-5. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu.(PAHAP)(H,O),](NO.), (4).



# Figure 2-5. Structural representation of [Cu2(PAHAP)(H2O)6](NO1)4 (4)

with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids). Significant hydrogen bonding contacts are shown (dotted lines).



Figure 2-6. Structural representation of [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP)(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>6</sub>](NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>4</sub> (4)

viewed along an axis close to that of the N-N bond.

## (Cu.(PAHAP)(NCS),(DMF),12DMF(6)

The preliminary structure of 6 is Blustrated in Figure 2-7, and some relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 2-4. The dimutear complex has a twisted structure with the two copper(D) square-systalish bridged by the N-M diatise unit. Two isolicoyantare are bound in cir positions the copper basal galanes with two PAHAP mitrogens occupying the other basal sites. The NIL, groups on PAHAP remain uncoordinated. Equationic U-N distances are quite abort (< 2.01 Å) with somewhat longer contacts to the usial DMF molecules (Cu(2)-CQ) 2.337(5) Å. Cu(1)-Cu(1) 2.229(5) Å). Some positional discorder was observed for S(13), and it has been modeled with two 50% site occupancies. The copper centers are separated by 4.453 Å, and the two copper planes are twisted about the N-N load by a dischard angle of 103  $c^{6}$  (angle between the last squares planes defined by Cu(1)-N(1)-C(5)-C(6)-N(2) and Cu(2)-N(4)-C(1)-C(1)2)-N(3).

Cu(1)-N(13)	1.919(7)	Cu(2)-N(15)	1.964(7)
Cu(1)-N(14)	1.962(7)	Cu(2)-N(5)	2.009(5)
Cu(1)-N(2)	2.019(5)	Cu(2)-N(4)	2.017(6)
Cu(1)-N(1)	2.025(5)	Cu(2)-O(2)	2.337(5)
Cu(1)-O(1)	2.229(5)	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	4.453(3)
Cu(2)-N(16)	1.954(8)	N(2)-N(5)	1.407(7)
N(16)-Cu(2)-N(15)	93.6(3)	N(13)-Cu(1)-N(14)	93.9(3)
N(16)-Cu(2)-N(5)	92.9(2)	N(13)-Cu(1)-N(2)	92.5(2)
N(15)-Cu(2)-N(5)	169.4(3)	N(14)-Cu(1)-N(2)	161.5(2)
N(16)-Cu(2)-N(4)	169.9(3)	N(13)-Cu(1)-N(1)	169.1(2)
N(15)-Cu(2)-N(4)	93.1(3)	N(14)-Cu(1)-N(1)	92.3(2)
N(5)-Cu(2)-N(4)	79.4(2)	N(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	79.0(2)
N(16)-Cu(2)-O(2)	94.7(2)	N(13)-Cu(1)-O(1)	94.2(2)
N(15)-Cu(2)-O(2)	97.0(2)	N(14)-Cu(1)-O(1)	101.1(3)
N(5)-Cu(2)-O(2)	90.8(2)	N(2)-Cu(1)-O(1)	95.7(2)
N(4)-Cu(2)-O(2)	91.9(2)	N(1)-Cu(1)-O(1)	93.3(2)

Table 2-6. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP)(NCS)<sub>4</sub>(DMF)<sub>2</sub>] .2DMF(6).



Figure 2-7.

\$

#### [Cu,(PAHAP)(Bipy),(NO,),].(NO,), .4H,O (8)

The structure of the cationic fragment of 8 is illustrated in Figure 2-8, and relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 2-7. The dinuclear complex involves two distorted five-coordinate copper(II) centers each with two PAHAP nitrogens (nvridine and diazine), two bipyridine nitrogens and a terminal nitrate ligand. The bidentate Bipy ligands have short conner-nitrogen distances with Cu-N(1) (2 132(5) Å) slightly longer than Cu-N(2) (1.998(5) Å). The conner ion geometry is in between a square-pyramid and a trigonal-bipyramid, and using the distortion index established by Addison [75] ( $\tau = (\beta - \alpha)$ /60;  $\beta = 179.0^{\circ}$ ,  $\alpha = 144.3^{\circ}$ ) a value of 0.58 suggests that a distorted trigonal bipyramid is the most appropriate stereochemical description. The axial direction would then be defined by N(2)-Cu-N(3). The molecular twist around the N-N bond is much more planes (as indicated by the angle between the Cu-N(3)-C(15)-C(16)-N(4) plane and the symmetry related least-squares plane). This results because there is a major steric effect between the two Bioy ligands, and they align themselves roughly narallel, effectively twisting the two conner planes about the N.N bond in an attempt to keen the planar Biny ligands a safe distance from each other. The relatively large twist angle around the N-N bond leads to quite a large Cu-Cu separation (4.229 Å) when compared with [Cu.(PAHAP)CI.1.H.O (1)

Table 2-7. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP)(Bipy)<sub>2</sub>(NO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>]. (NO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>2</sub>, 4H<sub>2</sub>O (8).

Cu-N(3)		1.989(5)		
	Cu-N(2)	1.998(5)		
	Cu-N(4)	2.016(5)		
	Cu-N(1)			
	Cu-O(1)			
	Cu-Cu(a)			
	N(4)-N(4a)	1.416(9)		
N(3)-Cu-N(2)	179.0(2)	N(4)-Cu-N(1)	126.6(2)	
N(3)-Cu-N(4)	80.7(2)	N(3)-Cu-O(1)	89.3(2)	
N(2)-Cu-N(4)	98.6(2)	N(2)-Cu-O(1)	90.8(2)	
N(3)-Cu-N(1)	100.2(2)	N(4)-Cu-O(1)	144.3(2)	
N(2)-Cu-N(1)	80.7(2)	N(1)-Cu-O(1)	88.8(2)	





[Cu.(PAHAP)(Glyn-H),(NO,)(H,O)](NO,).3H,O (9)

Table 2-8. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>3</sub>(PAHAP)(Glyn-H)<sub>3</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>) (H<sub>2</sub>O)(NO<sub>3</sub>).3H<sub>2</sub>O (9).

Cu(1)-O(1)	1.935(5)	Cu(2)-O(3)	1.967(4)	
Cu(1)-N(7)	1.970(6)	Cu(2)-N(8)	1.977(5)	

Cu(1)-N(1)	1.975(5)	Cu(2)-N(5)	1.985(5)
Cu(1)-N(2)	1.978(6)	Cu(2)-N(6)	1.987(5)
Cu(1)-O(31)	2.548(5)	Cu(2)-O(50)	2374(8)
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	4.412(4)	N(2)-N(5)	1.409(6)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(7)	85.2(2)	O(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	94.4(2)
N(7)-Cu(1)-N(1)	172.9(2)	O(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	169.1(2)
N(7)-Cu(1)-N(2)	100.9(2)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	80.7(2)
O(3)-Cu(2)-N(8)	85.10(19)	O(3)-Cu(2)-N(5)	170.1(2)
N(8)-Cu(2)-N(5)	99.6(2)	O(3)-Cu(2)-N(6)	94.66(19)
N(8)-Cu(2)-N(6)	179.6(2)	N(5)-Cu(2)-N(6)	80.7(2)
O(3)-Cu(2)-O(50)	93.4(2)	N(8)-Cu(2)-O(50)	91.2(3)
N(5)-Cu(2)-O(50)	95.2(2)	N(6)-Cu(2)-O(50)	88.4(3)



Figure 2-9. Structural representation of [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP)(Glyn-H)<sub>4</sub>(NO<sub>4</sub>)(H<sub>2</sub>O)](NO<sub>4</sub>)3H<sub>2</sub>O (9) with hydrogen atoms and weakly bonded axial ligands omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids).

[Cu,(PAHAP)(Ain-H),(H,O),] (NO,), 3H,O (10)

Two czystalograptically independent, but very similar, molecules have been found in 10. Figure 3-168 illustrates the structure of one molecule, and Figure 3-168 illustrates the capacide view of the coordination cores. Bond distances and angles relevant to the cooper coordination phenes are given in Table 3-4. The copper log oper coordination phenes are given in Table 3-4. The copper log oper coordination phenes are given in Table 3-4. The copper log oper coordination of the coupled oper log o

Table 2-9. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu\_(PAHAP)(Aln-H)<sub>2</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>2</sub>] (NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub> 3H<sub>2</sub>O (10).

Cu(1)-O(1)	1.936(3)	Cu(1)-N(1)	1.993(4)
Cu(1)-N(3)	1.973(4)	Cu(1)-N(7)	2.010(4)
contd.			
--------	--		

Cu(2)-O(3)	1.959(3)	Cu(2)-N(4)	1.977(4)
Cu(2)-N(6)	1.994(4)	Cu(2)-N(8)	1.977(4)
Cu(3)-O(7)	1.957(3)	Cu(3)-O(11)	2.492(5)
Cu(3)-N(9)	1.972(4)	Cu(3)-N(11)	1.975(4)
Cu(3)-N(15)	1.965(4)	Cu(4)-O(9)	1.940(3)
Cu(4)-N(12)	1.984(4)	Cu(4)-N(14)	1.995(4)
Cu(4)-N(16)	1.975(4)	N(3)-N(4)	1.418(4)
N(11)-N(12)	1.400(4)	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	4.392(4)
Cu(3)-Cu(4)	4.379(4)		
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	93.3(1)	O(1)-Cu(1)-N(3)	173.3(2)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(7)	84.1(1)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(3)	80.5(1)
N(1)-Cu(1)-N(7)	168.6(2)	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(7)	101.4(2)
O(3)-Cu(2)-N(4)	166.6(2)	O(3)-Cu(2)-N(6)	96.7(1)
O(3)-Cu(2)-N(8)	84.2(1)	N(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	80.6(1)
N(4)-Cu(2)-N(8)	97.5(1)	N(6)-Cu(2)-N(8)	175.3(2)
O(7)-Cu(3)-O(11)	89.6(1)	O(7)-Cu(3)-N(9)	95.9(1)
O(7)-Cu(3)-N(11)	169.2(2)	O(7)-Cu(3)-N(15)	84.5(1)
O(11)-Cu(3)-N(9)	82.3(2)	O(11)-Cu(3)-N(11)	100.1(2)
O(11)-Cu(3)-N(15)	95.3(2)	N(9)-Cu(3)-N(11)	80.9(1)
N(9)-Cu(3)-N(15)	177.5(2)	N(11)-Cu(3)-N(15)	99.1(1)

O(9)-Cu(4)-N(12)	174.2(2)	O(9)-Cu(4)-N(14)	93.9(1)
O(9)-Cu(4)-N(16)	83.7(1)	N(12)-Cu(4)-N(14)	80.9(1)
N(12)-Cu(4)-N(16)	101.1(1)	N(14)-Cu(4)-N(16)	170.7(2)

contd





(10) with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids).



[Cu,(PAHAP)(ACAC-H), (H,O),](NO,), (11)

The structure of the caloide fragment of 11 is illustrated in Figure 2-11s. Figure 2-11b illustrates the expanded view of the coordination cores and the intranolecular hydrogen-bonding contacts in 11. The relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 2-10. The discular complex involves two square-symmial cooper(11) centers. The vece cospect(1) centers are bound by short equatorial contracts to the PMA/P ligand via a privilene and distaine nitrogen, and to a pentanedionate via its two oxygens in a twisted structure. The five-coordination at Cu(1) and Cu(2) is completed by weakly coordinate H<sub>Q</sub>O molecules in an axial position  $(Cu(2)-QO) \ge 2.648(2)$  Å). The H<sub>Q</sub>O(6) is involved in the intranolocular byforgen-bonding centers.

The copper basil planes are twisted about the diazine N-N bond with a dihedral angle of 82.04° between the least-squares planes  $C_{4}(1)$ -N(1)-C(5)-C(5)-N(3) and  $C_{4}(2)$ -N(6)-C(3)-C(7)-N(4)-C(aris) angle  $C_{4}(1)$ -N(3)-N(4)-C(aris) 87.48°). The copper atoms are separated by 4.50(2) Å.



Figure 2-11a. Structural representation of [Cu,(PAHAP)(ACAC-H),(H,O),](NO,), (11)

with hydrogen atoms and weakly coordinated  $\mathrm{H_2O}(6)$  omitted (40%

probability thermal ellipsoids).



Figure 2-11b. Intramolecular hydrogen-bonding contacts in 11.

Table 2-10. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP)(ACAC-H)<sub>2</sub> (H.O.1(NO.), (11).

Cu(1)-O(1)	1.9142(12)	Cu(1)-O(2)	1.9314(13)
Cu(1)-N(3)	1.9766(14)	Cu(1)-N(1)	2.004(2)
Cu(1)-O(3)	2.3686(14)	Cu(2)-O(5)	1.9189(13)
Cu(2)-O(4)	1.9461(13)	Cu(2)-N(4)	1.9974(14)
Cu(2)-N(6)	2.018(2)	Cu(2)-O(6)	2.440(2)
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	4.360(2)	N(3)-N(4)	1.407(2)
O(1)-Cu(1)-O(2)	93.83(5)	N(3)-Cu(1)-O(3)	91.72(6)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(3)	166.31(6)	N(1)-Cu(1)-O(3)	92.89(5)
O(2)-Cu(1)-N(3)	92.73(6)	O(5)-Cu(2)-O(4)	94.62(6)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	92.43(6)	O(5)-Cu(2)-N(4)	169.75(6)
O(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	170.58(6)	O(4)-Cu(2)-N(4)	95.28(5)
N(3)-Cu(1)-N(1)	79.71(6)	O(5)-Cu(2)-N(6)	90.60(6)
O(1)-Cu(1)-O(3)	99.92(5)	O(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	174.62(6)
O(2)-Cu(1)-O(3)	92.94(5)	N(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	79.56(6)

## [Cu,(PMHAP-H)(NO,),] (12)

The structure of 12 is illustrated in Figure 2-12, and relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 2-11. The ligand PMBJAP block two copper centers in a rowne-structure (Type B) and acts in a quintymetatest fullyion with Cu(1) coordinated to pryinfine (N(1)), distates (N(2)) and strains on incomes (N(3)), and Cu(2) bound to distaine (N(4)) and pryinfine (N(5)) nitrogens. The presence of only three nitrates indicates that the ligand has beenome depresonated at N(3), which shows the presence of *j* and one proton. Each copper strains hore thore quotation block ( $z > A_A$  and donger contacts to initize oxygens (Cu(1)-OC) 2.489(4) Å. Cu(2)-O(9) 2.544(4) Å). The Cu(1)-N(3) distance (1.91(5) Å) is very show, as would be expected. The strenchemistry at both copper centers in best described as distarted square-prynnidi, despite the nominal terribuild distorions at Cu(2) (N+OCQ)-O(3) (35.202(2), N+OC)-O(2)-O(145.202).

The roun-liqued arrangement is effectively locked into place by the coordination of the deprotonated anionic nitrogen N(3) to Cn(1). This leads to a large cooper-cooper separation ( $\tau$ /TR(4) Å), and an almost flat structure, with a dihedral angle between the least-squares planes N(1)-C(3)-C(6)-N(2)-Cu(1) and N(4)-C(13)-C(12)-N(5)-Cu(2) of 165.2<sup>+1</sup>.

Cu(1)-N(3)	1.916(5)	Cu(2)-O(7)	1.991(4)
Cu(1)-N(2)	1.948(4)	N(2)-C(6)	1.287(6)
Cu(1)-N(1)	1.966(5)	N(2)-N(4)	1.389(6)
Cu(1)-O(1)	1.990(4)	N(3)-C(13)	1.303(6)
Cu(2)-O(4)	1.968(4)	N(4)-C(13)	1.359(6)
Cu(2)-N(5)	1.970(4)	C(5)-C(6)	1.496(7)
Cu(2)-N(4)	1.971(4)	C(12)-C(13)	1.490(7)
Cu(1)-O(3)	2.489(4)	Cu(2)-O(9)	2.544(4)
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	4.778(4)		
N(3)-Cu(1)-N(2)	80.3(2)	N(4)-Cu(2)-O(4)	156.1(2)
N(3)-Cu(1)-N(1)	161.0(2)	N(5)-Cu(2)-O(7)	148.5(2)
N(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	81.6(2)	O(4)-Cu(2)-N(5)	91.8(2)
N(3)-Cu(1)-O(1)	99.4(2)	N(5)-Cu(2)-N(4)	82.6(2)
N(2)-Cu(1)-O(1)	177.3(2)	O(4)-Cu(2)-O(7)	95.4(2)
N(1)-Cu(1)-O(1)	98.4(2)	N(4)-Cu(2)-O(7)	101.5(2)
O(1)-Cu(1)-O(3)	55.7(2)		

Table 2-11. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination soheres and the ligand in [Cu.(PMEIAP-E)(NO.).] (12).



## [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PHMAP-H)(MeOH)(H<sub>2</sub>O)(NO<sub>1</sub>)<sub>1</sub>] (14)

The structure of 14 is illustrated in Figure 2-13, and relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 2-12. The ligand PHMAP acts in a pentadentate fashion with all nitrogens acting as donors to the two five-coordinate copper(II) centers in a trans-trans conformation (Type B). Cu(1) binds to pyridine and diazine nitrogens N(1) and N(3) respectively and Cu(2) is bound to pyridine diazine and amino nitrogens N(5) N(4) and N(2) respectively. N(2) is deprotonated. Two nitrates are bound terminally to Cu(2) and one to Cu(1), with the fourth and fifth coordination site at Cu(1) occupied by water and methanol molecules respectively. The nitrate bound to Cu(1) is disordered and was modeled as two nitrates with a total occupancy of 1. The stereochemistry at both Cu(1) and Cu(2) is best described as distorted square-pyramidal with  $\tau$  values [81] of 0.35 and 0.26 respectively. The effect of this arrangement is to lock the ligand into an almost planar trans-trans configuration because of the coordination of N(2), coupled with the sp<sup>2</sup> character at C(6), N(3), N(4) and C(7). The dihedral angle between the least-squares planes Cu(1)-N(1)-C(5)-C(6)-N(3) and Cu(2)-N(5)-C(8)-C(7)-N(4) is 168.3°. The Cu(1)-Cu(2) separation (4.759(1) Å) is large as would be expected.

Three short intermolecular contacts link the complexes in a 2-dimensional network. This is illustrated in Figure 2-14, and shows the binuclear units linked head to tail in a chain arrangement by H-bonding interactions between nitrate oxygen O(9) and methanol orgen. O(2) (O(2) - 214%) Å), and water oxygen O(1) and intrate oxygen O(6)

Cu(1)-N(3)	1.955(3)	Cu(2)-N(2)	1.963(4)
Cu(1)-O(31)	1.971(11)	Cu(2)-N(5)	2.042(3)
Cu(1)-O(32)	2.00(5)	Cu(2)-O(6)	2.049(3)
Cu(1)-O(1)	2.007(3)	Cu(2)-O(9)	2.215(3)
Cu(1)-N(1)	2.016(3)	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	4.759(1)
Cu(1)-O(2)	2.153(4)	N(3)-N(4)	1.368(4)
Cu(2)-N(4)	1.944(3)		
N(3)-Cu(1)-O(31)	172.7(3)	N(3)-Cu(1)-O(32)	172.0(9)
N(3)-Cu(1)-O(1)	92.78(12)	O(31)-Cu(1)-O(1)	94.0(3)
O(32)-Cu(1)-O(1)	88.0(13)	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(1)	80.25(12)
O(31)-Cu(1)-N(1)	95.0(3)	O(32)-Cu(1)-N(1)	95.4(13)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	151.69(13)	N(3)-Cu(1)-O(2)	92.1(2)
O(31)-Cu(1)-O(2)	86.4(2)	O(32)-Cu(1)-O(2)	95.8(9)
O(1)-Cu(1)-O(2)	94.11(14)	N(1)-Cu(1)-O(2)	113.4(2)
N(4)-Cu(2)-N(2)	79.45(14)	N(4)-Cu(2)-N(5)	81.16(12)
N(2)-Cu(2)-N(5)	160.10(14)	N(4)-Cu(2)-O(6)	144.54(13)
N(2)-Cu(2)-O(6)	97.71(14)	N(5)-Cu(2)-O(6)	100.69(11)
N(4)-Cu(2)-O(9)	125.54(12)	N(2)-Cu(2)-O(9)	90.60(14)
(5)-Cu(2)-O(9)	97.03(12)	O(6)-Cu(2)-O(9)	89.63(10)

Table 2-12. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PHMAP-H)(MeOH)(H<sub>2</sub>O) (NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub>] (14).

(O(1)-O(6) 2.732(4) Å), with the chains cross-linked by another H-bonding contact between nitrate oxygen O(10) and water oxygen O(1) (O(1)-O(10) 2.753(4) Å). Corresponding O-H-O angles fall in the range 160-177\*.



Figure 2-13. Structural representation of [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PHMAP-H)(MeOH)(H<sub>2</sub>O) (NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub>] (14) with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids).



Figure 2-14. Chain structure of compound 14.

# [Cu,(PHAAP)(Br),(H,O)] (15)

The structure of 15 is illustrated in Figure 2-15 and relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 2-13. The ligand PHAAP also acts in a pertadentate fashion like PMEIAP and PHAAP is complex 12 and 14, with N1, N4 (from pyridine rings); N2, N3 (from diazring) and deprotonated O(1) and shown to the flow-coordinate coopen() counter (Ca(1)) and flow-coordinate coopen(10) centre (Ca(2)) in a *trans-trans* contentmation (quasi Type B). The Ca(1) centre is close to square-planar with floar normal bonds (Ca(1)-Br(1) 2.2208(t) Å; Ca(1)-O(1) 1.978(t) Å; Ca(1)-N(4) 1.998(t) Å; Ca(1)-N(1) 1.917(4) Å), while the Ch(2) centre is close to square-planar with floar short equatorial contacts (Ca(2)-N(1) 2.029(t) Å; Ca(2)-N(2) 2.002(4) Å; Ca(2)-O(4) 1.991(5) Å; Ca(2)-Br(1) 2.3097(t) Å].

The dihedral angle between the least-squares planes Cu(1)-N(4)-C(8)-C(7)-N(3)and Cu(2)-N(1)-C(1)-C(6)-N(2) is 153.2°. The expected large Cu(1)-Cu(2) separation (4.717(4) Å) is comparable with that found in complex 12 and 14.

Cu(1)-Br(1)	2.3208(8)	Cu(1)-N(3)	1.917(4)
Cu(1)-O(1)	1.978(4)	Cu(1)-N(4)	1.996(5)
Cu(2)-Br(2)	2.7212(9)	Cu(2)-Br(3)	2.3967(9)
Cu(2)-O(4)	1.991(5)	Cu(2)-N(2)	2.002(4)
Cu(2)-N(1)	2.029(5)	N(2)-N(3)	1.389(6)
C(6)-O(1)	1.280(7)	C(6)-N(2)	1.328(7)
C(7)-N(5)	1.311(7)	C(7)-N(3)	1.312(7)
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	4.717(4)		
N(3)-Cu(1)-O(1)	81.1(2)	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(4)	81.3(2)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(4)	160.3(2)	N(3)-Cu(1)-Br(1)	167.65(14)
O(1)-Cu(1)-Br(1)	99.53(12)	N(4)-Cu(1)-Br(1)	99.58(13)
O(4)-Cu(2)-N(2)	168.3(2)	O(4)-Cu(2)-N(1)	93.2(2)
N(2)-Cu(2)-N(1)	80.0(2)	O(4)-Cu(2)-Br(3)	87.77(14)
N(2)-Cu(2)-Br(3)	93.84(13)	N(1)-Cu(2)-Br(3)	152.19(14)
O(4)-Cu(2)-Br(2)	94.1(2)	N(2)-Cu(2)-Br(2)	95.95(13)
N(1)-Cu(2)-Br(2)	95.29(14)	Br(3)-Cu(2)-Br(2)	112.37(3)

Table 2-13. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu,(PHAAP)(Br),(H,O)] (15).





#### [Cu,(PYPZ)Cl\_].H,O (16)

The structure of 16 is depicted in Figure 2-16, and referent boof distances and angles are listed in Table 2-14. The structure is very similar to that of 1, in which the CU(1) centre is bound to one pryidine airrogen (V(1)) and one distaine airrogen (V(2)), while the Cu(2) centre is accordinated by one practice nitrogen (V(6)) and one distaine nitrogen (V(6)) with nominal four-coordination being completed at each cooper centre by two debrins. The Cu-N and Cu-Cl distances are normal for equatorial coordination to consert(1) and commandule to them is 1.

The two copper planes (e.g. Cu(1):N(1)-C(5)-C(6)-N(2) and Cu(2)-N(6)-C(4)-C(7)-N(6) are twisted about the N(2)-N(6) bend vectors with a dihedral angle of 79.68°. The major factor for this accute twisting reats with the storic constraints associated with the terminal disorines and the amine groups are with methoded for 1 and the long intramolecular axial contact between Cu(1) and Cl(3) (3.111(2) Å). The weak intermolecular contacts wir Cl(4) and Cl(3a) (in digenet molecula) dimerize the molecule in the same manner as in 1 (Cu(3)-Cl(5) a. 2.979(2) Å). The copper-copper separation is 3.831(2) Å which is very similar to that in 1.

The bond distances and bond angles in the NH<sub>4</sub>C-N framework of the ligand PYPZ in this complex are very close to those found in 1, which contains a very similar ligand, neggesting that the free nitrogen atom in the pyrazine ring does not provide any significant effects to the coordination properties of the ligand. However, recent studies on coordination reaction of this complex with  $PtCl_e^{2*}$  show that this external nitrogen can be coordinated.

Table 2-14. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu,(PYPZ)Cl,].H<sub>2</sub>O (16).

Cu(1)-Cl(1)	2.243(2)	Cu(1)-Cl(2)	2.263(1)	
Cu(1)-N(1)	2.033(3)	Cu(1)-N(2)	1.996(3)	
Cu(2)-Cl(3)	2.243(1)	Cu(2)-Cl(4)	2.238(1)	
Cu(2)-N(4)	1.977(3)	Cu(2)-N(6)	2.040(4)	
N(2)-N(4)	1.426(4)	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.831(2)	
Cl(1)-Cu(1)-Cl(2)	94.19(5)	Cl(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	93.3(1)	
Cl(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	168.9(1)	Cl(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	171.0(1)	
Cl(2)-Cu(1)-N(2)	93.9(1)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	79.4(1)	
Cl(3)-Cu(2)-Cl(4)	93.94(5)	Cl(3)-Cu(2)-N(4)	93.3(1)	
Cl(3)-Cu(2)-N(6)	166.65(9)	Cl(4)-Cu(2)-N(4)	172.1(1)	
Cl(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	93.2(1)	N(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	80.2(1)	



# 2.3.2 Spectroscopy

All of the complexes exhibit rather complex infrared absorption patterns above 3100 cm<sup>-1</sup> associated with both NH and/or OH vibrations (Table 2-15). The ligand PAHAP has prominent NH absorptions at 3470 and 3268 cm<sup>-1</sup>. A sharp doublet at 3566, 3500 cm<sup>-1</sup> for 1 is associated with the lattice water molecule, while a broad, strong absorption envelope at 3346-3150 cm<sup>-1</sup> can be assigned to NH stretch. The NH vibrations can be clearly identified in 2, which has no water, and show up as two pairs of peaks at 3353, 3309 cm<sup>-1</sup> and 3231, 3189 cm<sup>-1</sup>, suggesting the possibility of two different environments for the NH, groups in 2. The bromide complex 3 clearly shows the presence of lattice water with a sharp doublet at 3579 and 3503 cm<sup>-1</sup>, and a rather complex absorption envelope in the range 3140-3340 cm<sup>-1</sup> associated with NH absorptions. Strong broad bands at 3338 and 3160 cm<sup>-1</sup> are assigned to NH stretch. A sharp single nitrate combination [112] band at 1763 cm<sup>-1</sup> indicates that the nitrates are essentially ionic in nature in 4. The axide complex 5 has a sharp sincle NH hand at 3172 cm<sup>-1</sup> and a broader absorption at 3100-3200 cm<sup>4</sup>, consistent with a single NH proton at a deprotonated centre, and an NH, group. Azide bands at 2092 and 2031 cm<sup>-1</sup> are consistent with terminally bound azide [113], probably in a local Car environment, A weak band at 1750 cm<sup>4</sup> indicates the presence of pitrate, but it is difficult to determine its role. Based on its infrared spectral information together with its UV/vis and magnetic properties, compound

Table 2-15. Infrared spectral and structural data of dicopper(II) complexes 1-17.

compound	IR (cm <sup>-1</sup> )	Cu-N( <sub>py</sub> or <sub>py</sub> )	
[Cu,(PAHAP)Cl,].H,O (1)	3566,3500 (H <sub>2</sub> O); 3346-3150 (v <sub>NBD</sub> );	2.027(3)	
	1662, 1641 (v <sub>c-st</sub> ); 1022 (Py)	2.026(3)	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Cl <sub>4</sub> ] (2)	3353, 3309, 3231, 3189 (v <sub>NR</sub> ); 1664, 1639 (v <sub>C+N</sub> ); 1020(Py)		
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Br <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (3)	3578,3503(H <sub>2</sub> O); 3340-3140(v <sub>NB2</sub> ); 1657,1636(v <sub>C+N</sub> ); 1021(Py)	2.025(5) 2.020(6)	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>6</sub> ] (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> (4)	3493(H <sub>2</sub> O); 3338,3160 (v <sub>NRC</sub> ); 1664, 1644 (v <sub>CvR</sub> ); 1027(Py); 1763(NO <sub>3</sub> <sup>-</sup> ) 2092,2031(N <sub>3</sub> <sup>-</sup> )	2.000(5)	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP-H)(N <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )](5)	3372(v <sub>NP</sub> <sup>-</sup> ); 3200-3100(br, v <sub>NP</sub> );1666(v <sub>CN</sub> ); 1015 (Py); 1750 (NO <sub>3</sub> <sup>-</sup> ; coordinated)		
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(NCS) <sub>4</sub> (DMF) <sub>2</sub> ].2DMF(6)	3328,3176(v <sub>NG</sub> ); 2100,2083,2059(SCN'); 1639(s.and br.v <sub>C*N*</sub> v <sub>C*O</sub> of DMF); 1025(Py)	2.025 2.017	
[Cu <sub>4</sub> (PAHAP)(NCO),] .2DMF(7)	3363,3266,3164(v <sub>NBD</sub> ); 2215(NCO'); 1679 (v <sub>co</sub> of uncoordinated DMF); 1025(Py)		
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Bipy) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ].(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .4H <sub>2</sub> O (8)	3500(H <sub>2</sub> O); 3329,3175(v <sub>NRC</sub> );1672,1648 (v <sub>CNI</sub> );1748( NO <sub>3</sub> ); 1031,1013(Py)	1.989(5)	
[Cu <sub>3</sub> (PAHAP)(Glyn-H) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O)](NO <sub>3</sub> ).3H <sub>2</sub> O (9	3500 (H <sub>2</sub> O); 3363-3130 (ν <sub>MRD</sub> ); 1684, ) 1639 (ν <sub>Cw</sub> );1742 (νw. NO <sub>3</sub> ); 1603, 1407(RCO <sub>2</sub> ', unidentate)1035 (Py);	1.978(6) 1.987(5)	

Table 2-15. (contd.) Infrared spectral and structural data of dicopper(II) complexes 1-17.

compound	IR (cm <sup>-1</sup> )	Cu-N("or")
[Cu,(PAHAP)(Aln-H),	3470(H,O); 3366,3300,3256,3129(van of	1.993(4)
(H,O),](NO,), 3H,O (10)	PAHAP and glycinate); 1684,1650 (Vor);	1.994(4)
	1031(Py); 1763-1736 (vw. NO <sub>1</sub> '); 1609,	1.972(4)
	1410(RCO <sub>2</sub> , unidentate)	1.995(4)
[Cu,(PAHAP)(ACAC-H),	3360-3140(vap); 1757(NO1);1684,1657 (von);	2.004(2)
(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (11)	1583(coordinatevoo);1020 (Py)	2.018(2)
[Cu,(PMHAP-H)(NO <sub>1</sub> ),]	3376(vsur); 1770,1757,1724(uni- and	1.966(4)
(12)	bidentate NO3'); 1602(vc-N); 1010(Py)	1.970(4)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (13)	3520(H <sub>2</sub> O); 3370-3150(v <sub>NRD</sub> ); 1762, 1753 (free and unidentate NO <sub>3</sub> ); 1678(v <sub>NRD</sub> ); 1028,1026(Pv)	
		2 01(72)
(MeOH)(H <sub>2</sub> O)] (14)	1721(sh),1712(NO <sub>3</sub> '); 1607(v <sub>c-N</sub> ); 1007(Py)	2.042(3)
[Cu,(PHAAP)(Br),(H,O)]	3550(H,O); 3368-3172(multiplet, van);	1.996(5)
(15)	1667(v <sub>NC=0</sub> ); 1607(v <sub>C=N</sub> ); 1022 (Py, br.)	2.029(5)
[Cu,(PYPZ)Cl_].H,O (16)	3570(H,O); 3340-3160(v <sub>sec</sub> ); 1662,	2.033(3)
	1639(v <sub>CvN</sub> ); 1023 (py); 1044(Pyr)	2.040(4)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PYPZ)Br_].H <sub>2</sub> O (17)	3574(H <sub>2</sub> O); 3350-3161(v <sub>MRD</sub> ); 1658, 1635(v <sub>mu</sub> ); 1028(py); 1042(Pyr)	

#### Scheme 2-2



5 might have a Type B structure like 12, 14 and 15 (see Scheme 2-2). Compound 6 exhibits to  $v_{mi}$  inflared bands at 3128 and 3176 cm<sup>2</sup> associated with the NFL groups in PAHAP, and three promisent  $v_{cos}$  bands at 2100, 2083 and 2059 cm<sup>2</sup> consistent with the charmagement of two isothico-panies at each copper centre [114]. A broad, strong absorption at 1639 cm<sup>2</sup> is associated with both coordinated and lattice DMF. The isocynates complex 7 has a sharp ningle band at 3164 cm<sup>2</sup> and a doublet band at 3364, 2266 cm<sup>2</sup> sasociated with the ca-arrangement of two isocynates at each copper tentre. The 2135 cm<sup>2</sup> band is so strong that other band, sepected to appear as a result of local symmetry are not observed. A sharp band at 1679 cm<sup>2</sup>, which does not appear as compound 6, clearly is associated with the NH<sub>2</sub> groups in PAHAP, a broad band at 3500 cm<sup>2</sup> 3329 and 3155 cm<sup>2</sup> associated with the MH<sub>2</sub> groups in PAHAP, a broad band at 3500 cm<sup>2</sup> atto bands were and a prominent interband [112] at 1945 cm<sup>2</sup>, at two intrase combination bands [112] would be expected, associated with the lattice and coordinated nitrates, but very strong  $\nu_{_{\rm CN}}$  bands at 1672 and 1648  $\rm cm^{-1}$  dominate this region. The infrared spectra of 9 and 10 shove 3100 cm<sup>3</sup> are dominated by hands associated with water (3500 cm<sup>-1</sup> in 9 and 3512 cm<sup>-1</sup> in 10) and NH, groups in PAHAP and glycinate (3363-3120 cm<sup>-1</sup>) in 9 and alaninate (3366-3129 cm<sup>-1</sup>) in 10 Nitrate combination hands located at 1742 cm<sup>3</sup> (shoulder) for 9 and 1736 cm<sup>3</sup> (shoulder) for 10 are associated with ionic nitrate, and bands at 1603, 1407 cm<sup>-1</sup> for 9 and 1609, 1410 cm<sup>-1</sup> for 10 can be assigned as monodentate carboxylate absorption bands [115]. The visu bands are observed in the infrared spectrum of 11 (3360-3140 cm<sup>-1</sup>), confirming the existence of free NH. groups. Nitrate combination bands (lattice and weakly coordinated) are observed at 1757 cm<sup>4</sup> [112]. The strong 1583 cm<sup>4</sup> band is associated with the coordinated C=O groups of 1.3-pentanedionates [116]. The ligand PAHAP has two prominent NH, absorptions at 3465 and 3318 cm<sup>-1</sup>. The PMHAP complex 12 shows just one sharp NH absorption at 3376 cm<sup>-1</sup>, associated with the hydrogen bound to N(3), and no absorption associated with water. Three prominent nitrate combination bands are observed at 1770, 1757 and 1724 cm<sup>4</sup>, consistent with the presence of both monodentate and bidentate nitrate, although two bands are usually observed in each case [112]. Another PMHAP complex 13 isolated from aqueous solution shows a broad hand at 3520 cm<sup>-1</sup> due to coordinated water and a broad absorption at 3370-3150 cm<sup>-1</sup> associated with the NH, group. The 1762 and 1753 cm<sup>-1</sup> bands are associated with the presence of lattice and coordinated nitrates [112]. A single v., band at 3347 cm1 in the infrared spectrum of 14 confirms the deprotonation at

N()) and the anionic nature of the ligand, and a troad shoulder at 3000 cm<sup>-1</sup> is associated with the coordinated water molecule. A complex group of nitrate bands is observed (1777, 1744, 1735 (ab), 1721 (ab) and 1712 cm<sup>2</sup>), consistent with the three slightly different monolenates minate groups [112]. The loga band at 3409 cm<sup>-1</sup> in the first slower 3100 cm<sup>-1</sup> is dominated by bands associated with coordinated water (3550 cm<sup>2</sup>) and NH<sub>4</sub> groups (3368, 3331, 3287, 3222, 3172 cm<sup>2</sup>). The loga band at 3409 cm<sup>-1</sup> in the first ligand PHAAP has disappeared in the complex. The C-O is quite short (1280 A), and C((-NX2) and N(2)-N(2) are relatively short and similar. Also Cu(1)-N(0) is very short (1917 A). This suggests that N(2) might have significant negative charge and that the double bond is delocalized around the O-C-N-N famwork. This is consistent with the spectrum indicating significant C=O character. The complexes 16, 17 have similar bands in the range 4000-500 cm<sup>-1</sup>. The lattice water band is elserly shown at 3370 cm<sup>2</sup> (16) and 3374 cm<sup>2</sup> (17). Rather complex groups of N45, bands are observed at 3340-3160 cm<sup>2</sup> for 17 and 3350-161 cm<sup>2</sup> for 17.

All the ligands clearly also wrange v<sub>oot</sub> absorptions: 1600 cm<sup>-1</sup> for PARAP, 1613 cm<sup>-1</sup> for PMEAP, 1618, 1654 cm<sup>-1</sup> for PEMAP, 1602 for PHAAP and 1606 cm<sup>-1</sup> for PPVZ. This confilms that lithers ligands doubt a norw-conformation with an oper-chain diazine structure, similar to PARAP (Figure 2-1). If the diazine molecy, together with the NR, groups, existed in a triazoline form, all these ligands should have only one v<sub>oot</sub> hand at much higher frequency, at in the case of picolinamide hydratone (1657 cm<sup>-1</sup>) and provinsimide hydratone (1632 cm<sup>-1</sup>). Nematy, whethe derivations in the C<sup>-1</sup>N provi coordinated to a metal ion, the  $v_{cup}$  lead will decrease in frequency. The complex 1, 14, 15 of the ligand PMEAP, PMEAP and PHEAP respectively are consistent with this situation. Howeve, the  $v_{cup}$  frequency in all PAEAP and PYPZ complexes increases immanizably, income the conjugation in the free ligand is theyken when the ligands from binuclear complexes with a twisted conformation about N-N single bond. The deprotonated ligands in the complexes 12, 14, 15 there essentially flat structures, and so the  $v_{cup}$  bands decrease as expected, compared with that in the free ligands. The increase of  $v_{cup}$  frequencies in the twisted PAEAP and PYPZ discusses complexes are mirrored in the structural parameters which show that the bond distances of the C=N bonds in the complexes are somewhat shorter than or essentially the stame as those in the free ligands, and not much longer as expected, even hough a direct comparison of C=N bond distances in the complexes.

One characteristic influend band for ligands containing 2-pyridyl fragments occurs at about 990 cm<sup>4</sup> [117], while for 2,4-pyrady flagments it occurs at about 1015 cm<sup>4</sup>, and is associated with a pyridise or pyrasine ring breathing mode, which shifts to higher regrises on coordination. These bands occur at 997 cm<sup>4</sup> for PAHAP, 994 cm<sup>3</sup> for PMHAP, 995 cm<sup>4</sup> for PIMAP, 996 cm<sup>4</sup> for PHAAP, 994 cm<sup>3</sup> (2-pyridyl), 1018 cm<sup>4</sup> (2,4-pyrasyl) for PYPZ, and are all shifted to higher frequencies on coordination, which are mirrored in the Cu-N bond distances (pyridyl or pyrasyl) in the complexes with the same ligand. The shorts the Cu-N (pyridyl or pyrasyl) distances, the higher the breathing band frequencies.

compound	solid	14,0(E, 4m².moi*.cm*)	0MF(E, dm'.mol*.cm*
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Cl <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (1)	730	720(137.8)	780(298.3)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Cl <sub>4</sub> ] (2)	715	720(164.3)	820(332.6)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Br <sub>4</sub> ]H <sub>2</sub> O (3)	704	720(150.9)	817(455.0)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>6</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> (4)	689	715(167.2)	710(300.8)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP-H)(N <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )](5)	-	-	695(461.4)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(NCS) <sub>4</sub> (DMF) <sub>2</sub> ].2DMF(6)	675	-	687(378.3)
[Cu <sub>1</sub> (PAHAP)(NCO),].2DMF(7)	620	-	680(435.3)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Bipy) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .4H <sub>2</sub> O (8)	725	740(236.8)	722(256.4)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Glyn-H) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O)] (NO3).3H <sub>2</sub> O (9)	630	640(175.1)	600(101.9)
[Cu <sub>3</sub> (PAHAP)(Aln-H) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> . 3H <sub>2</sub> O (10)	610	640(173.3)	600(170.5)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(ACAC-H) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (11)	607	630(165.8)	630(359.0)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP-H)(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>3</sub> ](12)	680	683(pH=5.5)198.7) 724(pH=4.5)(98.40)	700(289.8)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (13)	690	720(100.2)	700(258.5)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PHMAP-H)(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>3</sub> (MeOH)(H <sub>2</sub> O)] (14)	695	710(pH=5.5)(159.7) 752(pH=4.5)(67.41)	710(226.0)
[Cu2(PHAAP)(Br)2(H2O)] (15)	870	-	800(298.5)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PYPZ)Cl <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (16)	720	715(193.6)	800(286.6)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PYPZ)Br <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (17)	712	706(176.3)	820(467.4)

Table 2-16. UV/Vis spectral data for dicopper(II) complexes 1-17 (nm).

Solid state mail transmittance, aqueous solution and DMF solution electronic spectral data are listed in Table 2-16. Solid mull transmittance electronic spectra for 1-17 are quite similar, with one broad visible band in the range 607-870 nm.

Acueous solutions of 1-4 exhibit essentially identical spectra, with a broad absorption at 720 nm, consistent with the same solution species in each case and solvation of open coordination positions at each copper(II) centre. In DMF solution, however, the spectra are quite different (780 nm (1) , 820 nm (2), 817 nm (3), 710 nm (4)), indicating incomplete solvation effects. The longer wavelength absorptions for 1-3 in DMF suggest the persistence of conner-halogen honds in solution and for 2 a structure somewhat different from that of 1. The most likely structure to resist solvation effects would be one with intramolecular halogen bridges, and a possible structure for 2 would involve two square-pyramidal copper(II) centers in a pseudo-cis conformation with one or even two chlorine bridges. Molecular models suggest these are reasonable structural possibilities, which would create a relatively small angle between the two conner planes and not create any serious steric problems on the part of the two NH, groups. Despite the fact that reasonable crystals of 2 were obtained, none have permitted a structural determination. For 3, the long wavelength band (817 nm) suggests that the weak intramolecular bromine bridging structure may persist in solution. For 4, the absorption band (710 nm) in DMF is essentially the same as that in solid state, which shows that no solvation takes place in DMF solution. The electronic spectra of 6 and 7 are quie different (673 nm for 6, 620 nm for 7) in solid state, while essentially identical in DMF solution (687 nm for 6, 680 nm for 7). In addioid, Thole and the solution of a similar spectrum in the solid state to that in DMF solution. These electronic spectral data, together with influted data, indicate that the two DMF molecules in 7 do not coordinate to the copper(TI) centera, which indicates that 7 may have a larger torsion angle about the N-N single bond because of less storic crohem contact with 6.

The electronic spectrum of 81 in the solid state and in DMF solution are easely the same (720 nm), and slightly different from that in squeous solution (740 nm), suggesting that two weakly bonded NO, ions in the solid state (300 nm) and in squeous solution. Compound 9 has an essentially identical spectrum in the solid state (300 nm) and in squeous solution. (640 nm) because the water molecules are only weakly bonded to the Cu(11) ions in the solid state. However, the spectrum in DMF solution is different (300 nm). The reasonable explanation is that the complex would reasonably be replaced by DMF. Compound 16 has a similar solvation effects. Complex Holdon is an electronic compound 9 indicative of very similar solvation effects. Complex 11 exhibits an electronic spectrum with a peak at 607 nm in the solid state and 630 nm both in squeous and DMF solutions of the a visible abspectrum of 830 nm both in squeous and DMF solution of each vision effects. It is of interest to note that an aqueous and DMF solution of the at a visible abspectrum of 830 nm. Bother weakly compound 9 and a visible abspectrum of 830 nm. Bother weakly solution to the at a visible abspectrum of 830 nm. Bother solution in factorized and the solution of files 1 is of interest to note that an aqueous solution of the solution to file at a visible abspectrum of 830 nm. Bother solutions for the solution of the solution because of nolvoine effects. It is of interest to note that an aqueous solution of the solution because of nolvoine effects. It is of interest to note that an aqueous solution of the solution because of nolvoine effects. It is of interest to active the solution to file solution of the solution the s slightly (217 = 4.5) shifts the wishle hand to 720 nm, the exact position of 1.3 in supressa solution, and also consistent with 1-4, suggesting that the ligand is protonated at its amino group, hence its Type IE coordination mode in the solid state becomes Type AB in assects solution. A similar result was observed for complex 14 (Table 2-16). Compound 15 exhibits quite a long wavelength absorption at 870 nm in the solid state, and at 600 nm in DMF solution, which suggests a minor coordination environment change in DMF. The spectra of 16 and 17 are quite abilitate to that of 1 and 3 respectively in the solid state and in solutions. Which suggests a minor coordination environment change in DMF. The spectra of 16 and 17 are quite abilitate to that of 1 and 3 respectively in the solid state and in solutions.

### 2.3.3 Magnetism

The room temperature magnetic moments and the best fit data to the Blaany-Bowers equation (eqs. 1-4) for the variable temperature (4-305 K) magnetic data are presented in Table 2-17. Room temperature magnetic moments for complexes 5, 12, 14, 15 are subnormal falling in the magnet of 1-82-160 BM, indicating spin coupling between the coopper(II) centers and the presence of net antiferromagnetism, while the room temperature magnetic moments for the other complexes are does to the normal values for an uncoupled coceers.

A plot of  $\chi_n^{-1}$  versus temporance for I is illustrated in Figure 1-17 and the rise in  $\chi_n^{-1}$  values from 0.44 em. mol<sup>+</sup> K at 26K to 0.402 em. mol<sup>+</sup> K at 16 K, clearly indicates the presence of intranolocular ferromagnetic coupling. The drop at lower temperatures suggests the presence also of antiferromagnetism, which only shows up in the temperatures suggests the presence also of antiferromagnetism, which only shows up in the temperatures coupling of the data in the email. 14 was corried out and the intrandoctural ferromagnetic coupling confirmed with -2I - -2.4 (42) cm<sup>2</sup> ( $\alpha = 2.186$ ), -2I - -24 (42) cm<sup>2</sup>, Ni  $\alpha = 20^{+0.6}$  ( $\alpha_{max} \rho = 0, \theta = -1.85$ ,  $10^{+}$  R = 1.3; R =  $12(\chi_m - \chi_m)^{+}/2\chi_m)^{+0.7}$ ). The solid line in Figure 2-17 was calculated using these parameters. The small Curie-Weiss like correscion term is negative, as would be expected, and confirms in depreters of a very small antiferromagnetic component in the versall exchange, which is clearly intermolecular in nature. This can be assigned to the weak interdimer bridging connection wir CI (1), which is the only significant intermolecular constant. A similar bridging armagnetent, with long axial copper-bronide contact; (Cu-Br 3 003 A), in the complex (Cu-Metz), Br<sub>2</sub>,  $h_1(118)$ , also leads to weak antiferromagnetic coupling (-22 = 2.4 or 3).

Variable temperature magnetism for [Cu<sub>4</sub>/PAHAPJBr\_1]4,(0 (3) is very similar to that of 1, with  $\chi_{-}$ T rising metally from a value of 0.43 mm.mol\*K at 25% K to 0.62 emu.mol\*K at 3.9 K, indicative again of intransolecular ferromagnetic coupling. The data were fitted to equ. 1-4 to give g = 2.067(5), 21 ~ -22(2) cm<sup>2</sup>, p = 0.00000, Na = 45\* 10<sup>4</sup> emu, 0 = 0.56 K, 10<sup>4</sup>R = 0.9. No apparent significant intermolecular contacts show up in the structure of 3, and this is microred in the mappetic data.

The variable temperature magnetic properties of (Cu<sub>4</sub>/PAHAP/0L<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub>)<sub>4</sub>(N), are in sharp contrast to those of 1. A plot of  $\chi$  versus temperature is illustrated in **Figure** 2-18, and reveals a maximum in susceptibility at about 25 K. This is clearly indicative of minimat antifermentative contrast.

compound	-2J (cm <sup>-1</sup> )	8	ө (К)	μ <sub>ef</sub> (RT) (BM)	Cu-Cu (Å)	γ (Deg.)	ΔE (meV)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Cl <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (1)	-24.4(2)	2.138(5)	-1.85	1.87	3.845(1)	77.1	29
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Cl <sub>4</sub> ] (2)	44.0(3)	2.101(6)	-7.5	1.77			
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)Br <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (3)	-22(2)	2.067(5)	0.56	1.87	3.826(1)	75.02	46
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>6</sub> ] (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> (4)	28.3(3)	2.29(1)	-5	1.85	4.389(2)	100.2	153
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP-H)(N <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )](5)	207.4(7)	2.035(3)	-0.4	1.42			
[Cu <sub>1</sub> (PAHAP)(NCS) <sub>4</sub> DMF) <sub>2</sub> ].2DMF(6)	51.1(3)	2.107(1)	-1.4	1.78	4.453(3)	103.6	155
[Cu <sub>1</sub> (PAHAP)(NCO) <sub>4</sub> ] .2DMF(7)	128(4)	2.25(5)	-2.4	1.76			
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Bipy) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ] (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .4H <sub>2</sub> O (8)		no coupling		1.91	4.229	119.8	47
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Glyn-H) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) (H <sub>2</sub> O)](NO <sub>3</sub> ).3H <sub>2</sub> O (9)	1.5(3)	2.09(1)	-0.8	1.86	4.412(4)	85.2	98

Table 2-17. Magnetic, structural data and  $\Delta E$  values of the dicopper(II) complexes.

compound	-2J (cm <sup>-1</sup> )	g	ө (К)	μ <sub>ef</sub> (RT) (BM)	Cu-Cu (Å)	γ (Deg.)	ΔE (meV)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(Aln-H) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ].(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> 3H <sub>2</sub> O (10)	45.6(4)	2.076(3)	-3.6	1.77	4.392(4) 4.379(4)	86.8(4) (xeerage)	104 (Cu(1)-Cu(2))
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(ACAC-H) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (11)				1.78	4.360(2)	82.04	-
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP-H)(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>3</sub> ] (12)	173(3)	2.07(4)	-0.76	1.57	4.778(4)	165.2	453
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ].(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (13)				1.84			
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PHMAP-H)(NO <sub>3</sub> ), (MeOH)(H <sub>2</sub> O)](14)	208(2)	2.09(1)	0	1.53	4.759(1)	168.3	377
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PHAAP)(Br) <sub>3</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O)] (15)				1.53	4.717(4)	153.2	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PYPZ)Cl <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (16)				1.86	3.831(2)	79.68	107
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PYPZ)Br <sub>4</sub> ].H <sub>2</sub> O (17)				1.85			

Table 2-17. (contd.) Magnetic, structural data and  $\Delta E$  values of the dicopper(11) complexes



Figure 2-17. Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 1. The solid line was calculated from equ. 1-4 with g = 2.138(5), -2J = -24.4(2) cm<sup>4</sup>, Na =  $20^{+}10^{4}$  cmu, p = 0,  $\theta$  = -1.85 K,  $10^{2}$ R = 1.3  $([\Sigma(\chi_{n-}\chi_{n-})^2/\Sigma\chi_{n-}^2]^{1/2}).$ 

g = 2.23(1), 2I = 28.3(7) cm<sup>2</sup>,  $\rho = 0.054$ ,  $Na = 464^{107}$  cm,  $\theta = -5$  K,  $10^{7}$  k = 1.01. The solid line in Figure 3.14 was calculated with these parameters. The necessity for the inclusion of a significant Weis-Hie correction in the fitting procedure raises the question of the appropriateness of the magnetic model, but it is clear from the structure that the Blaney-Bowers equation should redistically integret the exchange situation. Therefore the negative value indicates an intermolecular antiferromagnetic interaction. Although there are many intermolecular hydrogen bonding interactions (*vide infro*), a logical pathway for antiferromagnetic coupling would involve a direct contection between N(1) and Cu(1) (*via* O(2)-O(5)-N(5)-O(3)). This is clearly very long (*six* bonds and two hydrogen bond), but is of unrestanded by other bear matter of the interaction.

The magnetic properties of [Cu<sub>4</sub>/PAHAP/CJ] (2) are also surprisingly quite different from 1, even though the oldy analytical difference between the two compounds is the clearly defined absence of water in 2. Variable temperature magnetism on 2 shows a maximum in the  $\chi_{\chi}$  versus temperature products of 4.5 K, indicative of antiferromagnetic coupling, but stronger than in 4. A reasonable fit of the data to equ. 1-4 was achieved and the base fit gave g = 2.101(6), 32 = 44.0(2) cm<sup>2</sup>,  $\rho = 0.00005$ , N $\alpha = 60^{-1104}$  em.,  $\theta = -7.5$  K, 10<sup>26</sup> = 1.3. The stronger antiferromagnetism in 2, comparable with the observed for [Cu<sub>4</sub>/PMG/CJ], suggests a different arcuture from 1 with a different angle between the magnetic places or additional magnetic bridge. The suggest clockine bridges



Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 4. The solid line was calculated from eqn. 1-4 with g = 2.29(1), Fure 2-18.

 $2J = 28.3(7) \text{ cm}^3, \text{ } p = 0.054, \text{ N}\alpha = 46^* 10^4 \text{ emu}, \theta = -5 \text{ K}, 10^3 \text{ R} = 1.01(\text{R} = [\Sigma(\chi_{\text{ss}} - \chi_{\text{sec}})^3/\Sigma\chi_{\text{sb}}^{-2})^{1/2})$


n can. 1-4 with g = from Varia Fure 2-19.

-

structure for 2 would be consistent with this situation, if the bridge connected the two magnetic orbitals directly. The significant  $\theta$  value, larger than that in 1, indicates a stronger intermolecular exchange component, suggesting possible interdimer associations as well.

The acide complex [Cu<sub>4</sub>/PAHAP-H( $(N_{3}_{4}/N_{2}))$ ] (5) has a pronounced maximum in susceptibility at 180 K clearly indicating strong antiferromagnetic exchange. A good fit to equa, 1-4 gave g = 2.035(3), 22.0374(7) cm<sup>2</sup>,  $\rho$  = 0.0013, Na = 738<sup>-10</sup>46 emu,  $\theta$  = -0.4 K, 10<sup>2</sup>R = 0.7. The strong antiferromagnetic coupling is consistent with the proposed *maximum* crure (Type B) combumits for this incompand (vide m/ $\rho$ ).

The compound [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PAIAP(NCS)\_(DMP)\_12DMF (4) has a room temperature magnetic moment 1.7 BM disto the spin-day value for copper(II), but displays a maximum in the  $\chi_{c}$  versus temperature profile at 40 K, indicative of weak autiferromagnetic coupling (Figure 21-5). A fit to equit, 14 gave g = 1.01(0), 2-12 51.1(3) cm<sup>2</sup>, p = 0.006, Niz = 75°10<sup>4</sup> emu,  $\theta = -1.4$  K,  $10^{24}$  = 1.7. Compound [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PAIAP(NCO)\_12DMF (7) has a room temperature magnetic moment of 1.76 BM, close to the spin only value for cospect(II). However the  $\chi_{c}$  versus temperature profile has a maximum at 100 K indicating significant antiferromagnetic coupling between the cospect(I) conterts, which are clearly bridged by the N-N diazine group. The data were find to cosp.14 to give g = 2.23(3), -2.23(20, m<sup>2</sup>),  $p = 0.23(6, m<sup>2</sup>) \in 70.23(6, m<sup>2</sup>) \in 70.$ 



Figure 2-20.  $\chi_{a}^{\bullet}T$  vs T for compound 8 ( $\oplus$ ) and compound 9 ( $\blacktriangle$ ).



ited from eqn. 1-4 with c data for complex 12. The solid Figure 2-21. Variable to

= 2.07(4), -21 = 173(3) cm<sup>4</sup>, 
$$\rho$$
 = 0.0048, Na = 68\*10<sup>4</sup> emu,  $\theta$  = -0.76 K, 10<sup>4</sup>R = 0.85 (R = [EU<sub>4</sub>,  $\omega_{1}$ )<sup>2</sup> $\Sigma_{2,\alpha_{2}}$ <sup>3</sup>)<sup>12</sup>).

۰.



a eqn. 1-4 with data for complex 14. The solid line Figure 2-22. Varia

-.2.4 K (10% = 0.64). Compared with 6 the exchange is much larger, suggesting a large diabedral angle between the copper coordination planes. This may well be associated, in part, with the apparent absence of coordinated DMF in this compound, leading to different steric republicon effects. The significant negative 0 wake implies a weak intermolecular antiferromagnetic exchange component, but this cannot be evaluated without structural information.

The compound [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP(Ripy),NG<sub>3</sub>)] (NO<sub>3</sub>), 4R<sub>2</sub>O (8) has a higher room temperature magnetic moment, 191 BM, and the χ<sub>4</sub>\*T values are larger than 0.41 emu.mol<sup>3</sup> K throughout the 5.00 K temperature range (Figure 2-20), indicative of no significant coupling between the coopper(II) centers. This is consistent with the distorted trigonal bipyremidal structure of this complex, and the equatorial bonding of the copper contents to the distaine introgen bridge.

The compound [Cu<sub>4</sub>/PAIAP/(GlynH<sub>4</sub>/RO)<sub>2</sub>],4R<sub>4</sub>O (9) has a normal room temperature magnetic moment (1.78 BM), and the  $\chi_{+}^{-1}$  values are larger than 0.41 ema.md<sup>-1</sup>K above 75 K. When the temperature is lowered, the  $\chi_{+}^{-1}$  values decrease to 0.020 ema.md<sup>-1</sup>K at (Figure 2-50) indicating that there is a very small antiferromagnetic interaction taking place. The data were fitted to equ, 1-4 to give g = 2.09(1), -21 = 1.5(3) cm<sup>4</sup>,  $\rho$  = 0.0007, N $\alpha$  = 7.\*10<sup>4</sup> ema,  $\theta$  = 0.8K (10<sup>6</sup>R = 3.5). This is not a good fit since the single-triplet splitting is very small and comparable with the Zeman energy (g)B<sup>4</sup>). The data were also fitted to be more approximation expression (equ dinuclear complexes. The presence of an interdimer interaction was considered by using

$$M = Ng\beta(\sinh(g\beta H/kT)) / (\exp(-2J/kT) + 2\cosh(g\beta H/kT) + 1)$$
 ......[2-1]

$$\chi_{m} = M/H + N\alpha$$
 [2-2]

equ 2-4, where z is the number of nearest neighbour dimers and F the interdimer exchange parameter. Comparable fitting parameters were obtained by this method, with a slightly improved fit ( $g = 2.103(T), c2T = 1.44(S) cm^2, zT = -1.44(cm^2, Nar = 60^{+1}0^{+0} cmu, p =$ 0.0003), confirming the very weak antiferromagnetic exchange in 9. The comparable 2Jand zT values suggests that the hydrogen bonds wire the water and the weakly coordinatedinstrum nobcale provide a significant intermolecular utiliferromagnetic exchange in the provide significant intermolecular utiliferromagnetic exchange in the set of the start of the

The compound [Cap(PARMP/(Ah+R)(Nob),]JST40 (10) has a room immerature magnetic moment ( $\mu_{eq} = 1.77$  BM) close to the spin only value, but a plot of  $\chi_{eq}$  versus the moment ( $\mu_{eq} = 1.77$  BM) close to the spin only value, but a plot of  $\chi_{eq}$  versus the momentum shows a maximum at = 40 K, indicative of intransoleular antiferromagnetic coupling. Fitting of the variable temperature data to equa 1.4 gives a g = 2.078(3), -23 = 45.6(4) cm<sup>2</sup>,  $\rho$  = 0.0312, Na; = 75°10° cm,  $\theta$  = -3.6 K, 10% = -031. A somewhat larger than usual Weiss-like correction was applied to give a reasonable data fit, and this implies an intermolecular determagnetic enclusor component.

Compound [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP)(ACAC-H)<sub>2</sub>](NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub> (11) has a room temperature magnetic moment of 1.78 BM, close to the spin only value for copper (II). No variable temperature magnetic data on 11 are available. However, from a structural perspective, weak intramolecular antiferromagnetic coupling should be observed in this complex.

The plot of moder associability versus temperature for  $[Cu_k/PMRAP-H/ONO_k]$ (12) is illustrated in Figure 2-21. The maximum at = 160 K is indicative of fairly strong intranslocative attrifteromagnetic coupling, and the solid line corresponds to a good data fit to equ. 1-4 for g = 2.07(4), .21 = 173(2) cm<sup>2</sup>,  $\rho = 0.0342$ , Na:  $-64^{+1}0^{+}$  emu,  $\theta = -0.76$ K,  $10^{2}$ K = 0.45. The strong antiferromagnetic coupling is consistent with the ram-news (Type B) structure of this compound, in which there is clearly good overlap of the magnetic coper orbitals and the  $\rho$  orbits of the distinct briefly (with myro).

[Cu<sub>4</sub>(PMHAP)(H<sub>4</sub>O)<sub>4</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub>] (NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub> (13) gives a room temperature magnetic moment of 1.84 BM, close to the spin only value for copper(II) and may have very similar variable temperature magnetism to that of 4.

[Cu\_0/PH8AAP)(MeGH9H(AQ)(NO<sub>3</sub>)] (14) has a room temperature magnetic moment ( $w_{se} = 1.33$  BM) well below the spin-only value, indicative of significant antiferromagnetic coupling. The variable temperature susceptibility versus temperature profile (Figure 3-23) displays a maximum at about 180 K, and fitting to eqs. 1-4 gives g = 2.977(12), -21 = 208(2) cm<sup>2</sup>,  $\rho = 0.031$ , Na = 66<sup>+104</sup> ema,  $\theta = 0$  K, 10<sup>2</sup>R = 0.64. The solid line in Figure 3-23 was calculated with these parameters. The sharp rise in susceptibility at low temperature is indicative of a significant proportion of paramagnetic inpurity (3-14). The sensitive hydrogene hooding setwork in this compound (Figure 2-14) does not appear to provide any intermolecular contribution to the exchange situation.

The complex [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PHAAP-H)Br<sub>4</sub>(H<sub>4</sub>O)](15) has a room temperature magnetic moment ( $\mu_{eff} = 1.53$  BM) well below the spin-only value, indicating significant antiferromagnetic coupling. We await its variable temperature magnetism.

Complexes 16 and 17 have quite high room temperature magnetic moments ( $\mu_{eff}$  = 1.86 BM for 16 and 1.85 BM for 17), and from structural perspectives may have very similar variable temperature magnetism to that of 1 and 3 respectively.

## 2.3.4 Magnetostructural correlation for dicopper(II) complexes bridged by single N-N bonds

In the previous section, a series of binnetser copper(1) complexes with open-chain diazies ligands has been described. In all cases, two copper(1) centers are bridged by the N-N single bool of the copen-chain diazies ligands. However these complexes exhibit dramatically different magnetic properties. X-ray structures show that in all these complexes, encopy compound [Cu/[PAILAP/(lipy),NO<sub>3</sub>)], (NO<sub>3</sub>), 4(R) (0), the unpaired electron of the copper (1) ion occupies a magnetic orbital of  $d_{j,ij}$  symmetry, which points source the co-ordinating diazies introgen atoms. Therefore, considerable electron delocalization should take place over these two nitrogen atoms only, and the magnetic supersechange interaction becomes possible via maiely the o orbitals of the ligands. Changes in the bridge generetry (e.g. the differult angle shout the NA single bool) of the ligand take place over these two nitrogen atoms only. And the

Before trying to correlate the magnetic and the structural data, two facts should be considered: 1) The terminal co-ligands are different in each complex. 2) The ligands, PMHAP. PHMAP. PHAAP are deprotonated in the complexes 12, 14, 15 respectively and have a negative charge. Firstly the electronegativity of the atoms bound to the conper(II) centers will affect the spin exchange by affecting the electron density on the bridging atoms and the copper(II) ions. The antiferromagnetic interaction will decrease when electron density is removed from the bridging atoms and copper(II) ions. However, the effect for terminal atoms is comparatively less important. Secondly, Oshio and Nagashima [121] concluded that in the case of bridging ligands with a negative charge, the energy levels of the nitrogen p or orbitals coordinated to the copper(II) ions, are closer in energy to the conner(II) d orbitals than those of the neutral bridging ligand. In other words, the bridging ligand with negative charge will result in a stronger antiferromagnetic interaction. However, the variable temperature magnetic property studies on a series of doubly N1,N2-1,2,4-triazole (neutral) bridged copper(II) complexes and doubly N1,N2-1,2,4triazolate (negative) bridged binuclear copper(II) compounds indicate that the isotropic exchange constants for both series fall in the same range, namely, there is a very close similarity in the superexchange canability of the triaxole and the triaxolate bridge Koningsbruggen et al. made a further conclusion that in determining the effectiveness of the magnetic superexchange mechanism, electronic effects are of minor importance [13].

Therefore, obviously, geometrical factors involving the copper(II) ions and the bridging ligands should be invoked to account for the difference in magnitude of the isotropic exchange constants for the present series of the discopert[]) complexes. The atructural parameters involving the coppert[]) atoms and the open-chain distaine network, together with the intropic sechange constants (-2) are summarised in Table 2-17. With the exception of compound [CacgPAHAP/(Bipy),NO<sub>3</sub>], (NO<sub>3</sub>), 4E<sub>2</sub>O (8), all complexes contain two approximately aquare please or aquare prunidal or distorted dis-coordinate copper(]) centers insked by N-N single books with offlatenet dihedral angle (r). With the increase of y values, the Cu-Cu distances increase significantly because of obvious generative factors. However, the increase of the Cu-Cu distances in different complexes in the present series does not decrease the magnitude of -2J values at all, as would be expected. Hence, the discress containt (-2).

Consequently, the only factor that significantly affects the isotropic exchange constant is the dihedral angle (loration angle ) between the two copper[1]) magnetic planes. Although a handful of compounds have previously been struturally characterized variable temperature studies, have been limited to [Cu\_[PMG/CL] [79], [Cu\_[HL] Cl\_[H\_0]].15H\_0 [88] and [Cu\_(PA)\_[MO]\_kH\_0 [98] as mentioned in **Chapter 1**. Both [Cu\_[PMG/CL] and [Cu\_(FHL]Cl\_[H\_0]).15H\_0 are antiferromagnetically coupled (:23 = 52(4) on<sup>4</sup> and 213.3 cm<sup>2</sup> respectively), but to a dramatically different extent. The variable temperature magnetic property studies on [Cu(PMJ)[MO]\_kH\_0 [MG]\_0 indicated no coupling at al between copper[1] context. This is clearly related to the angle between the magnetic planes in these three complexes. For [Cu\_PMHG/CL] to the Amgle between the



Figure 2-23. plot of -2J (cm<sup>4</sup>) vs magnetic plane dihedral angle for 1, 3, 4, 6, 9, 10, 12, 14(+); 8(0);

ref. [82] (\*). The solid line represents the best fit to the ( $\bullet$ ) data.

angle is 70.8° indicating an acute angle between the magnetic planes. In contrast, the magnetic orbitals in  $[C_4(CHL_2(H_0))]$ . SHQ are almost coplanar, while the angle in  $[C_4(CHA_2)]_{A}(OO_4)$ , SHQ or so that a first orbital is 90°. In these three cases, the magnetic ground state for the ecception of compound 8, is consistent with this situation, in that the magnetic plane disedual angles are 77.1° (1), 75.02° (3), 100.2° (4), 103.6° (6), 85.2° (9), 105° (10), 87.48° (11), 165.2° (12), 168.3° (14), 150.5° (15) and 79.68° (16) respectively. Figure 2-33 shows that the value of -32 increases from 75.28° or 168.3°. The solid line in Figure 2-33 corresponds to bet line fit hashing to the equility to 10.8°. The solid line in Figure 2-33 corresponds to be the line in fit or the solid line in Figure 2-33 corresponds to be the line in fit of the other plane the line in figure 2-33 corresponds to be the line in fit of the solid line in Figure 2-34 corresponds to be the line in fit of the other plane the line in figure 2-34 corresponds to be entine fit (12) to 2018 cm<sup>-1</sup>.

This firstly good linear retritionship in such a larger range of angles and -22 values might suggest that any other factors, such as the negative charge of the ligands in the related complexes and the differences of the terminal co-ligands, might have little effect on the isotropic exchange constant. This result represents the first successful magnetostructural correlation between the isotropic exchange constant and structural parameters for copper(1) ions linked by a distonic bridge. Even though Koningbruggen et al. [1] worked out a relationship between the isotropic exchange constant and the N-CoV-angle (the line of NI-CoJAV 79, NZ-CoIAV) we get (the prot-12) in a plane of the super-12 in a plane of NI-CoJAV 70, NZ-CoIAV we get (the prot-12) in a plane.  $Cu-(N-N)_2$ -Cu framework for the series of doubly N1,N2-1,2,4-triazole bridged copper(II) compounds, it is difficult to say whether the relationship is linear or not.

It should be noted that eon. 2-5 was obtained only within the dihedral angle range 75E-180E. It would obviously need to be modified for a very small dihedral angle system or a system which involves a drastically different open-chain ligand because of steric and electronic effects. In addition, this equation can only be applied for dicopper(II) complexes which have a  $d_{x_1^2, x_2^2}$  ground state. Using the equation to calculate the -2J value for compound 8 with a dihedral angle 119.8°, the calculated -2J value (83.8 cm<sup>-1</sup>) is clearly inconsistent with the experimental data (no coupling). However, examination of the copper(II) ion stereochemistry reveals why. The geometry at the copper(II) centers is quite distorted, but is closer to a trigonal bipyramid than a square pyramid (x = 0.58) [81], with the two coppers bridged through the N-N linkage via the equatorial lobes of their da orbitals. This is mirrored in the Cu-Cu senaration (4 229 Å) which is not longer as expected, but significantly shorter than that in complex 4 or 6. Since this component of the d\_2 orbital carries a small proportion of the unpaired electron density, these observed magnetic properties are entirely reasonable, which will be proved by molecular orbital calculations in the next section. The lack of coupling between the copper centers in compound 8 means that effective J\_\_\_ = zero. Such an example should therefore provide an opportunity for a theoretical calculation of the L term for this complex (ILI = |I...)

## 2.3.5 Molecular orbital calculations for the complexes and appropriate models

To test the conclusion that the twist angle between the magnetic planes is the major factor in determining the type and extent of coupling, molecular orbital calculations based on the extended Hückel model turned out to be very useful in providing a more quantitative description of the magnetic exchange interactions which occur in these commonds.

The molecular orbital calculations have been carried out at the extended Huickl [124] level for 1, 3, 4, 6, 4-12, 14-16 and also for the complex [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PMO)Cu<sub>2</sub>] (79), using the exact crystallographic coordinates. The data set for 4 was simplified by the removal of the axial water molecular (SO(9)), which did not alter the coorport(II) magnetic ground state, or the molecular geometry. The differences in energy between the two triplets state magnetic molecular which for the resent compounds are listed in Table 2-17.

The two highest authonisming triplet state molecular orbitals (GOMOV, Singly Ocupied Molecular Orbitals) for compound 1, which are responsible for the magnetic properties, are desimated by p orbital components on the distance introgens and the profilme nitrogens. The molecular twist along the N-N bond (r = 77, 1') results in misalignment of the adjacent p orbitals in the N-N bond, almost amounting to a situation of orthogonality. With very limited overlap between these orbitals, it is so surprise that the energy difference between the symmetric and anisymmetric MO Site yes, and (R = 20)





E = -11.569 eV

Symmetric SOMO

E = -11.722 eV Antisymmetric SOMO

Figure 2-25. The symmetric and antisymmetric SOMOs for compound 4.

129



meV). The symmetric and antisymmetric molecular orbital combinations are lihartrated in Figure 2-24. A similar situation exists for compound 3, again with a small energy effortmence between the triplest state SOMOV (66 meV). The two comparable line energy molecular orbitals for 4 (Figure 2-25) and 6 are again dominated by *p* orbital components on the prividine ring and datane aitrogena, but because of the flatter nature of the molecule, overlap between the diataine *p* orbitals is enhanced such that the difference is energy between the symmetric and antisymmetric magnetic Mole is industratially larger (AE = 153 meV for 4 and 155 meV for 6). A similar calculation for [Ca<sub>4</sub>/PMK)Cl<sub>4</sub>] indicates a large energy difference between the symmetric and antisymmetric molecular orbitals (AE = 209 meV), consistent with the stronger antiferemagnetic coupling. However a direct comparison of AI have enaught hand because of the difference listness.

The difference in energy between the symmetric and antisymmetric magnetic MO's for compounds 9 and 10 is similar and relatively small (98 meV for 9 and 104 meV for 10), consistent with the weak magnetic coupling in these two compounds.

The molecular orbital picture for compound 12 (Figure 2-26) is complicated by the presence of a different ligand and the additional copper-nitrogen bond (Cu(1)-N(1) 1.916(5) A), which is very short, and the antipometric MO shows a significant contribution from the *p* orbitals in the framework Cu(1)-N(2)-C(1)-N(4)-Cu(2). This, combined with the almost flat nature of the molecule, leads to a very large difference in encry between the two magnetic molecular orbitals (45) meV). consistent with the strong







antifierromagnetic coupling observed for this complex. However the strong exchange in this case appears not to be due entirely to the diazine bridge. Similar results were obtained for compound 14 with AE = 377 meV. Even though 16 shows a very similar structure to the of 1, the energy difference between two SOMOs is much larger (107 meV) than that for 1 (29 meV), which is probably due to the contribution of the free pyrazine airrogen (Figure 2-27). However, the expanded views (Figure 2-28) of the energy level scheme for both complexes are very similar, suggesting that 16 might also demonstrate a forromagnetic coupling.

These calculations may be used in conjunction with the orbital model for the exchange intraction [125-127] (equ. 2-4) between two copper(II) centers, in which the exchange integral J can be correlated with geometric distortions. J can be written as the sum of two terms,

$$J = J_{g} + J_{Ag} = -K_{12} + (\varepsilon_{1} - \varepsilon_{2})^{2}/(J_{11} - J_{12}).$$
[2-6]

J<sub>1</sub> being the term defined by the exchange integral between the two localised molecular orbitals, which is always ferromagnetic, tad J<sub>ar</sub>, which is composed of two components, the square of the difference in energy between the two molecular orbitals ( $c_{\mu}$ ,  $c_{\mu}$ ) in the right state, and the difference in coulomb integrals between the localised molecular orbitals ( $J_{\mu\nu}$ ,  $J_{\mu\nu}$ ). In dealing with correlations within a series of related compounds the term that changes most is ( $c_{\nu}$ ,  $c_{\mu}$ )<sup>2</sup>, and the other terms are considered to be largely invariant. The energy difference between the two molecular orbitals calculated above is therefore a major function of the  $J_{\mu\nu}$  term. The validity of these observations, within a limited data set, in best examined in the context of a set of molecular models, and appropriate molecular orbital ackulations. A simple set of model systems that combines the easential features of the ligand (i.e. the two  $p^{ab}$  disrogen centers lisked by a single N-N bond), and the copper square planes, is illumination in Figure-2.9.



Figure 2-29. Model compounds for MO calculations.







Figure 2-31. Plot of orbital energies (c, , c, ) against the magnetic plane rotational angle for the H,O model



Figure 2-32. Plot of energy difference ( $\epsilon_s$  -  $\epsilon_s$ ) for the chloride model.

Averaged bond distances have been used from existing and related structures (e.g. C-N 2.00 Å, Co-G1225 Å, Cu-B12 A, Cu-D 195 Å, N-N 1.43 Å, C-N 130 Å), and the only molecular geometrical change involves rotation of each copper plane, in conjunction with the CH2 groups, a factor unit, around the N-Non. The energies of the supporting SOMOs in the triples state (e.g. and e.g.) are plotted as a function of magnetic plane dihedral angle y (dihedral angle between the copper plane) in Figure 2-30 for the neutral object model complex. The crossover of the symmetric and antisymmetric molecular orbital energies occurs at 70° for the chloro-model (Figure 2-30). This is the point at which the  $L_{1}$  term is effective area.

A smooth variation in orbital energies occurs between shout 65° and 120°, but outside these limits the antisymmetric molecular orbital energy increases rapidly, consistent with steric interactions between the chlorine bridging interactions approaching the ranconformation. Figure 2-30 also illustrates the symmetric molecular orbital for the chloro-model complex with a magnetic plane dihedral angle of 70°. Replacement of the transital chlorine ligands by bromines creates a similar energy profile with an energy creatorer at 70° due longicargo any application effects on the application of the appo-complex shows a smooth variation in symmetric and antisymmetric molecular orbital energies in the magnetic plane dihedral angle range 60° to 140°, due mainly to the reduced static contraines approaching the Type ABI conformation. The energy crossover or 0° due (5° (France 2-30).

A comparison of the exchange situation for 1 and 4 with the model study provides a satisfying rationale for the dramatically different magnetic properties of these two compounds. The positions of the coordination planes in these two complexes are fixed with respect to the two nitrogen donors, as a result of the formation of the two five-membered chelate rings. The net effect is that the copper magnetic planes simply rotate about the N-N hond. This is modelled by fixing the relative positions of the NH. and the N=CH, groups, as the metal plane rotates. For 1 the magnetic plane rotational angle, based on the five membered chelate ring, is 77.1° ( $\epsilon$ , >  $\epsilon$ ;  $\Delta E = 29$  meV) with the antisymmetric molecular orbital lower in energy. A plot of e. - e. for the chloro-model complex is illustrated in Figure 2-32, and shows a good straight line relationship in the range 70-100° (AE = 4.22\*v - 294.8 meV). For a magnetic plane dihedral angle (v ) of 77.1°, the value of AE calculated from this line is 30.6 meV, in very close agreement with the value calculated for 1. This small difference in energy, in the same relative position in the energy profile (i.e.  $\kappa > \kappa$ ), clearly indicates that the J<sub>ex</sub> term for 1 is very small, giving a very reasonable evaluation as to why this compound is ferromagnetic

For 4 the situation is quite different. The calculated energy difference between the symmetric and antisymmetric triplet state molecular orbitals in 157 meV for magnetic plane dihedral angle of 100.2°, while for the model system a linear regression of  $E_1$ ,  $E_m$  a a function of magnetic plane dihedral angle in the range 65-120° (from Figure 2-31,  $\Delta E =$ 4.11°  $\gamma$  - 275.6 meV) gives a  $\Delta E$  value of 137 meV (100.2°), in close agreement. This entirely tuge energy difference for 4 leasts to a large value for  $I_m$ , which clearly dominates the overall exchange situation, leading to net antiferromagnetic coupling. It is very significant that the tetramoter complex ( $T_{\rm ex}(O_{\rm e})/A_{\rm e})_{\rm e}$  HeI/O has a effective magnetic plane dihedral angle of ~ 90°, and exhibits no coupling. A similar result was found for compound 9 with a magnetic plane rotational angle of 85.2° and AE = 98 MeV. Clashly  $_{\rm env}$  ( $A_{\rm e}$  for hear two systems are approximately the same.

Optimit alignment of the introgen p orbitals, and the metal magnetic orbitals, might reasonably be expected at large fold angles, approaching molecular jonarity. Compound 12 (as well as compound 14 and 15) is almost flat and exhibits much stronger antiferromagnetic coupling than observed for 13 and A. This also consistent with the large energy difference between the triplet state molecular orbitals (453 meV) calculated for this complex. However the possibility of a longer, four-bond secondary exchange route (Cu(1):N(2):C(1):N(4)-Cu(2)) must also be considered in this case. Complex [Cu<sub>4</sub>(HL) (Cl<sub>4</sub>(Fu)) 1.514,O (83) has a compande exchange integral (21 = 2133 cm<sup>2</sup>), and a similar additional one-dop-toretinal exchange integral (21 = 2133 cm<sup>2</sup>).

The exchange process must be dominated by or interaction, because of the hybridization initiation at the diazine sitragens, and also the extent of exchange will, of necessity, be dependent upon the extent of overlap of the appropriate diazine nitragens *p* orbitals. The file ligand HOMO is a to bonding molecular orbital with a comparable energy to the metal *d* orbitals, and involves diazine nitragens *p* orbital components which point along the C-N bonds. Interaction of the copper *d*<sub>0</sub> prove orbitals with these two *p* orbitals ands to the formation of the antipmetric infogues are noticular orbitals. in which the p orbital align themselves according to the relative orientation of the copper d orbital planes. The actuat of overlap between the p orbital along the anight NN bond is therefore dependent upon the disherd along between the magnetic copper planes, and so at non- angle effective p orbital orthogonality is atlieved. For the model complexes them angles fall in a narrow range (65-73°), less than 90°, which is reasonable based on the trigonal microgen atom geometry: Complexes 1, 3 and 16 have fold angles (71.1°, 75.0° and 77.1° respectively) very close to this atlantion, whereas for complexes 12, 14 and 15 the mach huere trut that to none refereive orbital overline.

## 2.4 Conclusion

A pine exchange situation in a discoper(II) system bridged only by a single NN bond, in which the exchange mechanism is dominated by o interaction, was investigated as a function of wird of the copper magnetic pinese (fahefral agaid) about this tood. At an acute angle approaching orthogonality between the nitrogen p orbitals, ferromagnetic coupling was observed, while at much larger angles significant overtap between the nitrogen p orbitals was seen to lead to net antiferromagnetic coupling. A liner relationship is found between the heldral angle and the exchange integral over a 105° nage. This alignment is controlled mostly by the co-ligands bound to the copper center, which east primarly steric effects resulting in rotation of the copper magnetic planes about the NN bond. Molecular orbital acut alculations on comparable models successfully reproduced this minimum and indicated much with appropriate/boarce collegod, which can systematicable influence the molecular twist, the specific synthesis of ferromagnetic dinuclear complexes involving simple N-N bridging ligands is possible.

# CHAPTER 3 Dinuclear and Tetranuclear Copper(II) Complexes Containing Two Diazine Ligands

#### 3.1 Introduction

In the last Chapter, seventeen complexes were prepared and characterized. All of these complexes are dinuclear and contain only one diazine ligand. However, as reviewed in Chapter 1. O'Connor et al. reacted PMK with conner(II) nitrate and not a mononuclear complex which was characterized by X-ray crystallography [79]. Stratton et al. reported a conner chloride a mononuclear complex with PAA [73]. Thompson et al. gave another example of mononuclear copper(II) complex of IAMM [80]. All these open-chain diazine ligands are symmetric and coordinated with copper(II) in a cis-trans (Type C) conformation. However an asymmetric open-chain diazine ligand. HOPA, forms a cyclic tetranuclear conner(II) complex when it reacts with conner(II) nitrate in a 1-1 ratio [98]. It is quite clear that the coordination modes of such ligands to conper(II) are largely dependent on what the R R' X and X' groups are (see Figure 1-14) Therefore, it is quite possible to obtain dinuclear conper(II) complexes containing two open-chain diazine ligands. Even though many disconner complexes bridged by two diarine linkages in fused aromatic rings have been documented, to our knowledge, there are no reports of any structurally characterized dicopper complexes bridged by two open-chain N-N diazine units. This chapter presents a series of this type of dinuclear conner(II) complex containing two symmetric or asymmetric open-chain diazine ligands (compound 18, 19, 20). This chanter also describes a dinuclear copper(II) complex which contains one open-chain diazine ligand (PAHAP) and one aromatic heterocyclic diazine ligand DPPN (21). In addition, a unique tetranuclear copper(II) complex containing N-N single bond bridges and two kinds of  $\mu$  -1,1-N, bridges (22) will be described.

Scheme 3-1



## 3.2 Experimental

#### 3.2.1 Material

Commercially available solvents and chemicals were used without further purification.

#### 3.2.2 Measurements

Analysis, spectroscopic and physical measurements (see Chapter 1)

## 3.2.3 Synthesis of the ligands

PAHAP, PYPZ and PMHAP were prepared by procedures described in Chapter 2.

The preparation of DPPN and related information can be found in references [128-133].

#### 3.2.4 Synthesis of the complexes

## [Cu2(PAHAP)2(NO2)(H2O)2](NO2)2.H2O (18)

Method A: 0.24 g (1.0 mmol) PAHAP was added to a solution of complex [Cat\_PAHAP]QHQD\_kNDa, (4) (0.72 g, 1.0 mmol dissolved in 20 mL deionized water), forming a clear deep term solution after a two minutes. The solution was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for a few days. Deep green crystals, suitable for structure analysis formed which were filtered off and dried in air (Yried, 15 %). Anal. adad. for [Cat\_Cat\_Hay],(NO),(QhQ),(NO),HQ). C, 31.69; H, 33:2; N, 2464. Found: C. 1.156; H, 33:4, 34:50.

Method B: This complex was also synthesized in identical yield by mixing equimolar amounts (2.0 mmol, 0.48 g) of PAHAP and copper(II) nitrate (2.0 mmol, 0.46 g) in 20 mL deionized water.

## [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PMHAP)<sub>2</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub>](NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub>3H<sub>2</sub>O (19)

This compound was prepared as green crystals in a similar manner (method A or B) to compound 18 in identical yield, using PMHAP. Anal. calcd. for [Cu<sub>3</sub>(C<sub>3</sub>H<sub>3</sub>N<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub> (NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>3</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>3</sub>H<sub>4</sub>O: C, 34.75; H, 3.48; N, 21.82. Found: C, 34.82; H, 3.46; N, 21.94.

#### [Cu,(PYPZ),(H,O),](NO,), H,O (20)

Compound 20 was prepared as deep green, rot-like crystals in a procedure similar to that for compound 18 in comparable yield, except for the use of PYPZ instead of PAHAP. Anal. calod. for [Cu<sub>X</sub>(C<sub>1</sub>,H<sub>1</sub>,M<sub>3</sub>)(H<sub>2</sub>(M<sub>2</sub>))(N<sub>3</sub>),H<sub>2</sub>O. C, 29.00; H, 3.10, N, 27.65. Found; C.29.04; H, 29.2; N, 27.81.

#### [Cu,(PAHAP)(DPPN)(H,O)(NO,))(NO,), (21)

0.243 g (1.00 mmol) DPPN (1,6-bit)C-synidyl-s

## [Cu,(PAHAP)(N,),(MeOH),], (NO,), 2H,O (22)

A hot solution of PARAP (0.24 g, 1.0 mmol) is dicknomethnue (10 mL) was added to a hot solution of copper(TI) situate (0.46 g, 2.0 mmol) in methanol (15 ml.) A hot methanolic solution (10 mL) of 0.13 g (2.0 mmO) NaV, was added dropwise to the solution above and a dark green solution formed. This dark green solution was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for 1-2 day, dark green solution was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for 1-2 day. dark green solution the first structural analysis, formed (Yried 77%), Anal. calo. for  $[Ca_k(C_n H_n V_n)_k)_k(R(O_n)]_k$ (0.0), 2450, C 240% H, 290% V, 313.5 found: C 24559, H218K V 3160

#### 3.2.5 Crystallographic data collection and refinement of the structures

Crystal data collection and structure refinement for 18,19, 21, 22 were carried out in a similar manner to that for 12. Abbreviated crystal data for all of these complexes are given Table 3-1. Note in Table 3-1: \* = Siement Smart data.

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{R} &= \Sigma ||F_0| - |F_e| |/\Sigma |F_0|, \ \mathbf{R}_e = [(\Sigma (|F_0| - |F_e|)^2 / \Sigma w F_0^2)]^{1/2} \\ \mathbf{R} \mathbf{I} &= \Sigma ||F_0| - |F_e| |/\Sigma |F_0|, \ \mathbf{w} \mathbf{R}_e = [\Sigma [w (|F_0|^2 - |F_e|^2)^2 / \Sigma [w (|F_0|^2)^2]]^{1/2} \end{split}$$

Compound	18*	19*
chemical formula	C12 H13 Cu N, O,	C13 H1339 Cu N, O,
formula wt.	430.86	443.60
space group	P2,c	Ce
a (Å)	11.281(2)	20.938(4)
b(Å)	14.036(3)	14.887(3)
c(Å)	22.853(5)	14.372(3)
α(deg)	90	90
β(deg)	102.92(3)	127.43(3)
γ(deg)	90	90
V (Å')	3527.1(12)	3557.4(12)
ρ <sub>uted</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.623	1.657
z	8	8
μ(mm <sup>-1</sup> )	1.288	1.282
λ (Å)	0.71073	0.71073
т, к	293(2)	293(2)
R1(R)	0.1029	0.0299
wR2(R_ )	0.2314	0.0374

Table 3-1. Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 18, 19, 21and 22.
Compound	21*	22*
chemical formula	C <sub>a</sub> H <sub>25</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub> N <sub>14</sub> O <sub>135</sub>	C <sub>15</sub> H <sub>24</sub> Cu <sub>2</sub> N <sub>14</sub> O,
formula wt.	876.68	671.56
space group	PI	PI
a (Å)	9.709(1)	8.4920
b(Å)	17.688(2)	11.5573
c(Å)	19.155(2)	15.4597
a(deg)	91.691(4)	70
β(deg)	95.085(3)	83.200
γ(deg)	97.501(3)	69.205
V (Å')	3245.7(9)	1337.10
ρ <sub>alad</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.792	1.683
z	4	2
μ(cm <sup>-i</sup> )	1.402	1.66
λ(Å)	0.71073	0.71073
Т, К	150(2)	150(2)
R1(R)	0.0375	0.0369
wR2(R, )	0.0794	0.1006

Table 3-1. (contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 18, 19, 21and 22.

### 3.3 Results and discussion

## 3.3.1 Structures

# [Cu2(PAHAP)2(NO2)(H2O)2(NO2), H2O (18)

The structure of I at and the equateds view of the coordination core are depicted in Figure 3-1 and Figure 3-2 respectively, and relevant bond distances and angles are lated in Table 3-2. The two distorted octahedral copper(T) ions are bridged by two ligands in a spin-lake arrangement with diatize introgeness acting as the bridging groups in the equatorial planes and one bidenate nitrate bridging in axial positions. Each ligand provides one priding ring coordinating in the equatorial plane of one copper center (N(6) for Cu(1), N(7) for Cu(2)) and nother priding ring coordinating in the axial position of another copper center (N(11) for Cu(1), N(1) for Cu(2)). A water molecule is coordinated to each copper(T) energy complexity planes are twisted by 63.47° (the angle between the least-squares planes of Cu(1)-N(4)-C(7)-C(9)-N(6) and Cu(2)-N(9)-C(18)-C(1) - N(7)) adout the two diazine bond vectors (N(4)-N(3) and N(10)-N(9)) and folded 130.24\* by the axially fridger inter is 07 OT and O(3).

Within each ligand, board distances in the NH<sub>2</sub>-C=N finamework are very similar to those of the free ligand, indicating single board character in the N-N distance boards (NO)-N(4) 1423(8) A. N(10)-N(4) 1409(8) A) and in C-NH<sub>2</sub> boards (N(2)-C(6) 1322(10) A. N(5)-C(7) 1327(9) A. N(2)-C(18) 1315(9) A. (C(19)-N(2) 1324(10) A).

Table 3-2. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP)<sub>2</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>)(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>3</sub>] (NO<sub>3</sub>), H<sub>2</sub>O(18).

Cu(1)-N(6)	1.995(6)	Cu(2)-N(3)	1.987(6)	
Cu(1)-N(10)	2.003(6)	Cu(2)-N(7)	1.998(6)	
Cu(1)-N(4)	2.016(6)	Cu(2)-N(9)	2.004(6)	
Cu(1)-O(10)	2.076(7)	Cu(2)-O(11)	2.033(5)	
Cu(1)-N(11)	2.238(9)	Cu(2)-N(1)	2.221(6)	
Cu(1)-O(8)	2.434(6)	Cu(2)-O(7)	2.621(5)	
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.863(5)			
N(10)-C(19)	1.323(9)	N(10)-N(9)	1.409(8)	
N(3)-C(6)	1.303(9)	N(3)-N(4)	1.423(8)	
N(4)-C(7)	1.300(9)	N(2)-C(6)	1.323(10)	
N(5)-C(7)	1.327(9)	N(8)-C(18)	1.315(9)	
N(9)-C(18)	1.314(9)	C(19)-N(12)	1.343(10)	
N(6)-Cu(1)-N(10)	167.9(2)	N(6)-Cu(1)-N(4)	80.1(3)	
N(10)-Cu(1)-N(4)	89.9(2)	N(6)-Ca(1)-O(10)	93.7(3)	
N(10)-Cu(1)-O(10)	95.9(3)	N(4)-Cu(1)-O(10)	173.1(3)	
N(6)-Cu(1)-N(11)	112.4(3)	N(10)-Cu(1)-N(11)	76.6(3)	
N(4)-Cu(1)-N(11)	104.5(3)	O(10)-Cu(1)-N(11)	80.6(3)	

contd.

N(6)-Cu(1)-O(8)	84.1(3)	N(10)-Cu(1)-O(8)	90.8(2)
N(4)-Cu(1)-O(8)	98.9(2)	O(10)-Cu(1)-O(8)	77.3(3)
N(11)-Cu(1)-O(8)	153.2(3)	N(3)-Cu(2)-N(7)	169.5(2)
N(3)-Cu(2)-N(9)	89.7(2)	N(7)-Cu(2)-N(9)	79.8(2)
N(3)-Cu(2)-O(11)	97.1(2)	N(7)-Cu(2)-O(11)	93.3(2)
N(9)-Cu(2)-O(11)	163.3(2)	N(3)-Cu(2)-N(1)	77.7(2)
N(7)-Cu(2)-N(1)	104.0(2)	N(9)-Cu(2)-N(1)	105.7(2)
O(11)-Cu(2)-N(1)	90.6(2)	O(7)-Cu(2)-N(1)	161.53(2)
O(7)-Cu(2)-O(11)	78.13(2)	O(7)-Cu(2)-N(7)	91.37(2)
O(7)-Cu(2)-N(9)	86.82(2)	O(7)-Cu(2)-N(3)	89.05(2)

and largely double bond character in the C=N bonds (N(3)-C(6) 1.303(9) Å, N(4)-C(7) 1.300(9) Å, N(9)-C(18) 1.314(9) Å, N(10)-C(19) 1.322(9) Å). The torsion angles around N-N units in both ligands are very close (C(6)-N(3)-N(4)-C(7), 78.32°, C(18)-N(9)-N(10)-C(19) 77.1°,



.H,O (18) (spide) D HY ON TAPIAN with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability th Figure 3-1. Structural representation of Cu<sub>2</sub>



#### [Cu,(PMHAP),(NO,),](NO,), 3H,O (19)

The structure of 19 is depicted in Figure 3-3 and relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 3-3. Figure 3-4 illustrates the expanded view of the coordination cores in 19 with labeling of the relevant bond distances. The dicopper(II) cation consists of two distorted square pyramidal copper(II) centers (the Addison distortion index t = 0.269 for Cu(1) and 0.319 for Cu(2) [81]) each with two pyridine nitrogens (N(5), N(6) for Cu(1): N((1), N(10) for Cu(2)), one diazine nitrogen (N(3) for Cu(1) and N(8) for Cu(2)) and one nitrate oxygen (O(1) for Cu(1) and O(4) for Cu(2)) in the equatorial plane, and another diazine nitrogen (N(7) for Cu(1) and N(2) for Cu(2)) in the axial position. In each diazine unit, one nitrogen atom (N(3) or N(8)) is in the equatorial plane and the another one (N(2) or N(7)) is in the axial position of the copper(II) polyhedron. Therefore two ligands orthogonally bridge two cooper(II) centers in a spiral-like manner, which is the first example of open-chain diazine ligands adopting such a coordination mode. The least-squares planes Cu(2)-N(10)-C(22)-C(21)-N(8) and Cu(1)-N(6)-C(18)-C(19)-N(7) are twisted of 79.76°, and the least-squares plane Cu(2)-N(1)-C(5)-C(6)-N(2) and Cu(1)-N(3)-C(8)-C(9)-N(5) are twisted of 82.43°.

_					_
	Cu(1)-N(3)	1.965(3)	Cu(1)-N(6)	1.988(3)	
	Cu(1)-N(5)	2.022(3)	Cu(1)-O(1)	2.041(3)	
	Cu(1)-N(7)	2.198(3)	Cu(2)-N(8)	1.967(3)	
	Cu(2)-N(1)	1.996(3)	Cu(2)-N(10)	2.029(3)	
	Cu(2)-O(4)	2.084(3)	Cu(2)-N(2)	2.158(3)	
	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.930(2)			
	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(6)	168.72(13)	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(5)	80.75(11)	
	N(6)-Cu(1)-N(5)	104.69(12)	N(3)-Cu(1)-O(1)	89.23(11)	
	N(6)-Cu(1)-O(1)	89.94(11)	N(5)-Cu(1)-O(1)	152.60(11)	
	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(7)	92.06(12)	N(6)-Cu(1)-N(7)	77.19(12)	
	N(5)-Cu(1)-N(7)	102.47(11)	O(1)-Cu(1)-N(7)	103.33(10)	
	N(8)-Cu(2)-N(1)	171.09(13)	N(8)-Cu(2)-N(10)	80.33(11)	
	N(1)-Cu(2)-N(10)	103.54(11)	N(8)-Cu(2)-O(4)	91.50(11)	
	N(1)-Cu(2)-O(4)	88.60(11)	N(10)-Cu(2)-O(4)	151.93(11)	
	N(8)-Cu(2)-N(2)	93.54(12)	N(1)-Cu(2)-N(2)	77.67(12)	
	N(10)-Cu(2)-N(2)	107.39(11)	O(4)-Cu(2)-N(2)	99.85(10)	

Table 3-3. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PMHAP)<sub>2</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub>](NO<sub>3</sub>); .3H.0 (19).



3H.O (19) ion of [Cu.(PMHAP),(NO.),](NO.) Structural representati Figure 3-3.

with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids).



Figure 3-4. Expanded view showing the orthogonality between two copper magnetic planes in 19 via N-N single bonds.

## [Cu,(PAHAP)(DPPN)(H,O)(NO,)](NO,), (21)

Two crystallographically independent, but very similar molecules have been found in 21. Figure 3-5 illustrates the structure of one of them and Figure 3-6 depicts the equanded view of the cooper coordination spheres are given in Table 3-4. In each molecule, the ligand DPPN adopts a planar structure, as expected, with the same structural features as found in its other completes [12313], and the open-chain diazine ligand PAHAD has a twiest coordination sumal.

The coordination approaches for hall copper(II) contents are in between a square pyramid and a trigonal bipyramid, and using the distortion index established by Addison (B) ( $< = 0^{-1}$ , e)(b) the values in the transport 201-0.021 suggests that a distorted square pyramid is the most appropriate stereochemical description for all copper centers with short equatorial contexts to an N<sub>4</sub> in-plane doors set for Cu(1) and Cu(2), and N<sub>4</sub>(0) for Cu(2) and Cu(4). The weak saids coordination positions are occupied by nitrate anions for Cu(2) (O(24)) and Cu(2) (O(51)), whereas distaine introgeness from DPPN we boold axially to Cu(2) (O(51)), whereas distaine introgeness from DPPN we boold axially to Cu(2) (O(51)), whereas distaine introgeness from DPPN we boold another arountaic distate unit in an orthogonal moment, to form a load conformation (bat to Cu(4)N(24)N(20)N(2)N(3)N), best 2: Cu(2)N(2(3)N(2)N(2)A(4)N(3)N(1)).

Table 3-4. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP)(DPPN)(H<sub>2</sub>O)(NO<sub>3</sub>)] (NO<sub>3</sub>), (21).

				_
Cu(1)-O(24)	2.536(2)	Cu(3)-O(15)	2.629(2)	
Cu(1)-N(1)	1.990(2)	Cu(3)-N(11)	1.977(2)	
Cu(1)-N(2)	2.048(2)	Cu(3)-N(12)	2.064(2)	
Cu(1)-N(7)	1.935(2)	Cu(3)-N(17)	1.923(2)	
Cu(1)-N(8)	2.027(2)	Cu(3)-N(18)	2.024(2)	
Cu(2)-O(1)	2.032(2)	Cu(4)-O(2)	2.055(2)	
Cu(2)-N(3)	2.228(2)	Cu(4)-N(13)	2.194(2)	
Cu(2)-N(4)	1.988(2)	Cu(4)-N(14)	1.980(2)	
Cu(2)-N(5)	2.018(2)	Cu(4)-N(15)	2.022(2)	
Cu(2)-N(6)	1.940(2)	Cu(4)-N(16)	1.935(2)	
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.932(2)	Cu(3)-Cu(4)	3.936(2)	
N(2)-N(3)	1.334(3)	N(12)-N(13)	1.334(3)	
N(6)-N(7)	1.405(3)	N(6)-C(20)	1.311(3)	
N(7)-C(21)	1.317(3)	N(8)-C(22)	1.358(3)	
N(9)-C(20)	1.322(4)	N(16)-N(17)	1.410(3)	

contd.

N(16)-C(46)	1.316(3)	N(17)-C(47)	1.310(3)
N(19)-C(46)	1.321(3)	N(20)-C(47)	1.320(3)
O(24)-Cu(1)-N(1)	78.85(9)	O(24)-Cu(1)-N(2)	118.11(9)
O(24)-Cu(1)-N(7)	91.23(9)	O(24)-Cu(1)-N(8)	98.11(9)
N(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	80.68(9)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(7)	168.94(9)
N(1)-Cu(1)-N(8)	105.01(9)	N(2)-Cu(1)-N(7)	100.04(9)
N(2)-Cu(1)-N(8)	143.66(9)	N(7)-Cu(1)-N(8)	81.04(9)
O(1)-Cu(2)-N(3)	92.46(9)	O(1)-Cu(2)-N(4)	87.46(10)
O(1)-Cu(2)-N(5)	154.03(9)	O(1)-Cu(2)-N(6)	96.64(10)
N(3)-Cu(2)-N(4)	78.67(9)	N(3)-Cu(2)-N(5)	113.39(8)
N(3)-Cu(2)-N(6)	92.31(9)	N(4)-Cu(2)-N(5)	99.53(9)
N(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	170.28(9)	N(5)-Cu(2)-N(6)	80.60(9)
O(15)-Cu(3)-N(11)	92.79(9)	O(15)-Cu(3)-N(12)	77.83(9)
O(15)-Cu(3)-N(17)	101.70(9)	O(15)-Cu(3)-N(18)	74.82(9)
N(11)-Cu(3)-N(12)	80.66(9)	N(11)-Cu(3)-N(17)	165.33(9)
N(11)-Cu(3)-N(18)	105.27(9)	N(12)-Cu(3)-N(17)	100.03(9)
N(12)-Cu(3)-N(18)	152.22(9)	N(17)-Cu(3)-N(18)	81.04(9)
O(2)-Cu(4)-N(13)	92.53(9)	O(2)-Cu(4)-N(14)	92.92(9)

contd.

.67(8)
14(9)
79(9)

To our knowledge, this is the first orthogonal bridging modersported for an arromatic diatine in a discoper(II) complex. Concerning the load combinations, the only difference between the two molecules rests with the fact that two organs (water O(1)) and intrase O(2)) are located in a zonup position in load 1. This results in the different angle D(24)) are located in a zonup position in load 1. This results in the different angle between the heat squares planes O(1)-N(7)C(21)-C(21)-N(0) and O(1)-S(1)-S(1)-S(2)-C(20)-N(0) (4551\*) being quite different from that between the least squares planes O(24)-N(1)-C(27)-C(44)-N(13) and O(24)-N(15)-C(45)-C(45)-C(45)-C(45)-C(45)-C(45)-C(45)-C(45)-N(15)-C(47)-C(47)-N(15)) and torsion angle around the N(16)-N(17) bend vector in C(46)-N(16)-N(17)-C(47) is only on 60°



insoids). (DPPN)(NO,)(H,O))(NO,), (21) with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal el





## [Cu,(PAHAP)(MeOH),(N,),], (NO,), 2H,O (22)

The structure of 22 is depicted in **Figure 3-7**, and relevant book distances and angles are listed in **Table 3-5**. The termanolesc cation can be described as the combination of two [Cu<sub>4</sub>/PAIAR/MedDif<sub>2</sub>/May]<sup>2</sup> mink bridged extragonally by two µ<sub>1</sub>-1, N<sub>2</sub> misson. In each disturbed [Cu<sub>4</sub>/PAIAR/MedDif<sub>2</sub>/May]<sup>2</sup> mish, the coppet(1) in Cu<sub>1</sub>(1) has a distorted square pyramidal coordination environment ( $\tau = 0.589$ ) [11] and is coordinated to two sitrogen atoms (N(1) and N(3)) of the ligand PAIAR? It is also coordinated to another two sitragen atoms (N(1) and N(2)) form different µ<sub>1</sub>-1, N<sub>2</sub> misson in the hand place (Cu<sub>4</sub>(3)-N(7A) 1577(2) Å. Cu<sub>4</sub>(1)-N(3) 1577(2) Å. Cu<sub>4</sub>(1)-N(1) 2.039(2) Å Cu<sub>4</sub>(1)-N(1) 2.537(2) Å, and the sitragen (T) from nonder µ<sub>2</sub>-1, N<sub>3</sub><sup>2</sup> in the signal position (Cu<sub>4</sub>(1)-N(7A) 2.271(2) Å), while the coppet(1) ion, Cu<sub>4</sub>(2) has a typical square pyramidal ( $\tau = 0.124$ ) coordination environment (Cu<sub>4</sub>(2)-N(4) 1595(2) Å, Cu<sub>4</sub>(2)-N(6) 2.037(2) Å, Cu<sub>4</sub>(2)-N(6) 0.214(2) Å, Cu<sub>4</sub>(2)-Q(6) 1571(2) Å, Cu<sub>4</sub>(2)-Q(7) 2.248(2) Å). The two cooper(1) contexts are bridged by a diazine unit (N(2)-N(4)) and a µ<sub>2</sub>-1,1-N<sub>4</sub><sup>2</sup> in the at N(6) in thetir cu<sub>4</sub>(n) is place.

The dihedral angle between the least-squares planes Cu(1)-N(1)-C(5)-C(6)-N(3) and Cu(2)-N(4)-C(12)-C(11)-N(6) is quite small (53.86°). This small angle makes it

Table 3-5. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres and the ligand in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP) (N<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub>(MeOH)<sub>2</sub>)]<sub>2</sub>. (NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub>:2H<sub>2</sub>O (22).

Cu(1)-N(7)#1	1.971(2)	Cu(1)-N(3)	1.977(2)
Cu(1)-N(1)	2.030(2)	Cu(1)-N(10)	2.055(2)
Cu(1)-N(7)	2.271(2)	Cu(2)-N(4)	1.950(2)
Cu(2)-O(8)	1.971(2)	Cu(2)-N(10)	2.014(2)
Cu(2)-N(6)	2.029(2)	Cu(2)-O(7)	2.348(2)
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.497(2)	Cu(1)-Cu(1A)	3.351(2)
N(2)-C(6)	1.327(3)	N(3)-C(6)	1.319(3)
N(3)-N(4)	1.406(2)	N(4)-C(12)	1.313(3)
N(5)-C(12)	1.321(3)	N(10)-N(11)	1.223(3)
N(11)-N(12)	1.135(3)	N(7)-N(8)	1.241(3)
N(8)-N(9)	1.121(5)		
N(7)#1-Cu(1)-N(3)	174.99(8)	N(7)#1-Cu(1)-N(1)	98.75(8)
N(3)-Cu(1)-N(1)	79.98(8)	N(7)#1-Cu(1)-N(10)	97.55(8)
N(3)-Cu(1)-N(10)	86.42(8)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(10)	139.68(9)
N(7)#1-Cu(1)-N(7)	75.82(8)	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(7)	100.20(8)

-		

N(1)-Cu(1)-N(7)	113.96(8)	N(10)-Cu(1)-N(7)	105.71(9)	
N(4)-Cu(2)-O(8)	171.82(8)	N(4)-Cu(2)-N(10)	88.06(8)	
O(8)-Cu(2)-N(10)	99.33(9)	N(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	79.85(8)	
O(8)-Cu(2)-N(6)	92.01(8)	N(10)-Cu(2)-N(6)	157.48(9)	
N(4)-Cu(2)-O(7)	91.83(8)	O(8)-Cu(2)-O(7)	90.72(8)	
N(10)-Cu(2)-O(7)	97.43(8)	N(6)-Cu(2)-O(7)	101.85(8)	
N(7)-N(8)-N(9)	169.7(4)	N(10)-N(11)-N(12)	179.2(4)	
Cu(1)-N(10)-Cu(2)	118.48(10)	Cu(1)-N(7)-Cu(1)#1	104.18(8)	

possible for the axide (N(10)) to bridge the two copper(II) centers in a  $\mu_c -1.1$  flabitor, and leads to a relatively abort Cu(1)-Cu(2) separation ( $\Lambda$ 497(2) Å) and a large Cu(1)-N(10)-Cu(2) axide bridge angle (118.484(10)<sup>9</sup>). However, compared with the Cu-Cu separation found in some dicopper(II) complexes bridged by a  $\mu_c -1.1$ -N<sub>1</sub> and an aromatic diazine unit (e.g. pyridaxine, phthalaxine), the Cu(1)-Cu(2) separation in 22 is still quite large, which is eactly consistent with the large Cu(1)-N(1)-Cu(2) angle.



Figure 3-7. Structural representation of [Cu,(PAHAP)(N,),(MeOH),], (NO,), 2H,O (22)

with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids).

#### 3.3.2 Spectroscopy

The major infirmed absorption bands for 18-22 are listed in Table 3-4 Complex 18 exhibits two  $v_{ell}$  infrared bands at 3355 and 1165 cm<sup>2</sup> associated with the NH, groups in PAHAP, and a sharp band at 3310 cm<sup>2</sup> due to coordinated water molecules and the lattice water band at a.335 cm<sup>2</sup> (bl). Two strongs  $V_{ell}$  bands at 1844 at 1656 cm<sup>2</sup>, which are much higher in energy than those of the free ligand, are in agreement with the fact that the PAHAP ligands in the complex adopt a twisted conformation. A promisent ( $v_1 + v_2$  [112] aimtae band is observed at 1755 cm<sup>2</sup>. Based on the attracture more initrate combination bands would be expected, however. The pyridine rings from two PAHAP ligands are coordinated. Two of them are atraculty charge from two PAHAP ligands are coordinated. Two of dime are strongly bound to the copper[1] centers, which is instructed by the Cu-N<sub>w</sub> bond dimatance ( $U_1$ )N(0). 1996(6), Å, Cu(2)N(7).1998(6), Å, Cu(2)N(7).1292(6) A.

The infrared spectrum of 19 above 3100 cm<sup>-1</sup> is dominated by hands associated with water (3500 cm<sup>2</sup>) and NH, groups (3140 and 3146 cm<sup>-1</sup>). Nitrate combination bands [112] are observed at 1722 and 1746 cm<sup>-1</sup>, and their difference (31 cm<sup>-1</sup>) is in agreement with the presence of monodentate nitrate in the structure. The ionic nitrate band probably coincides with one of three observed bands. A very strong band at 1654 cm<sup>-1</sup> due to the  $v_{cm}$  of the PMELAP ligneds agrees with the twisted arrangement of the ligneds in this coronder. Two working the breakbash bands are scenarize at 0244 diverters outboard (304 and 1017 cm<sup>-1</sup>) show the asymmetric property of the ligand. The higher energy band (1044 cm<sup>+1</sup>) is due to the pyridine ring in which the pyridine nitrogen is strongly coordinated to copper(II) (1041)-N(5) 1.997(5) Å), while the lower energy band (1017 cm<sup>+1</sup>) can be assigned to the pyridine ring in which the pyridine nitrogen is weakly coordinated to cooper(II) (041/-N(2) 201(5) Å).

Complex 20 shows very similar infrared absorptions above 3100 cm<sup>-1</sup> to those of 18, and ethibits only one prominent (v<sub>1</sub> + v<sub>2</sub>) [112] nitrate band at 1763 cm<sup>-1</sup> associated with free nitrates. A broad and strong band at 1673 cm<sup>-1</sup> due to v<sub>cov</sub> suggests a twisted rangement of the PVPZ. Igunds like the cases in 18 and 19. Avery strong hand at 103 cm<sup>-1</sup> is most likely a combination of the strongly coordinated pyridine rings breathing band and the weakly coordinated pyrazine ring breathing band, which is is consistent with its preliminary structure which allows one prazine integers in the spical position and one pyridine introgen in the band plane of case to oper(11) cente.

A bread and strong band due to coordinated water dominates the region above  $3100 \text{ cm}^{-1}$  in the spectrum of 21. A complex group of  $(v_1 + v_2)$  [112] nitrate bands is observed at 1754, 1754 and 1764 cm<sup>2</sup>, consistent with the two slightly different somodentate aimteas and free nitrates. Two well separated  $v_{cus}$  bands at 1862 and 1866 cm<sup>2</sup> clearly suggest that the PAHAP ligands exist in two different conformations, which is confirmed by its single crystal structure that shows totally different torion angles around the N-N bond vectors of the PAHAP ligands in each of the two crystallographically dispendent dicopremolecules. The bands at 1026 and 1036 cm<sup>2</sup> due to the priviliae ring breathing modes are associated with the two different types of pyridise ring found in the complex. Strong v<sub>oc</sub> baseds at 3335 and 3167 cm<sup>2</sup> appear to mask the v<sub>oc</sub> baseds of the coordinated CH<sub>i</sub>OH and lattice water molecules in the spectrum of 22. Two axiels bands were observed at 2056 and 2057 cm<sup>2</sup>. The higher energy based is associated with the  $\mu_{i}$ -1,-axide linking Cu(1) and Cu(2) (Q1(0)), in agreement with other related systems [21,113]. The lower energy band is therefore assigned to the intermolecular  $\mu_{i}$ -1,-axide bridge. Two clearly separated and equally intense v<sub>oc</sub> bands at 1663 and 1679 cm<sup>2</sup> indicate that the ligand is twisted in agreement with the structure data. Pyridher fing breathing bands are observed at 1052 cm<sup>2</sup>, with a shoulder peak at 1002 cm<sup>2</sup>. On (v<sub>1</sub> + v<sub>1</sub>)1121 since the and 1476 cm<sup>2</sup> is associated with the first strates.

Solid rate Nujoi mult transmittance deterroits genera for 18-22 are quite similar, with one bread visible hand observed in each case in the range 644-719 m. consistent with square or square-systemidal coordination geometries at the copper(1) centers. Approxima shaking spaces of 18, 20 and 22 us algoldy different from their solid spectra (Table 3-7), suggesting minor changes to the coordination environment in solution. The squares achieving spectra of 18 and 12 are seemially the same as those in the solid states, indicative of no significant solvation in these two cases. The UV/vis absorption data for 18-22 are summarised in Table 3-7.

compound	IR (cm <sup>-i</sup> )	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>3</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>3</sub> ,H <sub>2</sub> O (18)	3510,3525(H <sub>2</sub> O); 3356,3165(v <sub>MR</sub> ); 1756(NO <sub>3</sub> ); 1665,1644(v <sub>Cm</sub> ); 1043, 1033, 1024, 1013(Py)	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PMHAP) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> .3H <sub>2</sub> O (19)	3500(H <sub>s</sub> O); 3340,3146(v <sub>Nep</sub> ); 1763,1749(NO <sub>5</sub> ') 1664(v <sub>(ve)</sub> ); 1044,1017(Py)	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PYPZ) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>3</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> H <sub>2</sub> O (20)	3510-3100(H <sub>2</sub> O and NH <sub>2</sub> ); 1763(NO <sub>3</sub> ); 1673(v <sub>cre</sub> ); 1033(Py and Pr)	
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(DPPN)(H <sub>2</sub> O)(NO <sub>3</sub> )](NO <sub>3</sub> ), (21)	) 3310(H <sub>2</sub> O and NH <sub>2</sub> );1764, 1744, 1754(NO <sub>5</sub> ); 1686,1662(v <sub>crs</sub> ); 1026, 1036(Py)	
{[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(N <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (MeOH) <sub>2</sub> )]} <sub>2</sub> . (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> -2H <sub>2</sub> O ( <b>22</b> )	3335, 3167 (v <sub>1862</sub> );2086,2057(N <sub>3</sub> ); 1764(NO <sub>3</sub> ); 1678,1663(v <sub>CH</sub> ); 1023,1003(Py)	

Table 3-6. Infrared spectral data of dicopper(II) complexes 18-22.

Table 3-7. UV/vis spectral data for dicopper(II) complexes 18-22 (nm).

compound	solid	H_O (8, dm'.mot".cm')
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>3</sub> .H <sub>2</sub> O (18)	705	721(272.4)
[Cu2(PMHAP)2(NO3)2](NO3)23H2O (19)	719	712(177.6)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PYPZ) <sub>2</sub> (H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>e</sub> .H <sub>2</sub> O (20)	700	710(216.3)
[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(DPPN)(H <sub>2</sub> O)(NO <sub>3</sub> )](NO <sub>3</sub> ), (21)	650	657(255.0)
{[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(N <sub>2</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (MeOH) <sub>2</sub> )]} <sub>2</sub> .(NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> .2H <sub>2</sub> O (22)	644	695 (324.2)

#### 3.3.3 Magnetism

Variable temperature magnetic susceptibility measurements were carried out for powdered sampless of the complexes **11**, **12**, **11** and **22**, taken from the same uniform backen used for structural determinations. The samples were pre-drived under vacuum forer to prevent possible mass loss during sample preparation prior to a variable temperature nut. The room sumperature magnetic moments and the best fit parameters to the Blance-Blowers equation (equ. 1-4) for the variable temperature (4-305 K) magnetic dua are unmarined in Table 3-8.

The noon temperature magnetic moment for complex 18 (1.94 BMs) is does to be normal values for an uncoupled copper(II) system, and might magnets the absence of spin exchange. A joi of  $\chi_{\rm eff}^{-1}$  treasus temperatures for II is listication in Figure 34, which shows that the  $\chi_{\rm eff}^{-1}$  values are larger than 0.40 emu.mol<sup>+</sup>K alove 25 K. When the temperature is lowered, the  $\chi_{\rm eff}^{-1}$  values documents for Bi is listicating that there is a very small antiferromagnetic interaction taking place. The data were finde to eque. I.4 to give g = 2,19(17), 23 = 0.40) cm<sup>+</sup>, g = 0.00046, Na = 75°10<sup>4</sup> em. g =between the copper(II) enters will occur with the two diation linkages (a, N(9)-N(10) and N(3)-N(4)), and the small disherial angle (33.47<sup>+</sup>) of the copper planes about the two diatine both might be expected to provide a foremagnetic coupling atthways based on

Table 3-8.	Magnetic, st	tructural data of	the dicopt	ser(II) comple	exes 18-22.	
compound	-21	*	θ	$\mu_{\rm eff}(RT)$	Cu-Cu	~
	(cm <sup>1</sup> )		(K)	(BM)	(Y)	(Deg.)
[Cu <sub>i</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>i</sub> (NO <sub>i</sub> )(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>1</sub> ]	0.4(3)	2.19(1)	17	1.94	3.863(5)	63.47
(NO <sub>3</sub> ), H <sub>2</sub> O(18)						
[Cu,(PMHAP),(NO,),]		no coupling		1.91	3.932(2)	81.24
(61)0 <sup>1</sup> HE <sup>1</sup> ( <sup>1</sup> ON)						
[Cu <sub>i</sub> (PYPZ) <sub>i</sub> (H <sub>i</sub> O) <sub>i</sub> ]				1.79		
(NO,), H <sub>2</sub> O(20)						
(Cu <sub>1</sub> (PAHAP)(DPPN)(H <sub>2</sub> O)	40(2)	2.09(1)	0	1.74	3.932(2)(Cu(1)-Cu(2)	85.91
(12)'("ON)[("ON)					3.936(2)(Cu(3)-Cu(4))	78.79
{[Cu <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP)(N <sub>2</sub> ),(MeOH) <sub>2</sub> )]}	246(7)	2.15(7)	-0.3	1.52	3.497(2)(Cu(1)-Cu(2)	53.86
(NO <sub>1</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> 2H <sub>2</sub> O(22)					3.351(2)(Cu(1)-Cu(1A	()

đ
w.
-
8
흥
ï
8
Ē
ĭ
8
8
÷0
者
5
ā
킁
Ť
3
3
긙
÷Ĕ
2
Ľ,
2
ø
ż
Ź
A



Temp. (K)

from eqn. 1-4 with g = Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 18. The solid line was cal Figure 3-8.

 $2.191(7), -2J = 0.4(3) \text{ cm}^4, p = 0.00046, N\alpha = 75*10^4 \text{ emu}, \theta = -2.1 \text{ K}, 10^2 \text{R} = 2.2$ 

 $(R = [\Sigma(\chi_{an}, -\chi_{ade})^2/\Sigma\chi_{ade}^2]^{1/2}).$ 





the results of Chapter 2. However, since there are no similar magnetostructural and model studies on dicopper systems bridged by two N-N single bonds, the critical angle of changeover from antiferromagnetic to ferromagnetic behaviour is likely to be different.

The compound [Cuc/(PMLM2),000,3),000,3,110, (19) also has a high room temperature magnetic moment, 1.91 BM, and the  $\chi_{*}$ tr values are larger than 0.40 emunds? K throughout the 5-300 K temperature range (Figure 2-3), fondative of roo net coupling between the copper(1)) centers are orthogonally bridged by two N-N single bonds (Figure 3-4), which is mirrors by the MO calculation (the energy gap between two SOMOs is not 27 Trov-tee Firms 7-10).

The room temperature magnetic moment for complex 29 (1.79 BM) is close to the normal value for an uncoupled copper (II) system, and might suggest the absence of spin exchange. However, its preliminary structure shows a very similar twist angle to that found in 18, indicative of very weak antiferromagnetic coupling between two copper (II) outerstres. We avoid its vanishes the most rune magnetic data for this complex.

The compound [Cu<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP)(DPIN)(H<sub>2</sub>O)(NO<sub>3</sub>), (21) has a slightly lower room temperature magnetic moment (1.74 BM) and a plot of  $\chi$  versus temperature in Figure 3-11 reveals a maximum in the ausceptibility at about 40 K. This is clearly indicative of dominant antiferromagnetic exchange. The data were fitted accessfully to equil -1 with g = 2077((2), 21-402) or (g = 0.01). Not -66/10<sup>6</sup> g = 0.5, (1.64) 0.64 (R =  $[\Sigma(\gamma_1, -\gamma_1, \cdot)^3/\Sigma\gamma_1, \cdot^2]^{1/2}$ ). The solid line in Figure 3-11 was calculated with these parameters. This dominant antiferromagnetic exchange obviously arises from the two crystallographically independent dicopper molecules and therefore represents an average of the two structures. This raises the question as to which disonner molecule dominates the total magnetic coupling. From a structural perspective, the diazine unit in the DPPN ligand contributes very little to the exchange because it bridges two conner centers in an orthogonal manner in both molecules. Based on the observations for the dicopper systems bridged by one N-N single bond in Chapter 2, the molecule containing the Cu(1) and Cu(2) centers should be the dominant, because it involves a larger dihedral angle around the N-N single bond in the PAHAP ligand. On the other hand, the extended Hückel MO calculations for both molecules surprisingly show that the energy difference between the symmetric and antisymmetric MO in the molecule containing the Cu(1) and Cu(2) centers is significantly smaller (AE = 141 meV) than that in the molecule containing the Cu(3) and Cu(4) centers (AE = 177 meV). The expanded views of the energy levels for both disconner centers in the different molecules are illustrated in Figure 3-12, which implies a contradicting conclusion to the above. However, examinations of the copper(II) ion stereochemistries may reveal why. The geometries at all the conner(II) centers are close to square pyramidal, but trigonal bipyramidal distortions for Cu(1) ( $\tau = 0.421$ ) and Cu(2)



Figure 3-11. Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 21. The solid line was calculated from eqn. 1-4

with g = 2.097(12), -2J = 40(2) cm<sup>4</sup>,  $\rho$  = 0.031, N $\alpha$  = 66\*10<sup>4</sup> emu,  $\theta$  = 0 K, 10<sup>3</sup>R = 0.64 (R = 0.64 km s^{-1}) 





 $(\tau = 0.27)$  are significantly larger than those for Cu(4)  $(\tau = 0.356)$  and Cu(2)  $(\tau = 0.219)$ respectively. These larger geometric distortions in the molecule containing the Cu(2) and Cu(2) center will reduce the antiferromagnetic contribution to the total magnetic exchange.

The azide complex [Cu.(PAHAP)(MeOH).)(N,).], (NO,), 2H.O (22) has a room temperature magnetic moment as 1.52 BM, and a pronounced maximum in susceptibility at 220 K clearly indicating strong antiferromagnetic exchange (Figure 3-13). A good fit to eqn. 1-4 gave g = 2.15(7), -2J = 246(7) cm<sup>-1</sup>,  $\rho = 0.0115$ , N $\alpha = 59^{\circ}10^{\circ}$  emu,  $\theta = -0.3$ K. 10<sup>2</sup>R = 1.8. The structure shows that two u.-1.1-N, anions bridge Cu(1) and Cu(1A) in a orthogonal fashion as described before, therefore any magnetic exchange in each dinuclear unit should occur through the N-N single bond (N(3)-N(4)) and the equatorially bridging u.-1.1-N." via N(10). Since the dihedral angle around the bridging open-chain diazine unit is extremely small (53.86\* between the least-squares planes Cu(1)-N(1)-N(3)-C(5)-C(6) and Cu(2)-N(4)-N(6)-C(11)-C(12)), the N-N single bond would not be expected to provide a large antiferromagnetic contribution to the total magnetic exchange. based on the result in Chapter 2, and might, even, be expected to provide a ferromagnetic contribution. Therefore, the equatorially bridging µ-1,1-N, via N(10) seems to be the only factor likely to be responsible for the net strong antiferromagnetic coupling. This result is exactly consistent with the conclusion made by Thompson et al. [49-51], that when the u.-1,1-azide bridge angle exceeds a value of approximately 106°, the azide



Figure 3-13. Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 22. The solid line was calculated from eqn. 1-4 with  $g=2.15(7), -21=246(7) \text{ cm}^{1}, \ \rho=0.0115, \ N\alpha=59^{\bullet}10^{\circ}\text{erm}, \ \theta=-0.3 \text{ K}, \ 10^{3}\text{R}=1.8 \ (\text{R}=[\Sigma(\chi_{ss}, -1.0, 10^{\circ}\text{R}), 10^{\circ}\text{R}]$ 

Xan )2/EXan 2/12 ).




bridge is responsible for antiferromagnetic coupling. The acide bridge angle in 22 (118.97) is very large, and entirely consistent with the strong antiferromagnetic coupling in this compound. To our knowledge, complex 22 might be the first real example which the mignetic properties of acide bridged dicopper complexes. The extended Hickel MO calculation for this complex was carried out by using exect structural data with two weakly apically bound CH<sub>2</sub>OH molecules included. The energy difference between the symmetric and autosymmetric MO (orbital 112 and 132 respectively, see Figure 3-10) is 71 meV.



Figure 3-15. Expanded view of the energy levels for 22.

which is fuirly large and consistent with the magnetic behaviour. The fact that  $\Delta E$  in this case is significantly smaller than e.g. in 21 ( $\Delta E = 141$ , 177 meV), and that antiferromagnetic coupling in this compound is very much weaker, has little relevance because MO calculations at the extended Hickel level can only be safely compared in a closely related series of compounds.

#### 3.4 Conclusion

Three dicopper complexes doubly bridged by open-chain N-N units show no or weak antiferromagnetic interactions. There is no coupling in 19 because of simple orbital orthogonality (d\_1 .; (Cu(1)) d\_2 (Cu(1)a). The very weak coupling in 18 may result from the twist of the two conner magnetic planes about two N-N single honds which has not reached the ferromagnetic realm for this type of compound. The stronger coupling in the mixed diazine bridged dicopper complex 21 occurs through the open-chain N-N diazine bridge and is consistent with the much larger dihedral angles (85.9°, 78.8°). The aromatic diazine ligand DPPN does not contribute to the coupling because it acts as an orthogonal bridge. Strong antiferromagnetic coupling has been found in the µ-1,1-N, and open-chain diazine mixed bridged complex (22). Since the dihedral angle between the two copper magnetic planes about N-N single bond is very small, the N-N single bond would be expected to contribute very little to the total magnetic interaction. Therefore, the u-1.1-N. is the only factor remonsible for the strong antiferromagnetic exchange in 22. which presents the first genuine example contradicting the spin-polarization mechanism for coupling in azide bridged complexes.

# Chapter 4. Spiral Dinuclear Complexes of Tetradentate N<sub>4</sub> Open-chain Diazine Ligands with Mn(II), Fe(II), Fe(III), Co(II), Co(III) and Ni(II) Salts.

#### 4.1 Introduction

A number of N(II) and Co(II) dissolater complexes bridged by a distaine group incorporated in a heterocyclic aromatic ring, e.g. pridatine, pithalanien, have been documented. X-ray structures showed that coordination occurs with one ligand or two ligands (e.g. pridatione or pithalaniso) together with statched co-doners like innine or carboxylic acid. The variable temperature magnetic ausceptibility studies indicated antiferromagnetic interactions between the N(II) content (-2J = 25-47 cm<sup>2</sup>) and cobalt(III) content (-2J = 15:10 ° 11):11-141.

Open-chain diazone ligands have variable coordination modes to copper ions and lead to very interesting magnetic coupling phenomena a presented in Chapter 2, as well as Chapter 3. Early investigations in the 1950's and 1960's showed that such ligands could from variable types of coordination compounds with Co(II). N(II) and Fe(II) sate, including species with ML<sub>2</sub>, ML<sub>3</sub>, and ML<sub>3</sub>, stoichiometries [72-76]. Among them the type ML<sub>4</sub> systems turned out to be the most interesting and received more attention. Studies by Busch et al. [73-75] on pyridine aldasine (PAA) negatested that the Fe(II), Co(II). N(II) disculare complexes contain the casion  $[ML_4/PAA]_{10}$  of -Fe(II), Co(II), N(II) with a spiral attracture, but no X-ray structures were reported. Magnetic property studies indicaded that the FIQ conterts were two two; the to bolifII) corters were high pipe to no variable temperature magnetic succeptibility studies were reported and the N(til) centres were coupled weakly (Jk = 8.3 - 11.7 K) [119]. Similar complexes of the related ligand 2-pyridyl-methyl-ketazine (PMG) [M<sub>4</sub>(PMG)<sub>4</sub>)<sup>16</sup> (M = Fe(1), Co(11), N(11)) were also reported later on with similar magnetic properties, manyly the Fe(10), Co(11), N(10) were also ind the N(11) centres were weakly coupled (i = 11.8 cm<sup>3</sup>) [42]. The Co(11) complexes showed no coupling at all, which is mirrored by NMR studies reported by the et al. [43]. A recent magnetic property study on disudear coshel(11) complexes of an open-chain distaine ligand, 4,3-dimethyl-3-pyraxb) iddazini, indicated a weak antiferro-magnetic interaction between two coshel(11) centres (J = 6.18-7.36 cm<sup>3</sup>) in the complexes ( $C_{X,X,1}$  ( $L(X \subset C \in DB$ ) [L(H) Rower Row RAY magnetic succes reported.

The first X-ray structure of a spiral complex in this class was reported for [Co.(PMOK),J.ZnCi.(ZnCi.(H.(O)), 44L;O in 1974 by Boyd et al. [145a], and showed that the three tetradentate ligands around the two distorted octabedrial Co(U) contres form a spiral disturburst structural arrangement with the distance introgene forming a triple bridge a **Type AB** conformation. The Co-Co distance is 3.81(1) Å and the average Co-N-N-Co torsion angle is 4\*, indicating a very pronounced twist of the three ligands about the Co-Co vector. A very recent paper gave another example of such spiral-like structure is a distordare FUT() Doorgene [1459].

In order to further investigate the coordination chemistry of open-chain diazine ligands to the other first row transition metal ions in general and target new approaches to supramolecular architecture which is currently a very active field [146-160], this chapter presents a series of spiral homodinuclear McID, Fe(ID, Fe(ID, Co(ID) and N(II) complexes of the ligands PAHAP and PZIPZ (Scheme 4-1). The studies on these complexes focus on the structures and spectral, variable temperature magnetic suscerbiblity and electrochemical processies.



# 4.2 Experimental

#### 4.2.1 Materials

Commercially available solvents and chemicals were used without further purification,

# 4.2.2 Measurements

Analysis, spectroscopic and physical measurements (see Chapter 1)

# 4.2.3 Synthesis of the ligands

PZHPZ was synthesized in a similar manner to PAHAP (see Chapter 2) using 2-cyanopyrazine instead of 2-cyanopyridine with a yield of 81% (mp. 306-308°C, decompose) and was recrystalized from ethanol.

#### 4.2.4 Synthesis of the complexes

[Mn.(PAHAP),](ClO.), 5H.O (23), [Fe.(PAHAP),](ClO.), 4H.O (24),

# [Ni,(PAHAP),(CIO,), 5H,0 (25)

PAHAP (0.36 g, 1.5 mmol) was added to a hot aqueous methanol (80/20) solution

(40 mL) of 1.0 mmol M(CDQ)<sub>2</sub>,eEJ<sub>2</sub>O (M = Me<sup>2</sup>, Fe<sup>2</sup>, N<sup>2</sup>), and the minure stirred at room imogeniture for several minutes, until the ligand disadved. The clare solution was filtered and the fibrate allowed to stand at room temperature overnight. Well formed cystals were produced in each case, which were filtered off, wathed quickly with cold water, and dried in air (Yields 80-85%). Anal Caled. for [Ma<sub>2</sub>(C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>2</sub>A<sub>3</sub>)<sub>4</sub>)(CO<sub>2</sub>,5H<sub>2</sub>O (yellow) (23): C, 3325; H, 3-40; N, 19.38. Found: C, 33.21; H, 2-97; N, 19.26. Anal Caled. for [Fe<sub>2</sub>(C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>2</sub>A<sub>3</sub>)<sub>4</sub>)(CO)<sub>4</sub>,4H<sub>2</sub>O (dark: ref-forwer) (24): C, 28.61; H, 3.00; N, 16.69. Found: C, 28.63; H, 3.27; N, 16.71. Anal Caled. for [Ma<sub>2</sub>(C<sub>2</sub>H<sub>3</sub>A<sub>3</sub>)<sub>4</sub>](CO)<sub>4</sub>,5H<sub>2</sub>O (romaps trow) (25): C, 23.61; H, 3.50; N, 16.01. Found: C, 23.61; H, 3.10; 19.07.

[Fe<sub>1</sub>(PAHAP),j(NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>4</sub>,3H<sub>2</sub>O (26), [Fe<sub>2</sub>(PZHPZ),j(NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>4</sub>,5H<sub>2</sub>O (27), [Co<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP),j(NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>4</sub>,3H<sub>2</sub>O (28), [Ni<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP),j][Ni<sub>1</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>O),j(NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>4</sub>,4.5H<sub>2</sub>O (29), [Fe(PHAAP)(H<sub>2</sub>O),(NO<sub>2</sub>)] (NO<sub>2</sub>), (30)

PAEAP (0.48 g. 0.20 mmc)) was added to a warm approvas solution (40 mJ,) of M(NO), PAEAP (0.47 g. 0.20 mmc)) was added to a warm approvas bonicion (40 mJ,) of M(NO), PAEAP (0.14 mc), PAEAP (0.14 mc), PAEAP (0.14 mc), The mixture was sirred and allowed to stand to come temperature for several days. After this time, well formed crystals appeared, which were filtered off, washed quickly with a small amount of cold water, and air dried (Yridds 30-40% for 26 and 28; 80% for 29). Close examination of the product in 26 mvaled huit it was a mixture, containing a small amount (-20 mg) of dark, almost black rectangular primes (30), whithe we separated by Mac Compicer 30 base tenshows to be a monoscilar derivative of a herdroyleng ligand

PHAAP, derived from PAHAP (vide supra). PHAAP was synthesized independently according to a procedure described in Chapter 2 and 30 prepared independently by reaction of PHAAP with Fe(NO.), 9H.O in water. PHAAP (0.24 g, 1.0 mmol) was added to an aqueous solution (20 mL) of Fe(NO.), 9H.O (0.40 g. 1.0 mmol) with stirring at room temperature. Methanol (5 mL) was added to aid solution of the ligand. Within a few minutes a dark greenish-black clear solution formed, which was filtered and the filtrate allowed to stand at room temperature overnight. Black prismatic crystals formed, which were filtered off, washed with a small amount of cold water, and air dried (Yields 80%). Complex 27 was prepared in a similar manner to 24 by adding PZHPZ (0.36 g. 1.5 mmol) to an aqueous methanol (75/25) solution of Fe(NO.), 9H.O (0.40 g, 1.0 mmol). The resulting dark colored solution was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for several days. Dark brown crystals suitable for structural determination formed, which were filtered off, washed quickly with a small quantity of cold water, and allowed to dry in air (Yield 30%). No mononuclear derivative has been isolated from this reaction, but the low vield of 27 suggests that a similar hydrolysis reaction is occurring. Anal Calcd, for [Fe.(C.,H.,N.).] (NO.). 3H.O (26): C. 38 11: H. 3 73: N. 27.16 Found: C. 38 14: H. 3 61: N. 27.37. Anal Calcd. for [Fe,(C.,H.,N.).](NO.). 5H.O (27): C. 30.63: H. 3.43: N. 33.32. Found: C, 30.90; H, 3.21; N, 33.20. Anal Calcd. for [Co.(C.,H.,N.),](NO.), 3H.O (28); C. 34.19; H. 3.35; N. 26.57, Found: C. 34.19; H. 3.40; N. 25.92, Anal Caled. for [Ni.(C.,H.,N.),][Ni(H.O),](NO.), 4.5H.O (29): C. 29.66; H. 3.94; N. 23.05 Found: C.

29.64; H, 4.02; N, 23.04. Anal Calcd. for [Fe(C<sub>4</sub>H<sub>4</sub>N,O)(H<sub>4</sub>O)<sub>2</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>)] (NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub> (30): C, 27.76; H, 2.91; N, 21.58. Found: C, 27.96; H, 2.97; N, 21.53.

# [Fe,(PAHAP),](ClO,), 4.5H,O (31)

PAILAP (0.24 g. 1.0 mmO) was added to an aqueous solution (20 mJ) of Fe(ICD),  $\beta$ [4,10 (0.36 g. 1.0 mmO) at room temperature, and complex 31 was obtained as brown colored crystals within a few minutes (Yald 70%). The product was filtered off, washed with a small amount of cold water and dried in air. Anal Calicd. for [Fe<sub>3</sub>(C,H<sub>2</sub>,H<sub>3</sub>),(ICO), 4.5H<sub>2</sub>O (31): C, 28.63; H. 3.00; N. 1669. Found: C, 28.61, H, 23.78, 16.71.

#### [Co,(PAHAP),](ClO\_), 5.5H,O (32)

PALAP (0.56 g, 1.5 mmol) was added to a hot aqueous solution (CD mJ) of Co(CO), 444,0 (0.36 g, 1.5 minute was stirred under a nitrogen atmosphere until the minute became a close solution. The closer solution was filtered under a nitrogen atmosphere, and the filtrate allowed to stand in a refligerator oversight. Well formed orange oryental were produced, which were filtered off, washed quickly with cold water, and drived in air (Yited 79%), Aaal Calad. for  $[Co_2(C,H_1N_2)](CO_2,55H,O (02); C,$ 335H, 355, Nt, SR SH, SR Sound; C.3.7X, NT, 325 Nt, 136A.

#### 4.2.5 Crystallographic data collection and refinement of the structures

Crystals of [Mn<sub>4</sub>(PAHAP),](ClO<sub>4</sub>, SH<sub>4</sub>O (23) are yellow in appearance. A single crystal of 23 of dimensions  $0.10 \times 0.10 \times 0.10$  mm was attached to a quartz fibre and transferred to a Siemens Smart three-circle diffractometer with graphite-monochromatized Mo-KC: X-multition and a CCD area detector was used for data collection [108], e-scans were used in such a way that an initial 180° ican range constrained for data of the followed by there funct the 120°, 180° and 120° scans with a dotte of 88°, 180° and 288°, respectively. This strategy amples the sphere of reciprocal space up to 29 – 50.04°. Cell parameters were refined using the controld value of 300 reflections with 20 angles up to 50.04°. Raw frame data were integrated using the SAINT program [109]. The structure was solved by direct methods [110]. An empirical absorption correction was applied to the data using the programme SADABS [111]. Abbreviated crystal data are listed in Table 4-1. Crystal data collection and structure refinement for 256, 28, 29 were carried out in a similar memory to that for 23. Abbreviated crystal data for all of these complexes are also given Table 4-1.

The crystals of [Co,IPAHAP],(NO),\_3H<sub>2</sub>O (28) are deep blood red in appearance. The diffraction intensities of a crystal of approximate dimension 0.40 × 0.20 × 0.40 mm were collected with graphite-monochromatized Mo-Ko: X-radiation using a Rigaku AFC6S diffractometer at 299(1) K and the o-20 scan technique to a 20 \_ value of 501\*. A total of 3549 reflections was measured, of which 1839 were considered unique (R<sub>w</sub> = 0.024) and 1218 were considered significant with L<sub>w</sub> > 2.0 or (L<sub>w</sub>). The intensities of three representative reflection, indicating crystal and electronic stability (no decay correction was supplied). An exelution, indicating crystal and electronic stability (no decay correction was supplied). Are subjected in transmission factors ranging from 0.97 to 1.00. The data were corrected for Lorentz and polarisation effects. The cell parameters were obtained from the least-squares refinement of the setting angles of 24 carefully centred reflections with 2 0 in the range 32.1-35.1°.

The structure was solved by direct methods [102, 103]. All acons except hydrogens were refind emisotropically. Hydrogen atoms were optimized by positional refinement with incorpic thermal parameters at 20% granter than hose of their booled paraters at the time of their inclusion. However, they were fixed for the final round of refinement. The final cycle of file-matrix lass-squares refinement was based on 1218 observed reflections (1 > 2.000 (10) and 139 variable parameters and converged with unseighted and weighted agreement filterion of Re-2[[L]+[F][2][Z]+[-0.050 and R\_-([26x([F]+[F]])?  $\Sigma = 7_{12}^{2/3} = 0.054$ . The maximum and minimum peaks on the final difference Fourier may correspond to 0.52 and 0.45 distersor k<sup>2</sup>, respectively. Neural atom scattering factors [104] and anomalou-dispersion terms [105, 106], were taken from the unal source. All calculations were performed with the EESAN [107] crystallographic software package using a VAX21100 work station. The structural data for 72 were collected and result is a similar manzer. Alterviated crystal data for 37 and 28 are virus in Table 4.1

Note in Table 4-1, # = Rigaku data; \* = Siemens Smart data

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{R} &= \Sigma ||F_{0}| - |F_{1}| / \Sigma |F_{0}|, \ \mathbf{R}_{e} = [(\Sigma(|F_{0}| - |F_{1}|)^{2} / \Sigma w F_{0}^{2})]^{1/2} \\ \mathbf{R}\mathbf{I} &= \Sigma ||F_{0}| - |F_{1}| / \Sigma |F_{0}|, \ \mathbf{w}\mathbf{R}_{2} = [\Sigma(w(|F_{0}|^{2} - |F_{1}|)^{2} / \Sigma(w(|F_{0}|^{2})^{2})]^{1/2} \end{split}$$

		20	2/#
chemical formula	C <sub>se</sub> H <sub>se</sub> Cl <sub>s</sub> Mn <sub>2</sub> N <sub>10</sub> O <sub>21</sub>	C <sub>39</sub> H <sub>45</sub> Fe <sub>2</sub> N <sub>22</sub> O <sub>15</sub>	C <sub>eo</sub> H <sub>eo</sub> N <sub>se</sub> Fe <sub>e</sub> O <sub>s</sub>
formula wt.	1318.59	1173.67	2353.2
space group	C2/c	Pa 3	P2/n
a (Å)	13.4086(2)	21.0024(1)	14.039(3)
b(Å)	32.0249(1)	21.0024(1)	11.335(6)
c(Å)	14.3132(2)	21.0024(1)	14.6517(15)
α(deg)	90	90	90
β(deg)	115.635(1)	90	96.852(11)
γ(deg)	90	90	90
V (Å')	5541.2(1)	9264.18(8)	2314.9(13)
ρ <sub>mint</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.581	1.683	1.688
z	4	8	1
μ(cm <sup>-1</sup> )	0.738	0.723	0.7330
λ	0.71073	0.71073	0.71069
Т, К	298(2)	298(2)	299(2)
R1(R)	0.0664	0.0615	0.0448
wR2(R_)	0.1524	0.1640	0.1154

Table 4-1. Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 23, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30.

Compound	28#	29*	30*
chemical formula	$C_{y_0}H_{y_0}N_{y_0}O_{\gamma\gamma}Co_{\gamma\gamma}$	$C_{k,0}H_{ikel}C_{kel}N_{i,0}N_{ikel}O_{j,0}$	$\mathrm{C_{12}H_{13}N_{g}O_{12}Fe}$
formula wt.	686.42	337.67	519.17
space group	R3c(h) (#197)	R3c	P2,/c
a (Å)	17.38(6)	17.373(3)	8.4517(3)
b(Å)	17.38(6)	17.373(3)	19.6456(6)
c(Å)	32.15(2)	33.235(6)	12.6511(4)
α(deg)	90	90	90
β(deg)	90	90	109.400(1)
γ(deg)	90	120	90
V (Å')	8415(5)	8685(5)	1981.31(11)
ρ <sub>alot</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.625	1.743	1.740
z	12	27	4
μ(cm <sup>-1</sup> )	0.692	1.207	0.845
λ	0.71069	0.71073	0.71073
т, к	299(1)	150(2)	150(2)
R1(R)	0.050(R)	0.0488	0.0462
wR2(R_)	0.054(Rw)	0.1133	0.0754

Table 4-1. (contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for 23, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30.

.

#### 4.3 Results and discussion

#### 4.3.1 Structures

#### [Mn,(PAHAP),](ClO\_), 5H,O (23)

The structure of 2 is in literatured in **Figure 4.1**, and relevant both dimenses and angles are litted in **Table 4.2**. The dimanganese casino constants of two distorted octabedral magnesses(t) correct bridged by three ligg groups and the pyridine rings occupying the remaining coordination positions. A second projection of the structure (**Figure 4.2**), viewed approximately down the Mo-Ma axis, shows the parts of the molecule related by the two-field resistant axis. More distances are all very similar, fulling in the range 22.2.2.26 Å. The Mo-Ma axis ligand (e.g. Mol(s)-M(O)-C(11)-C(12)-N(0)) are fiven they group, with a sequence for the conjects ion pairs of NIL groups are arranged in the groups.

Within each ligand the boolt distances in the N=C-NIL framework are very similar to those of the free ligand (e.g. N(2)-N(4) 1.425(6) Å, N(2)-C(6) 1.096(6) Å, C(6)-N(7) 1.31(7) Å, C(3)-C(6) 1.492(7) Å), indicating single boolt character in the N=N distance bonds, and C-NIL bonds, and largely double bond character in the C=N bonds. The large dilhedral angle between the chedrar rings within the same ligand indicates flexibility about the NN bond, an attribute which allows the spiral werpping of the three ligands around the two metals centres, and the geometric variability apparent in the copper complexes of this ligand.

Mn-N(4)#1	2.221(4)	Mn-N(6)	2.235(4)	
Mn-N(3)#1	2.240(4)	Mn-N(1)	2.244(4)	
Mn-N(5)	2.252(4)	Mn-N(2)	2.259(4)	
N(2)-C(6)	1.309(6)	N(2)-N(4)	1.425(6)	
N(4)-C(12)	1.298(6)	N(6)-C(18)	1.298(6)	
N(6)-N(6)#1	1.437(8)	N(7)-C(6)	1.331(7)	
N(8)-C(12)	1.324(6	N(9)-C(18)	1.334(6)	
Mn-Mna	3.946(4)			
N(4)#1-Mn-N(6)	90.3(2)	N(4)#1-Mn-N(3)#1	72.3(2)	
N(6)-Mn-N(3)#1	161.3(2)	N(4)#1-Mn-N(1)	158.2(2)	
N(6)-Mn-N(1)	96.9(2)	N(3)#1-Mn-N(1)	101.8(2)	
N(4)#1-Mn-N(5)	95.3(2)	N(6)-Mn-N(5)	71.7(2)	
N(3)#1-Mn-N(5)	102.5(2)	N(1)-Mn-N(5)	106.5(2)	
N(4)#1-Mn-N(2)	86.9(2)	N(6)-Mn-N(2)	90.4(2)	
N(3)#1-Mn-N(2)	95.2(2)	N(1)-Mn-N(2)	72.5(2)	
N(5)-Mn-N(2)	162.0(2)			

Table 4-2. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the Mn coordination spheres and the ligand in [Mn,(PAHAP),](CIO,), 5H,O (23).



ligure 4-1.

frogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids).



Figure 4-2. Expanded view approximately down the Mn-Mn axis with some carbon atoms in the pyridyl rings removed for clarity.

### [Fe,(PAHAP),](NO,), 3H,O (26)

The structure of 26 is very similar to 23. The labelled asymmetric unit and a molecular projection down the F-F4 axis are illustrated in Figure 4.3. Inportant bond distances and angles are list, with F=V4 distance filling in the reque 17-20 Å, and a distance of 3.552(c) Å between the two iron centres. Angles around the iron centres are in the range 79.2-39<sup>+</sup> indicating some distortion from an idealized orabedron. The ligands exhibit a marked spiral twist around the distorter in concern, with a dishedria angle of 7.5<sup>+</sup> between the two iron chalar single belonging to the same ligand. Despite the shorter matal airragen distances in the complex compared with 2, the ligand with event the distance are into explosing to the same ligand. Despite the shorter matal airragen distances in the OHL ( $\sim$ VH finamework (e.g. N(2)-N(5) 1.409(c) Å, N(2)-C(0).199(7) Å (C(0-N(5)).122(7) Å) are very similar to those in 23 and in the five [good, although in this case the similarity in C-M distances.

Table 4-3. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the iron coordination spheres and the ligand in [Fe,(PAHAP),](NO,), 3H<sub>2</sub>O (26).

Fe(1)-N(2)	1.960(4)	Fe(1)-N(2)#1	1.960(4)
Fe(1)-N(2)#2	1.960(4)	Fe(1)-N(1)	1.989(4)
Fe(1)-N(1)#1	1.989(4)	Fe(1)-N(1)#2	1.989(4)
Fe(2)-N(5)#1	1.951(4)	Fe(2)-N(5)#2	1.951(4)
Fc(2)-N(5)	1.951(4)	Fc(2)-N(4)	1.996(4)

Fe(2)-N(4)#2	1.996(4)	Fe(2)-N(4)#1	1.996(4)
N(1)-C(5)	1.369(7)	N(2)-C(6)	1.309(7)
N(2)-N(5)	1.409(6)	N(3)-C(6)	1.323(7)
N(5)-C(12)	1.321(7)	N(6)-C(12)	1.318(7)
C(5)-C(6)	1.486(8)	Fe(1)-Fe(2)	3.552(4)
N(2)-Fe(1)-N(2)#1	89.9(2)	N(2)-Fe(1)-N(2)#2	89.9(2)
N(2)#1-Fe(1)-N(2)#2	89.9(2)	N(2)-Fe(1)-N(1)	79.2(2)
N(2)#1-Fe(1)-N(1)	93.5(2)	N(2)#2-Fe(1)-N(1)	168.6(2)
N(2)-Fe(1)-N(1)#1	168.6(2)	N(2)#1-Fe(1)-N(1)#1	79.2(2)
N(2)#2-Fe(1)-N(1)#1	93.5(2)	N(1)-Fe(1)-N(1)#1	97.8(2)
N(2)-Fe(1)-N(1)#2	93.5(2)	N(2)#1-Fe(1)-N(1)#2	168.6(2)
N(2)#2-Fe(1)-N(1)#2	79.2(2)	N(1)-Fe(1)-N(1)#2	97.8(2)
N(1)#1-Fe(1)-N(1)#2	97.8(2)	N(5)#1-Fe(2)-N(5)#2	90.5(2)
N(5)#1-Fe(2)-N(5)	90.5(2)	N(5)#2-Fe(2)-N(5)	90.5(2)
N(5)#1-Fe(2)-N(4)	169.9(2)	N(5)#2-Fe(2)-N(4)	93.2(2)
N(5)-Fe(2)-N(4)	80.1(2)	N(5)#1-Fe(2)-N(4)#2	93.2(2)
N(5)#2-Fe(2)-N(4)#2	80.1(2)	N(5)-Fe(2)-N(4)#2	169.9(2)
N(4)-Fe(2)-N(4)#2	96.7(2)	N(5)#1-Fe(2)-N(4)#1	80.1(2)
N(5)#2-Fe(2)-N(4)#1	169.9(2)	N(5)-Fe(2)-N(4)#1	93.2(2)
N(4)-Fe(2)-N(4)#1	96.7(2)	N(4)#2-Fe(2)-N(4)#1	96.7(2)

contd.



Figure 4-3. Up: Asymmetrical view of 26 with labelling of the ligand; Down: Expanded view approximately down the Fe-Fe axis with removal of some carbon atoms in the pyridyl rings for clarity and with hydrogen atoms omitted (40% probability themat lignoids).

#### [Fe2(PZHPZ)](NO3), 5H2O (27)

The labelled asymmetric unit and the answare of the molecular cation in 27 is illustrated in Figure 4.4, projected slightly of the Fe-Fe axis, and shows the groups related by the two-fold relational axis. Important bond distances and angles are listed in Table 4.1 The structure is essentially identical with those is 32 and 26 with a distance of 3.570(1) Å between the iros(1) centres. The Fe-N distances lie in the range 1.94-1.97 Å very similar to those in 36. There is no evidence for further interactions between the disader units that would involve any additional coordination of the external pyrasine nitrogens. The N-N disances (s.g. N(2)-N(12) 1.4133 Å N(22)-N(22)a 1.4131 Å indicates single N-N bonds within each liquid, and the disances within the N-C2-Ni, liqued framework are very close to those is the free liqued PAHAP, which is very similar to the current liqued PZUPZ, as expected. The spiral twist of the liqued around the two iron centres is very similar to that found in 33 and 36, white  $q_{i} = 6.63^{-2}$  angle between the lass-square planes FC(N)-D2-C0(C-C)/D2(N) and FC(1)-N(1)-(N)/2C)(C)/D2(C)(D).

Fel-N1	1.951(3)	Fel-N2	1.943(3)
Fel-N21	1.954(3)	Fel-N22	1.963(3)
Fel-N11a	1.959(3)	Fel-N12a	1.951(3)
N2-N12	1.4133	N23-C26	1.3202
C2-C6	1.3023	C5-C6	1.4736
N3-C6	1.3309	C11-C12	1.3855
N12-C16	1.3083	C14-C15	1.3779
N13-C16	1.3155	C15-C16	1.4773
N22-C26	1.3046	C21-C22	1.3770
N22-N22a	1.418(5)	C24-C25	1.3777
N1-Fe1-N2	79.90	N1-Fe1-N21	95.03
N1-Fe1-N22	168.99	N1-Fe1-N11a	97.30
N1-Fe1-N12a	95.72	N2-Fe1-N21	94.31
N2-Fe1-N22	90.60	N2-Fe1-N11a	169.17
N2-Fe1-N12a	89.70	N21-Fe1-N22	80.06
NIa-Fel-N21	96.36	N12a-Fe1-N21	169.04
N11a-Fe1-N22	93.05	N12a-Fe1-N22	89.72
Nla-Fel-Nl2a	80.13		

Table 4-4 . Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (deg.) relevant to the iron coordination spheres in [Fe,(PZHPZ),](NO,), 5H,O (27).



e,(PZHPZ),)(NO,), 5H,O (27) with Right: Figure 4-4.

drogen atoms omitted (40% probability thermal ellipsoids)

Left: Asymmetrical view with labelling of the atoms.

#### [Co,(PAHAP),](NO,), 3H,O (28)

The structure of 28 is the same as the spiral structures reported for 23, 36 and 27 and illustrated in Figure 4-5. Important distances and angles are listed in Table 4-5. Bood distances to the introgen donor atoms are very short ( $C_{\rm CI}(N+0)$ ) 1942(4) Å, in keeping with the 3+ outdation state of the cobast centres. The cobast outshofts are somewhat distorted with N-Co-N angles ranging from 82.0-95.9°. The Co-Os separation is 3.06(3) Å. Within the N-C-N framework of the ligand the N-N distance in outde bound (1)39770 Å. It seeming with the vert Arc-N notatest.

The N-C (e.g. N(1)-C(1) 1234(5) Åb dimaxes is somewhat longer, and the C-MH, distance (C(1)-N(2) 1305(5) Å) somewhat shorter than in 23, 26 and 27, resulting in more double boolt distances in the C-MH (boolt A. Comparison with the [Co/C/MGA)]<sup>4</sup> structure reveals much longer Co-M distances (207-2.11 Å), and very much longer Co-Co separation (3.81(1) Å) in keeping with the lower exidation state of the metal [145]. The dihedral angle Co-N-N-Co fir this compound is small (44<sup>+</sup>), but perhaps a direct comparison with 28 is unwise because of the differences in the ligand. For 28 the dihedral angle between the mean places of the obtah chelate rings associated with the same ligand (50.8<sup>+</sup>) is in keeping with the general spiral genessary of the dimetal cation, but is substantially smaller than those in the other complexes, and may be associated with short mucht-divergen contacts, and average N-Co-N andget door to 50<sup>+</sup>.

				_
Co(1)-N(1)	1.915(4)	Co(1)-N(1)	1.915(4)	
Co(1)-N(1)	1.915(4)	Co(1)-N(3)	1.942(4)	
Co(1)-N(3)	1.942(4)	Co(1)-N(3)	1.942(4)	
N(1)-N(1)	1.397(7)	N(1)-C(1)	1.324(5)	
N(1)-N(1)	1.305(5)	Co(1)-Co(1)	3.508(3)	
N(1)-Co(1)-N(1)	90.1(1)	N(1)-Co(1)-N(3)	171.8(2)	
N(1)-Co(1)-N(3)	92.2(2)	N(1)-Co(1)-N(3)	82.0(2)	
N(3)-Co(1)-N(3)	95.9(1)			

Table 4-5. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the cobalt coordination spheres and the ligand in [Co<sub>3</sub>(PAHAP),](NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>e</sub>. 9HLO (28).



#### [NL(PAHAP),][Ni(H,O),](NO,), 4.5H,O (29)

Complex 29 contists of two meal fragments, a diruction ratio, but a similar spiral twist to the other complexes, and the monosurder action  $|N(21/Q_1)_1^{-n}$ . A structural representation for the cations is illustrated in Figure 4.4. Important bodiet distances and angles ave situal of 1464 e.4. Nickel-information angles in the distordarcia cation fills the range 78.8-97.1°, indicating significant distortion of the nickel octahedra. The monomediar cation  $|N(21/Q_1)_1^{-n}$  has an almost regular octahedral geometry (Ni-O 2.056(2), AO-Ni-O 10-24-90.375). The Ni-Ni distance is AO(15) Å. The Ni-Ni distance |N(3)-NiO) is 1.426(3) Å and the C-Ni distance in the ligand finances/or |N(3)-Ci(0) 1.327(A, Ni-Qi-Qi) 1.325(A) Å are varyed sets to hose in the free ligand, indicating single Ni-Ni bond character in the ligand bridge. The dihedral angles between the mean planes of the nicket debates rings (70.1°) are close to hose resported for the other complexes, in keeping with the relatively long Ni-Ni bonds and large range of angles at the initied centers.

# Table 4-6. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the nickel coordination spheres and the ligand in [Ni,(PAHAP),][Ni(H<sub>2</sub>O),](NO<sub>3</sub>), 4 SH 0.(29).

Ni1-N1#1	2.063(3)	Nil-Nl	2.063(3)
Ni1-N1#2	2.063(3)	Ni1-N3	2.078(3)
Ni1-N3#1	2.078(3)	Ni1-N3#2	2.078(3)

# contd.

Ni2-01#3	2.056(3)	Ni2-01#3	2.056(3)
Ni2-01#4	2.056(3)	Ni2-01#5	2.056(3)
Ni2-01	2.056(3)	Ni2-O1#6	2.056(3)
Ni2-01#7	2.056(3)	C5-C6	1.494(4)
C6-N3	1.307(4)	C6-N2	1.325(4)
N3-N3#8	1.418(5)		
N1#1-Ni1-N1	97.04(10)	N1#1-Ni1-N1#2	97.04(10)
N1-Ni1-N1#2	97.04(10)	N1-Ni1-N3	78.81(10)
N#2-Ni1-N3	168.76(10)	N1#1-Ni1-N3	93.85(10)
N1#1-Ni1-N3#1	78.81(10)	N1-Ni1-N3#1	168.76(10)
N1#2-Ni1-N3#1	93.85(10)	N1#3-Ni1-N3#1	90.98(10)
N1#1-Ni1-N3#2	168.76(10)	N1-Ni1-N3#2	93.85(10)
N1#2-Ni1-N3#2	78.81(10)	N3-Ni1-N3#2	90.98(10)
N3#1-Ni1- N3#2	90.98(10)	01-Ni2-01	89.26(10)
01-Ni2-01	90.74(10)	01-Ni2-01	180.0 19
N1-C5-C6	114.6(3)	C4-C5-C6	123.7(3)
N3-C6-N2	125.4(3)	N3-C6-C5	115.2(3)
N2-C6-C5	119.4(3)	C-N1-Ni1	127.2(2)
C5-N1-Ni1	113.9(2)	C6-N3-N3	116.7(3)
C6-N3-Nil	113.9(2)	N3-N3-Ni1	119.56(11)



0),](NO,),4.5H,O (29) (40% of the dinuclear unit in [Ni.(PAHAP).][Ni( resentation Structural Figure 4-6.

probability thermal ellipsoid:

# [Fe(PHAAP)(H,O),(NO,)] (NO,), (30)

The structure of the mononuclear cation in 30 is illustrated in Figure 4-7, and important bond distances and angles are listed in Table 4-7. The ligand PHAAP has an OH group in place of one of the NH, groups present in PAHAP. The iron(III) center is seven-coordinate with the ligand acting as an N.O donor. Oxygen O(1) is deprotonated. The presence of two 5-membered chelate rings provides a guite distorted environment in the equatorial plane of the iron(III) center (N(1)-Fe(1)-N(3) 72.24(7)\*; N(3)-Fe(1)-O(1) 75.04(7)\*), such that the chelating bidentate nitrate (N(6)) can be accommodated easily within this plane. The O(5)-Fe(1)-O(4) angle (58.30(6)\*) is guite small, as would be expected, with the other two angles being comparable with those associated with PHAAP. Axial positions in the pentagonal bipyramid are occupied by two water molecules with quite short contacts (< 2.014 Å). A similar situation exists with other Fe(III) complexes of chelating ligands with adjacent five-membered chelate rings [161,162]. The five equatorial donors and the iron center are almost coplanar with < 0.08 Å displacement of any atom from the FeN.O. least-squares plane. The ligand itself is almost flat, and adopts a pseudo-trans conformation with the uncoordinated pyridine ring pointing away from the iron center. The pyridine ring has a protonated nitrogen (N(5)), and this takes part in a hydrogen bonding interaction to nitrate oxygen O(12) (H(5N)-O(12) 2.04 Å; N(5)-H(5N)-O(12) 164\*), which also is weakly hydrogen bonded to another hydrogen bonded to nitrogen N(2) (H(22N)-O(12) 2.38 Å; N(2)-H(22N)-O(12) 175\*). This combination of hydrogen bonds effectively locks the pyridine in place creating the

trans-conformation (torsion angles N(4)-C(7)-C(8)-N(3) -2.9<sup>+</sup>. N(4)-C(7)-C(8)-C(12) [78<sup>+</sup>). Further hydrogen bonding contacts involving lattice nitrates and an axial water (O2)) efficiently dimetize the structure (Figure 4-3), and an additional hydrogen bonding contact via water O(3) links the dimers in a chain in the *a* direction (Figure 4-9 and Table 4-8).

The presence of uncoordinated airrogen donor sizes, and an aikon-oxygen provide the potential for additional coordination capacity, and this has been used to advantage in a most unusual reaction of 30 with copper percharate to produce a tetranuclear complex (see Chapter 5) with a roughly rottangular arrangement of three copper(II) centres and non inco(III) centre linked by aikcoide bridging (wide supro).

Table 4-7. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the iron coordination spheres and the ligand in [Fe(PHAAP)(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>1</sub>(NO<sub>2</sub>)] (NO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>1</sub> (30).

Fe(1)-O(2)	2.009(2)	Fe(1)-O(3)	2.013(2)
Fe(1)-O(1)	2.018(2)	Fe(1)-N(3)	2.052(2)
Fe(1)-O(5)	2.163(2)	Fe(1)-O(4)	2.228(2)
Fe(1)-N(1)	2.250(2)	C(6)-N(3)	1.306(3)
C(6)-N(2)	1.323(3)	C(7)-O(1)	1.293(3)

# contd.

C(7)-N(4)	1.303(3)	C(7)-C(8)	1.482(3)
N(2)-H(21N)	0.82(3)	N(2)-H(22N)	0.86(3)
N(3)-N(4))	1.395(3)	N(5)-H(5N)	0.82(3)
O(2)-Fe(1)-O(3)	172.97(9)	O(2)-Fe(1)-O(1)	91.17(8)
O(3)-Fe(1)-O(1)	93.69(8)	O(2)-Fe(1)-N(3)	95.44(8)
O(3)-Fe(1)-N(3)	90.71(9)	O(1)-Fe(1)-N(3)	75.04(7)
O(2)-Fe(1)-O(5)	88.44(8)	O(3)-Fe(1)-O(5)	84.53(8)
O(1)-Fe(1)-O(5)	133.65(7)	N(3)-Fe(1)-O(5)	151.09(7)
O(2)-Fe(1)-O(4)	88.93(8)	O(3)-Fe(1)-O(4)	87.40(8)
O(1)-Fe(1)-O(4)	75.34(7)	N(3)-Fe(1)-O(4)	150.13(7)
O(5)-Fe(1)-O(4)	58.30(6)	O(2)-Fe(1)-N(1)	88.86(8)
O(3)-Fe(1)-N(1)	89.80(8)	O(1)-Fe(1)-N(1)	147.13(7)
N(3)-Fe(1)-N(1)	72.24(7)	O(5)-Fe(1)-N(1)	79.22(7)
O(4)-Fe(1)-N(1)	137.51(7)		







[Fe(PHAAP)(H,0),(NO,)] (NO,), (30). Figure 4-8.

N(5)-O(12)	2.836(3)	H(5N)-O(12)	2.042(29)
N(2)-O(12)	3.242(3)	H(22N)-O(12)	2.380(29)
N(2)-O(8A)	2.953(3)	H(21N)-O(8A)	2.133(30)
O(2)-O(9)	2.630(3)	H(21W)-O(9)	1.816(33)
O(2)-O(11A)	2.671(3)	H(22W)-O(11A)	1.869(37)
O(3)-O(10B)	2.762(3)	H(32W)-O(10B)	2.015(37)
O(3)-O(9C)	2.686(3)	H(31W)-O(9C)	1.870(36)
N(5)-H(5N)-O(12)	163.64(2.75)	N(2)-H(22N)-O(12)	174.72(2.44)
N(2)-H(21N)-O(8A)	176.52(2.65)	O(2)-H(21W)-O(9)	171.72(3.12)
D(2)-H(22W)-O(11A)	178.02(3.33)	O(3)-H(32W)-O(10B)	164.02(3.58)
O(3)-H(31W)-O(9C)	170.96(3.16)		

Table 4-8. Hydrogen bonding distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) in [Fe(PHAAP)(H,O), (NO,))(NO,)2 (30).



# Figure 4-9. Chain structure of [Fe(PHAAP)(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>2</sub>(NO<sub>3</sub>)] (NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>2</sub> (30) in the a

direction.

#### 4.3.2 Synthesis

PARAP closely resembles PAA and PMK in terms of its coordinating ability, and the spiral disuctear complexes of PARAP are very similar in structure to the only previously reported example which contains the cation (Co(PMK)). It is reasonable to same that other related complexes of PAK and PAA have similar spiral structures. Previous reports on iron and cobalt complexes of PAA and PMK involve reactions of Fq(I) only, and in the case of Co(II) air was excluded in the syntheses, preventing any oxidation to Cq(III). In the present study all reactions were conducted in air, with the exception that PARAP reacted with Co(ClO)<sub>2</sub>, GR(2) under nitrogen, and in the case of iron both Fq(II) and Fq(III) aslits were used in the syntheses.

Reaction of iron(III) nitrate with both PAIAP and 72EHZ in squeous solution led to spontaneous reduction over several days with the formation of low yields of (Fe(L, T))<sup>Th</sup> (L = PAIAP, PZHPZ). This suggests that a reducing medium is formed through hydrohysis of the ligand. The discovery of the mononuclear Fe(III) complex 8, which contains the ligand PHAAP, indicates that in addition a small proportion of the ligand PAIAP itself undergoes a different hydrohytic process. Fe(II) complexes of PAA, e.g. [Fe<sub>1</sub>(PAA),]<sup>T</sup>, are unstable in aqueous solution, and have been shown to decompose rapidly with the formation of the species [Fe(PAIA),]<sup>T</sup> could only be stabilized as 1 2-pyridinaeldohyde. In fact the complex casion [Fe<sub>2</sub>(PAA),]<sup>T</sup> could only be stabilized as 1
solution decomposition of [Fe<sub>4</sub>(PAA)<sub>3</sub>]<sup>\*</sup> was obtained from magnetic measurements, which showed that the low spin dinuclear complex was transformed into a high spin Fe(II) solution species [77].

The spontaneous reduction of Fe(III)/PAHAP and Fe(III)/PZHPZ solutions can be understood in terms of a simple hydrolysis of the coordinated ligand e.g. PAHAP, to produce picolinamide hydrazone (starting material for the synthesis of PAHAP), which would have significant reducing ability. Preliminary coordination of Fe(III) to a diazine nitrogen would enhance such attack by water by making the adjacent carbon more electrophilic. The low yields of 26 and 27 suggest that some ligand is sacrificed to reduce Fe(III) to Fe(II) and produce the dinuclear Fe(II) complex of the remaining PAHAP and PZHPZ. The explanation for the formation of the mononuclear Fe(III) complex 30 and dinuclear Fe(III) 31 can be made as follows (Figure 4-10): In the preliminary complex [Fe(III)(PAHAP),]3, Fe(III) acts as a Lewis acid to catalyze the hydrolysis process. The bond breaking could happen either by route A-B. or A-C. In the presence of nitrate, the A-B route leads to the formation of 30, while the A-C route generates an intermediate Fe(III) picolinamide hydrazone complex, which will be reduced to an Fe(II) species quickly, due to the strong reducing property of picolinamide hydrazone. These Fe(II) species then react with free PAHAP to produce 26. If the Fe(III) perchlorate salt is used. a reasonably stable dinuclear Fe(III) complex (31) is obtained which has much lower solubility in aqueous solution, and so it precipitates before any significant hydrolysis and reduction can occur.



Figure 4-10. Schematic representation of the reaction of PAHAP with

Fe(NO<sub>3</sub>), 9H<sub>2</sub>O in water.

The formation of the CAUIII, complex 28 under similar conditions in rather low yield indicates the instability of CAUII) PAEAP systems to exidation (cobalt(1)) derivatives of PAA and PAK we prepared node as simony another than the test similar to evidence for ligand hydrolysis. It seems reasonable to assume in this case that the coldation step, common is cobalt(1); chemistry, occurs through the pior formation of a 12 or 22 (jigand-metal) intermediate complex lawing waxant coordination sizes for interaction with 0, with the asbegueter formation of the same barying output the pior formation of a 12 or 22.

To test this, the Co(II) spiral disusdanc complex I2 was prepared by the reaction of PAHAP with Co(CO<sub>2</sub>),64(2) on sequences solution under a simogen atmosphere. This complex is stable both in the solid status (abccided with room temperature magnetic moment and UV/wis) and is aqueous solution (UV/wis) indicating that the spiral diructerer Co(II) complex cannot be easily exident by air. In other words, the formation of the disuster Co(III) complex may occur only from the initial reaction of the ligand and metal all. The formation of a Co(III) disusdance complex also implies that the ligand PAIAP has less reaching highly that And or PMA.

#### 4.3.3 Spectroscopy electrochemistry and magnetism

Infrared and UV/vis spectral, and room temperature magnetic moment data of complexes 23-32 are quoted in Table 4-9.

The infrared spectra of all the compounds show high energy absorptions (> 3200 cm<sup>-1</sup>) associated with lattice and coordinated water, and the NH, groups, v, perchlorate

compound	IR (cm <sup>-1</sup> )	UV/vis (nm)	μ <sub>κτ</sub> (BM)
[Mn2(PAHAP)2](CIO2)45H2O (23)	3600(H2O), 3360,3280,3180(NH2),1657(C=N), 1078(CIO2), 1014(Py)		6.0
[Fe <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>3</sub> ](ClO <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> .4H <sub>2</sub> O (24)	3580(H <sub>2</sub> O), 3340,3202(NH <sub>2</sub> ), 1657(C=N), 1164(ClO <sub>2</sub> )	641(solid) 532(s, 5200), 374(s, 3600)*	0.93
[Ni <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>3</sub> ](ClO <sub>4</sub> ) <sub>4</sub> 5H <sub>2</sub> O (25)	3550(H,O), 3370,3300,3210(NH <sub>2</sub> ), 1659(C=N), 1087(CIO <sub>4</sub> <sup>-</sup> ), 1021(Py)	820, 890(sh), 546 (solid) 823(s, 222.8), 890(sh), 545(s, 172.4)*	3.07
[Fe;(PAHAP),](NO,),3H2O (26)	3550(sh, H <sub>2</sub> O), 3362,3331,3193(NH <sub>2</sub> ), 1656(C=N), 1753(NO <sub>3</sub> '), 1027(Py)	570(solid) 532(s, 5000), 550(sh), 380(s, 3560), 420(sh)*	0.71
[Fe <sub>2</sub> (PZHPZ) <sub>1</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> 5H <sub>2</sub> O (27)	3500(sh. H <sub>2</sub> O), 3375,3317,3178(NH <sub>2</sub> ), 1659(C=N), 1764(NO <sub>4</sub> ), 1040(Pyr)	635(solid) 411, 581*	0.69
[Co <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>3</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> 3H <sub>2</sub> O (28)	3600(sh, H2O), 3375,3250,3180(NH2), 1667(C=N), 1032(Py)	550(solid and aqueous solution	0.71
[Ni <sub>2</sub> (PAHAP) <sub>3</sub> ][Ni(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>6</sub> ](NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>6</sub> . 4.5H,O (29)	3530(sh, H2O), 3367,3175(NH2), 1649(C=N), 1764(NO, ), 1020(Py)	814, 890(sh), 550 (solid) 815(s,106),545(s, 69)*	3.10
[Fe(PHAAP)(H <sub>2</sub> O) <sub>2</sub> (NO <sub>3</sub> )] (NO <sub>3</sub> ) <sub>2</sub> (30)	3480(H <sub>2</sub> O), 3380,3250,3180(NH <sub>2</sub> ), 1664(C=O), 1794,1774,1763,1703(NO <sub>2</sub> ), 1035,1009(Py)	630(solid) 634(s, 900)*	6.0
[Fe,(PAHAP),](CIO,), 4.5H,O (31) 1089(CIO,), 1013(Py)	3558(H <sub>2</sub> O), 3355,3178(NH <sub>2</sub> ), 1658(C=N), b	645, 540(sh)	4.70
[Co2(PAHAP)](ClO2), 5.5H2O (32)	3583(H2O), 3336,3200,3120(NH2), 1658(C=N) 1092(CIO <sub>4</sub> ), 1018(Py)	962 (solid) 960 (e, 25.93 )*	4.35

Table 4-9. Infrared and UV/vis spectral and room temperature magnetic moment data of complexes 23-32.

Note: \*, measured in aqueous solution,  $\epsilon_{s}$  dm<sup>3</sup>.mol<sup>4</sup>.cm<sup>4</sup>, <sup>b</sup>, essentially the same as those for 26.

absorption associated with CIQ<sup>4</sup> are found at 1078 cm<sup>4</sup> in 23, 1164 cm<sup>4</sup> in 24, 1089 cm<sup>4</sup> in 31, 1990 cm<sup>4</sup> in 25, 1088 cm<sup>4</sup> in 32, and  $\gamma + \nu_1$  mirrate combination bands associated with the mirrate are found at 1733 cm<sup>2</sup> (26), 1765 cm<sup>4</sup> (27), and 1764 cm<sup>4</sup> (28), while for 30 three prominent bands are found at 1794, 1774 and 1703 cm<sup>4</sup> associated with bidensate and look circles (12).

Solid state electronics speers for the inos(1); complexes are dominated by internet low energy charge transfir absorptions in the range 569-650 nm (570 nm (Ab), 555 nm (Ab), 641 nm (27). This inos(21) to only each byte weekength absorptions than 24 and 24 (645, 540 (Ab) nm). In equeous solution 24 and 24 (645, 540 (Ab) nm). In equeous solution 24 and 24 (645, 540 (Ab) nm), In equeous solution 24 and 24 (645, 540 (Ab) nm), In equeous solution 24 and 24 (645, 540 (Ab) nm). In equeous solution 24 and 24 (645, 540 (Ab) nm), In equeous solution 24 and 24 (645, 540 (Ab) nm), In equeous solution 24 nm (Ab), 740 nm (Ab), 741 mm (Ab), 741 mm

Complex 31 dissolves in water to give a brown solution, which gradually becomes purple on standing over a period of several days. Initial broad bands at  $\approx$  550 nm and 360 m in aqueous solution change in relative intensity with the 550 nm band increasing and the 360 nm band decreasing to be replaced exactly by the characteristic band susceinted with the iron(11) complex. The suggested mechanism (Figure 4-10) for reduction involves ligned hydrophys intermable to for nonconseler Fe/CIII intendicates, but the intense charge transfer bands of both the Fe(III) and Fe(III) disuclear complexes precludes the observation of such species which are likely to be wasker absorbers in this spectral region, 28 has a broad absolder absorption in the solid tatas u = 550 nm, associated with a pin allowed transition in low pin Cs(III) ( $\Lambda_{u} = \sqrt{T}_{u}$ , which appears essentially unchanged in aqueous solutios. Complex 2 shows two solits and e different



Figure 4-11. UV-visible spectrum of  $1.74^{\circ}10^{\circ}$  molL<sup>11</sup> solution of 29 in H<sub>2</sub>O envelopes centred at 852 nm, and 550 (sh) nm (or  $11.8^{\circ}10^{\circ}$  cm<sup>-1</sup> and  $18.4^{\circ}10^{\circ}$  cm<sup>-1</sup>). Using an octahedral model these absorptions can be associated with the  $v_1 (TA_m \rightarrow T_m)$  and  $v_2$ 

 $(^{A}_{m}-^{-T}\chi)_{\mu}$  transitions respectively. The splitting of v, may be associated with a lowering of the octahedral symmetry, or a spin forbidden transition. These hand positions compare does with those for [MG(sphy)]: [163]. The supposes splittine spectrum in essentially identical, with quite high excitacion coefficients 000 nm (e = 75 dm<sup>2</sup> mol<sup>-1</sup> cm<sup>2</sup>), 815 m (e = 106 dm<sup>2</sup> mol<sup>-1</sup> cm<sup>2</sup>), 545 nm (e = 69 dm<sup>2</sup> mol<sup>-1</sup> cm<sup>2</sup>), indicating that the weakly absorbing [NG(2),Q)<sup>2</sup> cation would not appear significantly in the spectrum. A strong charge transfer band is also found at 305 nm (e = 24\*10<sup>-7</sup> dm<sup>2</sup> mol<sup>-1</sup> cm<sup>2</sup>), which covers

$$v_3 B = 18.4^{*}10^{3} (cm^{-1}) = 3/2\Delta_0 + 15/2B - 1/2[(15B)^{2} - 18\Delta_0B + \Delta_0^{-2}]^{1/2}$$
.....[4-2]

$$v_1 B = 3/2\Delta_0 + 15/2B + 1/2[(15B)^2 - 18\Delta_0 B + \Delta_0^2]^{1/2}$$
[4-3]

The calculations based on the eqs. 4-1 to 4-3 also give B as 800 cm<sup>4</sup> for complex 28, which implies that PAHAP produces a very strong ligand field for Ni(II). 35 has an identical spectrum, both in the solid state and in solution, except that the aqueous solution absorption intentiating are higher, as world be excepted.

Complex 30 has a strong absorption at G30 min in the hold state, and a dark green colored aqueous solution of the complex has an intense single band at 634 em (& = 990 dm<sup>3</sup> mol<sup>3</sup> cm<sup>3</sup>), which is clearly charge transfer in nature. This complex shows no tendency to reduce, unlike its parental counterpart.

The fact that 31 is reduced slowly in aqueous solution to a more stable disuclear Fe(II) species, with no tendency for spontaneous re-oxidation prompted us to examine the redox properties of complex 26 (Figure 4-13). Cyclic voltammetry for an aqueous solution of 26 (Pt counter electrole, glassy carbon working electrole, SCE reference electrole, 0.1 M NaNO<sub>3</sub>, 10<sup>+</sup> M complex) reveals two well separated waves (E<sub>10</sub>(r) 1.6 (V ( $L_{\rm p}=70$  av (25 mVs<sup>2</sup>)); E<sub>10</sub> (2) = 0.3 V ( $L_{\rm p}=70$  mV (25 mVs<sup>2</sup>)), which show very little charge as a function of scan rate. The redox processes are associated with two one-electron oxidation steps, with the formation of Fe(II)-Fe(III) and Fe(III)-Fe(III) species by what are essentially reversible processes. This clearly indicates the stability of the spiral dinuclear cation in aqueous solution in two oxidation states, during the lifetime of the experiment. Current heights for the anodic and cathodic components of these waves are equal.

The low spin Cc(III) complex 28 was examined electrochemically under the same conditions as for 36, and exhibits two sets of waves sound 0 V associated with Cc(III) and Cc(III) species (Figure 4-13). A weak quasi-reversible wave (some variation of  $\Delta E_{\mu}$  with scan rate) at  $E_{\mu s} = 0.1 V (\Delta E_{\mu} = 100 mV at 25 mVe^{2})$  is associated with the formation of a Co(III)-Cc(III) species, while a similar wave at  $E_{\mu cl} = -0.050 V (\Delta E_{\mu} = 100 mV)$ corresponds to the formation of the fully reduced Cc(III)-Cc(III) species. Current heightsfor the anodic and cathodic components of the second wave are equal. It is reasonable toassume that the integrity of the dinuclear cation is maintained during the redox process.Electrochemical investigations of the fully negaces(I) and dinickel(III) species wereunsuccessful, and at the high potentials necessary to see electrochemical activity ligandoddistion was beginning to occur:



Figure 4-12. Cyclic voltammograms for complex 26 (GC/H,O/Pt/NaNO,



Figure 4-13. Cyclic voltammograms for complex 28 (GC/H,O/Pt/NaNO<sub>3</sub>).

Room temperature magnetic moments were determined for all compounds. A high value ( $u_{eq} = 6.0$  BM) consistent with the presence of high spin magnetes(II) centers was found for 23. The ion(II) complexes are all low spin ( $u_{eq} = 0.71$  BM (4.60, 0.93 BM (24), 0.69 BM (27), while the ion(CII) complexes 31 has a high value ( $u_{eq} = 4.70$  BM (21), value is smaller than the spin ouly value for five unpaired electrons and may indicate the presence of antiferromagnetic coupling or a spin transition phenomenon. However, what is more likely in that, since the Fe(III)/PAILAP system is inherently smallel (wide infyer), the complex is somether unturble, even in the undistance, and contain small ancound coll spins Fi(II) complexe, either as a Fe(II)-Fe(II) species or possibly a Fe(II)-Fe(III) species. The low value for 28 ( $u_{eq} = 0.71$  BM (b) is consistent with low spin cohalt(II). The micht(II) complexe, arb 50 M((50),  $u_{eq} = 0.71$  BM (b) is consistent with low spin cohalt(II). The micht(II) complexe have magnetic moments close to the expected values for uncoupled N(II) essent ( $u_{eq} = 0.50$  M(50),  $u_{eq} = 0.50$  M(50).

Variable temperature magnetic multide were sarried out on powderdd amples of 23 (13-300K) and 29 (4-300K). The  $\chi_{a}$ <sup>-+</sup> profile for 23 shows an unusual temperature dependence (Figure 4-16) with  $\chi_{a}$ <sup>-+</sup> initig from 4.66 sem much' K at 205 K to a maximum at 40 K of 5.1 emu mol' K and then falling rapidly to 4.25 emu mol' K at 13 K. This behavior it typical of a forromagnetically coupled system, but the drop in  $\chi_{a}$ <sup>-+</sup> at low temperature magnets the presence of an amflerromagnetic component in the total spin exchange. The data wave fitted to an interpret exchange for work 5-425 and



line was obtained from eqn. 4-4, with g = 2.029(6), 2J = 2.08(8) cm<sup>-1</sup>, N $\alpha = 18^{\bullet}10^{-4}$  erru,  $\rho = 0.0116$ ,  $\theta = 0.016$ ,  $\theta = 0.000$ ,  $\theta$ Figure 4-14. Variable temperature magnetic susceptibility data for [Mn<sub>2</sub>(PAHAP),](ClO<sub>2</sub>), 5H<sub>2</sub>O (23). The best fit solid

-9.6 K,  $10^{2}\text{R} = 0.95 (\text{R} = [\Sigma(\chi_{ab}, \chi_{ab})^{2}) / \Sigma \chi_{ab}]^{12}$ ).

states [7] derived from the exchange Hamiltonian:

$$H = -2JS_{1}S_{2}$$

$$Z_{B} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{Ng2\beta z}{k(T-\theta)} + \frac{A}{B} \end{bmatrix} *_{\{1-\phi\}} + \frac{\rho^{-1}.294^{*}g^{2}}{T} + Nez$$
[4-4]

$$A = x^{31} + 5x^{24} + 14x^{31} + 30x^{31} + 55; B = x^{33} + 3x^{31} + 5x^{24} + 7x^{31} + 9x^{10} + 11;$$
  
$$x = -J/kT$$

 $\chi_{\rm a}$  is the magnetic susceptibility per metal center and other terms have their usual meaning ( $\mu$  = faction of monomclase impurity). The best data fit (Figure 4-14) was obtained for g -2025(6), 21 = 2.08(8) cm<sup>2</sup>, Na = 18\*10<sup>4</sup> mma,  $\mu$  = 0.0116,  $\theta$  = -9.6K,  $10^{70}$  = 0.55 (K [ $2(\chi_{\rm ar},\chi_{\rm ar})/T$   $\chi_{\rm ar})^{17}$ ). Variable temperature magnetic data for 25 indicate no significant magnetic interaction between the nickel(II) centers. The  $\chi_{\rm ar}$ T values are temperature invariant (1.2 mm.mo<sup>2</sup>)K) from 296-10 K, with a very slight increase at lower temperature. No fitting of these data was atterneted.

From a structural perspective any intramolecular pain interaction between the metal centers would be dependent on magnetic orbital overlap via the bridging N, disatise lithings. This is deared by inconsequential for the low spin systeming as octahedral model). In a provious moly (**Chapter 1** and 2) the twies angle around the bridging N-N group was found to be a critical flator in schange propagation between the coppet(II) magnetic orbitals and formomentic coundres was aboved at twist angles around 70 which was directly related to effective orthogonality between the mixagen P orbitals involved. The average trvit angle between the manganese chelate rings (MenN<sub>int</sub>-C-CN<sub>in</sub>) for the saverage truit angle between the manganese chelate rings (MenN<sub>int</sub>-C-CN<sub>in</sub>) between the discoper(II) case, and clearly reasonable in terms of the weak ferromagnetism observed for 33. The significant negative 0 value indicates a weak intermolecular autiferromagnetism interaction. The only way that such an interaction could take place is vir the NHz groups of the ligand, which we poiled appropriately with respect to the Moritaki via a tak igand portion (N=C-NHz). Significant hydrogen bonding contacts are found linking N(7) and N(8) in mighboring molecules to water molecules (201) and N(7) and N(9) to percluderate organs O(6) and O(7). The contextion N(7)-O(7)-C(12)-O(6)-N(9) provides a rather long, the presenting value in an interaction.

Although no structural data are available for 25 k is reasonable to assume that the disuclear center dimensions are similar to those of the same cation in 29. In this complex the dihedral angles between the Ni-N<sub>mum</sub>-C-C-N<sub>m</sub> mean planes are 70.1°, clearly indicating an exchange situation do to the point of orthogonality for the nitrogen porbitals in the NN bridge. The apparent lack of coupling in 25 is entirely consistent with this structural extrapolation.

<sup>1</sup>H NMR studies on 26 and 28 were carried out either in d<sub>c</sub>-DMSO or in D<sub>4</sub>O with the same results. The room temperature <sup>1</sup>H NMR spectrum of the free ligand PAHAP in d<sub>c</sub>-DMSO is illustrated in Figure 4-15, and those of the complexes 26 and 28 in D<sub>4</sub>O are





Figure 4-16. Room temperature <sup>1</sup>H NMR spectrum of complex 26 (up)

and 28 (down) in D<sub>2</sub>O.

depicted in Figure 4-16. The signal due to the free amino NR groups does not show up because of H-D exchange between NR and D,O, while the pyridyt multiplets in both complexes can be clearly observed. It should be noted that there are three possible factors which could affect the chemical shifts of the arotes in the pwridyt mass:

First of all, the coordination of the ligands to the metal ions can reduce the electron density in the pyridyl rings, which would lead to a shift of the pyridyl multiplets downfield. in other words, having larger chemical shifts compared with those of the free ligand. This is called the electronic effect. Secondly, due to the twisted structures in the complexes about the diazine N-N units, the delocalization in the free ligand will be broken after the formation of the complexes, which could increase the electron density in the pyridyl rings, hence reduce the chemical shifts of the protons in the pyridyl rings. However, the C=N and N-N distances of the complexes are very similar to those of the free ligand, which implies that this factor is less important. The last one, which probably is the most important one, is the so-called shielding effect. Because of the particular spiral-like arrangement of the three ligands in such dinuclear complexes, the three pyridyl rings bound at each metal center are so close to one another that the protons in one pyridyl ring could be located in the π-cloud of another pyridyl ring, thus producing lower chemical shifts (Figure 4-17, which was generated by ORTEP3 by using X-ray data of 26, exactly shows such a situation). This factor is sensitively depended on how close the three pyridyl rings are in other words, it is largely depended on the M-N\_ bond distances. The shorter the M-N\_ bond distances, the larger the shielding effect. However, shorter M-N, bond distances also means stronger coordination, thereby leading to a larger electronic effect which results in larger chemical shifts.



Figure 4-17. Shielding effect in the spiral-like complex 26 with labeling of the current circle.

M-N<sub>W</sub> boad distances in both of these diamagnetic (low spin) disuclear complexes are quite short (e.g. Cx(1)-N(2) 1.942(4) Å in **25**, and Fe(1)-N(1) 1.958(4) Å, Fe(2)-N(4) 1.996(4) Å in 260, which magnets that both the electronic effect and shielding effect are significant. The observation that the psychial multiplets in the spectra of both complexes are observed at lower demined with those in the spectra of both complexes are indicates that the shielding effect is the dominant one in both complexes. However, the electronic effect is also a major factor which clearly explains that the set of pyridyl multiplets of 23 appears in a higher chemical shift position than that of 26 (Co-N<sub>w</sub> load distances in 32 are significantly shorter than those of Fe-N<sub>w</sub> in 26).

The shielding effect will disappear if the pyridyl rings are not close enough in a complex molecule, but the electronic effect will still exist. Examples will be given in Chapter 5.

#### 4.4 Conclusion

Although one structural report on the daive spiral dinuclar complexes of his class of tetradentate diazine ligand (e.g. PMK) appeared in 1974, the structural details of this class of components has remained comeshant of a mynetry since the original discovery by Banch in 1958. Five complexes in this class are spected in this chapter, all showing the same spiral anscurare with three catted ligands wrapped around the disuclear metallic core and three durines PA; groups acting as bridges between the magnetic encoder and aickel centers. The Fe(II) and Co(III) complexes are low spin, while the Fe(III) derivative imply the presence of weak forromagnetic coupling, associated with the twisted nature of the PARAP ligands. The abidding effect has been found to be a dominant factor influencing the chemical abilits related to the pyridyl mutplets in the 'H NMR of boh 26 and 28.

# Chapter 5 Coordination Chemistry and Magnetochemistry of Open-chain Diazine Ligands in Other Coordination Modes

#### 5.1 Introduction

Chapter 2 and 3 presented a series of **Type AB** as well as quark-Type **B** copper(**II**) disuclear complexes which show very interesting magnetic properties. Chapter 4 described as inseits of spin-like disminuted complexes of MRAD, Fe(**II**), Fe(**II**), Fe(**II**), Fe(**II**), with **Type AB** coordination mode for the ligands, together with an usual series coordinate Fe(**III**) complex is which the deprotonated ligand PHAAP adopts a new coordinator mode. In this chapter, to more thoroughly investigate the coordination chamistry of open-chain diarine ligands and the magnetic properties of their complexes, and to search for new approaches to guernet homo-polynuclear meal complexes, (165-167), a suries of mononculear and polynuclear homo-o younglexes of the first row transition meal ion have been prepared with one symmetric ligand (PAIAP), no passdocymmetric ligand (PHAIAP) and the symmetric ligand (PAIAP), no passdocymmetric ligand (PHAIAP) and the symmetric ligand (PAIAP). The X-ray structures and magnetic properties of some complexes, together with their spectral properties are presented.

Scheme 5-1



#### 5.2 Experimental

#### 5.2.1 Materials

Commercially available solvents and chemicals were used without further purification.

#### 5.2.2 Measurements

Analysis, spectroscopic and physical measurements (see Chapter 1)

#### 5.2.3 Synthesis of the ligands

PAHAP and PHAAP were prepared by procedures described in Chapter 2.

PTS was prepared by the reaction of picolinamide hydrazone with salicylaldehyde in absolute ethanol according to a published procedure [100, 101].

#### PAHOX

### 5.2.4 Synthesis of the complexes

#### [Cu,(PAHOX-H),](ClO\_), H,O (33)

PAHOX (0.22, 1.00 mmO) was supervised in a solution of Cu(CO), dH, 0.074 g. 2.0 mmO) is detonited water (40 mL) and the mixture heated to about 60°C for a flow minutes. A clear solution formed which was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for a few days. Dark, almost black crystala, unitable for structural analysis, formed, which were filtered off and dried in air (yield, 0.35 g). Acal. Calod. for [Cu<sub>4</sub>(Cu<sub>4</sub>H<sub>2</sub>NO<sub>4</sub>))(ClO<sub>4</sub>), H<sub>2</sub>O (28); C, 30.78; H, 3.36; N, 17.95. Feand: C, 30.68; H, 3.25; N, 1789. The analysical anaples contain a water molecule that was not revealed in the X-ray structure.

#### [Cu(PAHOX)(SO4)],.2H,O (34)

Complex 34 was prepared in a similar manner using CuSO<sub>4</sub>5H<sub>2</sub>O and obtained as dark green crystals. Anal. Caled. for [Cu(C<sub>10</sub>H<sub>10</sub>N<sub>1</sub>O)(SO<sub>4</sub>)]<sub>2</sub>:2H<sub>2</sub>O (34); C, 30.26; H, 3.81; N, 17.65. Found: C, 30.39; H, 3.86; N, 17.80.

#### [Co(PAHOX),](NO,),2H,O (35)

PAHOX (0.22g, 1.0 mmol) was suspended in a solution of Co(NO<sub>3</sub>), 61LO (0.58 g, 2.0 mmol) in deionized water (20 mL) and the mixture heated to about 60°C for a few minutes. A clear solution formed which was filtered and allowed to stand at room temperature for a few days. Orange-red crystals, stable for structural analysis formed which were filtered off and dried in air (yield, 0.15 g). The composition of the complex was confirmed by X-ray crystallography.

[VO,(PAHAP-H)] (36)

A hot solution of PAHAP (0.24 g. 1.0 mmol) in dichloromethane (10 mL) was added to a hot solution VO(scace), (0.27 g. 1.0 mmol) in methanol (20 mL), then 0.17g NHJNO, (2.0 mmol) was added to the solution. The resulting solution was allowed to stand at room temperature overnight. Red crystals formed, which were suitable for X-ray structure determination (yield 0.26 g. 81%). Anal. Calcd. for VO(C-LH, NJ): C 4.473; H. J. 44, N. 26 08. Found: C. 45.1; H. 3.49; N. 362, 22.

[Cd2(PAHAP)2(NO1)2(H2O)2](NO1)26H2O (37)

PAHAP (0.24 g, 1.0 mmol) was added to an aqueous solution (30 mL) of Cd(NO<sub>3</sub>), 6H<sub>2</sub>O (0.69 g, 2.0 mmol), and the mixture was stirred for several minutes at room temperature until the ligand dissolved. The colordess solution was filtered, and the filtrate was allowed to stand at room temperature for several days. Very slight yellow (almost colordess) orystia, suitable for an X-ray structural determination, formed, these were filtered off, washed quickly with water and air-deted (yield 90%). The composition of the comole was comfitted by the constituents when the several data of the composition of the comole was constituented by the several databases.

[Cu,(PHAAP-H),](ClO,), 4H,O (38), [Ni,(PHAAP-H),(H,O),](NO,), 2.5H,O (39)

PHAAP (0.24 g, 1.0 mmo) was added to a bet gaugeous methanol (10203) obtaion (40 mL) of 1.0 mmot meal and (0.0(20)), 6H,0 or N(NO)), 6H,0) and the minuter stirred at room temperature for several minutes, until the ligand distolved. The clear solution was filtered and the filtrate allowed to stand at room temperature oversight. Wall formed crystals (black-green for 38 and onarge-red for 39) were produced in each case, which were filtered off, washed quickly with cold water, and deited in air (sidda 80-85%). And. Calcd. for (Cat,Cat,B,A,OL)(CO),, 4H,O (39), C, 34-21; H, 287; N, 16-52. Found: C, 34-25; H, 2-69; N, 16-68. The composition of 39 was confirmed by X-ray correlationarity.

#### [Cu, Fe(PHAAP-H), (H,O),](ClO,), (40)

To a hot solution of the complex [Fe/FEAAP/(H\_O), NO.3) (NO.3, c 80) (0.32 g. 1.0 mmol) in stehand (20 mL), 1 mmol tristlytamic was added A few minutes iter, a hot solution of Cu(ClO<sub>2</sub>, 6H<sub>2</sub>O (1.0 mmol in 10 mL methanol) was added to the solution. The resulting solution was filtered and the filterse was allowed to stand at room temperature overgide. Black coyntais formed, which were sunsheds for X-ray structures determination (yield 0.46 g). Anal. Calod. for [Cu<sub>2</sub>Fe(C<sub>12</sub>H<sub>40</sub>N<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>4</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>3</sub>](ClO<sub>4</sub>)<sub>5</sub> (40): C, 33.18; H, 2.55; N, 16.13. Found: C, 33.44; H, 2.66; N, 16.13.

[Cu(II),Cu(I),(PAH),Br,,] (41)

PTS (0.24 g, 1.0 mmol) was disadved in accroativitie (10 mL) and added to a hot solution of CuBr, (0.45 g, 2.0 mmol) in methanol (20 mL). The resulting dark torown solution was filtered and the fittrate allowed to stand at room temperature overlight. Dark brown crystals formed, which were filtered off, washed with methanol and dried in air right (0.10 µL). The composition of the complex was confirmed by X-ray crystallography.

#### 5.2.5 Crystallographic data collection and refinement of the structures

[Cu.(PAHOX-H),](ClO\_), H,O (33)

Cynatio of [Cu[/PAHXOX491,](CO)\_HC) G33 are dark green, almost black in appearance. A single cynal of 33 of dimensions 0.40 × 0.12 × 0.10 mm was attached to a quarter flow and transformed to a Siemes Start three-crited diffusionmeter with graphitemonochromatized Mo-Ko: X-radiation and a CCD area detector was used for data collection [108], a-man were used in such a way that an initial 180° scan reage consisting of 0.3° intervals was followed by three farther 84°, 180° and 268° respectively. This intracty samples the physics of roligons up to 2 and 50° collection with 20 and 50° collections with 20 angles up to 50.04°. Raw frame data were integrated using the SADNT [109] program. The structure was solved by direct methods [110]. An empirical absorption correction was applied to the data using the program SADADS[110]. Altowinder optimal data were limited table 5.4.

#### [Co(PAHOX),](NO,), 2H,O (35), [Ni,(PHAAP-H),(H,O),](CIO,), 2.5H,O (39)

Crystal data collection and structure refinement for these crystals were carried out in a similar manner to that for 33. Abbreviated crystal data for all of these complexes are given in Table 5-1.

#### [Cu(PAHOX)(SO, )], 2H,O (34)

The crystals of  $(Lor(PAHDX)_{2}SO_{2})_{2},242,0 (49) are green yellow in appearance.$ The diffraction intensities of an approximately 0.20 × 0.30 × 0.40 mm crystal werecollected with graphice-menochromatism Mode-XX -restalston using a Rigatu AFC65 $diffractometer at 26:1° and the a-39 scan technique to a 20 ____ value of 50.1°. A total$  $of 2917 reflections was measured and 1986 were considered significant with <math>L_{2} > 2.0 \text{ cr}$ ( $L_{2}$ ). The intensities of three prepresentaive reflections, which were measured after every 150 reflections, remained constant through the data collection, indicating crystal and electronic stability (on decay corrections was applied). Azimuthal actus of several reflections indicated so need for an absorption correction. The data were corrected for Lorentz and polarization effects. The cell parameters were obtained from the least-squares reflections of the senting angles of 20 carefully centered reflections with 20 in the range 19.31–0.31°.

The structure was solved by direct nethods [102, 103]. All atoms except hydrogene wave refined anisotopically. Hydrogen atoms were optimized by positional refinement, with instrupic thermal parameters set 20% greater than those of their bodder tarters at the time of their indusion. Envoyment, they were fixed for the final road of referement. The final cycle of fill-matrix lass-square reflements was based on 1986 observed reflections (l > 2.00c()) and 209 variable parameters and converged with unweighted and weighted agreement factors of  $R = \Sigma ||F_1| - ||Fe||/2|F| = 0.035 and R_= (Z_{\rm eff})/2^{-1} = 0.035$ . The maximum and minimum pasks on the final difference Fourier may correspond to 0.39 and -0.45 electrons Å<sup>2</sup> respectively. Neutral atom scattering factors [104] and anomalous-dispersion terms [105, 106], were taken from the usual sources. All calculations were performed with the TEXSAN [107] crystallographic software package using a VAX3100 work station. Abbreviated crystal data are given in Table 5-1.

[VO,(PAHAP-H)] (36), [C4,(PAHAP),(NO,),(H,O),](NO,),:6H,O (37), [Cu,Fe(PHAAP-H),(H,O),](ClO\_), (40), [Cu(II),Cu(I),(PAH),Br<sub>10</sub>] (41).

The data collections and structure solutions for these crystals were carried out in a manner similar to that for  $[Cu(PAHOX)(SO_1)]_2 H_2 O(34)$ . Abbreviated crystal data for those crystals are also given in Table 5-1.

Note in Table 5-1:

# = Rigaku data; \* = Siemens Smart data

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{R} &= \Sigma ||F_0| - |F_{\varepsilon}||/\Sigma |F_0|, \ \mathbf{R}_{\varepsilon} = [(\Sigma(|F_0| - |F_{\varepsilon}|)^2 / \Sigma w F_0^2)]^{1/2} \\ \\ \mathbf{R} &= \Sigma ||F_0| - |F_{\varepsilon}||/\Sigma |F_0|, \ \mathbf{w} \mathbf{R}_2 = [\Sigma(w(|F_0|^2 - |F_{\varepsilon}|^2)^2 / \Sigma (w(|F_0|^2)^2)]^{1/2} \end{split}$$

Compound	33*	34#	35*
chemical formula	C20 H24 Cl2Cu2N10 O10	C <sub>10</sub> H <sub>15</sub> CuN <sub>5</sub> O <sub>6</sub> S	C20 H32 Co N13 O13
formula wt.	762.47	396.86	721.52
space group	C2/c	P2,/n(#14)	PI
a (Å)	33.5849(6)	9.866(2)	9.6852(3)
b(Å)	7.6016(1)	10.128(2)	10.4377(4)
c(Å)	22.6654(3)	15.418(1)	14.3896(5)
α(deg)	90	90	78.313(1)
β(deg)	106.949(1)	108.051(8)	84.565(1)
γ(deg)	90	90	83.748(1)
V (Å')	5535.1(1)	1464.7(3)	1412.08(9)
ρ <sub>olod</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.830	1.800	1.697
z	8	4	2
μ(mm <sup>-1</sup> )	1.804	1.668	0.699
λ	0.71073	0.71069	0.71073
Т, К	150(2)	299(1)	298 (2)
R1(R)	0.0465	0.035(R)	0.0730
wR2(R_)	0.0991	0.033(R_)	0.2180

## Table 5-1. Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 33-37, 39-41.

Compound	36#	37#	39*
chemical formula	$C_{t2}H_{t1}N_{s}O_{2}V$	C24 He N16 O19 Cd2	C. H. N. 1235Ni O 245
formula wt.	322.21	1081.50	1585.98
space group	Ce	C2/c(#15)	PI
a (Å)	8.973(9)	23.870(3)	12.0509(6)
b(Å)	11.2792(18)	13.418(8)	12.7498(6)
c(Å)	13.2184(9)	14.721(5)	23.1208(11)
α (deg)	90	90	93.1050(10)
β(deg)	96.170(7)	119.90(1)	100.1500(10)
y(deg)	90	90	108.5050(10)
V (Å')	1330.1(14)	4087(2)	3292.9(3)
ρ <sub>minf</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.609	1.757	1.600
z	4	4	2
μ(mm <sup>-1</sup> )	0.6385	1.136	1.222
λ	1.54178	0.71069	0.71073
т, к	293(2)	299(1)	193(2)
R1(R)	0.0383	0.034(R)	0.0659
wR2(R_)	0.0991	0.040(R_)	0.1992

Table 5-1. (contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 33-37, 39-41.

Compound	40#	41#	
chemical formula	C., H <sub>22</sub> O <sub>30</sub> N <sub>20</sub> Cu, FeCl,	C <sub>12</sub> H <sub>16</sub> Br <sub>3</sub> Cu <sub>3</sub> N	
formula wt.	1812.80	862.47	
space group	PI(#2)	PI(#2)	
a (Å)	14.639(2)	9.253(3)	
b(Å)	17.707(2)	18.159(3)	
c(Å)	14.448(2)	7.199(4)	
α (deg)	103.65(1)	91.31(3)	
β(deg)	108.674(9)	107.35(4)	
y(deg)	86.17	104.22(2)	
V (Å')	3447.4(9)	1113(2)	
ρ <sub>otes</sub> (gcm <sup>-3</sup> )	1.746	2.573	
z	2	2	
μ(mm <sup>-1</sup> )	5.371	11.76	
λ	1.54178	0.71069	
т, к	299(1)	299(1)	
R1(R)	0.089(R)	0.037(R)	
wR2(R_)	0.072(R_)	0.032(R_)	

Table 5-1. (contd.) Summary of crystallographic data for complexes 33- 37, 39-41.

#### 5.3 Results and discussion

#### 5.3.1 Structures

#### [Cu,(PAHOX-H),](ClO\_), (33)

The structure of 33 is illustrated in Figure 5-1, and bond distances and houst angles relevant to the corport coordination spheress are listed in Table 5-2. The disturbar attractural arrangement in 33 molving ND holdings is the result of a compromise in the coordinating abilities of two very different portions of the stame ligands. The welldocumented ability of this class of N<sub>c</sub> disturbaring ligand to bind two metals does not preval, and the resulting mode of coordination is dominated by the onine group. A similar coordination mode cours in the complex (CardidactA)<sub>2</sub><sup>2</sup>. OldenAS, = 4.4-disa2-3.6dimethyl-3.5-octadiene-2.7-dioxim) [84]. However, with a similar N, ligand (prylitatine-3.4-distrability distribution) involving two terminal onine groups bound to a prylitation, the distructuring [87].

The copper corres are quie distorted, with four short is-place contacts to the nitragen and expgm atoms. The Gu-O contacts are very short (< 1.52 Å), consistent with proton loss from the figured OH group. Longer said contacts thewen the copper enters and one perchlorate creats an infinite chain structure along the b axis ( $O_{4}(1)$ -O(6) 24480) Å,  $O_{4}(2)$ -O(6) 2.733(3) Å,  $O_{4}(1)$ -O(6)Å) 3.124(2) Å, suggenting that each comes eroshably short the considered as a thoras distorted exame-merolid structure.

Cu(1)-O(2)	1.916(2)	Cu(1)-N(3)	1.934(3)	
Cu(1)-N(5)	1.937(3)	Cu(1)-N(1)	2.024(3)	
Cu(2)-O(1)	1.891(2)	Cu(2)-N(10)	1.930(3)	
Cu(2)-N(8)	1.934(2)	Cu(2)-N(6)	2.018(3)	
Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.491(1)	N(5)-O(1)	1.344(3)	
N(10)-O(2)	1.331(3)	N(3)-N(4)	1.386(3)	
N(8)-N(9)	1.386(4)			
O(2)-Cu(1)-N(3)	156.71(10)	O(2)-Cu(1)-N(5)	102.81(10)	
N(3)-Cu(1)-N(5)	90.59(11)	O(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	87.64(10)	
N(3)-Cu(1)-N(1)	80,76(10)	N(5)-Cu(1)-N(1)	168.98(11)	
O(1)-Cu(2)-N(10)	103.12(10)	O(1)-Cu(2)-N(8)	149.93(11)	
N(10)-Cu(2)-N(8)	90.96(11)	O(1)-Cu(2)-N(6)	88.96(10)	
N(10)-Cu(2)-N(6)	166.65(11)	N(8)-Cu(2)-N(6)	80.97(11)	

Table 5-2. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres in [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHOX-H)<sub>2</sub>)(ClO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub>:H<sub>2</sub>O (33).

(Figure 5-1). The Cu(1-)O(5A) contact, despite being long, clearly is responsible for the chain ordering. The result of the axial perchlorate coordination is to fold the molecule and create a loast conformation is the six-membered Cu<sub>2</sub>N<sub>2</sub>O<sub>1</sub> (mg, with an angle of [297] between the CuNO planes. As a result the cooper-cooper seguration (2A)(1)(1) Å lift short for a system of this sort. An additional contact involving a hydrogen bond between amino hydrogen H(71N) and percliorate oxygen Q(4B) (H(71N)-Q(4B) 2.20(4) Å, N(7)-Q(4B) 2.558(4) Å, N(7)-H(71N)-Q(4B) 158(4<sup>-</sup>) lists the chains in pairs with a double struct arrangement (Figure 5-3).



Figure 5-1. Structural representation of [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHOX-H)<sub>2</sub>](ClO<sub>2</sub> (33) with hvdrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids).



in 33 associate Figure 5-2. Chain structure



Figure 5-3. Double stranded chain structure in 33.

#### [Cu(PAHOX)(SO4)], 2H,O (34)

The molecular structure of 34 is illustrated in Figure 5.4 and bond distances and bond angles relevant to the copper coordination spheres are listed in Table 5-3. The bonding mode of the ligand PAHOX is similar to that in 33 (Type C), creating five- and six-membered chelate rings, but the oxygen of the N-OH group is not bonded to an adjacent conner. This equivalent basal position in 34 is occupied by an oxygen of a u.-SO. which bridges the two square-pyramidal copper centers with another oxygen occupying the axial site in the adjacent copper. The basal copper-nitrogen and copper-oxygen distances are short (< 2.01 Å), with a somewhat longer axial contact to a sulfate oxygen (Cu(1)-O(5) 2.199(3) Å). The ligand bonding arrangement resembles that in [Cu(PMK)(NO,),], which is a mononuclear complex with an axial and equatorial monodentate nitrate. The conner atom in 34 is displaced from the mean basal ligand plane towards the sulfate oxygen by 0.338 Å. The two sulfate bridges form an unusual chair-like eight-membered chelate ring bridging the two copper atoms in an orthogonal manner with a Cu-Cu distance of 4.992(1) Å. This is a most unusual sulfate bridging arrangement, and while u.-SO, groups can bridge two metal centers in a chelating intramolecular fashion [168, 169], and in bidentate chain bridging arrangement [170, 171], the current intermolecular bridging mode appears to be only the second example of this kind of coordination mode for sulfate [172]. A comparable non-sulfate structural analogue involves two u.-PO, bridges linking, two square-pyramidal conner(II) centers with the
formation of an eight-membered chelate ring [173]. However in this case each phosphate bridges the two copper(II) centers wa equatorial coordination sites.

Table 5-3. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres in [Cu(PAHOX)(SO<sub>4</sub>)], 2H,O (34).

Cu(1)-O(2)	1.972(3)	S(1)-O(2)	1.491(3)	
Cu(1)-O(5)	2.199(3)	S(1)-O(5)	1.464(3)	
Cu(1)-N(1)	1.995(3)	N(2)-N(3)	1.376(4)	
Cu(1)-N(2)	1.934(3)	N(2)-C(6)	1.319(5)	
Cu(1)-N(4)	2.009(3)	N(3)-C(7)	1.284(1)	
Cu(1)- Cu(1)a	4.992(1)			
O(2)-Cu(1)-O(5)	100.0(1)	O(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	89.9(1)	
O(2)-Cu(1)-N(2)	150.9(1)	O(2)-Cu(1)-N(4)	96.4(1)	
O(5)-Cu(1)-N(1)	101.9(1)	O(5)-Cu(1)-N(2)	109.0(1)	
O(5)-Cu(2)-N(4)	87.3(1)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(2)	81.5(1)	
N(1)-Cu(1)-N(4)	167.8(1)	N(2)-Cu(1)-N(4)	88.0(1)	
O(2)-S(1)-O(5)	109.6(2)	Cu(1)-O(2)-S(1)	135.1(2)	
Cu(1)-O(5)-S(1)	135.9(2)			



Figure 5-4. Structural representation of [Cu<sub>2</sub>(PAHOX)<sub>2</sub>(SO<sub>2</sub>)<sub>2</sub>] (34) with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids).

[Co(PAHOX),](NO,), 2H,O (35)

\_

The tructure of the monosusclear cation in 35 is illustrated in Figure 5-5, and relevant bodi distances and angines are listed in Table 5-4. The complex molecule contains two identical PAHOX ligands. The Co(III) center has a slightly distorted octaberland coordination environment with each ligand acting as an N, thirdentate down in a Type C manner, and with six comparable bonds in the range 1.890(4): 1576(5) Å. The angles between two neighboring bonds fall in the range 18.4(2)-94.7(2)<sup>o</sup> and the axial angles are almost the same (172.1(2):127.2(2)<sup>o</sup>). The online coxygens (O(1) and O(1)<sup>o</sup>) are not deprotonated and do not coordinate to the Co(III) center, and provide potential additional coordination expactive form polyneuclare complexes [174.176].

Table 5-4. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the cobalt coordination spheres in [Co(PAHOX),](NO,), 2H,O (35).

Co-N(2)	1.890(4)	Co-N(2')	1.893(4)	
Co-N(5')	1.923(5)	Co-N(5)	1.931(5)	
Co-N(1')	1.961(5)	Co-N(1)	1.976(5)	
N(2)-N(4)	1.390(6)	N(2')-N(4')	1.371(6)	
N(2)-Co-N(2')	172.7(2)	N(2)-Co-N(5')	94.7(2)	
N(2')-Co-N(5')	90.5(2)	N(2)-Co-N(5)	90.7(2)	
N(2')-Co-N(5)	94.6(2)	N(5')-Co-N(5)	87.0(2)	
N(2)-Co-N(1')	92.7(2)	N(2')-Co-N(1')	82.2(2)	

contd.

N(5')-Co-N(1')	172.4(2)	N(5)-Co-N(1')	91.4(2)	
N(2)-Co-N(1)	81.8(2)	N(2')-Co-N(1)	93.1(2)	
N(5')-Co-N(1)	90.8(2)	N(5)-Co-N(1)	172.1(2)	
N(1')-Co-N(1)	91.7(2)			



Figure 5-5. Structural representation of [Co(PAHOX),](NO,),2H,O (35) with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids).

[VO,(PAHAP-H)] (36)

The structure of 36 is depicted in Figure 5-4, and relevant bood distances and angles are listed in Table 5-6. The ligade PARAP biods the VO<sub>1</sub><sup>\*</sup> cation in at tribentate fashion with V(1) coordinated to pyridin<sup>\*</sup> (9(1)), datative (NC2), and amino (N44)) integrams. The composite instanti indicating that the ligand has become deprotostated at N(4), which shows the presence of just one proton. The effect of this arrangement is to lock the ligand into an almost planar configuration because of the coordination of N(4), which index to C=N boards which are somewhat longer (C(7)-N(3) 1306(10) A, C(6)-N(2) 1299(3),Å) and an N-N board (94(2)-N(3) 139(9) Å) which is insembard shorter than those in the ligand. The board distances of V(1) to N(1), N(2) and N(4) are fairly long and similar (V(1)-N(4) 1993(3) Å, V(1)-N(1) 2119(7) Å, V(1)-N(2) 2.066(6) Å), while the board distances of V(1) to O(1) and O(2) are quite short, but normal for VO<sub>0</sub><sup>\*</sup> species [177-179] (V(1)-Q(1) 1.531(6) Å, V(1)-O(2) 1.635(5) Å), indicating V=O double board charter.

 $VQ_n^*$  is one of the flour well-defined calos species (V(II), V(III), VO\* and VO<sub>n</sub><sup>\*</sup>) (140). Even though the other V(V) species on how variable coordination geometries such as trigonal hipyramidal, square pramidal, octahedral, pentagonal hipyramidal etc., VO<sub>n</sub><sup>\*</sup> usually is six-coordinated with a ci-arrangement because this allows better  $Opr \rightarrow Mdr$ bonding than a linear reassenset would allow 1/801.

_					
	V(1)-O(1)	1.631(6)	V(1)-O(2)	1.635(5)	
	V(1)-N(4)	1.993(8)	V(1)-N(2)	2.066(6)	
	V(1)-N(1)	2.119(7)	N(2)-C(6)	1.299(9)	
	N(2)-N(5)	1.396(9)	N(3)-C(6)	1.312(9)	
	N(4)-C(7)	1.321(10)	N(5)-C(7)	1.306(10)	
	O(1)-V(1)-O(2)	110.3(3)	O(1)-V(1)-N(4)	102.3(4)	
	O(2)-V(1)-N(4)	104.3(3)	O(1)-V(1)-N(2)	128.5(3)	
	O(2)-V(1)-N(2)	120.6(3)	N(4)-V(1)-N(2)	72.8(3)	
	O(1)-V(1)-N(1)	96.4(3)	O(2)-V(1)-N(1)	95.6(3)	
	N(4)-V(1)-N(1)	145.8(2)	N(2)-C(6)-N(3)	124.6(7)	
	N(2)-C(6)-C(5)	112.9(6)	N(3)-C(6)-C(5)	122.4(7)	
	N(5)-C(7)-N(4)	122.1(7)	N(5)-C(7)-C(8)	117.4(7)	
	N(4)-C(7)-C(8)	120.4(7)			

Table 5-5. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the vanadium coordination spheres in [VO,[PAHAP-H]] (36).



ogen atoms omitted (50% probi Structural representation of [VO<sub>3</sub>(PAHAP-H)] (36) with hydr Figure 5-6.

thermal ellipsoids).

263

[Cd,(PAHAP),(NO,),(H,O),](NO,), 6H,O (37)

The structure of 37 is depicted in Figure 5-7, and relevant book length and book angle information is given in Table 5-6. The disudeer C4(01) cation consists of two identical octahedral cadmiun(11) centers, bridged by two ligands vice their N-N diazine units in a spiral-like arrangement, with pyridine rings, H<sub>2</sub>O molecules and sitrates coordinating to the remaining coordination positions to form is boot conformation through C4(1)-N(3-N(2)-C4(1)-N(3)-N(4). The expanded view of the coordination cores is illustrated in Fugure 5-8. The C4-donor distances are very similar, falling in the range 2313(2)-240(2) Å. The C4-donor distances are very similar, falling in the range 2313(2)-240(2) Å. The C4-donor distances are very similar, falling in the range C4(1)-N(3-N(3)-N(3)-N(4)) are visited by 70.38\*.

Within each ligand for the NH<sub>2</sub>-C-N framework, the C-N bond distances are somewhat shorter (e.g. C(7)-N(4) 1.28(2)), A((5)-N(7) 1.28(2)), A) and the N-N bond distances (N(7)-N(4) 1.44(2)) A) somewhat longer than those of the firse ligand, also indicative of twisting of the ligands in the complex.

Cd(1)-O(1)	2.359(2)	Cd(1)-O(2)	2.403(2)
Cd(1)-N(1)	2.313(2)	Cd(1)-N(3)	2.363(2)
Cd(1)-N(4)	2.369(2)	Cd(1)-N(6)	2.314(2)
Cd(1)-Cd(1)a	4.783(2)	N(3)-N(4)	1.440(3)
N(3)-C(6)	1.265(3)	N(4)-C(7)	1.289(3)
C(7)-N(5)	1.331(4)	C(6)-N(2)	1.331(3)
O(1)-Cd(1)-O(2)	82.98(7)	O(1)-Cd(1)-N(1)	92.30(7)
O(1)-Cd(1)-N(3)	146.78(7)	O(1)-Cd(1)-N(4)	83.65(7)
O(1)-Cd(1)-N(6)	88.40(6)	O(2)-Cd(1)-N(1)	82.85(8)
O(2)-Cd(1)-N(3)	120.23(7)	O(2)-Cd(1)-N(4)	157.23(6)
O(2)-Cd(1)-N(6)	90.37(8)	N(1)-Cd(1)-N(3)	69.69(6)
N(1)-Cd(1)-N(4)	116.06(8)	N(1)-Cd(1)-N(6)	173.03(9)
N(3)-Cd(1)-N(4)	80.09(7)	N(3)-Cd(1)-N(6)	112.88(6)
N(4)-Cd(1)-N(6)	70.91(8)		

Table 5-6. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the cadmium coordination spheres in [Cd.(PAHAP),(NO,),(H,O),](NO,),;6H,O (37).



CO HY Structural Figure 5-7.

ttoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids)



Figure 5-8. Expanded view of the coordination cores in 37.

## [Ni,(PHAAP-H),(H.O),](NO,), 2.5H,O (39)

All the N(II) centers have distorted octahedral coordination environments. Both N(2) and N(4) centers have N,O, denor sets from two pyridine nitrogens, one diazine nitrogen, two alkoreo oxygens and one water. The coordination polyhedron for Ni(1) is formed by two pyridine nitrogens and new sater. The coordination polyhedron for Ni(1) is forming an N<sub>i</sub>O<sub>4</sub> chromophore. The Ni(1) coordination sphere (NiN<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub>) is comprised of two pyridine nitrogens, two alkoreo oversets and two water oversets. Each deprotonated ligand is approximately planar (the deviations from the least squares gluene formed by the flowr coordination donors for each of them are in the range -0.00214 to +0.10216 Å), and bond distances are in accordance with the structural data of the relevant protops the distance N-1000 distances are very similar in each different

Table 5-7. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the nickel coordination spheres in [Ni,(PHAAP-H),(PH,O),J(NO),2.5H,O (39).

Ni(1)-N(3A)	1.972(5)	Ni(3)-N(1C)	2.053(5)
Ni(1)-N(2D)	1.979(5)	Ni(3)-N(4B)	2.059(6)
Ni(1)-N(1D)	2.132(5)	Ni(3)-O(1C)	2.061(4)
Ni(1)-N(4A)	2.156(5)	Ni(3)-O(1E)	2.072(6)
Ni(1)-O(1A)	2.176(4)	Ni(3)-O(1B)	2.096(4)
Ni(1)-O(1D)	2.177(4)	Ni(3)-O(1G)	2.097(6)
Ni(2)-N(2B)	1.966(5)	Ni(4)-N(3C)	1.966(5)
Ni(2)-N(1A)	2.044(5)	Ni(4)-N(4D)	2.053(5)
Ni(2)-O(1A)	2.075(4)	Ni(4)-O(1D)	2.091(4)
Ni(2)-O(1H)	2.080(6)	Ni(4)-O(4E)	2.107(5)
Ni(2)-N(1B)	2.115(6)	Ni(4)-N(4C)	2.107(5)
contd.			

Ni(2)-O(1B)	2.165(4)	Ni(4)-O(1C)	2.158(4)
O(1A)-C(6A)	1.299(7)	N(2A)-N(3A)	1.385(7)
O(1B)-C(7B)	1.288(7)	N(2B)-N(3B)	1.392(8)
O(1C)-C(6C)	1.308(7)	N(2C)-N(3C)	1.387(7)
O(1D)-C(7D)	1.305(7)	N(2D)-N(3D)	1.397(7)
Ni(1)-Ni(2)	3.969(2)	Ni(2)-Ni(3)	3.954(2)
Ni(3)-Ni(4)	3.966(2)	Ni(1)-Ni(4)	3.977(2)
N(3A)-Ni(1)-N(2D)	170.2(2)	N(3A)-Ni(1)-N(1D)	98.0(2)
N(2D)-Ni(1)-N(1D)	77.3(2)	N(3A)-Ni(1)-N(4A)	76.5(2)
N(2D)-Ni(1)-N(4A)	94.8(2)	N(1D)-Ni(1)-N(4A)	90.8(2)
N(3A)-Ni(1)-O(1A)	75.3(2)	N(2D)-Ni(1)-O(1A)	113.6(2)
N(1D)-Ni(1)-O(1A)	97.3(2)	N(4A)-Ni(1)-O(1A)	151.5(2)
N(3A)-Ni(1)-O(1D)	110.1(2)	N(2D)-Ni(1)-O(1D)	75.1(2)
N(1D)-Ni(1)-O(1D)	151.9(2)	N(4A)-Ni(1)-O(1D)	96.0(2)
O(1A)-Ni(1)-O(1D)	89.6(2)	N(2B)-Ni(2)-N(1A)	171.9(2)
N(2B)-Ni(2)-O(1A)	93.2(2)	N(1A)-Ni(2)-O(1A)	80.5(2)
N(2B)-Ni(2)-O(1H)	93.0(3)	N(1A)-Ni(2)-O(1H)	93.5(3)
O(1A)-Ni(2)-O(1H)	173.6(2)	N(2B)-Ni(2)-N(1B)	77.7(2)
N(1A)-Ni(2)-N(1B)	97.1(2)	O(1A)-Ni(2)-N(1B)	90.0(2)
O(1H)-Ni(2)-N(1B)	92.9(3)	N(2B)-Ni(2)-O(1B)	76.0(2)
contd.			

N(1A)-Ni(2)-O(1B)	109.1(2)	O(1A)-Ni(2)-O(1B)	92.7(2)
O(1H)-Ni(2)-O(1B)	87.3(2)	N(1B)-Ni(2)-O(1B)	153.8(2)
N(1C)-Ni(3)-N(4B)	177.7(2)	N(1C)-Ni(3)-O(1C)	81.3(2)
N(4B)-Ni(3)-O(1C)	96.9(2)	N(1C)-Ni(3)-O(1E)	90.0(2)
N(4B)-Ni(3)-O(1E)	91.4(2)	O(1C)-Ni(3)-O(1E)	92.3(3)
N(1C)-Ni(3)-O(1B)	99.6(2)	N(4B)-Ni(3)-O(1B)	79.0(2)
O(1C)-Ni(3)-O(1B)	91.7(2)	O(1E)-Ni(3)-O(1B)	170.0(2)
N(1C)-Ni(3)-O(1G)	94.1(2)	N(4B)-Ni(3)-O(1G)	87.8(2)
O(1C)-Ni(3)-O(1G)	175.2(2)	O(1E)-Ni(3)-O(1G)	86.3(3)
O(1B)-Ni(3)-O(1G)	90.4(2)	N(3C)-Ni(4)-N(4D)	174.2(2)
N(3C)-Ni(4)-O(1D)	97.5(2)	N(4D)-Ni(4)-O(1D)	79.7(2)
N(3C)-Ni(4)-O(4E)	91.2(2)	N(4D)-Ni(4)-O(4E)	91.5(2)
O(1D)-Ni(4)-O(4E)	171.1(2)	N(3C)-Ni(4)-N(4C)	78.4(2)
N(4D)-Ni(4)-N(4C)	96.4(2)	O(1D)-Ni(4)-N(4C)	89.4(2)
O(4E)-Ni(4)-N(4C)	90.3(2)	N(3C)-Ni(4)-O(1C)	76.1(2)
N(4D)-Ni(4)-O(1C)	109.1(2)	O(1D)-Ni(4)-O(1C)	94.7(2)
O(4E)-Ni(4)-O(1C)	89.4(2)	N(4C)-Ni(4)-O(1C)	154.5(2)
Ni(2)-O(1A)-Ni(1)	138.0(2)	Ni(3)-O(1B)-Ni(2)	136.2(2)
Ni(3)-O(1C)-Ni(4)	140.1(2)	Ni(4)-O(1D)-Ni(1)	137.5(2)



Figure 5-9. Structural representation of Ni<sub>4</sub>(PHAAP-H)<sub>4</sub>(H<sub>2</sub>O)<sub>4</sub>(NO)<sub>4</sub>, 2.5H<sub>2</sub>O (39) with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids).

ligand, falling in the range 1.335(7)-1.397(7) Å), and slightly aborter than those in the spiral-like distances N(II) complex (39) with the comparable ligand PARAP; the C-N double bond distances in the NE<sub>4</sub>C–N thanework are somewhat longer (1.392(2) -1.305(2)Å) has those in the signad PARAP and its polymacitar complexes, and the C-N and C-O bond distances in the O-C-N fizamework are comparable to those in [Ca<sub>4</sub>(OPA))(NO<sub>4</sub>), 8E<sub>4</sub>(O [9] and the other relevant complexes [182, 183], indicating the  $\eta^2$  hybridization for N(2A-D) in the NCO (amile) fingments and the electron delocalization over N(2A-D) and O(1A-D).



Figure 5-10. Expanded view of the coordination cores in 39.

## [Cu, Fe(PHAAP-H), (H2O)2](ClO), (40)

The numeric of this most unusual FeCu, heterotextranuclear complex cation is depicted in Figure 5-11, and relevant hond length and hond angle information is given in Table 5-4. The expanded view of the coordination spheres of the metal ions in 40 along with the atom hielding scheme is itilitareted iterahedron (Fe(1)-Cu(1) 3.944(2) Å Cu(1)-Cu(2) 3.960(2) Å Cu(2)-Cu(3) 3.959(2) Å Cu(2)-Fe(1) 3.872(2) Å), and the deviations from the least squares plane (Fe(1), Cu(1), Cu(2), Cu(3)) we quite small (<3.313(2), 0.306(2), -3.072(2), 0.312(2) Å respectively) suggesting that a trapezium is the mon appropriate travecontaniel description.

All flow deprotonated PHAAP ligands adopt the same coordination mode as in the tetranuclear nickel (1) complex (39), with comparable relevant bond argies and bond distances, and bridge the four metal ion ( $\mathcal{P}(1)$ , Cu(1), Cu(2), Cu(2), Cu(2), Cu(2), groups (Cu(1), O(2), O(2), O(4)) that project above and below the trapezium plane (the deviations for O(1), O(2), O(2), O(4)) O(4) from O(1)O(2)O(2)O(4) locat squares plane are -0.719(2), O(75(4)), -0.796(2) and 0.812(2) Å respectively. The bridger angles O(-O(coc)Mor Mor M) are very close, filming the trapeziator 14.12 (27).

The coordination sphere around F(t) is highly distorted octahedinal (0(1)-F(1)-N(11) 169.7(1)\*, 0(6)-Fe(1)-N(16) 150.2(1)\*, 0(1))-Fe(1)-N(18) 171.4(2)\*), consisting of two pyridine nitrogenes (Fe(1)-N(16) 2.1516) Å, Fe(1)-N(11) 2.140(4) Å), two diation informes (Fe(1)-N(12) 2.037(4) Å, Fe(1)-N(16) 2.2023(4) Å) and two alixoo oxygene  $(Pe(1)-Q(2) \mid 296(2)$  Å, Pe(1)-Q(4) 2.005(4) Å). Cu(1) is in a steragenally diameted eschaledron formed by two pyridine nitrogens (Cu(1)-N(1) 2.093(4) Å. Cu(1)-N(20) 1.970(4) Å), one diazine nitrogens (Cu(1)-N(1) 1.933(4) Å) and one alkono oxygen (Cu(1)-Cu(1) 2.23(4)) Å) in the equatorial plane. Two additional oxygen atoms from alkono (Oc(4)) and water (O(5)) coordinate axially (Cu(1)-O(4) 2.244(4) Å. Cu(1)-O(5) 2.370(5) Å). The geometries around Cu(2) and Cu(2) parters are very similar, each with a nignificantly distorted square pyramit. The basal plane for Cu(2) is made up of N(5), O(6), N(10) and O(1) atoms with contacts in the range 1.567(4)-2.04(2) Å, while the one for Cu(2) involves N(15), N(6), N(8) and O(2) atoms with oxempathic distances (1.4594(4)-2.027(6) Å), O(2) and O(3) coordinate axially to Cu(2) and Cu(2) respectively (Cu(2)-QU(2) 2.14(4) Å. Cu(2)-O(1) 2.245(3) Å). Therefore, the structure clearly indicates that the O(2), O(3) and O(4) atoms bridge the F(1), Cu(1), Cu(2) cortex orthogonally, with O(1) the triffect Cu(1) and Cu(2) in the questionial janes.

Even though a number of Fe(III)Cu(II) mixed polynuclear complexes have been reported [184-187], this Fe(III)Cu(II), tetranuclear cluster is unique.

Cu(1)-O(1)	2.201(3)	Cu(2)-O(1)	1.990(3)
Cu(1)-O(4)	2.248(4)	Cu(2)-O(2)	2.219(4)
Cu(1)-O(5)	2.370(5)	Cu(2)-O(6)	2.034(3)
Cu(1)-N(1)	2.093(4)	Cu(2)-N(5)	1.967(4)
Cu(1)-N(3)	1.903(4)	Cu(2)-N(10)	1.975(5)

Table 5-8. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper and iron coordination spheres in [Cu, Fe(PHAAP-H), (H,O),](ClO\_), (40).

contd.

Cu(1)-N(20)	1.970(4)	Fe(1)-O(3)	1.996(3)
Cu(3)-O(2)	2.005(4)	Fe(1)-O(4)	2.009(4)
Cu(3)-O(3)	2.236(3)	Fe(1)-N(11)	2.140(4)
Cu(3)-N(6)	2.027(6)	Fe(1)-N(13)	2.037(4)
Cu(3)-N(8)	1.898(4)	Fe(1)-N(16)	2.151(5)
Cu(3)-N(15)	1.989(4)	Fe(1)-N(18)	2.022(4)
O(1)-C(7)	1.322(6)	N(3)-N(4)	1.369(6)
O(2)-C(19)	1.296(6)	N(8)-N(9)	1.381(8)
O(3)-C(31)	1.309(6)	N(13)-N(14)	1.385(6)
O(4)-C(43)	1.318(6)	N(18)-N(19)	1.397(7)
Fe(1)-Cu(1)	3.944(2)	Cu(1)-Cu(2)	3.960(2)
Cu(2)-Cu(3)	3.950(2)	Cu(3)-Fe(1)	3.892(2)
O(1)-Cu(1)-O(4)	88.4(1)	O(1)-Cu(2)-O(2)	96.2(1)
O(2)-Cu(3)-N(6)	159.7(2)	O(1)-Cu(1)-O(5)	82.7(1)
O(1)-Cu(2)-O(6)	175.5(1)	O(2)-Cu(3)-N(8)	79.1(2)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	155.3(1)	O(1)-Cu(2)-N(5)	83.7(1)
O(2)-Cu(3)-N(15)	99.4(2)	O(1)-Cu(1)-N(3)	75.4(1)
O(1)-Cu(2)-N(10)	93.5(2)	O(3)-Cu(3)-N(6)	92.2(2)
O(1)-Cu(1)-N(20)	109.6(1)	O(2)-Cu(2)-O(6)	86.8(1)
O(3)-Cu(3)-N(8)	106.7(1)	O(4)-Cu(1)-O(5)	166.0(1)

contd.

O(2)-Cu(2)-N(5)	111.4(2)	O(3)-Cu(3)-N(15)	77.3(1)
O(4)-Cu(1)-N(1)	96.7(2)	O(2)-Cu(2)-N(10)	79.1(2)
N(6)-Cu(3)-N(8)	80.7(2)	O(4)-Cu(1)-N(3)	98.1(2)
O(6)-Cu(2)-N(5)	92.2(2)	N(6)-Cu(3)-N(15)	100.7(2)
O(4)-Cu(1)-N(20)	78.2(2)	O(6)-Cu(2)-N(10)	90.3(2)
N(8)-Cu(3)-N(15)	175.8(2)	O(5)-Cu(1)-N(1)	95.9(2)
N(5)-Cu(2)-N(10)	169.4(2)	O(2)-Cu(3)-O(3)	95.3(1)
O(5)-Cu(1)-N(3)	90.0(2)	O(5)-Cu(1)-N(20)	94.6(2)
Cu(1)-O(1)-Cu(2)	141.7(2)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(3)	80.0(2)
Cu(2)-O(2)-Cu(3)	138.5(2)	N(1)-Cu(1)-N(20)	95.0(2)
Cu(3)-O(3)-Fe(1)	133.6(2)	N(3)-Cu(1)-N(20)	173.5(2)
Cu(1)-O(4)-Fe(1)	135.7(1)	O(3)-Fe(1)-O(4)	94.9(1)
O(3)-Fe(1)-N(11)	149.7(1)	O(3)-Fe(1)-N(13)	74.3(1)
O(3)-Fe(1)-N(16)	92.0(2)	O(3)-Fe(1)-N(18)	109.3(1)
O(4)-Fe(1)-N(11)	93.6(2)	O(4)-Fe(1)-N(13)	112.6(2)
O(4)-Fe(1)-N(16)	150.2(1)	O(4)-Fe(1)-N(18)	75.3(2)
N(11)-Fe(1)-N(13)	75.6(2)	N(11)-Fe(1)-N(16)	94.9(2)
N(11)-Fe(1)-N(18)	101.0(2)	N(13)-Fe(1)-N(16)	97.2(2)
N(13)-Fe(1)-N(18)	171.4(2)	N(16)-Fe(1)-N(18)	75.1(2)



Figure 5-11. Structural representation of [Cu, Fe(PHAAP-H), (H<sub>2</sub>O),](ClO<sub>2</sub>), (40) with hydrogen atoms omitted (30% probability thermal ellipsoids).



Figure 5-12. Expanded view of the coordination cores in 40.

[Cu(II),Cu(I),(PAH),Br,] (41)

The structure of 41 is illustrated in Figure 5-13, and relevant bond distances and angles are listed in Table 5-9. This poculiar six-centered mixed valence [188-202] copper complex formed through a partially reducing process of Cu(II) by the hydrolyzed product PAH of PTS (Scheme 5-2) and can be described as the combination of four copper (II) Scheme 5-2.



centers bridged by a disuders copper(1) axin [Cu(2),Bu<sup>2</sup>)<sup>1</sup> we Br(1), Br(4), Br(1) and Br(4)a, All copper (11) centers have a square planare coordination environment. Each of them has normal lood influences and angles  $e_{\rm f}$  for (u(1) or (u(2), the Cu-N<sub>c</sub> distances fill in the range 1.969(7)-2.047(6) Å and Cu-Br distances in the range 2.366(2)-2.477(1) Å. The neighboring angles around each copper(11) center fall in the range 7.98(7)-93.2(3)<sup>3</sup> and the angles at the copper(10) centers in also looper plane i 33.64.66 for Cu(1) and 30.73<sup>5</sup> for stages at the copper(10) centers in a sch cooper plane i 33.64.66 for Cu(1) and 30.73<sup>5</sup>. Cu(2). In the dimutcher copper(f) axion [Cu(f),Br,T], 'two identical Cu(f) centers are bridged by Br(5) and such has a slightly distorted tetrahedral geometry (Cu(2)-Br(5)-Cu(2))-Br(5)a) and such has a slightly distorted tetrahedral coordination geometry (Cu(2)-Br(5)-Cu(2)-Br bond distances in the range 2 460(2)-257(2) Å kad angles in the range 97.88(6)-117.60(7)<sup>1</sup>. There are no significant interactions between Cu(1) and Br(1), and between Cu(2) and Br(1) (Cu(1)-Br(1) (4.797(3)Å), Cu(2)-Br(1) (4.277(3)Å). The copper-copper separations are 3.08(2), 3.269(2), 4.164(2) and 3.671(2) Å for Cu(2)-Cu(1), Cu(2)-Cu(1), Cu(2)-Cu(2) and Cu(1)-Cu(2) respectively.

Within the neutral PAH ligands, the structural data show the existence of a N=C-Hi-NH, framework for PAH (C(6)-N(2) 1.27(1) Å, C(12)-N(6) 1.27(1) Å, C(6)-N(3) 1.30(1) Å, C(12)-N(7) 1.30(9) Å), not the proposed resonance structure HN=C-NH-NH2 + HR=C-NH-NH; for the free ligand [100, 101]. This is due to the coordination of the ligand to Cu(II) centers wire N(2) or N(6) which fixes the double bond characters in the N-C-NH memory.

It is interesting to note that even though the free [203-207] or bridging [13, 208, 209]  $[Cu(I)Cl_3]^{a}$  and  $[Cu(I)Br_3]^{a}$  species are known, the bridging arrangement in  $[Cu(I)_2Br_3]^{a}$  is unique.

-						
Cu(1)-Br(2)		2.366(2)	Cu(2)-Br(4	)	2.442(	2)
Cu(1)-N(1)		2.047(6)	Cu(2)-Br(3	)	2.388(	1)
Cu(1)-N(2)		1.969(7)	Cu(2)-N(5)		2.044(	6)
Cu(1)-Br(1)		2.477(1)	Cu(2)-N(6)		1.972(	6)
Cu(1)-Br(3)		4.797(3)	Cu(2)-Br(1	)	4.327(	3)
Cu(3)-Br(5)		2.467(2)	N(3)-N(4)		1.429(	9)
Cu(3)-Br(5)		2.460(2)	N(7)-N(8)		1.424(	9)
Cu(3)-Br(1)		2.572(2)	C(6)-N(2)		1.27(1	)
Cu(3)-Br(4)		2.503(2)	C(12)-N(6)		1.27(1	)
Cu(1)-Cu(2)		3.671(3)	C(6)-N(3)		1.30(1	)
Cu(1)-Cu(3)		3.269(2)	C(12)-N(7)		1.309(9	<b>?)</b>
Cu(2)-Cu(3)		4.163(2)	Cu(3)-Cu(3)		3.081(2	2)
Cu(1)-Br(1)-Cu(3)	111.10(5)	Cu(2)-Br(4)-Cu(3	82.76(6)	Cu(3)-Br(5	)-Cu(3)	77.42(5)
Br(1)-Cu(1)-Br(2)	93.28(5)	Br(1)-Cu(1)-N(1)	170.3(2)	Br(1)-Cu(	I)-N(2)	91.3(2)
Br(2)-Cu(1)-N(1)	94.3(2)	Br(2)-Cu(1)-N(2)	163.6(2)	N(1)-Cu(1	i)-N(2)	79.8(3)
Br(3)-Cu(2)-Br(4)	93.25(5)	Br(3)-Cu(2)-N(5)	95.2(2)	Br(3)-Cu(3	2)-N(6)	163.9(2)
Br(4)-Cu(2)-N(5)	171.3(2)	Br(4)-Cu(2)-N(6)	91.8(2)	N(5)-Cu(2	2)-N(6)	80.5(3)
Br(1)-Cu(3)-Br(4)	97.88(6)	Br(1)-Cu(3)-Br(5	109.15(6)	Br(1)-Cu(3	)-Br(5)	115.80(6)
Br(4)-Cu(3)-Br(5)	17.60(7)	Br(4)-Cu(3)-Br(5	114.41(6)	Br(5)-Cu(3	3)-Br(5)	102.58(5)

Table 5-9. Interatomic distances (Å) and angles (Deg.) relevant to the copper coordination spheres in [Cu(II],Cu(I),(PAH),Br,,] (41).

282



Figure 5-13. Structural representation of [Cu(II)<sub>4</sub>Cu(I)<sub>2</sub>(PAH)<sub>4</sub>Br<sub>13</sub>] (41) with hydrogen atoms omitted (50% probability thermal ellipsoids).

## 5.3.2 Spectroscopy

Several  $v_{ij}$  bands are observed in the infrared spectrum of 33 (3387, 1237), 2335 cm<sup>2</sup>), continuing the existence of a fire NH<sub>4</sub> group, and there is no higher energy band due to  $v_{ijk}$  In the v(-C) terriching region three dominant precidences thands are observed at a 109, 1059 and 1011 cm<sup>2</sup>, bit expansion of this region reveals further fine structure at a total of seven bands. The three main bands are semibly assigned to the heighing percidences connecting the two copper centers in an intransolocality fashion, associated with nominal  $C_{pre}$  local its symmetry. The additional bands are possibly due to the asymmetric nature of this heigher, and the additional beinging interactions (Pigure 5-3). The peridine ring breathing band was found at 1026 cm<sup>2</sup>, Visible absorptions for 33 are difficult to resolve, with a broad shoulder occurring at about 600 nm in both solid and solution.

The high energy region of the influenced spectrum of 24 is dominated by a strong, sharp band at 3620 cm<sup>2</sup> ( $v_{em}$ ; NO-19), and  $v_{em}$  bands at 3440 and 3247 cm<sup>2</sup> due to the firee NHg group. A very complex shorppion envelope is observed in the range 909-1172 cm<sup>2</sup>, with a total of elevandue bands. These are clearly associated with the  $v_{em}$  atland withration, split as a result of reduced symmetry in the unusual bridging mode. The band at 1026 cm<sup>2</sup> is due to the psylidiar ing breathing mode. This complex exhibits a leward visible band in the solid state at 660 mm, which shifts to higher energy (595 mm) is a lower, but to lower energy (157 mm) in DMC, idicative of a significant structural change in solution. The influent spectrum of 35 shows similar bands above 3100 cm<sup>4</sup> to those of 34, indicative that both NR, and OH groups in the ligand are not coordinated to the Co(III) ion. The pyridine ring breathing band appears at 1035 cm<sup>3</sup> magneting a strong coordination of the pyridine nitrogen to the Co(III) centre. Only one prominent  $(v_i + v_j)$  (112) nitrate band located at 1755 cm<sup>3</sup> indicates that the nitrates in the complex are uncoordinated.

Very complex v<sub>int</sub> bands located in the range 3380-3165cm<sup>+</sup> (five bands) are observed in the infrared spectrum of 36, supporting the presence of two different annion groups. Two pyridine ring breathing bands were observed at 995 cm<sup>-1</sup>, which is identical to that of the five ligand, and at 1043 cm<sup>+1</sup>, corroborating the arround evidence that only one pyridine ring is accordinated to the V(V) centre. The strong band at 923 cm<sup>+1</sup> can be assigned to v<sub>iii</sub>, arrows in the cis-V(2) group [177-179].

Complex 37 exhibits two  $w_{uu}$  influred basis at 3520 cm<sup>2</sup> due to the free NH, groups in PAHAP, and a sharp basid at 3520 cm<sup>2</sup> due to coordinated water molecules and the lattice water band at ca. 3550 cm<sup>2</sup> (br). The strong  $v_{cu}$  hand at 1665 cm<sup>2</sup> is in agreement with the fact that the PAHAP (gands in the complex days a without conformation. The prominent (v<sub>1</sub> + v<sub>2</sub>) [112] nitrate bands are observed at 1765 and 1755 cm<sup>2</sup>, suggesting the presence of monodentus sitrates. Only core pytidine ring breathing band was observed at 1020 cm<sup>2</sup>, suggesting that both pyridine nitrogens in each ligned are in the sume coordinates moviewents:

Several bands above 3100 cm<sup>-1</sup> were found in the infrared spectrum of 38, and the broad bands at ca. 3600 and 3437 cm<sup>-1</sup> are associated with the lattice water and coordinated molecules respectively, while the bands at 3326 and 3207 cm<sup>-1</sup> can be assigned to N-H stretch of the free NH, groups. The strong band at 1664 cm-1 could result from a C=O incorporated in a conjugated system or C=N in a twisted open-chain diazine unit. However the absence of a v., hand at 3409 cm<sup>-1</sup> in the free ligand PHAAP suggests the deprotonation of the ligand in this complex. Therefore, it is more reasonable to assign the 1664 cm<sup>-1</sup> neak to the stretching band of the C-O group with some double bond character in a conjugated O-C-N-N framework. If both nyridine rings are assumed to be coordinated in this compound because there is no free pyridine ring breathing band observed, and considering the normal room temperature magnetic moment (1.83 BM see next section) for this compound, a situation in which the alkoxo group in the deprotonated ligand is bound orthogonally, with a large Cu-alkoxo-Cu angle between adjacent copper centers to form a cyclic structure is most plausible (see the schematic representation, Scheme 5-4, of 38 in the next section). The singlet v, CI-O stretching band of free CIO, at 1074 cm1 is so strong that the pyridine ring breathing bands, expected to be at this region, cannot be observed. 38 exhibits a broad visible band in the solid state at 658 nm, which is essentially unchanged in aqueous solution (665 nm. s = 550 dm<sup>3</sup> mol<sup>-1</sup> cm<sup>-1</sup>), indicative of very little structural change in solution.

The bands above 3100 cm<sup>4</sup> in the infrared spectrum of compound 39 are very similar to those of 38 with very little position differences. The C=O (in the O-C-N-N copigated finanework) neuch hand was observed at 1658 cm<sup>2</sup> and coordinated prycline ring breathing bands were found at 1034, 1022 cm<sup>2</sup>. Okly one prominent (v, v v) [112] nitrate band located at 1765 cm<sup>2</sup> indicates that all nitrates in 39 are uncoordinated. These influend data are in agreement with its cyclic strumuckar attrusture. The solid states Nujol and transmittance and equeous solution electronic spectra of 29 giv very similar blonds at 955 nm (broad, c = 86.26 dm<sup>2</sup> mol<sup>2</sup> cm<sup>2</sup>) and 565 nm (shoulder, t = 50.97 dm<sup>2</sup> mol<sup>2</sup> cm<sup>2</sup>) due to v<sub>1</sub> ( $\Lambda_{uu}$ -a<sup>3</sup>T<sub>a</sub>) and v<sub>1</sub> ( $\Lambda_{uu}$ -b<sup>2</sup>T<sub>a</sub>) respectively, suggesting that all N(II) centers have distorted outsheful coordination environments and the coordination differences among the isolution (1000 cm<sup>2</sup>) similar blonds of the DVIvis bands, and the three in on inpairlidant blockers occurring in water.

The infrared spectrum of 46 is very similar to that of 38, which is as expected. However, the position for each group in the spectrum of 46 is slightly different from that for the corresponding top of 48, e.g. 3556 cm<sup>2</sup> (datice water), 3437-3175 cm<sup>2</sup> (OH4), 1092 cm<sup>4</sup> (v, stretching band of the C(D). Noted visible hand was observed at 61 5 mm in the solid state and the same value (616 em) was found in equous solution (n = 1834dm<sup>2</sup> cm<sup>2</sup>), indicative of m significant solvation accurring in water. The large t value magnets that this hand reads from the CT absorption of L=4Fe(II) or together with d-d absorption in the occurrencement.

Two weak but sharp  $v_{sec}$  bands are observed in the infrared spectrum of 41 (3315 and 3286 cm<sup>-1</sup>), consistent with the presence of NH<sub>2</sub> groups, but a detailed assignment cannot be made. The pyridine ring breathing band occurs at 1021 cm<sup>-1</sup>, indicative of the coordination of pyridine nitrogens. The  $v_{core}$  hand appears at a slightly higher emergy than that of the first PAH (1644 cm<sup>2</sup>), which is not as expected. The reason for this is that the C-V how is disclosulated in PAH, which is more than the provided that the provided that the complex the C-N host and submitted in PAH, which is the provided that the provided that the visible hand was observed as a shoulder at 680 nm in the acid state Najol mult transmittance electronic spectrum of 41, which is basically dominated by a Br--Cu CT has dit 465 nm.

## 5.3.3 Magnetism

Variable temperature magnetic susceptibility data were collected for powdered samples of the complexes 333, 34 and 40, and taken from the same uniform batches used for structural determination. The samples were pre-field under vacuum in order to prevent possible mass loss during sample preparation prior to a variable temperature run. In those cases where onvious desolvation occurred elemental analyses were repeated.

Compound 33 has a very low room temperature magnetic moment ( $\mu_{w} = 0.88$ BM), indicating spin coupling between the coppert(I) centers and the presence of net atrong mitferromagnetism. The susceptibility versus temperature profile (Figure 5-14) shows a rise in  $\chi_{a}$  approaching 300 K, but no maximum, and a sharp rise in  $\chi_{a}$  and the temperature indicating significant paramagnetic impurity. Analysis of the data using equ. 14 gives g = -2.09(22), 21 = -540(6) cm<sup>2</sup>,  $\chi_{a} = -491(6 - mm, p = 0.035, <math>\theta = -1.05$ .

300 200 Temperature (K) 100 0 0.000 0.004 0.002 0.003 0.001 ( <sub>I-</sub>Iom-uma) = X

0.005

2.069(22),  $-2J = 549(6) \text{ cm}^4$ ,  $\rho = 0.035$ , Nar =  $49^{+}10^4 \text{ cmm}$ ,  $\theta = -1.0K$ ,  $10^2 \text{R} = 1.7$  ( $\text{R} = [\Sigma(\chi_{cm} - \chi_{ac})^2/\Sigma\chi_{ac}^2]^{1/2}$ ). Figure 5-14. Variable temperature magnetic data for complex 33. The solid line was calculated from eqn. 1-4 with g=

 $10^{2}k = 1.7$ ;  $R = [Z(\chi_m - \chi_m)/2\chi_m)^{10}$  for the best fit line (Figure 5-14). The small negative 0 value suggests the presence of a weak intermolecular antiferromagnetic component. This could be associated with the perchlorate bridges and the hydrogen booling bridging interaction, but these semonitary orthogonal in nature.

Reports of magnetic studies on such dicopper(II) systems symmetrically bridged by a bis-µ,-NO unit are limited, but strong antiferromagnetic coupling is typical. The symmetrically N-O bridged complex ion [Cu(DAPDH)].2\* (Cu(NO)(ON)Cu) has a room temperature magnetic moment of 0.6 BM indicative of strong antiferromagnetic coupling [210], while the asymmetrically bridged iodo-complex [LCu(PyA),Cu(I)]ClO, CH,CN (Cu(NO),Cu) (L = 1.4.7-trimethyl-1.4.7-triazacyclononane; PvA = monoanion of pyridine-2-aldoxime) [176] exhibits very strong antiferromagnetic coupling (-2J > 1000 cm<sup>-1</sup>). The copper-copper separation in this complex (3.45 Å) is comparable with that in 33, and it exhibits a similar boat shaped structure, with an angle of 120° between the copper mean planes. It is not immediately obvious why the exchange situation for these two complexes is so different, but from a structural perspective it appears that the asymmetric (NO), bridging arrangement provides the stronger coupling. Extended Hückel calculations on 37 show two triplet state molecular orbitals with a high degree of alignment of the copper d orbitals and the nitrogen and oxygen p orbitals in the dicopper chelate ring. A AE value of 82 meV is large enough to corroborate the antiferromagnetic exchange situation, but no comparison can be made with complexes in Chanters 2 and 3.

Compound 34 has a room temperature magnetic moment of  $(\mu_{so})$  1.8.5 BM, magneting no coupling, and this is confirmed by the  $\chi_s^{-1}$  versus temperature profile, which shows a containt  $\chi_s^{-1}$  value of 0.42 troughout the 4.500 K temperature range. The two coppetful centers in 34 are completely uncoupled, consistent with the axial/equatorial arrangement of bonds to the safate bridges, leading to effective orthogonality between the copper magnetic orbital. This contrasts with the magnetic behaviour of the complex [Cu(54-Uh/96/4pa)(1,6)), 51(,0 [171] (54-Uh/9 = Unidme-54monophosphate,  $d_{0} = dipy(3)-4min(0)$ , which shifts weak autiformagnetic exchange (21 = 10.8 cm<sup>2</sup>), associated with the equatorial/equatorial phosphate bridging arrangement. The weak coupling in this case can reasonably be explained by the bridging once of shoushits, which connects the comparemagnetic orbital.

Compound 38 has a room temperature magnetic moment of 1.83 BM (see Cu(D)), suggetting no coupling. Because of their relative tests of synthesis, and of the design of many new polynuclearing ligands for use in bioinorganic model and magnetochemical sudice, there are many examples of Cu(D), complexes reported. The geometric of these tetracopper(II) complexes can be classified into many types [167] e.g. rhomboidal, parallelogram, distorted obane, tetrahedral, linear, planar cyclic, and pair-of-dimers. The partially finished single crystal structure of 38 shows that the four five-coordinate opper(II) center (quare syntial) are strengted approximately in sequence and see bridged orthogonally wir four allocon corgent from four deprotonated ligands, which are arranged in a very similar manner in the complex 39 and 40 (see Figure 5-9 and Figure 5-11. Scheme 5-4 regressents part of the structure of 38). Thus complex 30 beforgs to one of the planar cyclic Cu(D), types. Because of the orthogonally between the coper(D) magnetic orbitals, the four corpor(D) centers in 38 should not have significant magnetic coupling, which is consistent with the room temperature magnetic moment measurement. We wast is variable temperature magnetic horonet.




Complex 39 has a room temperature magnetic moment of 3.10 BM (ser Ni(III)). The Ni-O-Ni angles are large and Bill in the range 13.5.2.1401<sup>1</sup>, which would be expected to propagate some antiferromagnetic coupling between the nickel(II) centres. A comparable terminicel(II) complex, with Ni-O-Ni angles around 141<sup>1</sup> was shown to be antiferromagnetically coupled, although no fitting of the variable temperature susceptibility data was attempted to 11.1

Compound 40 has a room temperature magnetic moment of 5.02 BM (per mole). A plot of  $\mu_{m_{m}}$  versus temperature for 40 is illustrated in Figure 5.15, indicating a very complicated magnetic coupling process: the decress in  $\mu_{m_{m}}$  value from 5.02 BM at 255.2 Ko 4.7 BM at 6.3 K suggests the presence of intramolecular antiferromagnetic coupling or a high-low spin transition for Fe(III) or both, while the rise in  $\mu_{m_{m}}$  value from 4.79 BM at 63 K to 5.59 BM at 4 K, evidently demonstrates the presence of intramolecular ferromagnetic coupling. The spin-only magnetic moment for a Fe(III) (duster assuming Fe(III) in a high-spin or a low-spin state is estimated on the basis of the expression:

$$\mu_{max}^{2} = \mu_{O(1)}^{2} + \mu_{O(2)}^{2} + \mu_{O(2)}^{2} + \mu_{F(1)}^{2}$$

and using  $\mu_{0,2} = 1.73$  BM and  $\mu_{\mu_1} = 5.92$  BM for high spin Fe(III) and  $\mu_{\mu_1} = 1.73$  BM for low spin F4(III). The calculated values are 6.64 and 3.46 BM respectively, both of which are far away from the experimental value (5.02 BM). From a structural perspective, any intramolecular antiformamentic couplies bodis docar only by howers Cu'1) and Cu'21 vie



Figure 1-15. Variable temperature magnetic moment for 40

Q(1). All other bridge connections are effectively orthogonal. Assuming that the antiferromagnetic coupling between Cu(1) and Cu(2) is very strong, because of the very large Cu(1)-Q(2) angle (141.7°) [39] (58,  $\mu_{\rm exc}$ ) =  $\mu_{\rm exc}$  = 0.5 BM), and using  $\mu_{\rm ac}$  = 2.5 BM for H<sub>2</sub>-bries freqU1) and  $\mu_{\rm ac}$  = 1.73 BM for Low-spin GFU1) and  $\mu_{\rm ac}$  = 2.52 BM for H<sub>2</sub>-bries freqU1) are dramagnetic moments of 6.28 BM and 2.54 BM for the high-spin or low-spin extrems in 40 are all to the away from the experimental value (5.02 BM). Therefore it is reasonable to assume that the Fe(III) extre in 40 exhibits a LS (5 = 1/2) + HS (5 - 52) ransition in the solid large.

The spin transition phenomenon for Fe(III) was observed for the first time by Cambi in the 1970s in some tris(dithiocarbannato) iron(III) complexes [212-214]. The dithiocarbannato ligands are of the type shown in Scheme 5-3a, and the complexes have a FeS, core. In the family of tris(dithiocarbannato) iron(III) complexes, if there is a spin transition in the solid state, it is always very month, without detectable hyperewisi.









dithiocarbamato'(a)

Other interesting examples of spin transitions in invort(II) chemistry have been reported by Hendrickson et al. [215-217] in the series of complexes with a general formula [FeqX-salecten], [V] X-salecten is shown in Schmes 5-3b. Y is a contrastance like NO<sub>Q</sub>; Fe<sub>2</sub> or BPh<sub>3</sub>.] These complexes have a paeado-octahedral generative with a HeVQ, core, and exhibit a L5 (S = 1/2) + HS (S = 5/2) transition without an intermediate spin state S = 3/2 being observed. For most of them, the transition is gradual, and often incomplete at low temperature. Compared with these complexes, the FqU(II) certer in complexe 40 also has a FeV<sub>2</sub>O<sub>4</sub> core, and with a very similar coordination emvironment. Therefore, assuming the FqU(II)(1) in 40 has an incomplete L5 (S = 1/2) + HS (S = 5/2) transition either at room temperature (e.g. µ<sub>kep)</sub> = 4.65 BM at 295-2 K) or at low temperature (e.g. µ<sub>kep)</sub> 4.41BM at 63 K), and there is a weak instramolecular formongenetic coupling between Fq(1) and Cu(1) or Cu(2) because of their orthogonalities, the complicated magnetic behaviour for 40 is reasonable, even though its detailed interpretation cannot be made at this time.

Compound 41 has a room temperature magnetic moment of 1.84 BM (per Cu(II)), which suggests no coupling between the four Cu(II) centers. There is no wrishle temperature magnetic study on this complex. However, from a structural perspective, any intramolecular magnetic interaction should only take place was the four Br-Cu(I)-Br linalages of the [Cu(I),Br,I<sup>th</sup> unit, which are obviously too long to generate any significant coupling. Compound 35 has a room temperature magnetic moment of 0.50 BM, indicating that Co(III) is diamagnetic and in a low-spin state, which is consistent with its structure.

Compound 36 is diamagnetic ( $\mu = 0.41$  BM at room temperature) and gives a very interesting 14 NBR spectrum. The room temperature 14 NBR spectrum of 36 in 4,-DMSO (illustrated in Figure 5-16) shows one set of multiplets (41) at 339-88 9 pm due to the coordinated projecting, which is large three dowdfeld that that hose in the free ligand because of an electronic efficet, and another set of multiplets (41) at 7.44-8.35 ppm which is associately the same as showe of the free ligand (Figure 4-15). There is only one singlet showlag up in the spectrum, which may result from the proton in the coordinated NPC are half denterated free aming group. However, what is more likely is that, since the coordinated aming group has already been dependented, further HT to exchange between this aming group with D<sub>i</sub>O (4,-DMSO usually contains trace amounts of D<sub>i</sub>O) is not forourable. Thus, the singlet is best analgend to the proton in the coordinated aming group (NH) and the singlet due to the fire aming group of one appear because of the H-D exchance which information the line and the maximal bar.

Compared with those in the 'II NMR of the fire ligand, the pyrish multiplets (4H) in the 'II NMR spectrum of J' in D\_O (Figure 5-17) appare at alightly lower field Objert chemical hith) due to a weak electronic effect, since the coordination of the ligand to the C4(II) ion is comparatively weak (C4(1)-N(1) 2.3142) A; C4(1)-N(6) 2.314(2) A). In addition, each C4(II) core rody oroant more pyrishif freigi cont there as in the case of C4







Figure 5-17. Room temperature 'H NMR spectrum of complex 37 in D<sub>2</sub>O.

and 28), which are quite well separated so that a shiftding effect does not exist in this case. The order of the chemical shifts of H(0) and H(1) is reversed in this disadmism(1)) complex compared to the situation of the free ligand. The reason for this is that the electronic effect, which reduces electron density in the pyridpl ring via N(0), does not take place for each proton in an average manner.

### 5.4 Conclusion

Unlike tetradentate N, diazine ligands with the diazine unit incorporated in aromatic rings, open-chain N, diazine ligands have variable coordination modes depending on the properties of R, R', X and X' (Figure 1-14) and the central metal ions. PAHAP has a dominant mode as a Type AB ligand as shown by the dicadmium complex 37 as well as the complexes in HoChapter 2-4, wever, a new mode (Scheme I-1a), which is similar to that of the deprotonated PHAAP in complex 30, has been found in the novel 5-coordinate VO,' complex 35. A new N.O coordination mode (Scheme 1-2) for PHAAP with O (alkoxo) acting as a bridging donor has been found in a series of cyclic tetranuclear complexes. The tetranuclear conner(TI) complex 38 may not show magnetic coupling because of the orthogonal geometry at each copper centre, while the tetranuclear nickel(II) complex 39 would be expected to have a magnetic interaction, since the Ni-O-Ni angles are quite large. The hetero-tetranuclear Fe(III)Cu(II), complex 40 shows a very complicated magnetic behaviour for which a reasonable explanation includes very strong antiferromagnetic coupling between Cu(1) and Cu(2), weak ferromagnetic coupling between Fe(1) and Cu(1) and Cu(3), and an incomplete LS(S =1/2) ↔ HS (S = 5/2) process for Fe(1). In all the PAHOX complexes in which the oxime group of PAHOX acts as a N-O bridge providing a very strong antiferromagnetic pathway (33) or is free (34 and 35), the ligand PAHOX only demonstrates a **Type** C mode of bonding.

<sup>1</sup>H NMR spectra of the mononuclear V(V) complex (36) and the spiral-like disuclear cadmium complex (37) dearly indicate that chemical aiths of the multiplet (4H) due to the coordinated pyridyl rings are significantly higher than those in the spectrum of the free ignard, which imply results from a detection effect.

# Chapter 6 General Conclusions and Final Remarks

#### 6.1 Synthesis of the ligands

The ligands studied in this thesis have been listed in Figure 1-15, and the synthesis routes for some of ligands are shown in Scheme 2-1. PAMM and PZIZP ere symmetrical ligands like PAA and PME [93-46]. Usually, symmetrical organic compounds are synthesized by symmetrical methods, which have been adopted for the synthesis of PAA and PCME. However, there is so similar available methods for the preparations of PAHAP and PCME. The sever, there is no similar available method for the preparations of PAHAP and PCME. The severe, there is no similar available method for the preparations of PAHAP and PCME. The reaction however occurs in a low yield, and the mochasism for the reaction was not proposed. We repeated the reaction using picolinamide hydrazone and the oxalate enter and separated three major compounds with very low yield (51:0%) for PAMAP and box mills became 5-1.

Scheme 6-1



Our procedures for making PAHAP turned out to be more straightforward with a clear mechanism, a high yield and without my detectable side reactions, and has been further used for making another symmetrical ligand PZHPZ, as well as for quasi-symmetrical ligands PYHZ and PHAAP. It should be noted that PHAAP cannot be made by reacting ethyl picolinant with picolinamide hydrazone, which lead to the same compounds as shown in Scheme 6-1.

PMHAP and PHMAP were made by known procedures [109], which were adopted to make the new ligand PAHOX. The relevant literature references suggested that such compounds are triazoline species as shown in Scheme 6-2:

Scheme 6-2



Proposed structure for PMHAP

**Proposed structure for PHMAP** 

However, our X-ray structural analyses for the complexes of these ligands showed that the ligands adopt open-chain structures and are not cyclized. We are confident that the free ligands also have an open ring structure, because the IR spectra of the free ligands show two C-N shads in each case. We are wist a structural determination of these ligands.

### 6.2 Coordination chemistry

Due to the their large flockillity of coordination originating from the rotation around the N-N tood and the additional donors e.g. NRL and ORL these ligands are externely interesting and presents a unusual arrangement of potential donor sites, with many possible monoucleating, disudenting and polynucleating coordination modes at discussed in Chapter 1. However, the real coordination modes for these open-chain disation ligands are closely consected to the nature of metal loss and the ligands, aroon, organic co-ligands, the presence of hydrogen bonding or racking interscing and solvent etc.

The liquid PAHAP has a dominant Type AB mode of bonding as dominant the starts of dicopper (1)) complexes in Chapters 2 and 3, the spiral-like complexes in Chapter 4 and the dicadium (10) complex in Chapter 5, even though a new coordination type for open-shall failure liquids has been flowed in its monouclear VO<sub>2</sub><sup>+</sup> complexes (Scheme 6-3, New Type 1). The coordination modes for PVPZ and PZ122P relevant to the distaine units may also be dominated by Type AB as shown by complexes (5, 17, 20 and 27, 20 and 27, 18 and 29 and 29 and 29 and 29 and 29 and 29 and 20 and diazine unit bridges two copper(II) centers with the deprotonated alkono group acting as monodestate donce. A new coordination type, which is very similar to that for PAIAP in the monosclear VO<sub>4</sub><sup>2</sup> complex, has been found in its unusual seven-coordinate monosclear FQ(III) complex. The most popular mode for PHAAP is as shown in Scheme 6-3 (New Type 2), which is presented in a series of hetero-tetranuclear (40), homotemander (ASP) complex.

Scheme 6-3



New Type 1

New Type 2

The ligand PTS, belonging to the triazoline family, also contains a N-N single bond, and its paramagnetic dimetal complexes would also be expected to have twisted structures around listain indusq. We fulled to get any crystal of PTS complexes, but obtained a mixed valence size-entered Cu(II),Cu(I), complex (41) of its hydrolyzed ligand PAH which is responsible for the partial reduction of Cu(II). Some modified ligands have been prepared (see Figure 6-1), but no attempts have been made to produce crystals of third complexes.



IR 1628 cm<sup>-1</sup>(v<sub>C-m</sub>) HINMR 8.505-7.382 (4H, multiplet, py); 7.156-6.946 (6H, multiplet, Ph); 8.591 (2H, s, NHE); 6.573 (2H, s dzhr, NNH); 11.571 (2H, s, OH); 2.001 (2H, s, CH) MS, M<sup>+</sup>, 492, 2.51%.



DPTM

IR 1618 cm<sup>-1</sup>(v<sub>C-0</sub>) IRNMR, 8.614-7.356 (8H, multiplet, py); 7.651(2H, s, Ph); 8.31(2H, s, NE); 6.370(2H, s &br, NNH); 12.024(1H, s, OH); 2.356(3H, s, CH) MS, M- 400, 22.4375.



DPTTDP

IR 1613 cm<sup>-1</sup>(v<sub>C-8</sub>) HINMR, 8,620-7.367(8H, multiplet, py); 7.773(2H, s, Ph); 8,874(2H, s, NH); 1.379(9H, s, CHs) MS, M<sup>-1</sup>, 442, 14.95%

Figure 6-1. Schematic representation of some triazoline ligands with

spectral data included

#### 6.3 Magnetism

# 6.3.1 Magneto-structural correlations for dicopper(II) complexes containing one

## N-N single bond

The analysis of the magnetic and structural data for a arries of discopper (II) complexes in Chapter 1, in which the metal ions are linked in the equatorial coordination plane by only one N-N single bond, showed that the singlet-triplet glutings vary as a function of the torsion angle between two magnetic planes about the N-N single bonds. Experimentally, the larger magnetic exchange integral (2J). Systematic studies on this system by the modification of the open-chain diazine ligands and changing the co-ligands to generate variable torsion angles are a vary good linear relationship bureen. 2J values in the range 2.44 to 2.026 m<sup>2</sup> and the torsion angles in the range 7.51.63.7. The reason for this is that the extent of the overlap, which dominates the magnetic exchange in the system, between the *n* gootistic along the single N-N bood dependent upon the torsion angle between the magnetic comport planes. The observation have been supported by a strest of MO additions for relevant model compounds.

# 6.3.2 Magnetic properties of the dicopper(II) complexes containing two N-N single bonds or one N-N single bond along with the other bridging species

Attempts to establish a magnetostructural correlation for the dicopper(II) system containing two N-N single bonds have been made. However because of their particular twisted structures, the distortion of the coordination genometries and the existence of the additional bridge (e.g.  $\mu_c NO_i$  in 18), the torsion angles between two copper magnetic planes about these two NN brods, in 18 and most likely in 30 are wy small and doots on the angle which is required for effective NN p orbital orthogonality. Therefore no significant magnetic interactions were observed in such system. Complex 19 shows no coupling by a different mechanism, in which two copper(II) centers are bridged by two NN indep bonds in actively orthogonal manner.

The magnetic exchange in a mixed diazine Infoged dicopper(II) complex occurs principally through the open-dania diazine linkage, since the pryvidazine diazine unit bridges two copper centers in a orthogonal way, and the observed coupling in this complex is quite weak because of the geometric distortions and the small torsion angle between the two copper magnetic disease board the NA single bond.

The first genuine example contradicting the spin polarization mechanism in adde bridged complexes has been achieved in the tetranuclear copper(II) complex 22, which shows a strong unifirmomysetic instruction (21 = 246 cm<sup>-1</sup>). The complex contains two disoper(II) units orthogonally bridged by use  $\mu_{-1}$ , l-acide and each unit bridged by a NN single bend and a  $\mu_{-1}$ , l-acide in the copper equatorial planes. Since the angle between the two copper magnetic planes about the NN single bond is particularly small, this bond does not provide any significant contribution to the total antiferromagnetic coupling based on the result in Chapter 1. The strong antiferromagnetic coupling based on the result in Chapter 1. The strong antiferromagnetic coupling based on the result in Chapter 1. large Cu-µ<sub>2</sub>-1,1-N<sub>3</sub>-Cu angle. The net antiferromagnetic exchange has been further corroborated on the basis of MO calculations.

#### 6.3.3 Magnetism of the other dinuclear and polynuclear complexes

Weak ferromagnetic coupling was observed in the spiral-like dimanganese(II) complex (23), while no significant magnetic exchange was observed in the dinicitel(II) case (25) with the same spiral-like structure. In both complexes the tornion angles around the three N-N single bonds are extremely small, but close to the angle required for the effective orthogonality established for the dicopert(II) systems containing one N-N single bond.

The dicopper complexes of PAHOX demonstrate no coupling e.g. in 34 in which two copper[1]) centers are orthogonally bridged by two bidenate SOA<sup>\*</sup> groups, or very strong antiferromagnetic coupling e.g. in 33 in which two copper[1]) centers are equatorially bridged by two symmetrical Ar-O groups of the lagned.

The cyclic hetero-steranuclear Cu(II), $J^{0}$ (III) complex exhibits very complicated magnetic hethoviour, and based on the structural data, the complicated magnetism may result from the combination of the very strong antiferromapsetic interaction between two copper centers (Cu(1) and Cu(2)) via the alkoro bridge (O(1)) in their equatorial planes, and the incomplete high-low spin transition of F((III), and weak: ferromagnetic exchange between F(III) and Cu(1) and Cu(2).

## 6.4 Spectral and electrochemical properties

It is very interesting to note that the  $v_{cos}$  hands in all complexes with revised attractores around the N-N load (Type AB) appear in higher energy positions compared with hose for the face relevant igands, which seems to be in contradiction to be observations for some complexes containing insite (C=N) ligands. It is evident that the twisting of the ligand in those complexes increases the  $v_{cos}$ , frequency significantly through breaking the conjugation wire the N-1 single bond in the free ligand, even though the coordination reduces the  $v_{cos}$  frequency to some estent.

Another interesting spectral result was obtained through studies on the 'H NMR spectra of a series of spin-like diamagnetic complexes either containing three NAlinkages (24 and 28) or two NA liskages (27), and the monomolese V(V) complex (34). The result indicases that in the spin-like diamagnetic complexes (26 and 28) or two NA liskages (34 and 28), and the second state of the multiplets (41) due to the coordinated pyridy rings are much lower than that for the fire ligand, while those in the spectra of the spiral-like diamagnetic complex containing two NA-linkages (37) and the monomulear (V(V) complex (64) are significantly higher. It may be considered that in the former cases, the influence on the chemical shifts is dominated by a shidding effect, which is achieved by the particular arrangement of the these pyridyl rings bonded at each metal conter, while the increase of the chemical shifts is the later cases simply results from the electronic effect (constrained effect).

# 6.5 Future work relevant to the transition metal polynuclear complexes involving onen-chain diazine ligands

### 6.5.1 New homo- and hetero-polynuclear complexes

Because of their high flexibility, open-chain diazine bridges in polynucleasing ligands have been proved to be of fundamental interest in many aspects e.g. magnetism, spectroscopy, electrochemistry through the reaserch presented herein. In order to generate new home, and hetero-polynuclear complexes containing open-chain diazine units from the available ligands studied in this thesis or relevant new ligands, several strategies, some of which have advacibe musich in the water presented in this thesis, can be considered:

- Strategy I. Ligand exchange to make some dimetal complexes containing different diazine units, in order to tune the torsion angle between two metal magnetic planes.
  - E.g. Complex 4 (see Chapter2) + PYPZ (or PMHAP or PZHPZ)
- Strategy 1. Using an asymmetric ligand to generate a partially coordinated (most likely mononuclear) complex which is further reacted with other meal centres to produce hetero-nuclear complexes. This method has been used to make the Cq(TL)Fe(TU) complexe 40.
  - E.g. PHAAP + M\* (Fe(III), VO\*, et al.) in 1:1 ratio then reacts with M\*\*

- Strategy 3. Metal exchange. This method can be used to make hetero-polynuclear or homo-polynuclear complexes which cannot be made through a direct reaction of ligand with metal salt (e.g. ([PAHAP),Ni,(H,O),]\*\*)
  - E.g. complex 37 reacts with M<sup>m</sup> in 1:1 ratio → (PAHAP),CdM molety then reacts with M<sup>m</sup> to produce (PAHAP),MMor directly reacts with M<sup>m</sup> in 1:2 ratio to produce (PAHAP),M,
- Strategy 4. Simple stoichiometric reaction to make spiral-like hetero-dinuclear complexes.
  - E.g. 3PAHAP + M" → [(PAHAP),M]" then reacts with M""

# 6.5.2 Magnetostructural correlations for the other first row transition metal nolvnuclear complexes bridged by onen-chain diazine moieties

The first magneto-structural correlation for a dicopper system bridged by one N-N single loosd has been accessfully enablished, which might be extended to the dicopper system containing two N-N single bonds. However, because of the coordination geometry difference between cooper(1) complices (numly 6 - coordination), systematic variation of the torsion around the N-N single bond in the other first row transition metal polynuclear complexes is obviously difficult by using only the open-chain diazine legands presented in this thesis. Even though the spiral-like dimagnese(1) and dinicle(12) complexes, which show a weak from propertic coupling and the regressive, seen to adding very similar orthogonal torsion angles about the N-N single boad vector to those found in the dicopper system bridged by one N-N single boad, no further conclusions related to magnetic exclusinge properties in such systems could be made. Therefore, efforts to establish magnetostructural correlations for auch systems should be towards the synthesis and designation of usinable new Sgands and their complexes. To meet this propose, but

### Scheme 6-4



ligand shown in Scheme 6-4 (or its modified ligands) and its complexes could be considered (in Scheme 6-4, the rotational angle  $\gamma$  will vary with the change of the co-ligand X).

#### References

- 1. O. Kahn, Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. Engl., 24, 834(1985).
- P. W. Ball, Coord. Chem. Rev., 4, 361(1969).
- a). M. Melnik, Coord. Chem. Rev., 42, 259(1982).
  b). M. Kato and Y. Muto, Coord. Chem. Rev., 45, 92(1988).
- 4. C. J. O'Connor, Prog. Inorg. Chem., 29, 203(1983).
- D. Gatteschi, J. S. Miller and F. Palacio, Magnetic Molecular Materials; Kluwer Academic: Dordrecht 1991.
- D. Willett, D. Gatteschi and O. Kahn, Magneto-Structural Correlations in Excharge systems, D. Reidel Publishing Compaany, 1983.
- Kahn, Molecular Magnetism, VCH Publishers: New York, 1993.
- 8. P. J. Hay, J. C. Thibeault and R. Hoffman, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 97, 4884(1975).
- 9. M. Park, M. Sc. Thesis, Memorial University of Newfoundland, 1997.
- a). M. F. Charlot, S. Jeannin, Y. Jeannin, O. Kahn, A. J. Lucrece and F. J. Martin, *Inorg. Chem.*, 18, 1675(1979).
  - b). M. F. Charlot, O. Kahn, S. Jeannin and Y. Jeannin, *Inorg. Chem.*, 19, 1410(1980).
- 11. O. Kahn, Inorg. Chim. Acta., 62, 3(1982).

- O. Kahn, T. Mallah, J. Gouteron, S. Jeannin and Y. Jeannin, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 1117(1989).
- 13. P. J. van Koningsbruggen, Ph.D. Thesis, Leiden University, 1993.
- M. F. Charlot, Y. Journaux, O. Kahn, A. Bencini, D.Gatteschi and C. Zanchini, Inorg. Chem., 25, 1060(1986).
- L. K. Thompson, S. K. Mandal, S. S. Tandon, J. N. Bridson and M. K. Park, Inorg. Chem., 35, 3117(1996) and refs. therein.
- S. K. Mandal, L. K. Thompson, M. J. Newlands, E. J. Gabe and F. L. Lee, Inorg. Chem., 29, 3556(1990).
- 17. O. Kahn, Comments Inorg. Chem., 3, 105(1984).
- 18. S. S. Tandon, L. K. Thompson and R. C. Hynes, Inorg. Chem., 31, 2210(1992).
- 19. L. K. Thompson, F. L. Lee and E. J. Gabe, Inorg. Chem., 27, 39(1988).
- L. K. Thompson, S. K. Mandal, J. P. Charland and E. J. Gabe, Can. J. Chem., 66, 348(1988)
- 21. T. N. Sorrell, Tetrahedron, 45, 3(1989).
- S. J. Lippard and J. M. Berg, *Principles of Bioinorgnic Chemistry*, University Science Books: Mill-Valley, CA, 1994.
- E. I. Ochiai, Bioinorgnic Chemistry An Introduction, Allyn and Bacon, Inc.: Toronto 1977.

- G. Challa, W. Chen and J. Reedijk, Makromol. Chem., Macromol. Symp., 59, 59(1992).
- 25. M. M. Rogic and T. R. Demmin, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 100, 5472(1978).
- 26. G. F. Endres, A. S. Hay and J. W. Eustace, J. Org. Chem., 28, 1300(1963).
- 27. H. C. Meinders, F. van Bolhuis and G. Challa, J. Mol. Catal., 5, 225(1979).
- 28. J. Reedijk, Bioinorgnic Catalysis, Marcel Dekker, New York, 1993.
- J. H. van Vleck, The Theory of Electronic and Magnetic Susceptibilities, Oxford University Press: London, 1932.
- A. Earnshaw, An Introduction to Magnetochemistry, Academic Press Inc.: New York, NY, 1968.
- 31. B. Bleaney and K. D. Bowers, Proc. R. Soc. London Ser., A. 214, 451(1952).
- O. Kahn, J. Galy, Y. Journaux, J. Jaud and I. Morgenstern-Badarau, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 104, 2165(1982).
- I. V. Vasilevsky, R. E. Stenkamp, E. C. Lingafelter, V. Schomaker, R. D. Willett and N. J. Rose, *Inorg. Chem.*, 13, 2619(1989).
- S. K. Shakhatreh, E. G. Bakalbassis, I. Brüdgarn, H. Hartl, J. Mrozinski and C. A. Tsipis, *Inorg. Chem.*, 13, 2803(1991).
- 35. D. J. Hodgson, Prog. Inorg. Chem., 19, 1737(1975) and refs. therein.
- V. H. Crawford, H. W. Richardson, J. R. Wasson, D. J. Hodgson and W. E. Hatfield, *Inorg. Chem.*, 15, 2107(1976).

- 37. O. Kahn and B. Briat, J. Chem. Soc., Faraday Trans., 72, 268(1976).
- 38. O. Kahn and B. Briat, J. Chem. Soc., Faraday Trans., 72, 1441(1976).
- 39. L. Merz and W. J. Haase, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 875(1980).
- 40. S. Gehring, P. Fleischhauer, H. Paulus and W. Haase, Inorg. Chem., 32, 54(1993).
- 41. W. Haase and S. Gehring, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 2609(1985).
- S. Gehring, H. Astheimer, and W. Haase, J. Chem. Soc., Faraday Trans., II 83, 347(1987).
- S. Gehring, H. Paulus and W. Haase, E. Bill, A. X. Z. Trautwein, *Kristallogr.*, 186, 83(1990).
- G. Christou, S. P. Perlepes, E. Libby, K. Folting, J. C. Huffman, R. J. Webb and D. N. Hendrickson, *Inorg. Chem.*, 19, 3657(1990).
- J. Comarmond, P. Plumeré, J. -M. Lehn, Y. Agnus, R. Louis, R. Weiss, O. Kahn and I. Morgenstern - Badarau, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 104, 6330(1982).
- O. Kahn, S. Sikorav, J. Gouteron, S. Jeannin and Y. Jeannin, *Inorg. Chem.*, 22, 2877(1983).
- 47. S. Sikorav, I. Bkouche Waksman and O. Kahn, Inorg. Chem., 23, 490(1984).
- L. K. Thompson and S. S. Tandon, *Comments Inorg. Chem.*, 3, 125(1996) and refs. therein.
- S. S. Tandon, L. K. Thompson, M. E. Manuel and J. N. Bridson, *Inorg. Chem.*, 33, 5555(1994).

- 50. L. K. Thompson, S. S. Tandon and M. E. Manuel, Inorg. Chem., 34, 2356(1995).
- 51. L. K. Thompson, S. S. Tandon and C. L. Sheppard, unpublished results.
- L. K. Thompson, S. S. Tandon, F. Lloret, J. Cano and M. Julve, *Inorg. Chem.*, 36, 3301(1997).
- 53. M. Y. Chow, Z. Y. Zhou and T. C. M. Mak, Inorg. Chem., 31, 4900(1992).
- 54. M. Inoue and M. Kubo, Coord. Chem. Rev., 21, 1(1976) and refs. therein.
- T. Kamiusuki, H. Okawa, N. Matsumoto and S. Kida, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 195(1990).
- J. C. Bayon, P. Esteban, G. Net, P. G. Rasmussen, K. N. Baker, C. W. Hahn and M. M. Gumz, *Inorg. Chem.*, 30, 2572(1991).
- J. Pons, X. López, J. Casabó, F. Teixidor, A. Caubet, J. Ruis and C. Miravitlles, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 195, 61(1992).
- A. Bencini, D. Gatteschi, C. Zanchini, J. G. Haasnoot, R. Prins and J. Reedijk, Inorg. Chem., 24, 2812(1992).
- W. M. E. Koomen-van Oudenniel, R. A. G. de Graff, J. G. Haasnoot, R. Prins and J. Reedijk, *Inorg. Chem.*, 28, 1128(1989).
- P. J. van Koningsbruggen, D. Gatteschi, R. A. G. de Graff, J. G. Haasnoot and J. Reedijk and C. Zanchini, *Inorg. Chem.*, 34, 5175(1995).
- R. Prins, P. J. M. W. L. Birker, J. G. Haasnoot, G. C. Verschoor and J. Reedijk, Inorg. Chem., 24, 4128(1985).

- P. M. Slangen, P. J. van Koningsbruggen, J. G. Haasnoot, J. Jansen, S. Gorter, J. Reedijk, H. Kooijman, W. J. J. Smeets and A. L. Spek, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 212, 289(1993).
- F. A. Abraham, M. Lagrenee, S. Sueur, B. Mernari and C. Bremard, J. Chem. Soc., Datton Trans., 1443(1991).
- S. K. Mandal, L. K. Thompson, M. J. Newlands, F. L. Lee, Y. Lepage, J. -P. Charland and E. Gabe, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 122, 199(1986).
- 65. L. Chen, L. K. Thompson and J. N. Bridson, Inorg. Chem., 32, 2938(1993).
- S. S. Tandon, L. K. Thompson, M. E. Manuel and J. N. Bridson, *Inorg. Chem.*, 34, 2356(1995).
- P. J. van Koningsbruggen, J. G. Haasnoot R. A. G. de Graff, J. Reedijk and S. Siingerland, *Acta Crystallogr.*, C48, 1923(1992).
- 68. L. Chen, Ph. D. Thesis, Memorial University of Newfoundland, 1993.
- T. Kamiusuki, H. Okawa, K. Inoue, N. Matsumoto, M. Kodera and S. Kida, J. Coord. Chem., 23, 201(1991).
- P. M. Slangen, P. J. van Koningsbruggen, K. Goubitz, J. G. Haasnoot, and J. Reedijk, *Inorg. Chem.*, 33, 1121(1994).
- S. K. Mandal, L. K. Thompson, E. J. Gabe, J. -P. Charland and F. L. Lee, *Inorg. Chem.*, 27, 855(1988).
- 72. D. Ajò, A. Bencini and F. Mani, Inorg. Chem., 27, 2437(1988).

- 73. W. J. Stratton and D. H. Busch, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 82, 4834(1960).
- 74. W. J. Stratton and D. H. Busch, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 80, 1286(1958).
- 75. W. J. Stratto and D. H. Busch, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 80, 3191(1958).
- 76. W. J. Stratton, P. J. Ogren, Inorg. Chem., 9, 2588(1970).
- 77. W. J. Stratton, M. F. Rettig and R. F. Drury, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 3, 97(1969).
- 78. W. J. Stratton, Inorg. Chem., 9, 517(1970).
- C. J. O'Connor, R. J. Romananch, D. M. Robertson, E. E. Eduok and F. R. Fronczek, *Inorg. Chem.*, 22, 449(1983).
- T. C. Woon, L. K. Thompson and P. Robichaud, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 90, 201(1984).
- A. W. Addison, T. N. Rao, J. Reedijk, J. van Rijn and G. C. Verschoor, J. Chem. Soc. Dalton Trans., 1349(1984).
- P. Souza, A. I. Matesanz and V. Fernández, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 3011(1996).
- J. García Jojal, J. García Jaca, R. Cortés, T. Rojo, M. K. Urtiaga and M. I. Arriortua, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 249, 25(1996).
- F. Abraham, J. M. Capon, G. Nowogrocki, S. Sueur and C. Brémard, *Polyhedron*, 4, 1761(1985).
- J. Garcia Jojal, M. K. Urtiaga, R. Cortés, L. Lezama, M. I. Arriortua and T. Rojo, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 2233(1994).
- 86. A. Mangia, C. Pelizzi and G. Pelizzi, Acta crstallogr., B30, 2146(1974).

- A. Bonardi, S. Ianelli, C. Pelizzi and G. Pelizzi, *Inorg. Chem. Acta*, 187, 167(1991).
- A. Bacchi, A. Bonini, M. Carcelli, F. Ferraro, E. Leporati, C. Pelizzi and G. Pelizzi, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 2699(1996).
- A. E. Koziol, R. C. Palenik and G. J. Palenik, J. Chem. Soc. Chem. Commun., 650(1989).
- 90. M. Lagrenée, S. Sueur and J. P. Wignacourt, Acta Crystallogr., C47, 1158(1991).
- A. Bacchi, L. P. Battaglia, M. Carcelli, C. Pelizzi, G. Pelizzi, C. Solinas and M. A. Zoroddu, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 775(1993).
- E. W. Ainscough, A. M. Brodie, J. D. Ranford and J. M. Waters, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 236, 83(1995).
- P. J. van Koningsbruggen, J. G. Haasnoot R. A. G. de Graff and J. Reedijk, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 483(1993), and refs. therein.
- S. C. Chan, L. L. Koh, P. H. Leung, J. D. Ranford and K. Y. Sim, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 236, 101(1995).
- P. Cheng, D. Liao, S. Yan, Z. Jiang, G. Wang, X. Yao and H. Wang, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 248, 135(1996).
- P. Iliopoulos, K. S. Murray, R. Robson, J. Wilson and G. A. Williams, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 1585 (1987).
- X. Chen, S. Zhan, C. Hu, Q. Meng and Y. Liu, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 245(1997).

- P. J. van Koningsbruggen, E. Muller, J. G. Haasnoot and J. Reedijk, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 208, 37(1993).
- D. S. Brown, V. H. Crawford, J. W. Hall and W. E. Hatfield, J. Phys. Chem., 81, 1303(1977).
- 100. F. H. Case, Heterocyclic Chemistry, 7, 1001(1970).
- 101. F. H. Case, J. Org. Chem., 30, 931(1965).
- 102. C. J. Gilmore, J. Appl. Cryst., 17, 42(1984).
- P. T. Beurskens, *DIRDIF: Technical Report 1984/1*, Crystallography Laboratory, Toernooiveld, 6525 Ed Nijmegen, Netherlands, 1984.
- D. T. Cromer and J. T. Waber, Internationalional Tables for X-ray Crystallography, Vol. IV. The Kynoch Press: Birmingham, United Kingdom, 1974; Table 2.2A.
- 105. J. A. Ibers and W. C. Hamilton, Acta Crystallogr., 17, (781)1974.
- D. T. Cromer, Internationational Tables for X-ray Crystallography, Vol. IV. The Kynoch Press: Birmingham, United Kingdom, 1974; Table 2.3.1.
- Texsan-Texray Structure Analysis Package; Molecular Structure Corporation: The Woodlands, Texas, 1985.
- SMART: Data Collection Software, Version 4.050; Siemens Analytical X-ray Instruments Inc.: Madison, Wisconsin, 1996.
- SAINT: Data Reduction Software, Version 4.050; Siemens Analytical X-ray Instruments Inc.: Madison, Wisconsin, 1996.

- G. M. Sheldrick, SHELXTL 5.04/VMS: An integrated system for solving, refining and displaying crystal structures from diffraction data. Siemens Analytical X-ray Instruments Inc.: Madison, Wisconsis, 1995.
- G. M. Sheldrick, SADABS. Empirical Absorption Correction Program. University of Göttingen: Göttingen, Germany, 1996.
- A. B. P. Lever, E. Mantovani and B. S. Ramaswamy, Can. J. Chem., 49, 1957(1971).
- a. C. L. Sheppard, B. Sc. Thesis, Memorial University of Newfoundland, 1998.
  b. C. L. Sheppard, S.S. Tandon, L.K. Thompson, J.N. Bridson, D.O. Miller, M. Handa and F. Lloret, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 259, 227(1996).
- K. Nakamoto, Infrared Spectra of Inorganic and Coordination Compounds; Wiley-Interscience, New York, 1986.
- K. Nakamoto, Y. Morimoto and A. E. Martell, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 83, 4528(1961).
- 116. K. Nakamoto and A. E. Martell, J. Chem. Phys., 32, 588(1960).
- 117. A. R. Katritzky and A. R. Hands, J. Chem. Soc., 2202(1958).
- W. E. Marsh, T. L. Bowman, C. S. Harris, W. E. Hatfield and D. J. Hodgson, Inorg. Chem., 20, 3864(1981).
- 119. B. E. Myers, L. Berger and S. J. Friedberg, J. Appl. Phys., 40, 1149(1969).
- W. E. Marsh, K. C. Patel, W. E. Hatfield and D. J. Hodgson, *Inorg. Chem.*, 22, 511(1983).

- 121. H. Oshio and U. Nagashima, Inorg. Chem., 29, 3321(1990).
- 122. Z. Xu, L. K. Thompson and D. O. Miller, Inorg. Chem., 36, 3985(1997).
- L. K. Thompson, Z. Xu, A. E. Goeta, J. A. K. Howard, J. Clase and D. O. Miller, Inorg. Chem., 1998, in press.
- 124. C. Mealli and D. M. Proserpio, J. Chem. Ed., 67, 399(1990).
- 125. P. J. Hay, J. C. Thibeault and R. Hoffmann, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 97, 4884(1975).
- M. Ghedini, G. De Munno, G. Denti, A. M. Manotti Lanfredi and A. Tiripicchio, Inorg. Chim. Acta. 57, 87(1982).
- P. Dapporto, G. De Munno, G. Bruno and M. Romeo, Acta Crystallogr., Sect C, 39, 718(1983).
- 128. G. De Munno, G. Denti and P. Dapporto, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 74, 199(1983).
- 129. G. De Munno and G. Denti, Acta Crystallogr., Sect C, 40, 616(1984).
- 130. G. De Munno and G. Bruno, Acta Crystallogr., Sect C, 40, 2022(1984).
- P. Dapporto, G. De Munno, A. Sega and C. Meali, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 83, 171(1984).
- W. Vreugdenhil, J. G. Hassnoot, M. F. J. Schoodergang and J. Reedijk, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 130, 235(1987).
- G. Vos, J. G. Hassnoot, G. C. Verschoor and J. Reedijk, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 102, 187(1985).
- L. R. Groeneveld, R. A. LeFebre, R. A. G. deGraaff, J. G. Hassnoot, G. Vos and J. Reedijk, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 102, 69(1985).

- F. S. Keij, R. A. G. deGraaff, J. G. Hassnoot and J. Reedijk, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 2093(1984).
- L. Rosenberg, L. K. Thompson, E. J. Gabe and F. L. Lee, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 625(1986).
- 137. P. W. Ball and A. B. Blake, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 852(1974).
- 138. J. E. Andrew and A. B. Blake, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 1408(1969).
- 139. P. W. Ball and A. B. Blake, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 1415(1969).
- A. Escuer, R. Vicente, B. Mernari, A. E. Gueddi and M. Pierrot, *Inorg. Chem.*, 36, 2511 (1997).
- T. Wen, L. K. Thompson, F. L. Lee and E. J. Gabe, *Inorg. Chem.*, 27, 4190(1988).
- C. Owens, R. S. Drago, I. Bertini, C. Luchinat and L. Banci, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 108, 3298(1986).
- 143. A. Dei, D. Gatteschi and E. Piergentili, Inorg. Chem., 18, 89(1979).
- 144. A. El-Dissouky and G. B. Mohamad, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 162, 263(1989).
- 145. a). P. D. W. Boyd, M. Gerloch and G. M. Sheldrick, J. Chem. Soc., Datton Trans., 1097(1974).
  - b). J. Saroja, V. Manivannan, P. Chakraborty and S. Pal, *Inorg. Chem.*, 34,3099(1995).
- 146. D. Philp and J. F. Stoddart, Angew. Chem. Int. Ed. Engl., 35, 1155(1996).
- 147. E. C. Constable, Prog. Inorg. Chem., 42, 67(1994).

- E. C. Constable, A. J. Edwards, M. J. Hannon and P. R. Raithby, J. Chem. Soc. Chem. Commun., 1991(1994).
- 149. M. Albrecht, H. Roettele and P. Burger, Chem. Eur. J., 2, 1264(1996).
- E. C. Constable, S. M. Elder, M. J. Hannon, A. Martin, P. R. Raithby and D. A. Tocher, J. Chem. Soc., Dailon Trans., 2423(1996).
- E. C. Constable, M. J. Hannon, A. J. Edwards and P. R. Raithby, J. Chem. Soc. Chem. Commun., 2669(1994).
- J. -M. Lehn, Supramolecular Chemistry Concepts and Perspectives, VCH, Weinheim 1995.
- 153. A. F. Williams, Pure Appl. Chem., 68, 1285(1996).
- C. Piguet, G. Bernardinelli, B. Bocguet, A. Quattropani and A. F. Williams, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 114, 7440(1992).
- 155. M. Albrecht and R. Frohlich, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 119, 1656(1997).
- Z. Xu, L. K. Thompson, D. O. Miller, J. Clase, J. A. K. Howard and A. E. Goeta, Inorg. Chem., 1998, in press.
- B. Kersting, M. Myer, R. E. Powers and K. N. Raymond, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 118, 7221(1996).
- M. J. Hannon, C. L. Painting, A. Jackson, J. Hamblin and W. Errington, J. Chem. Soc. Chem. Commun., 1087(1997).
- 159. N. Yoshida and K. Ichikawa, J. Chem. Soc. Chem. Commun., 1091(1997).

- L. J. Charbonnière, M. -F. Gilet, K. Berbauer and A. F. Williams, J. Chem. Soc. Chem. Commun., 39(1996).
- 161. E. Fleischer and S. Hawkinson, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 89, 720(1967).
- G. J. Palenik, D. J. Wester, U. Rychlewska and R. C. Palenik, *Inorg. Chem.* 15, 1814(1976).
- 163. A. B. P. Lever, J. Lewis and R. S. Nyholm, J. Chem. Soc., 1187(1964).
- 164. A. B. P. Lever, Inorganic Electronic Spectroscopy, Elsevier, New York, 1984.
- 165. O. Kahn, Advances In Inorganic Chemistry, 43,179(1995).
- V. L. Pecoraro, A. J. Stemmler, B. R. Gibney, J. J. Bodwin, H. Wang,
  J. W. Kampf and A. Barwinski, *Progress in Inorganic Chemistry*, 45, 83(1997).
- 167. K. S. Murray, Advances In Inorganic Chemistry, 43, 261(1995).
- 168. P. Knuuttila, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 58, 201(1982).
- L. K. Thompson, A. W. Hanson and B. S. Ramaswamy, *Inorg. Chem.*, 23, 2459(1984).
- 170. C. G. Barraclough and M. L. Tobe, J. Chem. Soc., 1993(1961).
- 171. J. Korvenranta, Suom, Kemistil. B, 46, 240(1973).
- H. Endres, D. Nothe, E. Rossato and W. E. Hatfield, *Inorg. Chem.*, 23, 3467(1984).
- S. L. Lambert, T. R. Felthouse and D. N. Hendrickson, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, L223, 29(1978).
- 174. H. Ökawa, M. Koikawa and S. Kida, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 469(1990).

- P. Chaudhuri, M. Winter, U. Flörke and H. -J. Haupt, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 232, 125(1995).
- C. Krebs, M. Winter, T. Weyhermüller, E. Bill, K. Wieghardt and P. Chaudhuri, J. Chem. Soc. Chem. Commun., 1913(1995).
- 177. W. P. Griffith and T. D. Wickens, J. Chem. Soc., A, 400(1968).
- 178. W. R. Scheidt, C. -C. Tsai and J. L. Hoard, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 93, 3867(1971).
- R. R. Ryan, S. H. Mastin and M. J. Reisfeld, *Acta Crystallogr., Sect B*, 25, 1270(1971).
- F. A. Cotton and G. Wilkinson, Advanced Inorganic Chemistry, 4th Ed. Wiley, Toronto, 1980.
- 181. a). D. Clark, J. Chem. Soc., 1615(1952).
  - b). N. N. Greenwood and A. Earnshaw, Chemistry of the Elements, Pergamon Press, 1984.
- J. A. Real, M. Moller, R. Ruiz, J. Faus, F. Lloret, M. Julve and M. Philoche-Levisalles, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 1483(1993).
- H. Okawa, N. Matsumoto, M. Koikawa and S. Kida, J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans., 1383(1990).
- Y. Journaux, O. Kahn, J. Zarembowitch, J. Galy and J. Jaud, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 105, 7585(1983).
- 185. I. Morgenstern-Badarau and H. H. Wickman, Inorg. Chem., 24, 1889(1985).
- I. Morgenstern-Badarau, D. Laroque, E. Bill, H. Winkler, A. X. Trautwein, F. Robert and Y. Jeannin, *Inorg. Chem.*, 30, 3180(1991).
- G. P. Gupta, G. Lang, L. A. Koch, B. Wang, W. R. Scheidt and C. A. Read, Inorg. Chem., 29, 4234(1990).
- D. B. Brown Ed., Mixed-valance Compounds, Theory and Applications in Chemistry, Physics, Geology and Biology, Reidel Publishing Co., Boston, 1980.
- 189. G. Blondin and J. J. Girerd, Chem. Rev., 90,1359(1990).
- 190. M. C. Feiters, Comm. Inorg. Chem., 11, 131(1990).
- 191. E. I. Solomon, M. J. Baldwin and M. D. Lowery, Chem. Rev., 92, 521(1992).
- K. Fukuyama, T. Hase, S. Matsumoto, T. Tsukihara, Y. Katsube, N. Tanaka, M. Kakudo, K. Wada and H. Matsubara, *Nature*, 286, 522(1980).
- 193. R. H. Holm and J. A. Ibers, Science, 209, 223(1980).
- C. R. Kissinger, E. T. Adman, L.C. Sieker and L. H. Jensen, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 110, 8721(1988).
- J. M. Berg and R. H. Holm, In "Metal Ions in Biology", T.G. Spiro Ed., Interscience, New York, 1988, Vol. 4, Chapter 2.
- 196. T. O'Sullivan and M. M. Millar, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 107, 4096(1985).
- 197. V. Papaefthymiou, M. M. Millar and E. Munck, Inorg. Chem., 25, 3010(1986).
- G. W. Brudvig, W. F. Beck and J. C. de Paula, Annu. Rev. Biophys. Chem., 18, 25(1989).
- 199. G. N. George, R. C. Prince and S. P. Cramer, Science, 243, 789(1989).

- 200. A. W. Rutherford, Trends Biol. Sci., 14, 227(1989).
- 201. J. B. Vincent and G. Christou, Adv. Inorg. Chem., 33, 197(1988).
- 202. M. B. Robin and P. Day, Adv. Inorg. Chem. Radiochem., 10, 247(1967).
- 203. S. Andersson and S. Jagner, Acta Chem. Scand., A42, 691(1988).
- W. Xukun, Z. Mingije, W. Jitao, W. Ruji and Y. Xinkai, J. Struct. Chem., 7, 142(1988).
- G. A. Bowmaker, A. Camus, B. W. Skelton and A. H. White, J. Chem. Soc., Dolton trans., 727(1990).
- 206. S. Andersson and S. Jagner, Acta Chem. Scand., 41A, 230(1987).
- 207. A. Bencini and F. Mani, Inorg. Chim. Acta, \$7,L9(1984).
- W. Clegg, J. R. Nichoson, D. Collison and C. D. Garner, Acta. Crystallogr., C44, 453(1988).
- 209. B. Scott and R. Willett, Inorg. Chem., 30, 110(1991).
- G. A.Nicholson, C. R. Lazarus and B. J. McCormick, *Inorg. Chem.*, 19,192(1980).
- 211. H. Huang, F. Kai, Y. Asai, M. Hirohata and M. Nakamura, Chem. Lett., 65(1991).
- 212. L. Cambi and L. Szego, Ber. Dich. Chem. Ges., 64, 2591(1931); 66, 656(1933).
- 213. A. H. Eward, R. L. Martin, E. Sinn and A.H. White, Inorg. Chem., 8, 1837(1969).
- 214. K. Stahl and I. Ymén, Acta Chem. Scand., A37, 729(1983).

- M. S. Haddad, W. D. Federer, M. W. Lynch and D. N. Hendrickson, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 102, 1468(1980).
- M. S. Haddad, M. W. Lynch, W. D. Feddrer and D.N. Hendrickson, *Inorg. Chem.*, 20, 123(1981).
- M. S. Haddad, W. D. Federer, M. W. Lynch and D.N. Hendrickson, *Inorg. Chem.*, 20, 131(1981).

## Appendix L Variation of Cu-N-N-Cu Dihedral Angle in Model Complex 1

\$ Cu2(pahap)cl4 rotate 22 ODIST 2 7 60.70.80.90.100.110.120 240 250 260 270 280 290 300 0 0 0 DU -1 1 N 0.715,180..0. -1 2 N 0.715.0..0. 1 3CU 2.0.120.0. 2 4CU 2.0,120.,1000. 3 5CL 2.25,180.,0. 4 6CL 2.25,180, 180. 3 7CL 2.25.90..0. 3 8 N 2.0.90.,180. 4 9CL 2.40.90.0 410 N 2090 180 1 11 C 1.3,120,,180 2 12 C 1.3.120.2000. 11 13 H 0.94.120.0. 11 14 H 0.94,120,180. 12 15 H 0.94 120.0 12 16 H 0.94 120 180 8 17 H 1.02,112,180. 8 18 H 1.02.112.0. 8 19 H 1.02.112.90 10 20 H 1.02 112 180 10 21 H 1 02 112 0 10 22 H 1 02 112 90

\$ Cu2(pahap)Br4 rotate 22 ODIST 2 6 60.70.80.90.100.110. 240. 250. 260. 270. 280. 290. 0.0.0.DU -1 1 N 0.715.180.0 -1 2 N 07150 0 1 3CU 20120 0 2 4CU 2.0,120.,1000. 3 5BR 2.40,180.,0. 4 6BR 2.40,180.,180. 3 7BR 2.40,90.0. 3 8 N 2.0.90.,180. 4 9BR 2.40.90.0. 410 N 2.0.90.180 1 11 C 1.3 120 180 2 12 C 1.3, 120., 2000. 11 13 H 0.94 120.0 11 14 H 0.94,120,180. 12 15 H 0.94,120,0. 12 16 H 0.94, 120, 180. 8 17 H 1.02,112,180. 8 18 H 1.02.112.0. 8 19 H 1.02,112,90 10 20 H 1.02.112.180 10 21 H 1.02 112 0 10 22 H 1.02 112 90

## Appendix III. Variation of Cu-N-N-Cu Dihedral Angle in Model Complex 3

## Appendix IV. Magnetic Moment vs. Temperature Data of Complex 40

T(K)	μ <b>(BM)</b>
4.010492324829102	5.586578845977783
7.940032482147217	5,213029384613037
10.85771560668945	5.150508880615234
15.57092761993408	5.037305355072021
20.39982223510742	4.959061622619629
25.43278884887695	4.912238121032715
30.45068359375	4,873547554016113
35,16568374633789	4.850412368774414
39.9327507019043	4.829337120056152
44.71278762817383	4.819337368011475
49.43575286865234	4.809353351593018
53.20673370361328	4.804387092590332
58.02073669433594	4,799537181854248
62.82270050048828	4.794541358947754
67.63068389892578	4,798819065093994
72.45671844482422	4.797260761260986
77.27071380615234	4.802405834197998
82.10276794433594	4.810930252075195
90.50921630859375	4.827937602996826
100.7329483032227	4.843751430511475
110.9747314453125	4.851213932037354
121.1984710693359	4.862908840179443
131.4582977294922	4.878834247589111
141.6579742431641	4.895988464355469
160.9259948730469	4.925793647766113
181.3915252685547	4.942158222198486
201.8510131835938	4.961419105529785
222.3045043945312	4.989858150482178
242,7760314941406	4.988963603973389
263.2355346679688	5.003232955932617
283.111328125	5.02127742767334
295.1343078613281	5.021476745605469

÷



